
 
 

 

Page 1 of 2 

City Council Virtual Work Session - Agenda  Monday, December 13, 2021 at 6:00 PM 

 

 CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA  

CITY COUNCIL VIRTUAL WORK SESSION – AGENDA 

3120 Stonecrest Blvd. Stonecrest, GA 30038 

Monday, December 13, 2021 at 6:00 PM 

Honorable Mayor Jason Lary, Sr. 

Council Member Jimmy Clanton, Jr. – District 1      Council Member Rob Turner – District 2 

Council Member Jazzmin Cobble – District 3      Council Member George Turner – District 4 

Council Member Tammy Grimes – District 5 

_____________________________________________________________ 

Citizen Access: Stonecrest YouTube Live Channel 

I. CALL TO ORDER: George Turner, Mayor Pro-Tem 

II. ROLL CALL: Sonya Isom, Deputy City Clerk 

III. AGENDA DISCUSSION ITEMS 

a. Discussion – Payroll, Meeting and Holiday Calendar – Janice Allen Jackson 

b. Discussion - GMA 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan – Steven McClure 

c. Discussion – Personnel Policies Manual – Steven McClure 

d. Discussion – Mauldin and Jenkins Expansion of Services – Gia Scruggs 

e. Presentation – American Relief Plan Act Management Presentation – Gia Scruggs 

f. Presentation – Draft Fleet Policy – Gia Scruggs 

g. Discussion - Parks Department Proposed FY22 Special Event City Calendar - Brandon 

Riley 

h. Discussion – Cooperation Agreement with the East Metro Dekalb CID - Jonathan Bartlett 

i. Discussion – ARC Freight Cluster Grant Award - Jonathan Bartlett 

j. Discussion - 2021-22 Paving Program Update and Capital Improvement Plan – Tom Udell 

IV. City Manager Update - Janice Allen Jackson 

1

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCp3rYzHzhZvd9Y7Ruf1O6kg


 
 

 

Page 2 of 2 

City Council Virtual Work Session - Agenda  Monday, December 13, 2021 at 6:00 PM 

a. Discussion - City Hall expansion, SAM's Club building assessment, Transition update 

and/or extension. 

V. ADJOURNMENT 

Americans with Disabilities Act 

The City of Stonecrest does not discriminate on the basis of disability in its programs, services, activities and employment 

practices. 

If you need auxiliary aids and services for effective communication (such as a sign language interpreter, an assistive listening 

device or print material in digital format) or reasonable modification to programs, services or activities contact the ADA 

Coordinator, Sonya Isom, as soon as possible, preferably 2 days before the activity or event. 

2



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

tmp1358  - Page 1 of 2 
  

SUBJECT: Payroll Calendar 
 

 

AGENDA SECTION: (check all that apply) 
 

☐ PRESENTATION      ☐ PUBLIC HEARING      ☐ CONSENT AGENDA     ☐ OLD BUSINESS   

☒ NEW BUSINESS       ☐ OTHER, PLEASE STATE: Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

 

CATEGORY: (check all that apply) 
 

☐ ORDINANCE ☐ RESOLUTION  ☐ CONTRACT  ☐ POLICY ☐  STATUS REPORT     

☒ OTHER, PLEASE STATE: Payroll Calendar 
 

 

ACTION REQUESTED: ☐ DECISION ☒ DISCUSSION, ☐ REVIEW, or ☐ UPDATE ONLY       
 

 

Previously Heard Date(s):  Click or tap to enter a date. & Click or tap to enter a date. 

Current Work Session:  Monday, December 13, 2021     

Current Council Meeting:       
 

 

SUBMITTED BY: Jim Nichols, Deputy City Manager 
 

PRESENTER: Janice Allen Jackson  
 

PURPOSE: To receive Council feedback on the proposed City payroll calendar for 2022 including City 

holidays. 

 

FACTS: Starting in January, the City will be responsible for the payroll of all staff who are hired into the 

organization. Staff is providing Council with a proposed payroll calendar that denotes the dates of payroll 

cutoff, paydays and holidays to be observed by the City in 2022. We are seeking Council’s input on the 

proposed payroll calendar. 

 

OPTIONS: Discussion only Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: No action required 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

(1) Attachment 1 -  2022 Payroll Calendar 

(2) Attachment 2 -  2022 Payroll Dates 

3

Item III. a.



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

tmp1358  - Page 2 of 2 
  

(3) Attachment 3 -  Click or tap here to enter text. 
(4) Attachment 4 -  Click or tap here to enter text. 
(5) Attachment 5 -  Click or tap here to enter text.  

4

Item III. a.



2022 Payroll Calendar 
 

 
Su 

 
Mo 

January 
Tu We Th 

 
Fr 

 
Sa 

 
Su 

 
Mo 

February 
Tu We Th 

 
Fr 

 
Sa 

 
Su 

 
Mo 

March 
Tu We Th 

 
Fr 

 
Sa 

26 27 28 29 30 31 1 
 

30 31 1 2 3 4 5 
 

27 28 1 2 3 4 5 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8  6 7 8 9 10 11 12  6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15  13 14 15 16 17 18 19  13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22  20 21 22 23 24 25 26  20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29  27 28 1 2 3 4 5  27 28 29 30 31 1 2 

30 31 1 2 3 4 5 
                

 
April May June 

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa  Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa  Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

27 28 29 30 31 1 2 
 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
 

29 30 31 1 2 3 4 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9  8 9 10 11 12 13 14  5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16  15 16 17 18 19 20 21  12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23  22 23 24 25 26 27 28  19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30  29 30 31 1 2 3 4  26 27 28 29 30 1 2 

 
 
 

Su 

 
 
 

Mo 

 
July 

Tu We 

 
 
 

Th 

 
 
 

Fr 

 
 
 

Sa 

 
 
 

Su 

 
 
 

Mo 

 
August 
Tu We Th 

 
 
 

Fr 

 
 
 

Sa 

 
 
 

Su 

 
 
 

Mo 

 
September 

Tu We Th 

 
 
 

Fr 

 
 
 

Sa 

26 27 28 29 30 1 2 
 

31 1 2 3 4 5 6 
 

28 29 30 31 1 2 3 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9  7 8 9 10 11 12 13  4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16  14 15 16 17 18 19 20  11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23  21 22 23 24 25 26 27  18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30  28 29 30 31 1 2 3  25 26 27 28 29 30 1 

31 1 2 3 4 5 6 
                

 
 
 

Su 

 
 
 

Mo 

 
October 
Tu We Th 

 
 
 

Fr 

 
 
 

Sa 

 
 
 

Su 

 
 
 

Mo 

 
November 

Tu We Th 

 
 
 

Fr 

 
 
 

Sa 

 
 
 

Su 

 
 
 

Mo 

 
December 

Tu We Th 

 
 
 

Fr 

 
 
 

Sa 

25 26 27 28 29 30 1 
 

30 31 1 2 3 4 5 
 

27 28 29 30 1 2 3 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8  6 7 8 9 10 11 12  4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15  13 14 15 16 17 18 19  11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22  20 21 22 23 24 25 26  18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29  27 28 29 30 1 2 3  25 26 27 28 29 30 31 

30 31 1 2 3 4 5 
                

 
     Holidays         Payday   Payroll cutoff 

 
 

5

Item III. a.



 

 

Calendar Year 2022 payroll and cut-off dates 

 The cut-off date is the last day that any items for changes (hours worked, request for time off, direct 

deposit changes, tax withholding changes, etc) must be submitted to payroll for the next payday. 

 

January 3, 2022  Holiday     July 25, 2022  payroll cut-off 

January 10, 2022 payroll cut-off    July 29, 2022  payday 

January 14, 2022 payday     August 9, 2022  payroll cut-off  

January 17, 2022 Holiday     August 15, 2022 payday 

January 25, 2022 payroll cut-off    August 25, 2022 payroll cut-off 

January 31, 2022 payday     August 31, 2022 payday 

February 9, 2022 payroll cut-off    September 5, 2022 Holiday 

February 15, 2022 payday     September 9, 2022 payroll cut-off 

February 22, 2022 payroll cut-off    September 15, 2022 payday 

February 28, 2022 payday     September 26, 2022 payroll cut-off 

March 9, 2022  payroll cut-off    September 30, 2022 payday 

March 15, 2022  payday     October 10, 2022 payroll cut-off 

March 25, 2022  payroll cut-off    October 14, 2022 payday 

March 31, 2022  payday     October 25, 2022 payroll cut-off 

April 11, 2022  payroll cut-off    October 31, 2022 payday 

April 15, 2022  payday     November 8, 2022 payroll cut-off 

April 25, 2022  payroll cut-off    November 11, 2022 Holiday 

April 29, 2022  payday     November 15, 2022 payday 

May 9, 2022  payroll cut-off    November 22, 2022 payroll cut-off 

May 13, 2022  payday     November 24-25, 2022 Holiday 

May 24, 2022  payroll cut-off    November 30, 2022 payday 

May 30, 2022  Holiday     December 9, 2022 payroll cut-off 

May 31, 2022  payday     December 15, 2022 payday 

June 9, 2022  payroll cut-off    December 21, 2022 payroll cut-off 

June 15, 2022  payday     December 23, 2022 Holiday 

June 24, 2022  payroll cut-off    December 26, 2022 Holiday 

June 30, 2022  payday     December 29, 2022 payday 

July 4, 2022  Holiday     December 30, 2022 Holiday 

July 11, 2022  payroll cut-off 

July 15, 2022  payday 
6

Item III. a.



2022 Stonecrest City Holidays 

 

        New Year's Day                 January 3 

        Martin Luther King            3rd Monday of Jan               

        Memorial Day                    Last Monday of May  

        Independence Day             July 4  

        Labor Day                          1st Monday of Sept 

        Veterans Day                      November 11 

        Thanksgiving (2)                4th Thursday and Friday of November 

        Christmas (2)                      December 23 and 26 

        New Year’s Eve                  December 30 

 

 

2022 Stonecrest Council Meetings 

 

Monday Jan 4 First Meeting of the Year 

Monday Jan 10 Work Session               

Monday Jan 24 Council Meeting 

Monday Feb 14 Work Session 

Monday Feb 28 Council Meeting 

Monday Mar 14 Work Session 

Monday Mar 28 Council Meeting 

Monday Apr 11 Work Session 

Monday Apr 25 Council Meeting 

Monday May 9 Work Session 

Monday May 23 Council Meeting 

Monday Jun13 Work Session 

Monday Jun 27 Council Meeting 

Monday Jul 11 Work Session 

Monday Jul 25 Council Meeting 

Monday Aug 8 Work Session 

Monday Aug 22 Council Meeting 

Monday Sep 12 Work Session 

Monday Sep 26 Council Meeting 

Monday Oct 10 Work Session 

Monday Oct 24 Council Meeting 

Monday Nov 14 Work Session 

Monday Nov 28 Council Meeting 

Monday Dec 12 Work Session 

Monday Dec 19 Council Meeting  

7

Item III. a.



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

tmp9AB0  - Page 1 of 2 
  

SUBJECT: GMA 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan 
 

 

AGENDA SECTION: (check all that apply) 
 

☐ PRESENTATION      ☐ PUBLIC HEARING      ☐ CONSENT AGENDA     ☒ OLD BUSINESS   

☐ NEW BUSINESS       ☐ OTHER, PLEASE STATE: Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

 

CATEGORY: (check all that apply) 
 

☐ ORDINANCE ☒ RESOLUTION  ☐ CONTRACT  ☐ POLICY ☐  STATUS REPORT     

☒ OTHER, PLEASE STATE:  Adoption Agreement 
 

 

ACTION REQUESTED: ☒ DECISION ☐ DISCUSSION, ☐ REVIEW, or ☐ UPDATE ONLY       
 

 

Previously Heard Date(s):  11/22/21 & Click or tap to enter a date. 

Current Work Session:  Click or tap to enter a date.     

Current Council Meeting: Monday, December 20, 2021     
 

 

SUBMITTED BY: Steven McClure, Acting HR Director 
 

PRESENTER: Steven McClure  
 

PURPOSE:   The purpose of this recommendation is to modify the vesting period of specific eligible class 

positions to assist in recruitment of highly qualified staff.  

 

FACTS: On November 22, 2021, council approved the City’s participation into the Georgia Municipal 

Association’s 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan.  The plan requires a graduated vesting period of five (5) 

years where eligible employees receive 20% vesting interest each year.  At the conclusion of five years 

employees receive 100% interest in the benefit. The City recommends offering immediate vesting for the 

City Manager and Department Heads as a recruitment strategy to strengthen our ability to attract top level 

professionals for our senior roles. All changes to the DC plan must be made by GMA and approved by 

Council via modification to the Adoption Agreement.  GMA will submit the necessary modifications to 

the Adoption Agreement for review and consideration. 

 

OPTIONS: Approve, Deny, Defer Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

8

Item III. b.



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

tmp9AB0  - Page 2 of 2 
  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

(1) Attachment 1 -  Adoption Agreement (to be submitted by GMA) 

(2) Attachment 2 -  Click or tap here to enter text. 
(3) Attachment 3 -  Click or tap here to enter text. 
(4) Attachment 4 -  Click or tap here to enter text. 
(5) Attachment 5 -  Click or tap here to enter text.  

9

Item III. b.



GMA 401(a) DC Plan 
City of Stonecrest 

THE GEORGIA MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION, INC. 
 

401(a) DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN 
 

Amended and Restated 
As of January 1, 2018 

 
 

RESOLUTION AND 
 

ADOPTION AGREEMENT 
 
 
 

City of Stonecrest, Georgia 
 
 
 

Administered by: 
Georgia Municipal Association, Inc. 

201 Pryor Street, SW 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Telephone:  404-688-0472 
Facsimile:   678-686-6289 

 

10

Item III. b.



- 1 - 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

 

RESOLUTION 

 WHEREAS, the City of Stonecrest, Georgia, (hereinafter referred to as the "Participating 
Employer") has determined that in the interest of attracting and retaining qualified employees, it 
wishes to offer a defined contribution plan, funded by employer contributions; 

 WHEREAS, the Participating Employer has also determined that it wishes to encourage 
employees' saving for retirement by offering  matching and/or  non-matching contributions; 

 WHEREAS, the Participating Employer has reviewed the Georgia Municipal 
Association, Inc. ("GMA") Defined Contribution Plan, as amended and restated effective as of 
January 1, 2017 ("Plan"); 

 WHEREAS, the Participating Employer wishes to  participate or  continue 
participating in the Plan to provide certain benefits to its employees, reduce overall 
administrative costs, and afford attractive investment opportunities; 

 WHEREAS, the Participating Employer is an Employer as defined in the Plan; 

 WHEREAS, the Participating Employer has executed an Adoption Agreement (and, if 
applicable, an Addendum) for the Plan; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of Stonecrest, Georgia ("Governing 
Authority") is authorized by law to adopt this resolution approving the Adoption Agreement 
(and, if applicable, Addendum) on behalf of the Participating Employer; 

 Therefore, the Governing Authority of the Participating Employer hereby resolves: 

Section 1.  The Participating Employer adopts the Plan and the Trust Agreement 
("Trust") for the Plan for its Employees. 

Section 2.  The Participating Employer acknowledges that the Board of Trustees of the 
GMA Defined Contribution and Deferred Compensation Plan ("Trustees") are only responsible 
for the Plan and have no responsibility for other employee benefit plans maintained by the 
Participating Employer. 

Section 3.   

(a) The Participating Employer hereby adopts the terms of the Adoption Agreement and 
any Addendum, which is attached hereto and made a part of this resolution.  The Adoption 
Agreement (and, if applicable, the Addendum) sets forth the Employees to be covered by the 
Plan, the benefits to be provided by the Participating Employer under the Plan, and any 
conditions imposed by the Participating Employer with respect to, but not inconsistent with, the 
Plan.  The Participating Employer reserves the right to amend its elections under the Adoption 
Agreement and any Addendum, so long as the amendment is not inconsistent with the Plan or the 
Internal Revenue Code or other applicable law and is approved by the Trustees of the Plan.  The 

11

Item III. b.



- 2 - 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

 

Participating Employer acknowledges that it is solely responsible for submitting Employer 
Contributions in accordance with the terms of this Adoption Agreement, including submitting 
said Employer Contributions as scheduled based on its Payroll Period or the end of the Plan 
Year, as applicable. 

(b) The Participating Employer acknowledges that it may not be able to rely on the 
opinion letter if it makes certain elections under the Adoption Agreement or the Addendum, and 
that the failure to properly complete the Adoption Agreement may result in a failure of the 
Participating Employer's Plan to be a qualified plan. 

Section 4.  The Participating Employer hereby authorizes Georgia Municipal Association, 
Inc. ("GMA"), the Provider who sponsors the Plan on behalf of the Trustees, to amend the Plan 
on its behalf as provided under Revenue Procedures 2017-41, 2011-49, and 2007-44.  The 
Participating Employer understands that the implementing amendment reads as follows: 

GMA will maintain a record of the Participating Employers, and GMA 
will make reasonable and diligent efforts to ensure that Participating Employers 
have actually received and are aware of all Plan amendments and that such 
Participating Employers adopt new documents when necessary.  The provisions 
of this subsection shall supersede other provisions of the Plan to the extent those 
other provisions are inconsistent. 

The Trustees or GMA, as directed by the Trustees, hereby reserves the 
right to terminate the Plan without consent of the Participating Employers or of 
Participants (or any Beneficiaries thereof) and, likewise, to amend the Plan 
without consent of the Participating Employers or of Participants (or any 
Beneficiaries thereof) to make desired changes in the design of the Plan.  A true 
copy of the resolution of the Trustees approving such amendment shall be 
delivered to the Administrator and the Participating Employers.  The Plan shall be 
amended in the manner and effective as of the date set forth in such resolution, 
and the Participating Employers, Employees, Participants, Beneficiaries, the 
Administrator, and all others having any interest under the Plan shall be bound 
thereby.   

On and after February 17, 2005, GMA shall have the authority to advise 
and prepare amendments to the Plan, for approval by the Trustees, on behalf of all 
Participating Employers, including those Participating Employers who have 
adopted the Plan prior to the January 1, 2018, restatement of the Plan, for changes 
in the Code, the regulations thereunder, revenue rulings, other statements 
published by Internal Revenue Service, including model, sample, or other 
required good faith amendments (but only if their adoption will not cause such 
Plan to be individually designed), and for corrections of prior approved plans.  
These amendments shall be applied to all Participating Employers.  Any 
amendment prepared by the Provider and approved by the Trustees will be 
provided by the Administrator to Participating Employers.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing paragraphs, effective on or after June 27, 2016, for any Participating 
Employer as of either:  

12

Item III. b.



- 3 - 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

 

• the date the Internal Revenue Service requires the Participating 
Employer to file Form 5300 as an individually designed plan as a 
result of an amendment by the Participating Employer to 
incorporate a type of Plan not allowable in a pre-approved plan, as 
described in Revenue Procedure 2017-41; or  

• as of the date of the Plan is otherwise considered an individually 
designed plan due to the nature and extent of the amendments,  

such Participating Employer shall execute a resolution to adopt any amendments that are 
approved by the Trustees after the date under subparagraph (1) or (2) above, as applicable, 
within the earlier of (i) ninety (90) days after such Trustees' approval, or (ii) if applicable, the 
remedial amendment period under Code Section 401(b) as applicable to governmental plans.   If 
the Participating Employer is required to obtain a determination letter for any reason in order to 
maintain reliance on the opinion letter, GMA's authority to amend the Plan on behalf of the 
Participating Employer is conditioned on the Plan receiving a favorable determination letter. The 
Participating Employer further understands that, if it does not give its authorization hereunder or, 
in the alternative, adopt another pre-approved plan, its Plan will become an individually designed 
plan and will not be able to rely on the pre-approved plan opinion letter. 

Section 5. 

(a) The Participating Employer shall abide by the terms of the Plan and the Trust, 
including amendments to the Plan made under Section 4 and to the Trust made by the Trustees of 
the Plan, all investment, administrative, and other service agreements of the Plan and the Trust, 
and all applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code and other applicable law. 

(b) The Participating Employer accepts the administrative services to be provided by 
GMA and any services provided by a Service Manager as delegated by the Trustees.  The 
Participating Employer acknowledges that fees will be imposed with respect to the services 
provided and that such fees may be deducted from the Participants' Accounts. 

Section 6. 

(a) The Participating Employer may terminate its participation in the Plan, including but 
not limited to, its contribution requirements, if it takes the following actions: 

(i) A resolution must be adopted terminating its participation in the Plan. 

(ii) The resolution must specify when the participation will end. 

 The Trustees shall determine whether the resolution complies with the Plan, and all 
applicable federal and state laws, shall determine an appropriate effective date, and shall provide 
appropriate forms to terminate ongoing participation.  However, distributions under the Plan of 
existing accounts to Participants will be made in accordance with the Plan. 

13

Item III. b.



- 4 - 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

 

(b) The Participating Employer acknowledges that the Plan contains provisions for 
involuntary Plan termination. 

Section 7.  The Participating Employer acknowledges that all assets held in connection 
with the Plan, including all contributions to the Plan, all property and rights acquired or 
purchased with such amounts and all income attributable to such amounts, property or rights 
shall be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of Participants and their Beneficiaries under the 
Plan.  No part of the assets and income of the Plan shall be used for, or diverted to, purposes 
other than for the exclusive benefit of Participants and their Beneficiaries and for defraying 
reasonable expenses of the Plan.  All amounts of compensation deferred pursuant to the Plan, all 
property and rights acquired or purchased with such amounts and all income attributable to such 
amounts, property or rights held as part of the Plan, shall be transferred to the Trustees to be 
held, managed, invested and distributed as part of the Trust Fund in accordance with the 
provisions of the Plan.  All contributions to the Plan must be transferred by the Participating 
Employer to the Trust Fund.  All benefits under the Plan shall be distributed solely from the 
Trust Fund pursuant to the Plan. 

Section 8.  This resolution and the Adoption Agreement (and any Addendum) shall be 
submitted to the Trustees for their approval.  The Trustees shall determine whether the resolution 
complies with the Plan, and, if it does, shall provide appropriate forms to the Participating 
Employer to implement participation in the Plan.  The Trustees may refuse to approve an 
Adoption Agreement (and any Addendum) by an Employer that does not have legal authority to 
participate in the Plan. The Governing Authority hereby acknowledges that it is responsible to 
assure that this resolution and the Adoption Agreement (and any Addendum) are adopted and 
executed in accordance with the requirements of applicable law. 

Section 9.  As provided in Revenue Procedure 2017-41, the Participating Employer may 
relay on the Plan's Opinion Letter, provided that the Participating Employer's Plan is identical to 
the GMA Plan, and the Participating Employer has not amended or made any modifications to 
the Plan other than to choose the options permitted under the Plan and Adoption Agreement. 

14

Item III. b.



- 5 - 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

 

  

Adopted by the Governing Authority on  _________________________, _______, in 
accordance with applicable law. 

 
 By:        
  Signature 
 
 
          
  Name and Title 
 
Attest:  
 
Date:  
 
[Governing Authority should assure that applicable law is followed in the adoption and 
execution of this resolution.]

 

15

Item III. b.



AA-1 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

 

GMA 401(a) DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN 
ADOPTION AGREEMENT 

 
ADMINISTRATOR 

 
Georgia Municipal Association, Inc. 

201 Pryor Street, SW 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Telephone:  404-688-0472 
Facsimile:   678-686-6289 

 
 

PARTICIPATING EMPLOYER 
 
 Name:  City of Stonecrest, Georgia 
 
 

GOVERNING AUTHORITY 
 
 Name: Mayor and Council of the City of Stonecrest, Georgia 
 Address: 3120 Stonecrest Blvd., Suite 190, Stonecrest, GA 30038 
 Phone: (770) 224-0200 
 Facsimile: (470) 299-4214 
 Title of Person Authorized to receive Official Notices from the Plan or 

GMA: Director of Human Resources  
 

DISCLOSURE OF OTHER 401(a) PLAN(S) 
 
 This Participating Employer  does or  does not have an existing defined contribution 
plan(s).  If the Participating Employer does have one or more defined contribution plans, the 
Governing Authority must provide the plan name, name of the plan's provider, and such other 
information requested by the Administrator. 

 
TYPE OF ADOPTION AND EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
NOTE:  This Adoption Agreement, with the accompanying Master Plan Document, is designed 
to comply with Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a), as applicable to a governmental qualified 
defined contribution plan, and is part of the GMA Defined Contribution and Deferred 
Compensation Program.  Plan provisions designed to comply with applicable provisions of 
additional changes in federal law and guidance from the Internal Revenue Service under Internal 
Revenue Service Notice 2017-37 (the 2017 Cumulative List) are effective as of the applicable 
effective dates set forth in the Adoption Agreement and Master Plan Document.  By adopting 

16

Item III. b.



AA-2 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

 

this Adoption Agreement, with its accompanying Master Plan Document, the Participating 
Employer is adopting a plan document intended to comply with Internal Revenue Code Section 
401(a) and the 2017 Cumulative List with the applicable effective dates. 
 
This Adoption Agreement is for the following purpose (check one): 
 

 This is a new defined contribution plan adopted by the Participating Employer for 
its Employees effective _______ (insert effective date of this Adoption 
Agreement but not earlier than the beginning of the plan year in which the 
plan is adopted), with respect to Contributions as approved by the Board of 
Trustees below. 

 
 Check this box if any non-conforming provisions will be included in Plan 

provisions.  An Addendum must be requested from GMA to be completed 
as part of the Adoption Agreement. 

 
 This is an amendment and restatement of the current GMA 401(a) Defined 

Contribution Plan or other defined contribution plan of the Participating 
Employer, the effective date of which shall be ______________, ______ (insert 
effective date of this Adoption Agreement but not earlier than the first day of 
the plan year in which the plan is restated or the beginning of the plan year 
in which the plan is adopted).  This Adoption Agreement is intended to replace 
and serve as an amendment and restatement of the Employer's preexisting plan, 
which became effective on __________________, ______ (insert original 
effective date of preexisting plan).   

 
 Check this box if (i) any preexisting plan provisions will be preserved 

from a superseded non-GMA plan or (ii) any non-conforming provisions 
will be included in Plan provisions.  An Addendum must be completed as 
part of the Adoption Agreement. 

 
 This is an amendment to be effective as of December 13, 2021, (insert effective 

date of this Adoption Agreement but not earlier than then beginning of the 
remedial amendment period for such amendment) of the current GMA 401(a) 
Defined Contribution Plan previously adopted by the Participating Employer, 
which was originally effective December 1, 2021, as follows (must specify 
elective provisions in this Adoption Agreement): 

 
 This is an amendment to provide for immediate Vesting for Eligible 

Employees who are employed in the position of City Manager or as a 
Department Director as defined by the City (see Addendum).  

 

 Check this box if any non-conforming provisions will be included in Plan 
provisions. An Addendum must be completed as part of the Adoption 
Agreement. 

 
 

17

Item III. b.



AA-3 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

 

 
PLAN YEAR 

 
Plan Year means the Participating Employer’s Fiscal Year.  For purposes of the limitations under 
Code Section 415(c) set forth in Article V of the Master Plan Document, the limitation year 
means the calendar year. 
 
The Employer’s Fiscal Year starts on: January 1 (insert month and day e.g., July 1). 
 

COVERED DEPARTMENTS 
 
 A Participating Employer may cover all of its departments in the Plan or only those listed 
(check one): 
 

 All Departments 
 

 Covered Departments (must specify):__________________________________ 
  ________________________________________________________________ 
   
 

ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES 
 
 Only Employees as defined in the Plan may be covered by the Adoption Agreement.  
Independent contractors may not participate in the Plan.  Subject to other conditions in the Plan 
and this Adoption Agreement, the following Employees of the Covered Departments are eligible 
to participate in the Plan, provided that they satisfy any additional eligibility requirements 
specified under "Other Eligibility Requirements" below (check one): 
 

 All 
 

 All with the following exclusions: 
 Municipal Legal Officer 
 Elected or appointed officials 
 Other1 (must specify and clearly define the ineligible classification of  

            employees):  
__________________________________________    
           

 
 Only employees in any eligible 457(b) plan of the Employer.  Note:  Please check 

this box if the sole purpose of this Plan is to provide Employer contributions to 
match Employee contributions to any eligible 457(b) Plan of the Employer. 

 

 
1 Do not specify the inclusion or exclusion of a participant by using the name of the employee. 

18

Item III. b.



AA-4 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

 

 Only employees in the Employer's GMA 457(b) plan.  Note:  Please check this 
box if the sole purpose of this Plan is to provide Employer contributions to match 
Employee contributions to the Employer's GMA 457(b) Plan.  

 
 Other1 (must specify and clearly define the classification of Eligible 

Employees; Eligible Employees shall not include non-governmental 
employees, independent contractors, or any other ineligible individuals):   
_________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                                 . 

 
No employee may be excluded based on the attainment of a maximum age. 
 
The Employer shall provide the Administrator with the name, address, Social Security Number, 
and date of birth for each Eligible Employee, as defined by the Adoption Agreement.   
 

OTHER ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS 
 
 Minimum Hours Per Week -- A Participating Employer may prescribe a minimum 
number of hours that an Employee must be scheduled and normally work in order to be an 
Eligible Employee under the Plan.  The Employer hereby elects the following (elect either “No 
Minimum Hours Required” or “Minimum Hours Required” below.  If you elect to have a 
minimum hour requirement you must specify the number of hours required in the space provided 
below).  The Minimum Hour Requirement below only applies to common law Employees of the 
Employer and does not apply to elected or appointed officials. 
 

 No Minimum Number of Hours Required 

 Minimum Hours Required Per Week (regularly scheduled): 

 40 (must not exceed 40 hours/week) 

  Other Minimum Hour Requirement (must specify):_____________________. 
 

Exceptions:  If a different minimum hour requirement applies to a particular class or classes of 
Eligible Employees, please specify below the classes to whom the different requirement applies 
and indicate the minimum hour requirement applicable to them.  
 
Class(es) of Eligible Employees to whom exception applies (must specify - specific positions 
are permissible; specific individuals may not be named): _________________. 

Minimum hour requirement applicable to excepted Eligible Employees: 

 No Minimum Number of Hours Required 

 Minimum Hours Required Per Week (regularly scheduled): 

 ____________ (must not exceed 40 hours/week) 

19

Item III. b.



AA-5 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

 

  Other Minimum Hour Requirement (must specify):_____________________. 
 
 If any Eligible Employee ceases to meet the Minimum Hour Requirement (if any), he or 
she becomes ineligible for additional contributions until he or she once again meets the 
requirement.  It is the Participating Employer's responsibility to monitor this requirement and to 
report to the Administrator a change in employee eligibility. 

 Waiting Period -- A Participating Employer may establish a waiting period before an 
Eligible Employee may become a Participant in the Plan.  The Employer hereby elects the 
following (elect "no waiting period" or one of the waiting period options below): 
 

 No waiting period.  An Eligible Employee may become a Participant 
immediately upon meeting the eligibility conditions of the Plan. 

 
 A waiting period described under one of the following options (check one): 

 
 Minimum Period of Service (please complete items below): 

 
The waiting period for participation in the Plan shall be _______________  
(not to exceed 12 months) of service, calculated from the commencement 
of the Eligible Employee's employment with the Employer.   
 
Eligible Employees who are employed on the date the Plan is adopted     

 will be  will not be given credit for prior service as an Employee for 
purposes of satisfying the waiting period. 
 

 Different periods of service  will be  will not be added together to 
determine whether the waiting period has been satisfied. 

 
 Minimum Period of Contributions to 457(b) Plan (please complete 

items below): 
 

The waiting period for participation in the Plan shall be _______________ 
(not to exceed 12 months) of the Eligible Employee's making 
contributions to the Employer's eligible 457(b) plan(s).   
 
Eligible Employees who are employed on the date the Plan is adopted     

 will be  will not be given credit for prior contributions made to the 
eligible 457(b) plan(s) for purposes of satisfying the waiting period.  
 
After initially meeting the waiting period, any interruption of employee 
contributions to the eligible 457(b) plan(s)  will  will not require the 
employee to meet another waiting period to qualify for matching 
contributions.   
 

20

Item III. b.



AA-6 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

 

Different periods of service in which deferrals are made as an Eligible 
Employee   will  will not be added together to determine if the waiting 
period has been satisfied. 

 
Exceptions:  If a different waiting period requirement applies to a particular class or classes of 
Eligible Employees, please specify below the classes to whom the different requirement applies 
and indicate the waiting period requirement applicable to them.  
 
Class(es) of Eligible Employees to whom exception applies (must specify - specific positions 
are permissible; specific individuals may not be named): _________________. 

Waiting period requirement applicable to excepted Eligible Employees: 

 No waiting period.  An Eligible Employee may become a Participant 
immediately upon meeting the eligibility conditions of the Plan.  

 
 A waiting period described under one of the following options (check one): 

 
 Minimum Period of Service (please complete items below): 

 
The waiting period for participation in the Plan shall be _______________ 
(not to exceed 12 months) of service, calculated from the commencement 
of the Eligible Employee's employment with the Employer.   
 
Eligible Employees who are employed on the date the Plan is adopted     

 will be  will not be given credit for prior service as an Employee for 
purposes of satisfying the waiting period. 
 

 Different periods of service  will be  will not be added together to 
determine whether the waiting period has been satisfied. 

 
 Minimum Period of Contributions to 457(b) Plan (please complete 

items below): 
 

The waiting period for participation in the Plan shall be _______________ 
(not to exceed 12 months) of the Eligible Employee's making 
contributions to the Employer's eligible 457(b) plan(s).   
 
Eligible Employees who are employed on the date the Plan is adopted     

 will be  will not be given credit for prior contributions made to the 
eligible 457(b) plan(s) for purposes of satisfying the waiting period.  
 
After initially meeting the waiting period, any interruption of employee 
contributions to the eligible 457(b) plan(s)  will  will not require the 
employee to meet another waiting period to qualify for matching 
contributions.   
 

21

Item III. b.



AA-7 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

 

Different periods of service in which deferrals are made as an Eligible 
Employee   will  will not be added together to determine if the waiting 
period has been satisfied. 

 
EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

 
 A Participating Employer may make Matching Contributions and/or Non-Matching 
Contributions as specified below.  Matching Contributions and Non-Matching Contributions that 
are tied to Payroll Periods (as defined in this Adoption Agreement) must be remitted to the 
Administrator no later than 15 business days after the end of the Payroll Period.  Annual 
Contributions must be remitted to the Administrator no later than 15 days after the end of the 
Plan Year.  A Participating Employer may establish one or more classes of employees for 
contribution purposes in this Adoption Agreement. However, no employee may be excluded 
from contributions based on the attainment of a maximum age.   
  
 The Participating Employer hereby elects to make contributions as follows (check 
matching, non-matching, or both as applicable): 
 

 Matching Contributions 
 
 Employer Contributions shall be made to match all or a portion of a Participant's 
contribution to an eligible 457(b) deferred compensation plan, including but not limited to the 
GMA Deferred Compensation Plan.  The Employer must identify the class or classes of 
Participants for whom contributions will be made and the contribution formula: 
 
Class A Matching Contributions will be made on the following basis for Class A Participants: 
 
Class A Participants are (check one): 
 

 All Eligible Employees 
 Other (must specify; specific positions are permissible; must be 

Eligible Employees; specific individuals may not be named): 
________________________________________________ 

 
The Employer elects the following matching contribution formula for Class A Participants 
(check and complete "Percentage Match," "Flat Dollar Match," or "Other Formula" 
below):  

 
 Percentage Match:  For each Payroll Period in which the Participant contributed 

to the GMA 457(b) Deferred Compensation Plan (insert plan name), an 
eligible 457(b) Plan of the Employer, the Employer will contribute 100% (insert 
percentage) of the dollar amount contributed to the 457(b) Plan.  (For example, if 
an Employer elects a 50% match, then for every $10 the Participant contributes to 
an eligible 457(b) Plan, the Employer will contribute $5 to this Plan).   

 

22

Item III. b.



AA-8 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

 

Cap on Percentage Match - The Employer may wish to establish a cap on its 
matching contributions, so that the percentage (%) match amount indicated above 
cannot exceed a certain amount per Payroll Period.  The Employer hereby elects 
the following cap on its percentage matching contribution (check and fill in $ or 
% of compensation limit to apply below, or check "no cap" below): 

 
 Flat Dollar Cap: In no event will Matching Contributions made on behalf 

of a Participant exceed a flat dollar amount equal to (complete as 
applicable):  

 
$____________ per weekly Payroll Period 
$____________ per bi-weekly Payroll Period 

  $____________ per semi-monthly Payroll Period 
  $____________ per monthly Payroll Period 

 
[Note: If the Employer has more than one Payroll Period, you should 
indicate dollar cap that will apply with respect to each Payroll Period 
e.g., $100 per weekly Payroll Period, and $200 per bi-weekly Payroll 
Period].   

 
 Cap Equal to Percentage of Total Compensation: In no event will 

Matching Contributions made on behalf of a Participant exceed 4% of the 
Participant's §457(e)(5) includable compensation (gross income from the 
Employer) per Payroll Period. 

 
 No Cap 

 

 Flat Dollar Match:  For each Payroll Period in which the Participant contributed 
at least $ _______ (may be $1 to $25) to an eligible 457(b) Plan of the Employer, 
the Participating Employer will contribute a flat dollar amount as shown below 
(complete as applicable):  

 
 

$_______ per weekly Payroll Period 
$_______ per bi-weekly Payroll Period 
$_______ per semi-monthly Payroll Period 
$_______ per monthly Payroll Period 

 
 Other Formula for Calculating Matching Contributions (must specify 

formula that complies with definitely determinable requirements of Treasury 
Regulations Section 1.401-1(b)(1)(i) and does not violate limits applicable to 
governmental plans under Code Sections 401(a)(17) and 415): 

   
  __________________________________________________________________ 
  __________________________________________________________________ 
 

23

Item III. b.



AA-9 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

 

 
[Do not complete following section on Class B Matching Contributions if all Eligible 

Employees are included in Class A above]. 
 
Class B Matching Contributions will be made on the following basis for Class B Participants: 

 
Class B Participants are (must specify; specific positions are permissible; must be Eligible 
Employees; specific individuals may not be named):  
_____________________________________________________________________________. 

 
The Employer elects the following matching contribution formula for Class B Participants 
(check and complete "Percentage Match," "Flat Dollar Match," or "Other Formula" 
below):  

 
 Percentage Match:  For each Payroll Period in which the Participant contributed 

to ______________________________________________________________ 
(insert plan name), an eligible 457(b) Plan of the Employer, the Employer will 
contribute ___________% (insert percentage) of the dollar amount contributed 
to the 457(b) Plan.  (For example, if an Employer elects a 50% match, then for 
every $10 the Participant contributes to an eligible 457(b) Plan, the Employer will 
contribute $5 to this Plan).   

 
Cap on Percentage Match - The Employer may wish to establish a cap on its 
matching contributions, so that the percentage (%) match amount indicated above 
cannot exceed a certain amount per Payroll Period.  The Employer hereby elects 
the following cap on its percentage matching contribution (check and fill in $ or 
% of compensation limit to apply below, or check "no cap" below): 

 
 Flat Dollar Cap:  In no event will Matching Contributions made on 

behalf of a Participant exceed a flat dollar amount equal to (complete as 
applicable):  

 
$____________ per weekly Payroll Period 
$____________ per bi-weekly Payroll Period 

  $____________ per semi-monthly Payroll Period 
  $____________ per monthly Payroll Period 

 
[Note: If the Employer has more than one Payroll Period, you should 
indicate dollar cap that will apply with respect to each Payroll Period 
e.g., $100 per weekly Payroll Period, and $200 per bi-weekly Payroll 
Period].   

 
 Cap Equal to Percentage of Total Compensation: In no event will 

Matching Contributions made on behalf of a Participant exceed 
_________% of the Participant's §457(e)(5) includable compensation 
(gross income from the Employer) per Payroll Period. 

24

Item III. b.



AA-10 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

 

 
 No Cap 

 

 Flat Dollar Match:  For each Payroll Period in which the Participant contributed 
at least $ _______ (may be $1 to $25) to an eligible 457(b) Plan of the Employer, 
the Participating Employer will contribute a flat dollar amount as shown below 
(complete as applicable):  

 
$_______ per weekly Payroll Period 
$_______ per bi-weekly Payroll Period 
$_______ per semi-monthly Payroll Period 
$_______ per monthly Payroll Period 

 
 

 Other Formula for Calculating Matching Contributions (must specify 
formula that complies with definitely determinable requirements of Treasury 
Regulations Section 1.401-1(b)(1)(i) and does not violate limits applicable to 
governmental plans under Code Sections 401(a)(17) and 415): 

  _________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

[Skip to "Payroll Period" below if Employer is not going to make Non-Matching 
Contributions] 

 
 Non-Matching Contributions 

 
 The Employer hereby elects to make contributions to the Plan without regard to a 
Participant's contribution to an eligible 457(b) plan(s).  The Employer must identify the class or 
classes of Participants for whom these contributions will be made and the contribution formula: 
 

Non-Matching Contributions shall be made on the following basis for Class C 
Participants: 

 
  Class C Participants are (check one): 
 

 All Eligible Employees 
 Other (must specify; specific positions are permissible; must be 

Eligible Employees; specific individuals may not be named):  
__________________________________________ 

 
 The Employer elects the following contribution formula for Class C Participants (check 
one): 
 

25

Item III. b.



AA-11 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

 

 Year-End Contributions:  A one-time Plan Year-end contribution of 
$_________ or _______% of Compensation per Participant. 

 
 11% of Compensation per Participant for each Payroll Period. 

 
 A flat dollar amount per Payroll Period as shown below (complete as 

applicable): 
 

$_______ per weekly Payroll Period 
$_______ per bi-weekly Payroll Period 
$_______ per semi-monthly Payroll Period 
$_______ per monthly Payroll Period 

 
 

 Other Formula for Calculating Non-Matching Contributions (must 
specify formula that complies with definitely determinable 
requirements of Treasury Regulations Section 1.401-1(b)(1)(i) and 
does not violate limits applicable to governmental plans under Code 
Sections 401(a)(17) and 415): 

   ____________________________________________________________ 
   ____________________________________________________________ 

    
[Do not complete the following section on Class D Non-Matching Contributions if all 

Eligible Employees are included in Class C above]. 
 
Non-Matching Contributions shall be made on the following basis for Class D Participants:   
 

Class D Participants are (must specify; specific positions are permissible; must 
be Eligible Employees; specific individuals may not be named): 
________________________________________________. 

 
 The Employer elects the following contribution formula for Class D Participants (check 
one): 
 

 Year-End Contributions:  A one-time Plan Year-end contribution of 
$______________ or ______% of Compensation per Participant. 

 
 ______% of Compensation per Participant for each Payroll Period. 

 
 A flat dollar amount per Pay Period as shown below (complete as 

applicable): 
 
$_______ per weekly Payroll Period 
$_______ per bi-weekly Payroll Period 
$_______ per semi-monthly Payroll Period 
$_______ per monthly Payroll Period 

26

Item III. b.



AA-12 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

 

 
 Other Formula for Calculating Non-Matching Contributions (must specify 

formula that complies with definitely determinable requirements of 
Treasury Regulations Section 1.401-1(b)(1)(i) and does not violate 
limits applicable to governmental plans under Code Sections 
401(a)(17) and 415): 

   ____________________________________________________________ 
   ____________________________________________________________ 
   ____________________________________________________________ 
   ____________________________________________________________ 
 
For purposes of computing non-matching contributions, "Compensation" is defined in the Plan, 
subject to the limits imposed by Georgia Code Section 47-1-13(b) and Internal Revenue Code 
Section 401(a)(17), as adjusted for cost-of-living increases under Internal Revenue Code Section 
401(a)(17)(B). 
 
The Participating Employer must monitor contributions to the Plan on behalf of a Participant to 
this Plan and any other 401(a) plan maintained by the Participating Employer to confirm 
compliance with Internal Revenue Code Section 415 and Article 5 of the Master Plan.  To the 
extent an amendment to this Adoption Agreement is needed to satisfy the Internal Revenue Code 
Section 415 limit that could not otherwise be provided for in the above Sections, please complete 
as applicable: 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

COMPENSATION 
 

Compensation Paid After Severance From Employment -- A Participating Employer 
may elect to include certain post-severance payments in Compensation for purposes of 
computing contributions under the Plan, but only if these amounts are paid no later than 2½ 
months after severance from employment or, if later, the end of the calendar year that includes a 
Participant's severance from employment, and only if it is a payment that, absent a severance 
from employment, would have been paid to the Participant while the Participant continued in 
employment with the Participating Employer.  The Participating Employer makes the following 
election with respect to including post-severance payments in Compensation (Note: if the 
following is not completed, no post-severance payments will be included in Compensation by 
default): 

 
 No post-severance payments will be included in Compensation for purposes of 

computing contributions under the Plan (if this box is checked, skip to "Payroll 
Period" below). 

 

27

Item III. b.



AA-13 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

 

 For purposes of calculating contributions under the Plan, the following post-
severance payments will be included in Compensation, as long as: 1) they are paid 
no later than 2½ months after severance from employment or, if later, the end of 
the calendar year that includes the Participant's severance from employment; and 
2) absent a severance from employment, they would have been paid to the 
Participant while the Participant continued in employment with the Participating 
Employer  (check all that apply): 

 
 regular compensation paid after severance from employment for services 

rendered prior to severance during the Participant's regular working hours 
 

 compensation paid after severance from employment for services rendered 
prior to severance outside the Participant's regular work hours (such as 
overtime or shift differential), commissions, bonuses, or other similar 
payments 

 
 post-severance payments for unused accrued bona fide sick, vacation or  

other leave, but only if the Participant would have been able to use the 
leave if employment had continued 

 
 Other:            

           
           

 
VESTING FOR EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

 
 A Participating Employer may establish a vesting schedule for Employer Contributions.  
This means that if the Participant leaves the Participating Employer's employment prior to 
completing a specified period of service (not to exceed 5 years), the Participant forfeits all or part 
of the Employer's Contributions.   However, upon Death or Disability or the termination of the 
Plan, the Participant is 100% vested in the Participant's Employer Contributions, notwithstanding 
any vesting schedule.  If a vesting schedule is established, it is the Employer's responsibility to 
calculate the Eligible Employee's service and report it to the Administrator.  Unless otherwise 
specified below, for purposes of vesting, service means the number of years and complete 
months of service of a Participant as an Eligible Employee of the Employer and the Participant's 
service begins with the first day of employment as an Eligible Employee.  The Employer hereby 
elects the following (check one): 
 

 Immediate Vesting.  No vesting schedule.  Employer Contributions are 100% 
vested from the time credited to the Participant's Account (if this option is 
elected, do not complete the rest of this section). 

 
 Cliff Vesting.  Employer Contributions are 100% vested after a Participant has 

been employed as an Eligible Employee for ___ years (not to exceed 5 years) 
(the "Vesting Period"). Matching contributions remain 0% vested until the 
Participant satisfies the full Vesting Period.  

28

Item III. b.



AA-14 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

 

 
 Graduated Vesting Schedule.  Employer Contributions are vested on the 

following graduated scale (insert vesting % for each completed year of service 
as an Eligible Employee. Note: Maximum waiting period for 100% vesting 
may not exceed 5 years):  

 
Completed Years 

of Service as Eligible Employee 
 
Vested % 

  

1 year 
2 years 
3 years 
4 years 
5 years 

20% 
40% 
60% 
80% 
100 % 
 

   
Complete the following items if Employer has elected Cliff Vesting or Graduated Vesting: 
 

In determining the Participant's total years of service for vesting purposes, Eligible 
Employees who are employed on the date the Plan is adopted by the Employer (check 
one):   will be   will not be given credit for prior service as an Eligible Employee. 
 
In determining the Participant's total years of service for vesting purposes, different 
periods of employment as an Eligible Employee (check one):   will be added together 

 will not be added together   will be added together if the Participant is reemployed 
with the Employer before completing a period of separation of ___________ years (not 
to exceed 5 years). 

 
TREATMENT OF FORFEITURES 

 
 If a Participant separates from service, the Participant's non-vested Employer 
Contributions shall be forfeited as of the date of the Participant's Separation from Service.  
Amounts forfeited during a Plan Year shall be held unallocated until they are used to reduce or 
otherwise supplement Employer Contributions as of the earliest possible date such contributions 
are required to be made to the Plan.  If there are no future Employer Contributions (as in the case 
of a frozen plan), forfeitures shall be used for administrative expenses; after which, any 
remaining forfeitures shall be allocated to Participants' Accounts. 
 

MODIFICATION OF THE TERMS OF THE ADOPTION AGREEMENT 
 
 If a Participating Employer desires to amend any of its elections contained in this 
Adoption Agreement (or any Addendum), the Governing Authority by official action must adopt 
an amended Adoption Agreement (and any Addendum, if applicable) and forward the amended 
Adoption Agreement (and any Addendum) to the Trustees for approval.  The amended Adoption 
Agreement (and Addendum) is not effective until approved by the Trustees and other procedures 
required by the Plan have been implemented. 

29

Item III. b.



AA-15 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

 

 
The Administrator will inform the Participating Employer of any amendments made by 

the Trustees to the Plan.  If there are no future Employer Contributions (as in the case of a frozen 
plan), forfeitures shall be used for administrative expenses, and, if forfeitures remain, shall be 
allocated to Participants' accounts. 
 

TERMINATION OF THE ADOPTION AGREEMENT 
 

 This Adoption Agreement (and any Addendum) may be terminated only in accordance 
with the Plan. 

The Administrator will inform the Participating Employer of the discontinuance or 
abandonment of the Plan by the Trustees. 

EXECUTION BY EMPLOYER 
 
 This Adoption Agreement (and any Addendum) may only be used in conjunction with 
the Georgia Municipal Association 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan Master Plan Document 
approved by the Internal Revenue Service under an opinion letter Q702380a dated June 30, 
2020. 

The failure to properly complete this Adoption Agreement (or any Addendum), or to 
operate and maintain the Plan and Trust in accordance with the terms of the completed Adoption 
Agreement (and any Addendum), Master Plan Document and Trust, may result in 
disqualification of the Plan under the Code.  Inquiries regarding the adoption of the Plan, the 
meaning of Plan provisions, or the effect of the IRS opinion letter should be directed to the 
Administrator.  The Administrator is the Georgia Municipal Association, Inc., with its primary 
business offices located at: 201 Pryor Street, SW, Atlanta, Georgia 30303.  The business 
telephone number is: (404) 688-0472.  The primary person to contact is GMA General Counsel 
or Deputy Executive Director, Risk Management and Employee Benefits. 

The foregoing Adoption Agreement is hereby adopted and approved on the _____ day of 
______________, __________, by the Mayor and Council of the City of Stonecrest, Georgia. 
 
 Signed:         
 
 Printed Name:        
 
 Title:          
 
 Date of Signature:        

30

Item III. b.



AA-16 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

 

 
TRUSTEES APPROVAL 

 
The Adoption Agreement is approved by the Board of Trustees of the GMA Defined 
Contribution and Deferred Compensation Plan.   
 

[Complete the following if the purpose of this Adoption Agreement is to establish a new 
defined contribution plan or to restate a preexisting defined contribution plan of the 

Participating Employer (other than a GMA 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan).] 
 
Contributions shall first be remitted as follows: 
 

 within 15 business days after the Payroll Period ending ______________, _____. 
 

 On the following prospective date (specify a specific date): ________________. 
 
Dated: ___________________ By:          
 
 Title:         
  on behalf of the Board of Trustees 
 
 

 

31

Item III. b.



RISK MANAGEMENT AND 
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT SERVICES 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Chairman 
Rebecca L. Tydings 
City Attorney, Centerville 
 
Vice Chairman 
Marcia Hampton 
City Manager, Douglasville 
 
Secretary-Treasurer  
Larry H. Hanson  
Executive Director 

Trustees: 

Shelly Berryhill 
Commissioner, Hawkinsville 

Linda Blechinger 
Mayor, Auburn 
 
Meg Kelsey 
City Manager, LaGrange 
 
Sam Norton 
Mayor, Dahlonega 
 
David Nunn 
City Manager, Madison 
 
W. D. Palmer, III 
Councilmember, Camilla 
 
James F. Palmer 
Mayor, Calhoun 
 
John Reid 
Mayor, Eatonton 
 
Kenneth L. Usry 
Mayor, Thomson 
 
Clemontine Washington 
Mayor Pro Tem, Midway 
 
Donna Whitener 
Mayor, Blue Ridge 
 
Vince Williams 
Mayor, Union City 

201 Pryor Street, SW • Atlanta, GA 30303-3606 • Tel 404.688.0472 • Toll Free 1.888.488.4462 • Website www.gacities.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

      December 3, 2021 
 
TRANSMITTED VIA E-MAIL 
(smcclure@stonecrestga.gov)  
 
Mr. Steven McClure 
Director of Human Resources 
City of Stonecrest  
3120 Stonecrest Blvd, Suite 190 
Stonecrest, GA 30038 
 
RE: City of Stonecrest; Georgia Municipal Association 401(a) Defined Contribution 

Plan Amendment to Provide for Immediate Vesting for City Manager and 
Department Directors 

 
Dear Mr. McClure:  
 
Enclosed please find a draft amended Adoption Agreement and a draft Addendum for the 
city’s 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan (“Plan”). The amendment to the Plan provides for 
immediate vesting for the City Manager and department directors (see Addendum pp. Ad-3 
– Ad-4). 
 
If approved, the amendment to the city’s Plan will become effective on December 13, 2021. 
 
If any provisions in the draft documents do not accurately reflect the city’s intent, please let 
us know before the documents are adopted and executed so that we can revise the documents 
accordingly. If the documents are acceptable as drafted, please have the designated 
representatives sign and date each document were indicated. Following execution of the 
documents please scan a copy of each document and email them to Gina Gresham at 
rgresham@gacities.com. We will then countersign the documents and return the fully 
executed documents to you electronically.  
 
Please let us know if you have any questions about, or revisions to, the draft Adoption 
Agreement and Addendum.    
 
      Sincerely,  
 

       
      Caroline Dorsey  
      Associate General Counsel  
 
C: Winston Denmark, City Attorney, City of Stonecrest (w/encl.)  
 Michelle Warner, Director, Retirement Field Services and DC Program (w/o encl.) 
 Gwin Hall, Senior Associate General Counsel (w/o encl.)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

32

Item III. b.

http://www.gacities.com/
mailto:smcclure@stonecrestga.gov
mailto:rgresham@gacities.com


GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

ADDENDUM TO  
THE GEORGIA MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION, INC. 

401(a) DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN 
ADOPTION AGREEMENT 

This is an Addendum to the Adoption Agreement for the City of Stonecrest, Georgia 
("Participating Employer") under the GMA 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan ("GMA Plan"), 
which became effective December 1, 2021. The Adoption Agreement will remain in effect.  This 
Addendum shall replace and supersede any previous Addendum to the Adoption Agreement.  It 
modifies the Adoption Agreement in the following ways (complete all that apply): 

 Restatement of Existing Plan.  Effective _______________, ______, the GMA Plan 
Adoption Agreement for the Participating Employer, including this Addendum ("Plan"), 
shall be considered to amend, restate, and replace the ____________________________ 
("Superseded Plan") previously adopted by the Participating Employer.  Specific 
provisions relating to the Superseded Plan that will be preserved under the GMA Plan 
Adoption Agreement for the Plan are elected below (complete all that apply; may only 
preserve those provisions that have been the subject of a prior determination letter, 
opinion letter, or advisory letter and that are permitted in a pre-approved plan): 

 Frozen Plan.  The Superseded Plan is a frozen plan.  Notwithstanding any 
provision in the GMA Plan Adoption Agreement to the contrary, no contributions 
are required or permitted to be made and no benefits will accrue for service or 
compensation after _______________, ______ (insert the freeze effective date). 

 Protect Existing Vesting Provisions.  Notwithstanding any provisions of the 
GMA Plan or the Participating Employer's Plan to the contrary, the following 
protected vesting provisions shall apply with respect to the transferred accounts 
under the Superseded Plan as of __________________, ______ (insert the 
effective date of the transfer to the Trust for the GMA Plan). 

Notwithstanding the vesting provisions elected in the Adoption Agreement for the 
Participating Employer's Plan, a Participant will be vested in his or her account 
balance transferred from the Superseded Plan, as follows (check one):  

 Immediate 100% vesting. 

 Cliff 100% vesting after the Participant has been employed as an 
Eligible Employee for _______ years (not to exceed 10 years). 

33

Item III. b.



Ad-2 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

 Graduated vesting based on the following scale: 

Completed Years 
of Service as an Eligible Employee 

 
Vested % 

1 year ______% 
2 years ______% 
3 years ______% 
4 years ______% 
5 years ______% 
6 years ______% 
7 years ______% 
8 years ______% 
9 years ______% 
10 years 100% 

The vesting provisions elected in this section must comply with the pre-ERISA 
vesting standards applicable to governmental plans.  Furthermore, a Participant 
shall be 100% vested (i) at all times in any employee contributions made under the 
Superseded Plan, and (ii) in his or her total account balance upon reaching Normal 
Retirement Age. 

 Accept Existing After-Tax Contributions.  Notwithstanding the fact that the 
GMA Plan does not require or permit employee after-tax contributions, the GMA 
Plan will accept the transfer of amounts attributable to employee after-tax 
contributions that were made under the Superseded Plan up until the payroll period 
ending _____________________, ______ (specify last day of applicable payroll 
period).  Employee after-tax contributions will not be required or permitted after 
such date.   

 One-Time Irrevocable Waiver of Participation.  Participation in the Plan is considered 
mandatory for all Eligible Employees who satisfy the eligibility conditions specified in the 
Adoption Agreement.  However, the Employer may specify below that participation is 
optional for certain classes of Eligible Employees, including elected or appointed members 
of the Governing Authority, Municipal Legal Officers, City Managers, and/or Department 
Directors.  If participation is optional for an Eligible Employee, then in order to become a 
Participant, he must make an election to participate within ______ days (specify number 
not to exceed 120 days) after employment, election or appointment to office, or if later, 
the date he first becomes eligible to participate in the Plan.  The election is irrevocable, and 
the failure to make the election within the specified time period shall be deemed an 
irrevocable election not to participate in the Plan.   

34

Item III. b.



Ad-3 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

Classes for whom participation is optional: 

   Elected or appointed members of the Governing Authority 
   Municipal Legal Officers 
   City Manager 
   Department Directors 
   Other (must specify; specific positions are permissible; must be Eligible 

Employees; specific individuals may not be named): 
_______________________________________________________________ 

 

 Involuntary Termination.  If a Participant is involuntarily terminated from employment 
with the Participating Employer without cause, as determined by the Participating 
Employer, the Participant shall be considered vested in his or her account balance existing 
as of the date of his or her termination and the forfeiture requirements under the Adoption 
Agreement shall not apply. 

 Periods of Employment Relating to Withdrawal.  If a Participant withdraws his or her 
account balance from the Participating Employer's Plan upon Severance from 
Employment, the period(s) of employment relating to that withdrawal will not be 
aggregated for vesting purposes.  Once an Eligible Employee is in vested status, a 
subsequent break in service and reemployment with the same Employer does not affect the 
Eligible Employee's vested status if a Participant has not withdrawn his or her account 
balance from the Participating Employer's Plan. 

 Alternative Vesting Schedule.  Employers select vesting provisions for employer 
contributions in the Adoption Agreement.  However, the Employer may specify below that 
certain classes of Eligible Employees, including elected or appointed members of the 
Governing Authority, Municipal Legal Officers, City Managers, and/or Department 
Directors, are subject to an alternative vesting schedule. 

Classes for whom the alternative vesting schedule applies: 

   Elected or appointed members of the Governing Authority 
   Municipal Legal Officers 
   City Manager 
   Department Directors 
  Other (must specify; specific positions are permissible; must be Eligible Employees; 

specific individuals may not be named): _____________________________________ 

Notwithstanding the vesting provisions elected in the Adoption Agreement for the 
Participating Employer's Plan, an Eligible Employee in a class of employees indicated by 
the Employer in this section will be vested in his or her account balance as follows (check 
one):  

35

Item III. b.



Ad-4 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

 Immediate Vesting.  No vesting schedule.  Employer Contributions are 
100% vested from the time credited to the Participant's Account (if this 
option is elected, do not complete the rest of this section). 

 Cliff Vesting.  Employer Contributions are 100% vested after a Participant 
has been employed as an Eligible Employee for _________ years (not to 
exceed 5 years) (the "Vesting Period"). Matching contributions remain 0% 
vested until the Participant satisfies the full Vesting Period. 

 Graduated Vesting Schedule.  Employer Contributions are vested on the 
following graduated scale (insert vesting % for each completed year of 
service as an Eligible Employee. Note: Maximum waiting period for 
100% vesting may not exceed 5 years): 

Completed Years 
of Service as Eligible Employee 

 
Vested % 

  

1 year 
2 years 
3 years 
4 years 
5 years 

_____% 
_____% 
_____% 
_____% 
   100 % 
 

Complete the following items if Employer has elected Cliff Vesting or Graduated 
Vesting: 
 

In determining the Participant's total years of service for vesting purposes, Eligible 
Employees in the specified class who are employed on the date the Plan is adopted 
by the Employer (check one):   will be   will not be given credit for prior service 
as an Eligible Employee. 
 
In determining the Participant's total years of service for vesting purposes, different 
periods of employment as an Eligible Employee in the specified class (check one):  

 will be added together  will not be added together   will be added together if 
the Participant is reemployed with the Employer before completing a period of 
separation of ___________ years (not to exceed 5 years). 

36

Item III. b.



Ad-5 
GMA 401(a) DC Plan City of Stonecrest 

EXECUTION BY EMPLOYER 

The terms of the foregoing Addendum to the Adoption Agreement are hereby adopted and 
approved on the ______ day of ________________, ______, by the Mayor and Council of the 
City of Stonecrest, Georgia.  This Addendum will be effective December 13, 2021. 

 
 Signed:   
 
 Printed Name:        
 
 Title:          
 
 Date of Signature:        
 
 

TRUSTEES' APPROVAL 
 

 The terms of the foregoing Addendum are approved by the Board of Trustees of the GMA 
Defined Contribution and Deferred Compensation Program. 

 
Dated: ___________________ By:          
 
 Title:         
  on behalf of the Board of Trustees 

37

Item III. b.



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

tmp47C0  - Page 1 of 2 
  

SUBJECT: Personnel Policies Manual 
 

 

AGENDA SECTION: (check all that apply) 
 

☐ PRESENTATION      ☐ PUBLIC HEARING      ☐ CONSENT AGENDA     ☐ OLD BUSINESS   

☒ NEW BUSINESS       ☐ OTHER, PLEASE STATE: Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

 

CATEGORY: (check all that apply) 
 

☐ ORDINANCE ☐ RESOLUTION  ☐ CONTRACT  ☐ POLICY ☐  STATUS REPORT     

☒ OTHER, PLEASE STATE:  Personnel Policies Manual 
 

 

ACTION REQUESTED: ☒ DECISION ☐ DISCUSSION, ☒ REVIEW, or ☐ UPDATE ONLY       
 

 

Previously Heard Date(s):  Click or tap to enter a date. & Click or tap to enter a date. 

Current Work Session:  Click or tap to enter a date.     

Current Council Meeting: Monday, December 13, 2021     
 

 

SUBMITTED BY: Steven McClure, Acting HR Director 
 

PRESENTER: Steven McClure  
 

PURPOSE:   The purpose of this item is to review and approve an official personnel policies manual that outlines 

human resources policies and procedures for the effective operation of the City’s people, programs, and services. 

 

FACTS: The City currently does not have a set of uniform personnel policies and procedures related 

workplace behaviors and programs.  As such, the City is exposed to legal liability concerning employee 

interactions, behaviors and performance.  Additionally, the City needs a uniform document that outlines 

organizational expectations, highlights employee programs, and provides guidance on how to address 

workplace issues. The attached PPM addresses this deficiency by providing a clear set of human resources 

policies that employees can refer to when necessary.   

 

OPTIONS: Approve, Deny, Defer Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

38

Item III. c.



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

tmp47C0  - Page 2 of 2 
  

(1) Attachment 1 -  Draft Personnel Policies Manual 

(2) Attachment 2 -  Click or tap here to enter text. 
(3) Attachment 3 -   
(4) Attachment 4 -  Click or tap here to enter text. 
(5) Attachment 5 -  Click or tap here to enter text.  

39

Item III. c.



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Personnel Policies Manual 

 
Effective January 2022 

 

DRAFT 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table of Contents  

40

Item III. c.



2 

 

 

 

Section 1: General Personnel Policies 

1.0   Purpose................................................................... 2 

1.1   Equal Employment Opportunity ............................ 2 

1.2   Administration of Records ..................................... 3 

 

Section 2: Definitions 

Section 3: Conditions of Employment 

 

3.0   Workplace Environment ........................................ 5 

3.1   Hours of Work ....................................................... 5 

3.2   Work Periods ......................................................... 6 

3.3   Nepotism ................................................................ 6 

3.4   Probation Period..................................................... 6 

3.5   Re-Employment ..................................................... 7 

3.6   Eligibility for Benefits ........................................... 8 

3.7   Hiring Process ........................................................ 8 

3.8   Testing ................................................................... 8 

3.9   At-Will Employment ............................................. 9 

3.10 Immigration Law Compliance ............................... 9 

3.11 Performance Reviews .......................................... 10 

 

Section 4: Compensation 

 

4.0   General ................................................................. 10 

4.1   Overtime .............................................................. 11 

4.2   Demotions ............................................................ 11 

4.3   Promotions ........................................................... 11 

4.4   Transfers .............................................................. 12 

4.5   Position Descriptions ........................................... 12 

4.6   Reclassification .................................................... 13 

4.7   Supplemental Pay................................................. 13 

4.8   Worker’s Compensation ...................................... 14 

 

Section 5: Benefits 

 

5.0   General ................................................................. 14    

5.1   Group Health Plan................................................ 14 

5.2   Life Insurance ...................................................... 14 

5.3   Group Dental Plan................................................ 15 

5.4   Credit Union ........................................................ 15 

5.5   Deferred Compensation - 457 .............................. 15 

5.6   Retirement – Defined Contribution Plan .............. 15 

5.7   Flexible Spending Account .................................. 15 

5.8   Social Security ..................................................... 16 

5.9   Unemployment Compensation ............................. 16 

5.10 COBRA ................................................................ 16 

5.11 Employee Recognition ......................................... 16 

5.12 Vehicle ................................................................. 16 

5.13 Employee Assistance Program ............................. 17 

5.14 Other Benefits ...................................................... 17 

5.15 Benefits Committee ............................................. 17 

 

Section 6: Leave 

 

6.0   Family Medical Leave ......................................... 17 

6.1   Bereavement Leave ............................................. 20 

6.2   Holidays .............................................................. 20 

6.3   Jury/Court Leave ................................................. 20 

6.4   Military Leave ..................................................... 20 

6.5   Sick Leave ........................................................... 21 

6.6   Vacation Leave .................................................... 22 

6.7   Emergency Closing Compensation ..................... 23 

6.8   Administrative Leave .......................................... 23 

 

Section 7: Conduct 

 

7.0   Code of Ethics ..................................................... 23 

7.1   Drug Free Workplace .......................................... 27 

7.2   Garnishments ....................................................... 30 

7.3   Harassment/Sexual Harassment .......................... 30 

7.4   Confidentiality ..................................................... 31 

7.5   Outside Employment ........................................... 31 

7.6   Employee Disclosure ........................................... 32 

7.7   Workplace Safety ................................................ 32 

7.8   Workplace Violence ............................................ 33 

7.9   Use of City Property ............................................ 34 

7.10 Smoke-Free Environment .................................... 36 

7.11 Proper Work Attire and Standards for Dress ....... 36 

7.12 Professional Honor .............................................. 37 

  

  

Section 8: Discipline 

 

8.0   Definition ............................................................ 37 

8.1   Causes for Action ................................................ 38 

8.2   Types of Action ................................................... 40 

8.3   Grievance ............................................................ 41 

 

Section 9: Repealer/Severability/Acknowledgement   

 

9.0   Repealer ............................................................... 43 

9.1   Severability .......................................................... 43 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SECTION 1: 

GENERAL PERSONNEL POLICIES 
 

41

Item III. c.



3 

 

1.0  PURPOSE 

 

1.0.1 These policies, in conjunction with administrative 

policies and procedures authorized by the City 

Manager, shall serve as the primary source of 

information related to personnel policies and 

procedures for administrative operations under 

the direction of the City of Stonecrest.  These 

policies are enacted by the City of Stonecrest 

Mayor and City Council in order to further the 

following goals:  

 

a.  To provide a uniform system of personnel 

administration throughout the City.    

 

b. To ensure that recruitment, selection, 

placement, promotion, retention, and 

separation of City employees are in 

compliance with Federal and State laws. 

   

c. To assist managers in the development of 

sound management practices and procedures, 

and to make effective and consistent use of 

human resources throughout the City.   

  

d. To promote communication between 

Department Directors, supervisors, and 

employees.   

 

e. To ensure, protect, and clarify the rights and 

responsibilities of employees.   

  

1.0.2 This Personnel Policy Manual provides general 

information about City of Stonecrest policies, 

procedures, expectations, and benefits.  The 

information in this Policy Manual, however, 

cannot anticipate every situation or answer every 

question regarding your employment.  Therefore, 

the policies set forth in this Policy Manual will 

not apply in every situation.  The City Manager 

shall make interpretive decisions for those 

situations that are not specifically covered by the 

provisions of this Policy Manual. 

 

1.0.3 Further, in the event of conflict between these 

policies and a State or Federal law, the terms and 

conditions of that law shall prevail.  In all other 

cases, these policies shall apply.  

 

    

  

1.0.4 In the event of the amendment of any ordinance, 

rule or law incorporated in this document or upon 

which these provisions rely, these rules shall be 

deemed amended in conformance with those 

changes.  

  

1.0.5 The City specifically reserves the right to repeal, 

modify or amend these policies at any time, with 

or without notice.  None of these provisions shall 

be deemed to create a vested contractual right in 

any employee to employment or to limit the 

power of the City Manager or Mayor and City 

Council of City of Stonecrest to repeal or modify 

these rules.  The policies are not to be interpreted 

as promises of specific treatment.  All employees 

are employees at will and may be terminated 

without cause. 

 

1.0.6 This Personnel Policy Manual is intended to 

apply to all City of Stonecrest employees.  The 

broad application of this Policy Manual is 

intended to ensure that all employees are treated 

equally.   

 

 

1.1  EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 
 

1.1.1 City of Stonecrest is an equal opportunity 

employer.  City of Stonecrest will provide equal 

employment opportunity to all qualified persons 

without regard to race, color, creed, religion, sex, 

national origin, age, disability, genetic 

information, uniformed service status, pregnancy, 

childbirth, or other legally protected category or 

classification.  This policy applies to all phases of 

employment, including, and not limited to, 

recruitment, hiring, placement, training, 

promotion, demotion, transfer, reduction in force, 

separation, compensation, and benefits.   

 

1.1.2 City of Stonecrest is committed to complying 

fully with the Americans with Disabilities Act 

(ADA) and its amendments. Consistent with this 

policy not to discriminate against any qualified 

employee or applicant with regard to any terms or 

conditions of employment because of such 

individual’s disability, perceived disability, or 

handicap, the City will provide reasonable 

accommodations to a qualified individual to allow 

them to perform their job, provided that the 

reasonable accommodations would not impose an 

undue hardship on City of Stonecrest or the 

operation of the City’s business.  An employee 

must notify the Department Director, or the 

employee’s immediate supervisor that he or she 

needs an accommodation because of a disability or 

condition.  Upon receipt of an accommodation 

request, the Director, or his or her designee, will 

consult with the HR Director, and meet with the 

employee to discuss and identify the precise 

limitation(s) resulting from the disability or 

condition, and the potential accommodation(s) that 

City of Stonecrest might make to help overcome 

such limitation(s).   

   

1.1.3 Recruitment and selection processes will grant 

equal opportunity for employment to qualified 

applicants and will not discriminate on the basis 

of race, color, creed, religion, sex, national origin, 

42

Item III. c.



4 

 

age, disability, genetic information, uniformed 

service status, pregnancy, childbirth, or other 

legally protected category or classification.  

Reasonable accommodation for applicants with 

disabilities may be provided upon request during 

an application/interview process. 

 

1.2  ADMINISTRATION OF RECORDS   

  

1.2.1 The Director of Human Resources, or his or her 

designee, is responsible for establishing and 

maintaining an official personnel file for each 

employee of the City.   

  

1.2.2 Department Directors are responsible for 

forwarding documents for inclusion in the 

personnel files of those employees assigned to 

their department.   

 

1.2.3 Information should be retained in the personnel 

file throughout the association of an employee 

with the City, including, but not limited to the 

following:   

 

a. Employee application  

b. Job description  

c. Job performance information 

d. Education/training information  

e. Personnel action forms  

f. Letters of appreciation, commendation, or 

discipline; and 

g. Other appropriate information, 

documentation, and records for personnel 

administration purposes. 

 

1.2.4 Access to Personnel Records - All information in 

an employee's personnel records shall be 

considered confidential, except as provided by 

law.  Employee records may be reviewed by an 

employee’s superiors for purposes of performance 

evaluation, disciplinary review, and other 

business purposes.  In addition, employee records 

may be reviewed by others provided that the 

employee provides written authorization for same 

to the Director of Human Resources, or to his or 

her designee. 

 

1.2. 5 Record of Review - The Director of Human 

Resources shall maintain a record of each 

individual who reviews an employee's personnel 

file. 

 

1.2. 6 Records of Former Employees - Regulations for 

personnel records and access to the records shall 

apply to former employees as they apply to 

present employees. 

 

1.2. 7 Objections to Contents - An employee who 

objects to material in his personnel file may place 

in his file a brief statement about that which he 

considers to be inaccurate.  

 

1.2. 8 Penalty for Unauthorized Access - Any employee 

who willfully allows unauthorized access to 

personnel records shall be subject to disciplinary 

action. Any employee who examines a personnel 

record without proper authorization shall be 

subject to disciplinary action.  

 

SECTION 2:   

DEFINITIONS 

  
The following words and phrases as used in these 

policies, unless a different meaning is required by 

the context, shall have the following meanings: 

  

 

Absenteeism is defined as a failure to appear at 

work on a scheduled workday or shift exclusive 

of an approved leave. 

 

Accrual:  Process of earning a benefit such as 

vacation or sick leave. 

 

Adverse Action:  An action taken by the City 

Manager or  Department Director that results in a 

suspension without pay, salary reduction, 

demotion, or dismissal.   

 

City Department:  An organization in City 

government that is responsible for the oversight 

and administration of specific work functions or 

units  at the direction of the City Manager. 

 

City Policy: A policy adopted by the Mayor and 

City Council or an administrative policy approved 

by the City Manager. 

 

Date of hire:  The effective date of the 

individual's employment with the City. 

 

Department Director:  Includes heads of 

departments.  The Department Director reports to 

the City Manager, or designee as specified in the 

job description. 

 

Discharge:  Termination of an employee by the 

City.  Discharge may be used interchangeably 

with Dismissal. 

 

Doctor:  A Doctor of Medicine, Osteopathy, 

dentist or dental surgeon currently holding an 

active state license.  

 

Employee-Initiated Resignation: Voluntary 

separation for any reason other than formal 

retirement. 

 

Exempt:  Employees exempted from the 

43

Item III. c.



5 

 

minimum wage and overtime provisions of the 

Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). 

 

Grievance:  An actual or supposed circumstance 

regarded as just cause for complaint, such as 

unsafe or unhealthy working conditions; 

erroneous or capricious application of City 

policies; or unlawful discrimination. 

  

He/His:  Use of this pronoun in this document 

shall apply equally to both males and females. 

 

Immediate Family:  Includes spouse, child, 

parent, brother, sister, grandparents, 

parent-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, or 

grandchildren.  The definition also includes any 

other person living in the employee's household 

who is recognized by state law as the employee's 

dependent, and any individual who stands in loco 

parentis to an employee when the employee was a 

child. 

 

In-Law:  A relative by marriage such as mother-

in-law, father-in-law, daughter-in-law and son-in-

law. 

 

Layoff:  Separation of an employee by the City 

for lack of work, lack of funds, reorganization, or 

other changes that have taken place. 

 

Manager:  A Manager is the person responsible 

for planning and directing the work of a group of 

individuals. 

 

May:  The word may is conditional and implies 

there is discretion concerning whether a condition 

exists or an action will take place. 

 

Non-Exempt:  Employees covered by the Fair 

Labor Standards Act. 

 

Outside Employment:  Employment outside of the 

duties as a City employee.  This shall include 

self-employment and other business activity, as 

well as working for a second employer. 

 

Overtime:  All work performed in excess of the 

hours permitted under the FLSA work period. 

 

Personnel Records: Includes digital and paper 

personnel and medical files.  An employee 

medical file shall be kept separate from his 

personnel file. 

 

Probation:  A period during which a new 

employee or an employee who has been 

transferred, promoted, or demoted is being tested 

on job capability and performance.  Additionally 

a period of time allotted to an existing employee 

to correct identified performance deficiencies. 

 

Probationary Employee:  An employee on a trial 

status of probation during a period of 

employment.  Probationary periods may be 

extended under special circumstances.   

 

Regular Employee: An employee, who has 

successfully completed the probationary period, 

and is assigned to a position which is regular full-

time or regular part-time. 

 

Full-Time Employee:  An employee who has 

successfully completed the probationary period, is 

assigned to a position which is expected to 

continue for an indefinite duration, and works a 

shift schedule which will total no less than 2080 

hours per year (40 hours per week). 

   

Part-Time Employee:  An employee who has 

successfully completed the probationary period, is 

assigned to a position which is expected to 

continue for an indefinite duration, and works a 

shift schedule of less than 40 hours per week. 

   

Retirement:  Voluntary separation after having 

satisfied the age and length of employment 

requirements, according to the City’s applicable 

retirement plans. 

 

Shall/Will:  These terms are unconditional and 

imply that a condition exists or an action will take 

place. 

 

Supervisor:  A supervisor is usually the lowest, or 

most-junior, management position. It is usually a 

step above lead, but below Manager. 

 

Supervisor-Initiated Resignation: Termination 

requested by the supervisor, which permits the 

employee to resign in lieu of being dismissed. 

 

Tardiness is defined as the failure to report to 

work at the time scheduled. 

 

Temporary Full-Time Employee:  An employee 

who is assigned to a position that is not expected 

to continue for an indefinite duration, and works a 

shift schedule that totals no less than 40 hours per 

week. 

 

Temporary Part-Time Employee: An employee 

who is assigned to a position that is not expected 

to continue for an indefinite duration, and works a 

shift schedule of less than 40 hours per week.  

 

 

 

SECTION 3:  

CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT 

44

Item III. c.



6 

 

 
3.0  WORKPLACE ENVIRONMENT 

 

3.0.1 City of Stonecrest is committed to ensuring that 

all employees enjoy a work environment free 

from intimidation, discrimination, harassment, 

and violence.  These issues are discussed in more 

detail within this Policy Manual.  If you have any 

concerns regarding your workplace environment, 

report those concerns to the City Manager, the 

Director of Human Resources, and/or to your  

Department Director.   

  

3.1  HOURS OF WORK  
 

3.1.1 The normal working hours for City administrative 

offices shall consist of a continuous  eight (8) 

hour period, excluding a one(1) hour unpaid 

lunch, scheduled between the hours of 7:00 am 

and 6:00 pm, with such schedule to be established 

so that the needs of the department to deliver 

services to the citizens are met.  In most cases, 

employees are expected to perform work during 

the core hours of 9:00 am to 5:00 pm. 

 

  Employees are expected to be at their work 

location and ready to begin work at the beginning 

of their work schedule.  The meal periods should 

be scheduled to allow for optimal staffing of 

offices.  

  

3.1.2 The standardization of working hours is necessary 

to provide:  

 

   a. Continuity in access by and service to the 

citizenry.  

b. Facilitation of teamwork.  

c. Facilitation of supervisory assistance.  

d. Reasonable assurance of compliance with the 

Fair Labor Standards Act. 

 

3.1.3 Occasions may arise when City services may be 

improved through the adjustment of an 

employee's work hours.  Therefore, the City 

permits Department Directors the option of 

approving varying work hours or schedules 

within their respective departments consistent 

with this policy. Prior to implementing any varied 

work schedule, the Department Director must 

establish administrative standards and procedures 

to ensure no disruption in services provided by 

that department, either to the public or other 

employees. 

 

3.1.4 The recognized varying work schedules are 

limited to: 

 

1. Flextime - Employees are given a choice in 

their report to work time and their end of 

work time.  Flextime schedules are approved 

in advance and shall not be used to correct 

tardiness or other attendance problems. 

 

2. Compressed Work Week - Employees are 

assigned varying hours of work during the 

payroll period.  The typical compressed 

workweek consists of 4 days working 10 

hours each day. 

 

3. Split Shift – A combination of two 

continuous work periods, separated by a 

period of two or more hours, including lunch, 

when no work is performed. 

 

4. Telework – Employees are allowed to work 

from home for the same number of hours as 

they would work, if physically present in 

their assigned workspace.  Telework is a 

privilege, not a right of the employee.  

Further, a telework arraignment may be 

revoked if it is determined that the work 

suffers from such an arrangement. 

 

3.1.5 When the workload and schedule permit, two 15-

minute paid work breaks daily may be permitted, 

subject to approval by the employee's 

supervisor/manager. 

 

3.1. 6 Individual requests for adjustment of working 

hours for personal reasons must be evaluated in 

light of the employee’s past work performance 

and effect on the criteria enumerated in 3.1.2 

above. 

  

3.1. 7 Employees must provide their supervisors 

advance notice of anticipated tardiness or notice 

of unavoidable tardiness within one hour of their 

scheduled start time.  Failure to do so will be 

construed as an unexcused absence, and the day 

or time missed will not be paid for non-exempt 

employees.  Exempt employees will have 

unexcused time charged to either their vacation or 

sick leave accumulation if vacation is not 

available.  

 

3.1. 8 Notification by another employee, friend, or 

relative is not considered proper, except in an 

emergency where the employee is physically 

unable to make the notification. Likewise, notices 

to employees other than the immediate 

supervisor, or above is not considered proper.  

 

3.1. 9 Daily attendance records will be maintained by 

each department, including the date and time of 

each absence and the reason for each absence.  

Attendance shall be a consideration in 

determining promotions, transfers, satisfactory 

completion of probationary periods, and 

continued employment with the City.  Frequent 

tardiness or other attendance irregularities shall be 

45

Item III. c.



7 

 

cause for disciplinary action.  

  

3.1. 10 Hours for part-time and certain other employees 

may vary from the normal office hours noted 

above due to the nature of their duties and will be 

determined by the appropriate   Department 

Director.  

 

3.1.11 The City may provide compensatory time off in 

lieu of cash overtime compensation for non-

exempt in accordance with the FLSA. 

 

3.2  WORK PERIODS   
 

3.2.1 This section shall not apply to executive, 

professional, administrative, and all other 

employees who are exempt from the FLSA.  The 

referenced work periods may be changed to 

accommodate special work schedules, such as 

summer maintenance schedules. 

 

3.2.2 The work period for all City employees shall be a 

seven (7) day period beginning on Sunday at 

12:01 a.m. and continuing to Saturday at 12:00 

midnight.   

 

3.2.3 The minimum work week for full time employees 

shall be forty (40) hours. 

 

3.2.4 The minimum work week to be eligible for health 

benefits shall be thirty (30) hours with an 

expectancy of working 48 weeks or more. 

 

3.3  NEPOTISM   
  

3.3.1 The City of Stonecrest seeks to avoid any 

suggestions of favoritism, discrimination, or 

conflict of interest in making decisions to hire, 

promote, and transfer staff.  Because of the actual 

or perceived problems inherent in employing 

individuals with close family or other 

relationships, it is the City's policy that Immediate 

Family will not be employed in full-time or 

part-time positions where:   

 

a. One relative would have the authority to 

supervise, appoint, remove, discipline or 

evaluate the performance of the other.   

  

b. One relative would be responsible for 

auditing the work of the other.   

  

c. Other circumstances exists which would 

place the relatives in a situation of actual or 

reasonably foreseeable conflict between the 

City's interest and their own.   

 

3.3.2 Where business necessity requires the limitation 

of employment opportunity for Immediate Family 

members, the means chosen to meet the business 

necessity shall be those which have the least 

adverse impact on the employees, which may 

include re-assignment to another department or 

separation of employment for one of the affected 

employees.  

 

3.3.3 The City Manager may authorize an exception to 

this policy if the position requires specialized 

training or experience not generally available, 

there is a vital need to fill the position, substantial 

efforts have been made to recruit a person who is 

not an Immediate Family member, and the 

relationship is unlikely to materially affect their 

employment. 

 

3.4  PROBATION PERIOD   
 

3.4.1 All employees placed in new full-time and 

part-time positions must serve at least a six-month 

period of probation. This applies to new hires, 

promotions, demotions, and transfers, Probation 

periods  may also be utilized as a disciplinary 

measure in an attempt to improve deficient 

performance 

 

3.4.2 The probation period is designed to give the 

employee time to learn the position and to give 

the supervisor time to evaluate the employee's 

potential and performance.   

 

  Nothing in this section, including an employee 

being placed in a probationary status, shall limit, 

alter, modify, or nullify the City’s  employment 

at-will status, which includes the right to 

terminate employment without cause or notice. 

 

3.4.3 If a new employee is unable to perform the work, 

the person may be transferred to a vacant position 

for which he is more qualified.  If the department 

elects not to exercise this option, then the person 

should be terminated as early as possible. Prior to 

termination, the Department Director should 

review the case with the Director of Human 

Resources for consistency in the application of 

policy. Early termination saves the City both  

time and  monetary investment, and saves the 

employee possible embarrassment and frustration.   

 

  If, during the probation period, an employee 

promoted into a new position is unable to perform 

the work at the expected level, such employee 

shall be returned to his previous position, or to a 

comparable position, if available. 

 

  Rejected probationers shall be notified of such 

action in writing by the Department Director and 

a copy of said notification shall be retained in the 

employee’s personnel file.  

 

 3.4.4 It is expected that informal evaluations will be 

46

Item III. c.



8 

 

conducted during the course of the probation 

period to assess performance and to advise 

employees of expectations regarding 

performance.  Significant job deficiency (ies) 

shall be documented in the employee's personnel 

file.  These evaluations provide the necessary 

justification for retention of the person as a 

regular employee. 

   

3.4.5 Under unusual circumstances, the probationary 

period may be extended.  This is only after an 

evaluation of the situation, the employee's 

abilities, and demonstrated potential.  Probation 

extension is done only upon recommendation of 

the  Department Director, and approved by the 

City Manager.  Employees whose probationary 

periods are being extended must be notified by 

the supervisor prior to the conclusion of the 

original period. 

 

3.4.6 If the employee successfully completes the 

probation period, he shall automatically become a 

regular employee.  

  

 3.4.7 When an employee first becomes a regular full-

time employee, he becomes eligible for vacation 

and other appropriate leaves retroactive to the 

person's beginning date of employment, but will 

not be able to take vacation leave until after he 

has been employed six months, unless authorized 

by  Department Director. Successfully completing 

the probationary period will not result in 

additional compensation being paid to the 

employee. 

 

3.4.8 If an individual has been transferred or promoted, 

he remains eligible for all fringe benefits included 

with the previous position during the probation 

period for the transfer or promotion.  If the 

position to which an employee has been 

transferred or promoted carries benefits different 

from those of the previous position, the person 

becomes eligible for the benefits of the new 

position upon the satisfactory completion of the 

probation period retroactive to the date of the 

transfer or promotion.  

  

3.4.9 If an emergency arises during an employee's 

probationary period which requires a leave of 

absence, such time off, if granted will not be 

considered as time worked.  In this case, the 

probationary period will be extended to match the 

time granted through the leave of absence. 

 

3.5  RE-EMPLOYMENT   
 

3.5.1 Any former regular, full-time employee who 

resigned from the City in good standing is eligible 

for re-employment. 

 

 3.5.2 Persons interested in re-employment should file a 

completed City application form with the Human 

Resources department for any advertised vacancy 

for which the former employee believes matches 

his/her qualifications.  The individual will then 

proceed through the regular hiring procedures 

with other applicants.  

  

3.5.3 The date of hire will take the person's previous 

service with the City into account for retirement 

service credit purposes; however, salary, benefits, 

and future increases will coincide with the 

re-employment date.  

  

3.5.4 The individual's previous personnel file will be 

re-activated once re-employed by the City 

provided re-employment is within seven years 

after the original separation.  

  

3.5.5 All individuals re-employed by the City must 

complete a new probationary period.  

 

3.5.6 The  Department Director has the discretion to re-

employ an individual into any vacant position 

within the department for which the employee is 

qualified by following the prescribed recruitment 

process. 

 

3.5.7 Re-employment of Retirees: If a bona-fide 

termination of employment as described in 

section 3.5.1 has occurred, the City may re-

employ a retiree on a limited term basis.  The 

following guidelines provide a consistent standard 

by which all requests for re-employment of 

retirees will be measured. 

 

1. City Need - Re-employment must be as a result 

of City need, such as the retired employee 

possesses skills and institutional knowledge that 

the hiring department cannot otherwise obtain 

with equal cost effectiveness.  Or, the hiring 

department anticipates that the Retired Employee 

will assist a replacement to acquire necessary 

skills and knowledge. 

 

2. Break in Service - A period of at least 30 days 

has elapsed since the time the employee retired 

and the date of re-employment.  Additionally, 

employees who have not reached normal 

retirement age must not engage in discussions 

concerning re-employment for a period of 30 days 

after their retirement date. 

 

3. Re-employed Status - Unless specifically 

approved by the City Manager, retired employees 

are limited to no more than 19 hours per week, or 

988 hours during any 12-month period. Re-

employment into multiple part-time positions may 

violate the maximum hour limitation and is 

prohibited.  

47

Item III. c.



9 

 

 

4. Compensation - Upon re-employment, the 

employee will be compensated at the regular rate 

of pay for the position rehired.  The retired 

employee may elect to either cease or continue to 

receive benefits under a defined contribution plan, 

if applicable.  If the re-employed retiree continues 

the benefit, there will be no further employer 

contributions or accrual of credited service under 

the plan. 

 

If the retiree elects to cease and is rehired into a 

full-time position, then the employee would be 

paid at the regular rate, resume contributions and 

receive additional credited service; at the time of 

subsequent separation, the retirement benefit is 

recalculated with the additional service added.  

 

 

5.  Prior Approval Required - All actions to rehire 

a retiree must be approved by the City Manager 

after review and consideration of the 

aforementioned guidelines by the Director of 

Human Resources.   

 

3.6  ELIGIBILITY FOR BENEFITS   
  

3.6.1 Non-exempt employee compensation will be 

stated in terms of hourly wage.  Exempt 

employees are considered salaried.  

 

3.6.2 Employee’s classified as regular full-time 

employees shall be eligible to receive all 

employee benefits provided by the City.  

Probationary employees shall be classified as 

regular full-time employees, for purposes of 

benefit eligibility and entitled to the same benefits 

as regular full-time employees subject to 

applicable eligibility provisions and time periods. 

 

3.6.3 Regular part-time employees working 30 or more 

hours for an expected duration to exceed 48 

weeks are eligible to receive health benefits in 

accordance with the Affordable Care Act. 

 

3.7  HIRING PROCESS  
 

3.7.1 The Human Resources Department will  

administer and/or coordinate the hiring process 

for all position vacancies to ensure compliance 

with contractual, legal, and equal opportunity 

requirements.  

 

3.7.2 Prior to filling any vacant regular, full-time or 

part-time position, hiring departments must 

secure authorization from the City Manager, or 

designee, as may be modified or waived from 

time-to-time by the City Manager. 

 

3.7.3 POSTING VACANT POSITIONS – In order to 

fill any vacant or newly created position, the 

position must be posted to allow for interested 

candidates to apply.  City of Stonecrest 

departments have three posting options to use 

when filling vacant positions: 

 

a. In-house Posting (Departmental) – This 

option should be used first if departments 

are able to identify candidates from their 

current staff. The announcement of the 

position should be posted for a minimum of 

five days.  

 

b. Internal Posting (For City Employees Only) 

– This option has been established to 

provide City employees the first opportunity 

to apply for vacant positions. Internal 

postings are accessed via the City intranet 

and are not accessible to the population at 

large. These postings will remain open for a 

minimum of five days and may be updated 

on a weekly basis.  

 

c. External Posting (All Candidates Interested 

in City Positions) – This option allows 

departments to consider anyone who is 

interested in City positions.  External 

postings will be posted for a minimum of 10 

days or longer.  

 

3.7. 4 Applications for all advertised vacancies are to be 

submitted directly to the Human Resources 

Department in the manner prescribed by the 

department. Upon the position closing date, all 

qualified applications will be forwarded to the 

hiring department for review and consideration.  

If the posting does not provide for a closing date, 

the Human Resources Department shall forward 

applications to the hiring department as they are 

received. 

 

3.7.6 Upon completion of the review process, the hiring 

department shall notify Human Resources of the 

candidate selected to fill the vacancy. 

 

3.8  TESTING  

 

3.8.1 Examinations may be developed for certain 

positions based on the position's responsibilities, 

the qualifications required, and resources 

available.  Notice of required examinations will 

be included on the advertised position 

announcement.   

 

3.8.2 The examination may consist of oral interview, 

application review, a structured questionnaire, 

practical tests, written tests, in-basket exercise or 

assessment center, and/or other performance tests.  

In all cases, the testing will be job related and 

designed to determine the candidate's knowledge, 

48

Item III. c.



10 

 

skills and abilities for the position.  

 

3.8.3 The examination contents are developed by the 

affected department and reviewed by Human 

Resources for consistency with applicable 

employment laws.  Examination contents are 

confidential and unauthorized disclosure to any 

candidate is grounds for discipline.  In certain 

situations, outside consultants may be contracted 

to assist with test development.  

 

3.8.4 The Department Director shall ensure that all 

testing is based on bona-fide occupational 

qualifications.  

 

3.8. 3 Upon receipt of a request for same, the  

Department Director shall work with the Director 

of Human Resources to ensure that reasonable 

accommodations are made in test procedures to 

assure that persons with disabilities can be tested 

in an appropriate manner, unless such 

accommodation(s) would impose an undue 

hardship.   

 

3.8. 4 Pre-employment testing.  All job applicants being 

considered for employment shall be required to 

pass pre-employment tests, which may include, 

but are not limited to, a drug and alcohol 

screening test, criminal background, medical 

and/or psychological exam, and credit check. 

 

3.8. 5 Random and periodic drug testing.  The City 

retains the right to require all to submit to a drug 

and alcohol screening test at random or on a 

periodic basis from time to time as determined by 

the Director of Human Resources. 

 

3.8. 6 Reasonable Suspicion Testing. A drug and/or 

alcohol screening test based on reasonable 

suspicion shall be undertaken in accordance with 

Section 7.1.4 of this Policy Manual. 

 

3.8. 7 Testing after accidents or injury.  All employees 

involved in a work-related incident causing 

personal injury or property damage shall be tested 

promptly for drug and/or alcohol use in 

accordance with City policies.  Any employee 

involved in a motor vehicle accident while 

driving a City vehicle on a public roadway and 

who is determined to have been at fault in the 

accident by the investigating law enforcement 

officer shall be tested for drugs and alcohol. 

 

3.8. 8 Voluntary participation in an employee assistance 

program prior to an employee being requested to 

submit to a test is encouraged and such 

participation shall be kept confidential. 

 

3.9 AT-WILL EMPLOYMENT 
 

 All employees of City of Stonecrest are “at-will” 

employees. Employment with City of Stonecrest 

is entered into on a voluntary basis, and all 

employees are employed for an indefinite time 

period.  Either the City or the employee is free to 

terminate the employment relationship at any 

time without notice, for any reason.  

  

 The Mayor and City Council may provide a 

contract/letter of agreement and/or employment 

offer letter for  positions of City Manager, 

Director of Finance, or any other positions 

reporting to the Mayor and City Council.  

 

3.10    IMMIGRATION LAW COMPLIANCE 

 

  The City of Stonecrest is committed to full 

compliance with federal and state immigration 

laws, and will hire only individuals with the legal 

right to work in the United States.  Pursuant to the 

Georgia Security and Immigration Compliance 

Act, all employees must complete the Form I-9 

and provide legal documentation of citizenship 

and/or work status as set forth on the form.  

Within three (3) business days of hire, the City 

Human Resources Department electronically 

verifies accuracy of the employee’s Social 

Security number and other documentation 

through the U.S. Department of Homeland 

Security verification system.  The employee will 

be immediately notified of a non-confirmation of 

their Social Security number and will be provided 

a referral letter.   

 

  It is the employee’s responsibility to resolve the 

discrepancy with the Social Security office within 

eight (8) federal government working days.  On 

the 10th federal government working day after the 

date of the referral letter, the Human Resources 

Office will make a second inquiry to the Social 

Security Administration database for a final 

confirmation.  The employee shall continue 

working until the confirmation process is 

completed, however, a  final non-confirmation 

will result in immediate termination.   

 

  This policy and its procedures are intended to 

comply with the Georgia Security and 

Immigration Compliance Act.   

 

  Should any portion of said Act be amended, 

modified, revised, or repealed, or if other or 

additional controlling federal or state immigration 

laws or regulations become adopted in the future, 

the processes and requirements set forth in such 

Act, laws, or regulations shall govern. 

 
3.11    PERFORMANCE REVIEWS 

   

3.11.1 City departments shall utilize an annual 

49

Item III. c.



11 

 

performance review process to provide employees 

appropriate feedback on their work performance 

and to communicate general competencies 

necessary to perform the assigned duties and 

responsibilities of their positions.   The form and 

manner of reviews should be prescribed by the 

Human Resources Department. 

 

3.11.2 Managers and supervisors shall meet with each 

employee within their area of supervision at least 

once per year to review performance.   

 

3.11.3 In addition to the annual performance review 

period, supervisors are encouraged to establish a 

performance review period of a shorter duration 

for employees, and particularly for an employee 

whose performance is deemed to be 

unsatisfactory, who has been placed on 

performance probation, who has been issued a 

performance improvement plan, or for any reason. 

 

   

SECTION 4:  

COMPENSATION  
 

4.0  GENERAL 

 

4.0.1 It is the policy of the City and the purpose of this 

plan to establish a compensation system that will 

allow the City to effectively compete for qualified 

personnel and to ensure that salaries are equitable 

and commensurate with the duties performed by 

each employee.  

  

4.0.2 The City's pay range schedules include minimum 

and maximum pay allowed by grade.  The pay 

range schedules for employees shall be adopted 

by the Mayor and City Council. 

 

4.0.3 Cost-of-Living adjustments may be granted by 

the Mayor and City Council upon 

recommendation by the City Manager. In the 

event a cost of living adjustment is made, the 

salary range allowed by grade may not change.  

Rather, the eligible employee's pay should be 

adjusted up the range to reflect the cost-of-living 

increase.  

 

4.0.4 Classification Plan:  The City administers a 

classification and compensation plan in which 

jobs with similar duties and responsibilities are 

assigned to the same salary grade. The Director of 

Human Resources may conduct an analysis of 

various jobs when there is an indication an 

employee is working above or below the 

established responsibilities for that position.   

Such review may result in the position being 

upgraded to a higher grade or downgraded to a 

lower grade within the plan. 

 

4.0.5 Position Upgrade:  In the event that the duties of 

any position are re-evaluated by the Director of 

Human Resources or City Manager and results in 

the position moving to a higher grade range, the 

employee’s salary may increase by 5% or the 

employee may assume the entry level salary of 

the new range, whichever is greater, subject to the 

grade minimum and maximum salary levels. 

However, if the employee is receiving temporary 

additional compensation or supplemental pay, 

such temporary additional compensation shall not 

be included in the calculation of the salary 

adjustment. 

 

4.0.6 Position Downgrade: In the event that the duties 

of any position are re-evaluated by the Director of 

Human Resources or City Manager and results in 

the position moving to a lower grade range, the 

employee’s salary may be reduced by 5% or 

more, subject to the grade minimum and 

maximum salary levels. However, if the 

employee is receiving temporary additional 

compensation or supplemental pay, such 

temporary additional compensation shall not be 

included in the calculation of the salary 

adjustment.   

 

4.0.7 Maintenance of the Salary Plan:  The Director of 

Human Resources shall be responsible for the 

continuous maintenance and administration of the 

City's Compensation Plan.  Reviews will include 

an analysis of prevailing rates of pay for similar 

positions in comparable labor markets, 

organizations, cost-of-living factors, budgetary 

considerations, and other related factors.  On the 

basis of this information, the City Manager  may 

recommend to the Mayor and City Council 

changes to keep the plan current, uniform and 

equitable. 

 

4.0.8 New Employees: New employees will ordinarily 

be paid between the minimum rate and midpoint  

in the appropriate salary range, depending on 

qualifications, and budgetary considerations.  

 

4.0.9 The salary offered to the employee must be 

consistent with the salary and requirements of the 

position.  An employee who meets only the 

minimum requirements for the position will start 

at the bottom of the salary range regardless of the 

employee's current salary.  Employees who 

exceed the minimum requirements for the 

position may be offered a salary consistent with 

the employee's level of skills, experience, and 

knowledge, but in no case shall the salary be 

more than the midpoint level pay for the position, 

unless prior approval is obtained from the City 

Manager. 

 

4.0.10 No employee’s salary shall exceed the maximum 

50

Item III. c.



12 

 

salary for their position. In the event an 

employee’s salary exceeds the maximum range, 

he may not receive annual increases until market 

research warrants an increase in grade and/or 

range or, unless authorized by the City Manager. 

 

4.1  OVERTIME   
  

4.1.1 FLSA:  This policy shall not contravene the 

provisions of the Federal Fair Labor Standards 

Act (FLSA) pertaining to the minimum rate of 

compensation for employment in excess of an 

established work week/period, excluding 

exempted positions.   

 

4.1.2 Qualification:  To be eligible for overtime pay, 

the employee must have actually been present at 

work for the specified number of hours.  

Vacation, sick, holiday or other types of leave 

will not count as hours worked for calculating 

overtime pay. 

 

4.1.3 The City will compensate overtime at the rate of 

one and one-half for hours worked in excess of 

the number of hours allowed per work week. 

 

4.1.4 Compensatory Time:   When applicable, 

compensatory time shall be earned at a rate not 

less than one and one-half hours for each hour of 

employment in excess of 40 hours worked for 

non-exempt employees.  Accrued compensatory 

time shall not exceed one-hundred twenty (120) 

hours.  

 

a. Any such non-exempt employee who has 

accrued 120 hours of compensatory time off 

shall, for additional overtime hours of work, 

be paid overtime compensation. 

 

b. If compensation is paid to an employee for 

accrued compensatory time off, such 

compensation shall be paid at the regular rate 

earned by the employee at the time the 

employee receives such payment. 

 

c. An employee who has accrued compensatory 

time off shall, upon termination of 

employment, be paid for the unused 

compensatory time at a rate of compensation 

not less than: 

1. The average regular rate received by 

such employee during the last 3 years of 

the employee’s employment, or 

 

2. The final regular rate received by such 

employee, whichever is higher. 

d. An employee, who has accrued 

compensatory time and has requested the use 

of such compensatory time, shall be 

permitted to use such time on the specific 

date requested by the employee, unless doing 

so would be unduly disruptive to the 

department’s operations. 

 

e. All compensatory time shall be used by the 

end of the calendar year, or such accrued 

time will be paid out in monetary 

compensation. 

 

4.1.5 Call-Back Pay:  If an employee is called back to 

work outside of normal working hours he will be 

paid for hours worked, or provided compensatory 

time, as recommended by the Department 

Director 

 

4.2  DEMOTIONS   
 

4.2.1 An employee reassigned to a position in a lower 

classification regardless of the reason will receive 

a cut in pay commensurate with the nature of the 

demotion as determined by the  Department 

Director in consultation with the Director of 

Human Resources and City Manager and taking 

into account the pay scale for the position.  

 

4.2.2 Demotions do not change the person's date of 

hire. 

   

4.2.3 No employee shall be demoted to a position for 

which he does not possess the minimum 

qualifications. 

 

4.2.4 The Department Director will provide advance 

notice to an employee being demoted whenever 

possible, except in emergency situations.  

 

4.2.5 Any demotion to prevent layoffs may be revised 

when the employee's previous position is 

reopened.  

 

4.2.6 Persons demoted to new positions will be subject 

to the standard probationary period for the new 

position.  

 

4.3  PROMOTIONS   
  

4.3.1 The City shall attempt to fill all vacant positions 

with qualified City employees before advertising 

to the public, following a policy of upward 

mobility whenever possible.  

 

4.3.2 Generally, employees are expected to serve in 

their current position for at least six months 

before being considered for a promotion or 

transfer.  

 

4.3.3 Selection of an employee for a promotion (or 

lateral transfer) is based on past work record, 

education, knowledge of the job duties, as well as 

51

Item III. c.



13 

 

time in service.  

 

4.3.4 When considering the promotion (or lateral 

transfer) of City employees having the same or 

similar qualifications, the position will be filled 

after considering the factors listed above.  

 

4.3.5 In cases where only one employee applies for a 

position and the person's abilities and 

qualifications are known to the hiring department, 

the formal selection process may be dispensed 

with upon concurrence of the Director of Human 

Resources.  

  

4.3.6 No offer of promotion may be made to any 

employee prior to completion of the recruitment 

and selection process.  Temporary assignments 

may be made by the  Department Director for a 

specified time or assignment as necessary.  Such 

acting status appointments are made on a 

temporary basis and the employee returns to his 

regular position upon completion of the 

assignment.  Such acting status appointments are 

governed by Section 4.7.1. 

 

4.3.7 Whenever an employee is promoted to a higher 

position, or whenever an employee's position is 

upgraded, said employee will enter the new 

grade/position at the entry level of the new 

position.  In the event the entry level of the new 

or upgraded position does not provide a salary 

increase, the employee may enter at the level 

which provides a salary increase of 5% or more 

with City Manager approval.  However, if the 

employee is receiving supplemental pay for acting 

status pursuant to Section 4.7.1, such temporary 

additional compensation shall not be included in 

the calculation of the salary adjustment. The new 

pay rate, upon promotion, shall not exceed the 

maximum of the new pay range.  

 

4.3.8 Promotions do not change the person's date of 

hire. 

 

4.3.9 Persons so promoted will be subject to the 

standard probationary period for the new position.  

 

4.3.10 Non-exempt employees promoted to exempt 

positions shall be entitled to use any accrued 

compensatory time prior to the effective date of 

the promotion.  In the event that use of 

compensatory time is not feasible, the employee 

shall be paid the balance of the compensatory 

time prior to the effective date of the promotion. 

 

4.4   TRANSFERS   
  

4.4.1 Any current employee interested in applying for a 

transfer must file a completed City application 

form with the Human Resources Office. 

  

4.4.2 If the employee meets the stated requirements for 

the position, he will proceed through the regular 

hiring procedures with all other applicants.  

Transfers are made only when the City's service 

will benefit.  All else being equal, current City 

employees will be given priority for open 

positions.  

 

4.4.3 Transfer employees will serve a probationary 

period in his new position. Transfer employees 

remain eligible for all fringe benefits included 

with the previous position. If the position to 

which an employee transfers carries benefits 

different from those of the previous position, the 

benefits of the new position apply. 

 

4.4.4 Transfers do not change a person's date of hire.  

   

4.4.5 Transfers may also be initiated by the City in 

instances where the City's best interests may be 

served, without following the standard 

recruitment procedures. 

  

4.4.6 The salary of an employee transferred to a 

position within the same salary grade will not 

change, unless prior approval is obtained from the 

City Manager. 

 

4.4.7 Any unused accrued vacation, or sick time for 

which the employee has at the time of transfer, 

shall transfer to the new department.  Any unused 

compensatory time will be cashed out or used 

prior to moving to the new department. 

 

 4.5  POSITION DESCRIPTIONS   
  

4.5.1 Position descriptions shall be maintained by the 

Human Resource Department for all budgeted 

positions.  

  

4.5.2 The position descriptions shall include:  Position 

Title, Grade, Position Code, Department, FLSA 

Status, General Purpose, Supervision Received, 

Supervision Exercised, Examples of Duties, 

Minimum Qualifications and Special 

Requirements. 

 

4.5.3 The position description does not constitute an 

employment agreement between the City and 

employee and is subject to change as the needs of 

the City and the requirements of the job change.  

 

4.5.4 Examples of duties listed in the position 

description are intended only as illustrations of 

the various types of work performed.  The 

omissions of specific statements of duties do not 

exclude them from the position if the work is 

similarly related or a logical assignment to the 

position.  

52

Item III. c.



14 

 

 

4.5.5 Each employee's position description is 

maintained as part of his personnel file.  

Additional copies of position descriptions may be 

requested through the Department Director or 

Director of Human Resources. 

 

4.6     RECLASSIFICATION   
 

4.6.1 Revision of position descriptions and 

re-allocations within the classification plan shall 

be made as often as is necessary to provide 

current information on positions.  

 

4.6.2 Each position of employment under the 

jurisdiction of the City of Stonecrest is assigned 

to a particular pay grade.  This section allows for 

changing the assignment of a particular position 

to a different and more suitable pay grade when it 

is determined that the position is incorrectly 

assigned.  This change may produce a 

corresponding change in the salary for the 

position.    

 

4.6.3 A Department Director may request 

reclassification review to the Director of Human 

Resources.  A Request for Reclassification shall 

be submitted in writing, along with a position 

analysis questionnaire, a detailed statement of 

justification for the request, and proof of budget 

availability to support any potential increase in 

salary of the affected employee.  Reclassifications 

are justified as a result of the following: 

 

a. The position was originally assigned to an 

inappropriate pay grade; or 

 

b. There has been a substantial change in the 

duties and responsibilities associated with a 

position since it was originally assigned to a 

particular pay grade. 

 

4.6.4 Upon receipt and verification of the request, the 

Director of Human Resources shall conduct an 

analysis of the request for the purposes of 

determining whether the requested reclassification 

is warranted.  

 

4.6.5 The Position Analysis Questionnaire will be 

reviewed using established point-factor analysis.  

Based on this analysis, the Director of Human 

Resources shall determine the appropriate pay 

grade for the position.   

 

4.6.6 If the analysis reveals that the position should be 

reclassified to a pay grade that is different than 

the one currently assigned, the Director of Human 

Resources will forward this information to the 

City Manager for review/approval.   

 

4.6.7 If the analysis reveals that the position is properly 

assigned, then no further action will be taken 

other than to inform the  Department Director of 

the result of the review. 

 

4.6.8 The City Manager shall review, approve or 

disapprove recommendations of the Director of 

Human Resources regarding all Requests for 

Reclassification.   

 

4.6.9 Treatment of Affected Employee Upon 

Reclassification of Position 

 

a. If the position is occupied at the time of 

reclassification, the employee shall be 

entitled to serve therein with the 

corresponding status after the reclassification. 

 

b. If the position is assigned to a higher grade as 

a result of the reclassification, such action is 

considered a position upgrade.  If the position 

is occupied at the time of an upgrade, the 

employee’s salary shall be affected as 

outlined in 4.0.5. 

 

c. If the position is assigned to a lower grade as 

a result of the reclassification, such action is 

considered a downgrade of the position.  If 

the position is occupied at the time of a 

downgrade, the employee’s salary shall be 

affected as outlined in 4.0.6. 

 

d. In all cases of reclassification of a vacant 

position, the position shall be filled at the 

beginning salary of the new pay grade. 

4.7  SUPPLEMENTAL PAY 

 

4.7.1 Acting Status.  When an employee is temporarily 

reassigned to a position that is different from the 

regular assignment, or when the employee is 

temporarily assigned a significant increase in 

duties and responsibilities above the employee’s 

regular position, the Department Director may 

recommend to the Director of Human Resources, 

and City Manager that the employee’s salary be 

increased 5% percent or to a level responsive to 

given responsibilities for the duration of the 

reassignment.  All employees reassigned to acting 

status should meet the minimum requirements for 

the new position prior to the reassignment.  The 

duration for acting status shall not exceed 12 

continuous months without written approval of 

the City Manager.  Requests to extend the 12-

month limitation must be provided in writing to 

the City Manager. 

 

4.7.2 Supplemental pay will be discontinued in the 

event the employee is reassigned to a different 

position not eligible for supplemental pay. 

53

Item III. c.



15 

 

 

4.7.3 The City Manager reserves the right to provide 

supplemental pay to employees who achieve 

additional or special degrees and/or certifications 

at the request of the Department Director. 

 

4.8  WORKER'S COMPENSATION   
  

4.8.1     All employees of the City are covered by the 

State of Georgia Workers’ Compensation Act. 

Workers’ compensation is a benefits program 

created by state law that provides medical, 

rehabilitation, income, death and other benefits to 

employees and dependents due to injury, illness 

and death resulting from a compensable work-

related injury covered by the Law.  

 

4.8.2 An employee who sustains an injury on the job 

must, at the time of the injury, notify his or her 

supervisor,  Department Director, or the Director 

of Human Resources of the injury, and must 

document same on forms provided by the Human 

Resources Department.  An employee may lose 

the right to receive compensation if an accident is 

not reported promptly. 

 

4.8.3 Use of Designated Physicians – If medical 

attention by a physician is needed, the employee 

must select a doctor from the approved panel of 

physicians provided by the City.  In an 

emergency, the employee may receive temporary 

medical care from any doctor until the emergency 

is over, then the employee must obtain treatment 

from a doctor on the City’s approved panel of 

physicians.  The City of Stonecrest reserves the 

right to refuse payment of medical services for 

any employee examined by a physician not listed 

on its approved panel of physicians.    

 

4.8.4 If the injury will prevent the employee from 

working, the employee must submit a physician’s 

statement verifying same. 

 

4.8.5 If the injury necessitates the employee’s absence 

from work, the employee shall receive his/her 

regular rate of pay for a maximum of seven (7) 

calendar days.  Thereafter, the City’s worker’s 

compensation carrier shall determine if further 

compensation is required.    

 

4.8.6     Effect on Leave - Time spent on Workers’ 

Compensation leave shall not be considered 

"hours worked" for purposes of leave accrual. 

 

4.8.7     An employee may be paid for earned sick leave 

while on Workers’ Compensation leave. Such 

payment, when combined with the Workers’ 

Compensation benefit, shall not cause the 

employee’s salary to exceed the normal rate of 

pay prior to work injury. 

 

4.8.8. If an employee qualifies for worker’s 

compensation benefits, and the worker’s 

compensation leave is for an FMLA-qualifying 

reason, the employee’s worker’s compensation 

leave and the FMLA leave will run concurrently.   

 

4.8.9 Return to Work – Any employee who has lost 

time due to a work-related injury or illness must 

obtain a doctor’s statement for the time missed 

and a fitness-for-duty certification to return to 

work.  Doctor’s notes that specify work 

restrictions must be adhered to by the employee.   

 

4.8.10 A worker’s compensation leave may not exceed 

twelve (12) months.  If an employee does not 

return to work within twelve months from the 

date of injury, employment will be terminated.   

 

SECTION 5:   

BENEFITS 

 

5.0  City of Stonecrest offers a variety of benefits to 

its employees.  Information in this Policy Manual 

is intended to only summarize those benefits.  

Terms of written plan documents, insurance 

policies or other benefits plans and policies will 

be the controlling documents.  Employees should 

refer to official plan documents or policies for 

detailed plan or policy information.  Employees 

should contact the Human Resources Department 

with any questions about City of Stonecrest’s 

employee benefits. 

 

5.0.1 In addition to approved premiums, the City may 

provide incentives or assess surcharges to 

employees for participation in wellness program 

initiatives.  
 

5.1  GROUP HEALTH PLAN 
 

5.1.1 The City offers to all its regular, full-time 

employees and their eligible dependents group 

health coverage.  The City pays a percentage, 

approved by the Mayor and City Council, of 

premiums for those with individual, dependent or 

family coverage. 

 

5.2  LIFE INSURANCE 

 

  The City provides life insurance to all its regular, 

full-time employees.  Basic Life insurance 

premiums for employees may be paid in full by 

the City. 

 

5.3  GROUP DENTAL PLAN   
 

5.3.1 The City offers to all its regular, full-time 

employees and their eligible dependents group 

54

Item III. c.



16 

 

dental coverage.  The City pays a percentage, 

approved by the Mayor and City Council, of the 

premiums for those with individual, dependent or 

family coverage. 

 

5.4  CREDIT UNION   
 

5.4.1 City employees and their family members are 

eligible to participate in credit unions.  Credit 

unions offer a variety of services to members, 

including savings programs, money market 

accounts, certificates of deposit, individual 

retirement accounts (IRA's), loans, check cashing, 

loan protection insurance, and member account 

insurance.  All contributions are financed 100% 

by the employee.  

 

5.5  457(b) - DEFERRED COMPENSATION  
  

5.5.1 The City provides an option to any eligible 

employee to invest a portion of his present 

earnings in a deferred compensation (457b) plan.  

This is an arrangement where a percentage of  an 

employee’s salary can be designated by the 

employee to be withheld from his or her paycheck 

and invested for payment at a later date, usually at 

retirement.   Under this arrangement, neither the 

deferred amount nor earnings on the investments 

are subject to current Federal income taxes until 

such time as the employee receives payment from 

the plan.  

 

5.5.2 The City approved program is administered by 

Georgia Municipal Association (GMA).  

Enrollment may be arranged through the Human 

Resources Office, and is open to any individual 

who has achieved full-time employee status with 

the City.  Contributions to the program are made 

by employees through payroll deductions.  

 

5.5.3 Benefits received through this program are in 

addition to any Social Security for which the 

participating employee would be eligible.  

 

5.5.4 The City makes no claim of profitability of 

investment options and is not responsible for any 

gains or losses that may occur as a result of 

individual investment choices. 

 

5.5.5 The City may match up to 4% of an eligible 

employee’s contribution to the 457(b) plan.  

Matched contributions will be made in the 401(a) 

defined contribution plan and be subject to 

vesting rules. 

 

5.6  RETIREMENT – 401(a) DEFINED 

CONTRIBUTION PLAN   
  

5.6.1 The City chooses to provide all full-time City 

employees a defined contribution retirement 

program, and may modify defined contribution 

plan documents from time to time. 

 

5.6.2 The City shall contribute an unmatched amount 

equal to 11% of the eligible employee’s monthly 

salary into the 401a defined contribution plan. 

 

5.6.3 The City may match up to 4% of an eligible 

employee’s contribution to the 457(b) deferred 

compensation plan into the defined contribution 

plan. 

 

5.6.4 City employees participating in the City’s 401(a) 

Defined Contribution Plan, and those qualifying 

for matching 457(b) contributions shall vest after 

completion of each vesting year in the plan as 

follows: Year 1 – 20%, Year 2 – 40%, Year 3 – 

60%, Year 4 – 80%, Year 5 – 100%. The City 

may allow immediate vesting for classifications 

listed in the plan adoption agreement. 

 

5.6.5 Employees should notify the Human Resources 

Department at least 60 days prior to their 

anticipated retirement date to ensure that all 

paperwork can be processed in a timely manner. 

 

5.7 FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT 

 

5.7.1 The City may provide Medical and/or Childcare 

Flexible Spending Accounts for its full-time 

employees. Employee contributions are pre-tax 

deductions and shall be used for reimbursement 

for medical and/or childcare related expenses not 

covered by other City healthcare plans.  

Employees seeking to take advantage of such 

flexible spending accounts are urged to give due 

consideration to the amount of money they wish 

to contribute for the subject year, because if the 

employee puts in more money than they use for 

medical and/or childcare related expenses, they 

may lose the unused amount. 

 

5.8  SOCIAL SECURITY   
  

5.8.1 All employees are automatically included as 

participants in the Social Security System (FICA) 

which provides workers with the following 

benefits: retirement insurance, survivor's 

insurance, disability insurance, Medicare for the 

disabled and the aged, and supplemental security 

income.  

 

5.9  UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION   
  

  The City is a covered employer under the 

Unemployment Compensation law.  The basic 

objective of the program is to provide a partial 

replacement of wages for its employees during 

short periods of involuntary unemployment under 

certain circumstances.  The program is financed 

55

Item III. c.



17 

 

completely by the City.  

 

 

5.10  CONTINUANCE OF MEDICAL 

COVERAGE (COBRA) 

 

5.10.1 Group insurance benefits will terminate upon 

termination of employment.  However, the 

Federal Consolidated Omnibus Budget 

Reconciliation Act (COBRA) gives employees 

and their qualified dependents the opportunity to 

continue health insurance coverage under the 

City’s health plan when a “qualifying event” 

would normally result in loss of eligibility.  

Typical qualifying events include termination of 

employment (excluding for gross misconduct), 

divorce or legal separation, leave of absence, a 

dependent child no longer meeting eligibility 

requirements, or retirement.  Under COBRA, the 

employee or dependent pays the full cost of 

coverage at City of Stonecrest’s group rates 

(which includes City of Stonecrest’s portion of 

the premium) plus an administrative fee.  The 

City will provide a written notice describing 

rights granted under COBRA when the employee 

becomes eligible for coverage under the health 

plan, or upon request of the employee.  

Employees should contact the Human Resources 

Department to report any change in personal 

status (or qualifying event) which might affect 

their benefits, or for any questions about City 

health plans.     

 

  COBRA benefits will be discontinued when the 

employee becomes eligible for Medicare benefits, 

with the exception that where an employee’s 

separation occurs less than 18 months after the 

date the covered employee became entitled to 

Medicare benefits, the period of coverage for 

qualified beneficiaries other than the employee 

will not terminate before the close of the 36-

month period beginning on the date the covered 

employee became so entitled to Medicare 

benefits. 

 

5.11 EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION  
 

5.11.1 Service Awards - Employee tenure may be 

recognized by the presentation of a service gift.  

These gifts may be presented monthly to full-time 

employees by the Mayor and City Council or its 

designee.  Recognition may be given every 5 

years.  

                

5.12 VEHICLE 
 

5.12.1 City Vehicles – City of Stonecrest may provide 

employees with vehicles to help them in carrying 

out their job efficiently and effectively.  

 

a. Personal Use - Employees shall not use a 

City vehicle for personal or private business.  

The only exception to this is commuting to 

and from work in a City vehicle. Employees 

who commute in a City vehicle shall be 

governed by the following guidelines. 

 

b. Authorization - Use of a City vehicle for 

commuting must be authorized by the City 

Manager for one of the following reasons: 

 

1. Emergency Calls - The employee 

responds to emergency or after hours 

calls, and 

 

2. The cost of providing the vehicle is less 

than the expense of mileage 

reimbursements for using a personal 

vehicle on City business  

 

5.12.2 Additional Benefits - The City may provide a 

vehicle or an allowance for the use of a personal 

vehicle as an additional fringe benefit for selected 

personnel.  The criteria for providing such a 

benefit shall be: 

 

a. The City receives intangible benefits from 

giving the employee the vehicle benefit such 

as the speed of response to emergencies or 

after hours services which justify the benefit, 

or 

 

b. Provision of the vehicle or vehicle allowance 

is considered to be a part of the total 

compensation package for the position.   

 

5.12.3 Taxation – If the vehicle is provided to an 

employee and is authorized and required for 

commuting to and from work, there is no tax 

liability on part of the employee.   If a vehicle is 

not required for commuting to and from work, the 

value of the use of the City's vehicle will be 

reported as income to the employee for tax 

purposes.  The City will withhold appropriate 

taxes from the employee for the value of the 

vehicle's use and will pay any taxes incurred as an 

employer. 

 

5.12.4 Penalty for abuse - Employees may not use a City 

vehicle for personal use other than authorized 

commuting to and from work, unless written 

authorization is obtained from the City Manager.  

Any further personal use of the vehicle will result 

in disciplinary action against the employee. 

 

5.12.5 Motor Vehicle Record - It is the policy of City of 

Stonecrest and a requirement of employment that 

every employee filling a position that requires a 

valid driver’s license have a motor vehicle record 

(MVR) specified grading requirements.  This 

56

Item III. c.



18 

 

MVR policy applies both to drivers of entity 

owned vehicles, and employees using personal 

vehicles in the course of their employment as 

well. 

 

Employee MVR’s will be examined prior to the 

date of employment and every year thereafter.  

Any job offer made where the job requires a valid 

driver’s license will be contingent upon an MVR 

meeting the required standards.  Continued 

employment with the City in a position requiring 

a valid driver’s license will require a MVR 

meeting the specified standards.  

 

All violations will be reviewed by the City 

Manager and Director of Human Resources and 

may result in disciplinary action, up to and 

including termination.   

 

5.13 EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
 

5.13.1 The City may maintain for its employees and 

their immediate family members a counseling and 

treatment program, referred to as the Employee 

Assistance Program or EAP.  This program, 

provided by an outside professional medical 

organization, assists City employees and their 

immediate family members with a wide range of 

personal problems that may have a negative effect 

on their well being and/or job performance.  The 

provider will furnish an assessment for the 

employee or family member and make 

recommendations for further counseling or 

treatment as needed either at their facility or by 

making a referral to an appropriate agency. 

 

5.13.2 Common problems for which employees may 

seek professional counseling through the 

Employee Assistance Program are: financial, 

marital, alcohol abuse, drug abuse, dealing with 

problem children, coping with stress, death of a 

family member, divorce and children with certain 

medical problems. 

 

5.14 OTHER BENEFITS    
 

5.14.1 The Mayor and City Council may authorize other 

benefits not specifically included in this policy 

manual to both full and part-time employees, 

contingent upon budgetary considerations. 

 

5.14.2 Uniforms:  The City may provide uniforms or an 

allowance for the purchase of uniforms to regular 

full-time employees. 

 

5.14.3 Personal Safety Equipment:  Employees may be 

eligible to purchase safety equipment through a 

City or State Contract.  The City will pay for 

required personal safety equipment necessary to 

adhere to OSHA safety standards. Employees 

wishing to enhance or purchase additional 

equipment may use payroll deductions to pay for 

these items.   

 
5.15  BENEFITS COMMITTEE  

  

5.15.1  The City Manager may create a benefits 

committee to advise on benefit offerings and 

effectiveness.  

 

5.15.2  The mission of the Committee is to facilitate the 

provision of quality and affordable health and 

other benefits for City employees and their 

eligible dependents by acting in an advisory 

capacity to the Director of Human Resources and 

City Manager by: 

 

 Investigating and facilitating the 

provision of quality and affordable 

benefits for City employees; 

  

 building a foundation for an effective 

health care program that encourages 

wellness through healthy lifestyle, 

including features that provide the best 

value for cost in the health care plan 

design, while reducing health care costs 

to employees, eligible dependents, and 

taxpayers; 

 

 relying upon a combination of initiatives 

for employee, dependent and providers 

in making health care decisions; 

  

 gaining employee understanding and 

endorsement of health, retirement, and 

other benefit programs; and 

 

 developing fact-based outcome measures 

for cost effective health care programs.     

 

   

SECTION 6:  - LEAVE 
 

6.0  FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE 
 

6.0.1 City of Stonecrest will provide employees with up 

to twelve (12) workweeks of unpaid family and 

medical leave during any 12 - month period for 

the following: 

 

a. Birth of a child and to care for the newborn 

child within one year of birth; 

 

b. The placement with the employee of a child 

for adoption or foster care and to care for the 

newly placed child within one year of 

placement; 

 

57

Item III. c.



19 

 

c. To care for the employee’s spouse, child, or 

parent who has a serious health condition; 

 

d. A serious health condition that renders the 

employee unable to perform the essential 

functions of his or her job; and/or  

e. Any qualifying exigency arising out of the 

fact that the employee’s spouse, son, 

daughter, or parent is a covered military 

member on covered active duty; or  

 

Twenty-six (26) workweeks of leave during a 

single 12-month period to care for a member of 

the Armed Forces, including a member of the 

National Guard or Reserves, who is the spouse, 

son, daughter, parent, or next of kin to the 

employee, and who is undergoing medical 

treatment, recuperation, or therapy, is otherwise 

in outpatient status, or is otherwise on the 

temporary disability retired list, for a serious 

injury or illness.  

 

6.0.2 Ordinary illnesses do not qualify for FMLA, such 

as the common cold, flu, ear aches, upset 

stomach, headaches and routine dental care.  To 

be eligible for leave under the FMLA, an 

employee must have a condition that renders him 

or her unable to perform their essential job 

function. 

 

6.0.3 To be eligible for leave, an employee must have 

worked for at least twelve (12) months for the 

City and for a minimum of 1,250 hours during the 

previous year.  

 

6.0.4 Employees who take leave will be entitled to 

return to their positions, or positions with 

equivalent benefits, pay and other terms and 

conditions of employment, provided that the 

returning employee is able to perform the 

essential functions of the same or equivalent 

position upon his or her return.  The City may 

deny restoration to a job position to employees 

who are among the highest paid 10 percent of the 

employees where the denial is necessary to 

prevent substantial and grievous economic injury 

to the operations of the City. 

 

6.0.5 Employees may accrue any seniority or 

employment benefits during any period of FMLA 

leave. 

 

6.0.6 The City will provide coverage under a group 

health insurance plan for employees who are on 

leave under the same conditions as coverage 

would have been provided if no leave had been 

taken. 

 

6.0.7 Employees are required to provide at least 30 

days notice for foreseeable events that require 

leave under the FMLA. 

 

6.0.8 Leave resulting from the birth of a child or the 

placement of a child for adoption or foster care 

may not be taken intermittently or on a reduced 

leave schedule unless the employee and the City 

agree on the schedule of intermittent or reduced 

leave. 

 

6.0.9 Leave resulting from the serious illness of a child, 

spouse, parent or the employee can be taken 

intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule 

when medically necessary. 

 

6.0.10 Concurrent Utilization of Paid Leave and/or 

Compensatory Time:  An employee requesting 

leave pursuant to the FMLA is required to utilize 

all accrued personal leave and/or compensatory 

time available as part of the 12-week leave 

period.  If the available paid leave for the 

employee is less than twelve working weeks, the 

additional weeks of leave necessary to obtain the 

twelve work weeks of leave available under the 

FMLA shall be provided without compensation.  

In any event, any combination of personal leave, 

compensatory time, and/or unpaid family and 

medical leave shall not exceed twelve (12) weeks.  

Use of personal and/or compensatory leave, or 

any combination thereof, must be used 

concurrently with FMLA leave.  FMLA requests 

will be retroactively dated to the beginning of the 

current personal and/or compensatory leave, or 

any combination thereof in the event that the paid 

leave is commenced prior to the request for 

FMLA.    

 

6.0.11 An eligible employee who requests leave for a 

serious health condition of the employee or a 

qualifying family member shall submit 

certification from an appropriate health care 

provider to the Director of Human Resources 

when requesting FMLA leave. 

 

  Certification shall be sufficient if it states: 

 

(1) The date on which the serious health 

condition commenced; 

 

(2) The probable duration of the treatment or 

condition; 

 

(3) The appropriate medical facts within the 

health care provider’s knowledge; and  

 

(4) The estimated amount of time the employee 

needs to care for the qualifying family 

member or a statement of the extent to which 

the employee is unable to perform the 

essential functions of the employee’s 

position. 

58

Item III. c.



20 

 

 

In any case in which the Director of Human 

Resources has reasonable doubt as to the validity 

of the certification, the Director of Human 

Resources may require the employee to obtain the 

opinion of a second health care provider at the 

expense of the City.  In any case in which the 

second opinion differs from the original 

certification, the Director of Human Resources 

may require the employee to obtain the opinion of 

a third health care provider designated or 

approved jointly by the Director of Human 

Resources and the employee at the expense of the 

City.  The opinion of the third health care 

provider shall be considered to be final and shall 

be binding on the City and the employee.  The 

Director of Human Resources may also require 

that the employee obtain subsequent re-

certification on a reasonable basis. 

 

Health care providers who may provide 

certification of a serious health condition include: 

a.   doctors of medicine or osteopathy authorized 

to practice medicine or surgery (as 

appropriate) by the State in which the doctor 

practices;  

b. podiatrists, dentists, clinical psychologists, and 

optometrists, authorized to practice in the 

State and performing within the scope of their 

practice under State law; and 

c. any health care provider recognized by the 

City's group health plan. 

 

6.0.11 An employee qualifying for worker’s 

compensation leave must run any requested 

FMLA leave concurrently with that of all 

concurrent and/or intermittent worker’s 

compensation leave.  The employee must elect to 

use either worker’s compensation benefits or paid 

leave during the FMLA period. 

 

6.0.12 In any occasion in which a husband and wife are 

eligible for leave under the FMLA and are both 

employed by the City of Stonecrest, the aggregate 

number of work weeks of leave to which both 

may be entitled may be limited to twelve (12) 

work weeks during any 12-month rolling period, 

in the case where leave is taken for childbirth, 

adoption, foster care, or to care for a sick parent. 

 

6.0.13 In the event that the Director of Human Resources 

denies, in whole or in part, a request for leave 

pursuant to the FMLA, an employee has the right 

to appeal that decision consistent with the 

following procedures: 

 

 Any such appeal from an employee must file 

within three (3) working days following receipt of 

the denial decision from the Director of Human 

Resources.  The written notice of appeal shall 

include the request for leave and all supporting 

documentation provided to the Director of Human 

Resources.  The appeal shall be filed with the 

City Manager who has the authority to amend or 

reverse the decision of the Director of Human 

Resources.  Failure of the employee to appeal 

within three (3) working days shall result in 

forfeiture of any further right of appeal of a 

denial. 

 

 The City Manager shall review the record of the 

appeal and shall, within five (5) working days, 

issue a final determination.  The decision of the 

City Manager shall be final. 

 

6.0.14 Return to Duty from FMLA Leave: As a 

condition for return to duty, the employee may be 

required to provide certification from the 

employee’s health care provider that the 

employee is able to resume work.  

 

6.1  BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 
 

6.1.1 A regular full-time employee who has a member 

of his immediate family taken by death shall 

receive up to three (3) days off with pay as 

bereavement leave to arrange and/or attend 

funeral activities.  If out of state travel is 

necessary, an additional two days may be granted 

with pay upon the approval of the City Manager. 

 

6.1.2 If additional time is necessary beyond the normal 

three (3) days for non-travel leave, it shall be 

taken as vacation or sick leave (or unpaid leave if 

vacation or sick leave has been exhausted) with 

advance authorization by the appropriate   

Department Director or Director of Human 

Resources. Time for attendance at funeral of 

others may be granted without pay or made up 

within the same pay period.  

 

6.1.3 The employee must notify his immediate 

supervisor upon making the determination to take 

time off from work.  

 

6.1.4 Employees who fail to return to work on the date 

specified to the Department Director without 

receiving an extension are subject to disciplinary 

action, up to and including termination.  

 

6.2  HOLIDAYS   
  

6.2.1 The City may celebrate the following holidays off 

with pay for full-time employees, contingent upon 

budgetary approval by the Mayor and City 

Council:  

59

Item III. c.



21 

 

  

 New Year's Day   January 1 

 Martin Luther King 3rd Monday of Jan  

 Memorial Day    Last Monday of May  

 Independence Day  July 4  

 Labor Day     1st Monday of Sept 

 Veterans Day    November 11 

 Thanksgiving (2)    4th Thursday and 

Friday of November 

 Christmas (2)    December 24 and 25 

 New Year’s Eve   December 31 

  

 

6.2.2 In the event a holiday falls upon a Sunday, the 

following Monday shall be deemed to be the legal 

holiday.  In the event the legal holiday falls on a 

Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be deemed to 

be the legal holiday.  Notwithstanding, New 

Year’s Day will always be recognized on the first 

business day of the year. 

 

6.2.3 To receive pay for an official holiday, the 

employee must either: 1) work the days 

immediately before and after the holiday, or 2) be 

on approved paid leave on those days. 

 

6.2.4 Non-exempt employees authorized to work 

during any holiday as defined in Section 6.2.1, 

may be paid at the rate of one and one-half times 

the normal hourly rate for hours worked on the 

holiday, plus holiday pay equal to their normally 

scheduled hours, as approved by the Mayor and 

City Council and included in the annual budget. 

 

6.2.5 Any employee who has accrued holiday hours 

shall use said holiday hours within the year 

earned and prior to using vacation hours. 

 

6.3  JURY/COURT LEAVE   
  

6.3.1 Any regular full-time employee who is required 

to serve on a jury, or as a result of official City of 

Stonecrest duties is required to appear before a 

court, legislative committee or quasi-judicial 

body as a witness in response to a subpoena or 

other directive, shall be allowed authorized leave 

with pay.  A probationary employee called will 

have his probationary period extended  by the 

same amount of time as required for serving on 

jury duty.  An employee who receives notice of 

jury duty or witness service must notify his 

supervisor immediately in order that 

arrangements may be made to cover the position.  

The City reserves the right to request that an 

employee who is called for jury be excused if 

their absence would create a hardship on the 

operational effectiveness of the department to 

which they are assigned.  

 

6.3.2 Time away will not affect vacation or sick leave 

accruals.  

 

6.3.3 Employees who appear in court as the plaintiff or 

defendant or are otherwise subpoenaed to appear 

in any action not related to their official duties or 

City business shall not be paid for time away 

from work unless that time is accrued vacation or 

compensatory leave.  In addition, an employee 

shall not be granted court leave for any case in 

which the employees is charged with a crime. 

 

6.3.4 The employee may keep any court payment for 

services performed on the days of his regularly 

scheduled workday or performed while on 

vacation or compensatory leave.  

 

6.3.5 Employees are to return to work after jury duty 

although no more than the regularly scheduled 

number of hours for both jury duty and work shall 

be required. If excused as a juror on any given 

day, the employee is expected to contact his 

supervisor and to report to work as instructed.  

 

 

  

6.4  MILITARY LEAVE   
  

6.4.1 The authority for this policy is derived from the 

provisions of Georgia law § 38-2-279 and applies 

to all City employees who are affiliated with the 

United States Armed Forces, National Guard or 

Coast Guard.   

 

6.4.2 Employer's Responsibilities:  

  

a. The City is obligated to release employees 

for service with the Armed Forces when the 

employee participates in:   

     

   1.  Annual Training  

2. Inactive Duty Training (Weekend drills)  

3. Involuntary call-up   

 

b. Ordered military duty shall result in no loss 

of seniority status or benefits which would 

have normally accrued if the employee had 

not been absent for such purposes.   

  

c. The City is obligated to grant Military Leave 

with pay to the employee for absences not 

exceeding eighteen (18) calendar days per 

year in accordance with Georgia law.. The 

City will not require the employee to use 

normal annual leave (accrued vacation) for 

such purposes.  The employee may, however, 

request use of vacation, or leave without pay 

to supplement absences exceeding those 

covered by the eighteen (18) day Military 

Leave allowance.  

 

60

Item III. c.



22 

 

d. In the event an employee is called to active 

military duty, the City will provide the 

reservist differential pay to be the difference 

between the reservist’s base pay with the City 

and the base pay, excluding benefits, for the 

military service.  This differential pay will 

not be dependent upon accrued leave and will 

continue for the period of active duty not to 

exceed 365 days. 

 

 All reservists called to active duty will be 

required to present a payroll receipt for their 

military service to verify salary levels.  A 

check will then be issued for the differential. 

 

6.4.3 Employee's Responsibilities:  

  

a. The employee is responsible to provide to 

their Department Director copies of all 

military orders which will result in a leave of 

absence for military duty.   

  

 Orders must specify the duties of absence, 

promulgation authority, letter order number 

and signature of issuing authority. Employees 

are required to notify their supervisors at the 

earliest possible date upon learning of 

scheduled military duty.   

 

   b. Employees who fail to return to work on the 

date specified in the leave request without 

receiving an extension in advance are subject 

to disciplinary action up to and including 

termination.   

 

c. Inactive duty training dates (weekend drills) 

should be provided to the   Department 

Director as soon as available if the dates 

conflict with scheduled employment with the 

City.   

 

f. Extended leave of absence (exceeding 18 

calendar day allowances) will be pursuant to 

State and Federal law.  

 

6.5 SICK LEAVE   
 

All full-time employees, whether paid on an 

hourly basis or by salary, shall be entitled to sick 

leave as follows:  

 

6.5.1 A full-time employees shall be entitled to sick 

leave from the date of employment.  Sick leave 

shall be granted at the rate of 3.33 hours for each 

pay period of service.   

 

6.5.2 Employees entitled to sick leave may remain 

away from work with pay, where such absence is 

the result of personal illness or physical 

incapacity not job related, sickness of an 

immediate family member, involuntary or 

enforced quarantine, or death in the immediate 

family of such employee.   

 

6.5.3 In the event of an employee's death, accumulated 

sick leave may be paid to the dependent spouse or 

child or the dependent's estate.   

 

6.5.4 Sick leave benefits shall apply to bona fide cases 

of sickness, accidents, doctor or dental 

appointments, maternity leave, and requests for 

the employee's presence by immediate family, 

doctor or clergy due to family illness or 

emergency.  

 

6.5.5 A full-time employee who is on sick leave as 

above specified for a period of three (3) 

consecutive workdays or longer shall, prior to 

being entitled to any compensation therefore, 

furnish without delay a report from a doctor 

which shall contain a diagnosis of the sickness, 

whenever possible.   

 

6.5.6 Any employee who becomes ill while on a 

vacation status may be granted sick leave for the 

period of illness.  This determination shall be 

made by the Director of Human Resources based 

on a written statement from the employee's 

doctor. 

 

6.5.7 When an employee goes on Sick Leave he must 

notify his Department Director or designated 

supervisor immediately.  Notification should be at 

least one (1) hour prior to the beginning of the 

scheduled work day.  Failure to do so may result 

in denial of such leave pay.  The employee should 

also let the supervisor know when he expects to 

return to work.  

 

6.5.8 An employee who is on sick leave shall keep his 

supervisor advised on a daily basis as to 

improvement to his or her condition and expected 

date of return to duty. If requested, the employee 

shall file a doctor's certificate stating the cause of 

the absence and the nature of the illness before 

sick leave payment is authorized.  

 

6.5.9 Sick leave shall be rounded off to the nearest half 

hour.  When possible, sick leave should be taken 

in increments of no less than one (1) hour.   

 

6.5.10 No sick leave will be given to an employee in 

excess of the amount earned and available to the 

employee.  An employee may utilize vacation 

time when sick leave has been exhausted at the 

discretion of the Department Director. 

  

6.5.11 An employee who separates employment with the 

City for any reason other than death will not be 

paid for sick leave earned or used up to the date 

61

Item III. c.



23 

 

of separation.     

 

6.5.12 Employees covered under the 401A retirement 

plan and who meet the qualifications for 

retirement, may receive pay for ½ of their accrued 

sick leave at time of retirement. Retirees will not 

receive any other compensation for accrued sick 

leave upon retirement. 

 

6.5.13 Sick leave is non-transferable, except in cases of 

extreme life-threatening illness, such as cancer, 

heart attack, stroke or other major illness.  Such 

requests will be reviewed and approved by the 

City Manager and Director of Human Resources 

on a case by case basis. 

 

 

6.6  VACATION LEAVE   
 

6.6.1 Vacation (Annual) Leave- The City provides 

vacation leave with pay to each regular full-time 

employee for rest and relaxation.  

 

6.6.2 Probationary Employees - While in a 

probationary period, employees shall earn 

vacation leave; however, an employee may not 

take vacation leave during his first six months of 

employment unless authorized by Department 

Director. 

 

6.6.3  Vacation Earned - A regular full-time employee 

working a forty (40) hour workweek shall earn 

vacation leave at the following rates: 

 

Service      Hours    

0 – 5 years   80 hours  

6 – 14 years  120 hours  

15 – and over  160 hours  

 

6.6.4  Regular part-time employees working 30 hours 

per week shall earn a pro-rated accrual at 75%. 

 

6.6.5  Maximum Accumulation - Employees with an 

accumulated balance on December 31 may retain 

this balance.  In no event shall annual leave be 

accrued in excess of 240 hours. All hours accrued 

above 240 hours will be forfeited and 

uncompensated. 

 

6.6.6  Payment for Annual Leave - An employee who is 

terminated shall be paid for annual leave earned 

up to the date of separation. 

 

a.  On Death of Employee - The estate of an 

employee who dies while employed by the 

City is entitled to be paid for all the vacation 

leave in the employee's account. 

 

b.  Maximum Limit - The maximum payment 

for annual leave on termination shall 240 

hours. 

 

6.6.7  Upon resignation or retirement from City 

employment an employee in good standing shall 

be paid the normal rate of pay received by the 

employee on his last physical date of employment 

for his unused annual leave. 

 

    

6.6.8  All vacations shall be taken at such time as shall 

be approved by the head of the department.  

 

6.6.9  Annual leave shall be expended in increments of 

not less than 1 hour. 

  

6.6.10  Vacations shall be scheduled at such times as the 

supervisor or Department Director finds most 

suitable after considering the wishes of the 

employee and the requirements of the department. 

All requests for vacation must be approved by the 

supervisor or Department Director prior to the 

commencement of the requested vacation. 

 

6.6.11  The established period of determining vacation 

credit will be from the employee's date of hire.   

 

6.6.12  Paid holidays occurring during vacation are not 

charged to vacation. 

 

6.6.13  Compensatory time off must be exhausted before 

vacation is taken, even if this will result in 

accrued vacation being forfeited. 

 

6.6.14  Accrued holiday time must be exhausted before 

vacation is taken, even if this will result in 

accrued vacation being forfeited, unless the City 

Manager deems necessary to extend.  

 

 

  

6.7   EMERGENCY CLOSING COMPENSATION 

 

6.7.1 If an official City Emergency Closing is issued by 

the governing authority or its designee due to 

natural disaster or inclement weather, employees 

will receive pay for their regular work hours for 

that day. 

 

If an employee actually works on an official 

emergency closing day, whether required by or at 

the request of their supervisor or manager, he/she 

still will receive full pay for their regular work 

hours, plus compensatory time for actual hours 

worked (at the rate of one hour for one hour 

worked).  Department managers and/or 

supervisors will be responsible for maintaining an 

employee log of compensatory time accrued due 

to working on emergency closing days. 

 

If an employee does not report when requested or 

62

Item III. c.



24 

 

required because the employee deems the 

conditions to be too dangerous to travel from their 

home to their work location, the employee may 

request to telework.  In such case, the manager or 

supervisor will review each case individually, and 

if deemed necessary, grant authority to telework 

for a specified period. 

 

 

6.8  ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE 

 

6.8.1 At the discretion of the City, a full-time employee 

may be granted administrative leave with or 

without pay, in order to fulfill personal 

obligations not covered by any of the 

aforementioned leave categories, or to 

temporarily remove the employee from the City 

when it is deemed to be in the employee’s and/or 

City’s best interest. 

 

6.8.2 Employees placed on Administrative Leave with 

pay may be required to remain at home or be 

otherwise available during normal work hours to 

assist the City, as needed.  

 

 

 

SECTION 7:   

CONDUCT  
 

   Employees are expected to follow the Laws of the 

State of Georgia and the ordinances of the City.  

Additionally, since City employment is a position 

of public trust, certain activities are specifically 

prohibited.   

 

7.0  CODE OF ETHICS. 

 

A. It is the policy of the City of Stonecrest to 

uphold, promote, and demand the highest 

standards of ethics from all of its employees. City 

employees shall maintain the utmost standards of 

personal integrity, truthfulness, honesty, and 

fairness in carrying out their public duties, avoid 

any improprieties in their roles as public servants 

including the appearance of impropriety, and 

never use their City position or powers for 

improper personal gain. 

 

B. It is the intention of the Mayor and City 

Council that this Section be liberally construed to 

accomplish its purpose of protecting the public 

against decisions that are affected by undue 

influence, conflicts of interest, or any other 

violation of this Code of Ethics. 

 

7.0.1 Definitions.  The following words and phrases as 

used in this chapter, unless the context clearly 

indicates otherwise, shall have the following 

meanings: 

 

A. “Business” means any corporation, 

partnership, sole proprietorship, firm, enterprise, 

franchise, association, organization, self-

employed individual, consultant, holding 

company, joint stock company, receivership, 

trust, or any legal entity organized for profit. 

 

B. “Commercially reasonable loan” means any 

loan between a person and employee that does not 

provide the employee with significant benefit, 

such as an unusual discount. 

 

C. “City employee” means every individual hired 

to an office or position with the City – under the 

jurisdiction of the Mayor and City Council, 

whether such individual is paid or unpaid, or 

receives taxpayer funding appropriated by the 

Mayor and City Council.  Volunteer 

Board/Committee Members appointed by a 

Councilmember, or the Mayor and City Council 

are considered “City employee” for the purpose 

of Section 7.0, Code of Ethics. 

 

D. “Compensation” means payment in any form 

for real or personal property or services of any 

kind. 

 

E. “Gift” means a voluntary transfer of real or 

personal property of any kind or the voluntary 

rendition of services of any kind without 

consideration of equal or greater value, but not 

including any reasonable hosting, including travel 

expenses, entertainment, meals, or refreshments 

furnished in connection with appearances, 

ceremonies, and occasions reasonably relating to 

official City business, where otherwise permitted 

by law. 

 

F. “Immediate family” shall mean spouse, child, 

parent, brother, sister, grandparent, parent-in-law, 

daughter-in-law, son-in-law, or grandchildren.  

The definition also includes any other person 

living in the employee's household who is 

recognized by state law as the employee's 

dependent, and any individual who stands in loco 

parentis to an employee when the employee was a 

child. 

 

G.   “Interest” means direct or indirect pecuniary 

or material benefit accruing to a City employee as 

a result of a contract or transaction which is or 

may be the subject of an official act by an 

employee, committee, or Mayor and City 

Council, or action by or with the City.  For the 

purpose of this ordinance, an employee is deemed 

to have an interest in the affairs of: 

 

63

Item III. c.



25 

 

1. Any partner in the joint ownership of real 

estate with another person, excluding 

immediate family member;   

2. The counterparty in any purchase or sale of 

real estate within one year before or after the 

employee’s interaction with that counterparty 

on behalf of the City; 

3. Any person of the employee’s immediate 

family; 

4. Any business entity in which the stock of, or 

legal or beneficial ownership of, excess of 

one percent of the total stock or total legal 

and beneficial ownership, is controlled or 

owned directly or indirectly by the employee; 

5. Any person with whom a contractual 

relationship exists with the employee; 

provided, that a contractual obligation of less 

than $500.00, or a commercially reasonable 

loan made in the ordinary course of business 

or a contract for a commercial retail sale at 

prices available to the general public shall not 

be deemed to create an interest in violation of 

this ordinance. 

 

  H. “Legislation” means any ordinance, 

resolution, or official approved action on the part 

of the Mayor and City Council.  

 

I. “Person” means any individual or corporation, 

business, or other entity, however constituted, 

organized, or designated.  

 

7.0.2 Prohibited Conduct.  The following shall 

constitute violations of this Code of Ethics: 

 

A. General Prohibition Against Conflicts of 

Interest.   In order to avoid becoming involved or 

implicated in a conflict of interest or impropriety, 

or an appearance of conflict of interest or 

impropriety, no City employee should be 

involved in any activity that might be seen as 

conflicting with the conduct of official City 

business or as adverse to the interests of the City. 

 

B. Beneficial Interests in Contracts Prohibited. 

No City employee shall participate in his or her 

capacity as a City employee in the making of a 

contract in which he or she has a financial 

interest, direct or indirect, or performs in regard to 

such a contract some function requiring the 

exercise of discretion on behalf of the City. 

Except, that this prohibition shall not apply where 

the City employee has only a remote interest in 

the contract, and where the fact and extent of such 

interest is disclosed and noted in the official 

minutes or similar records of the City prior to 

formation of the contract, and thereafter the 

governing body authorizes, approves, or ratifies 

the contract in good faith. 

 

For purposes of this section, a “remote interest” 

means: 

 

1.  That of a non-salaried officer of a nonprofit 

corporation; 

 

2.  That of an employee or agent of a contracting 

party where the compensation of such 

employee or agent consists entirely of fixed 

wages or salary; 

 

3.  That of a landlord or tenant of a contracting 

party; 

 

4.  That of a routine purchaser or seller of 

residential real estate within one year before 

or after the city employee’s interaction on 

behalf of the City with the counterparty to 

that purchase or sale, where such real estate 

is used by the employee or his/her immediate 

family; 

 

5.  That of a holder of less than 1 percent of the 

shares of a corporation, limited liability 

company, or other entity which is a 

contracting party. 

 

C. Beneficial Influence in Contract Selection and 

Other City Business Prohibited. No City 

employee shall influence the City's selection of, 

or its conduct of business with, a person having or 

proposing to do business with the City if the City 

employee has a financial interest in or with the 

person, unless such interest is a remote interest 

and where the fact and extent of such interest is 

disclosed and noted in the official minutes or 

similar records of the City prior to formation of 

the contract, as defined in the preceding section.  

“Conduct of business” includes, and is not limited 

to, a City employee’s exercise of judgment with 

regard to approving plans, making inspections, 

considering or approving of variances, and 

granting waivers.  Delegation of decisions to a 

subordinate does not relieve a City employee’s 

disclosure obligations under this ordinance in 

circumstances where it is reasonable to believe 

that the employee would have influence over the 

subordinate’s decisions. 

 

D. Representation of Private Person at City 

Proceeding Prohibited. No City employee shall 

appear on behalf of a private person, other than 

himself or herself or an immediate family 

member or except as a witness under subpoena, 

before any regulatory governmental agency or 

court of law in an action or proceeding to which 

the City or a City employee in an official capacity 

is a party, or accept a retainer or compensation 

that is contingent upon a specific action by the 

City. 

64

Item III. c.



26 

 

 

E. Certain Private Employment Prohibited. No 

City employee shall engage in or accept private 

employment, or render services for, any private 

interest when such employment or service is 

incompatible with the proper discharge of official 

duties or would tend to impair independence of 

judgment or action in the performance of official 

duties. 

 

F. Beneficial Interest in Legislation Prohibited. 

No City employee, in appearing before the Mayor 

and City Council or when giving an official 

department or individual opinion, 

recommendation or stating a position before the 

Mayor and City Council, shall have an interest in 

any legislation coming before the Mayor and City 

Council and participate in discussion with or give 

an official opinion to the Mayor and City Council, 

unless such interest is a remote interest and where 

the fact and extent of such interest is disclosed 

and noted on the record of the Council, or similar 

records of the City, prior to consideration of the 

legislation by the Mayor and City Council. 

 

G. Disclosure of Confidential Information 

Prohibited.  No City employee shall disclose or 

use any confidential, privileged, or proprietary 

information gained by reason of his or her official 

position for a purpose which is for other than a 

City purpose; provided, that nothing shall prohibit 

the disclosure or use of information which is a 

matter of public knowledge, or which is available 

to the public on request. 

 

H. Improper Use of Position Prohibited. No City 

employee shall knowingly use his or her office or 

position to secure personal benefit, gain or profit, 

or use his or her position to secure special 

privileges or exceptions for himself, herself, or 

for the benefit, gain, or profits of any other 

persons. 

 

I. Improper Use of City Personnel Prohibited. No 

City employee shall employ or use any person 

under the employee’s official control or direction 

for the personal benefit, gain, or profit of the 

employee, or another. 

 

J. Improper Use of City Property Prohibited. No 

City employee shall unreasonably use City-owned 

vehicles, equipment, materials, money, or 

property for personal or private convenience or 

profit. Use is restricted to such services as are 

available to the public generally, for the 

authorized conduct of official business, and for 

such purposes and under such conditions as are 

approved by administrative order of the City 

Manager; provided, the use of a City vehicle by a 

City employee participating in a carpooling 

program established by the City, and for a 

purpose authorized under such program, shall not 

be considered a violation of this section or of any 

other provision of this section.   

 

K. Acceptance of Compensation, Gifts, Favors, 

Rewards, or Gratuity Prohibited. No City 

employee may, directly or indirectly, give or 

receive, or agree to give or receive, any 

compensation, gift, favor, reward, or gratuity for a 

matter connected with or related to the  

employee’s services with the City of Stonecrest, 

except this prohibition shall not apply to: 

 

1. Attendance of a City employee at a hosted 

meal when it is provided in conjunction with 

a meeting directly related to the conduct of 

City business or where official attendance by 

the officer or employee as a City 

representative is appropriate; 

 

2. An award publicly presented in recognition 

of public service; or 

 

3. Any gift valued at $100 or less, which cannot 

reasonably be presumed to influence the 

action, judgment of the employee, or be 

considered as part of a reward for action or 

inaction. 

 

L.  Political Activities.   

 

1.  City of Stonecrest employees are encouraged 

to exercise their right to vote and, on their own 

time, if they so desire, to take part in political 

activities on the local, State and Federal levels as 

long as such activities do not interfere with the 

performance of their job.  However, no City 

employee may engage in political activities at the 

workplace or during working time.  Further, no 

City employee may make use of City time, 

equipment, or other resources to aid a political 

candidate, political party, or political cause; nor 

may any employee use his or her position or 

official authority or influence to persuade, coerce, 

influence, or intimidate any person in the interest 

of a political candidate, party or cause, or for the 

purpose of interfering with or affecting the result 

of an election for Mayor, or a position on the City 

of Stonecrest City Council, or any elected office 

in City of Stonecrest.  All City employees should 

be free of any and all political persuasion or 

coercion in relationship to their employment, 

and/or from their supervisors and co-workers, and 

should report any such activity to their supervisor, 

the Director of Human Resources, or City 

Manager if the same should occur.  

 

2.  No employee shall use or authorize the use of 

the facilities or resources of the City for the 

65

Item III. c.



27 

 

purpose of assisting a campaign for the election 

of any person to any office, or for the promotion 

or opposition to any ballot proposition. 

 

3.  Nothing in this section shall prevent an 

employee from fully exercising those rights to 

participate in political activities granted by the 

laws of the State of Georgia or the laws of the 

United States of America. 

 

7.0.3 Employment of Relatives.  It is the City's policy 

that immediate family members (relatives) will 

not be employed in regular full-time or part-time 

positions where:   

 

a. One relative would have the authority to 

supervise, appoint, remove, discipline or 

evaluate the performance of the other.   

  

b. One relative would be responsible for 

auditing the work of the other.   

  

c. Other circumstances exists which would 

place the relatives in a situation of actual or 

reasonably foreseeable conflict between the 

City's interest and their own, in the opinion 

of the City Manager, including but not 

limited to safety, efficiency, morale, or 

effective administration of the department’s 

operation.   

 

  Where business necessity requires the limitation 

of employment opportunity of spouses, the means 

chosen to meet the business necessity shall be 

those which have the least adverse impact on 

spouses or members of either sex, which may 

include re-assignment to another department or 

separation of employment for one of the affected 

employees.  

 

  If it is determined that continued employment of 

an immediate family member within the same 

department is in conflict with any of the above 

listed factors (Section 7.0.3 a-c), one of the two 

employees must competitively transfer to another 

City department or be terminated from City 

employment within six months from date of such 

determination. 

 

 The City Manager may authorize an exception to 

this policy if the position requires specialized 

training or experience not generally available, 

there is a vital need to fill the position, substantial 

efforts have been made to recruit a person who is 

not a relative, and the relationship is unlikely to 

materially affect their employment. 

 

7.0.4 Complaint Process 

 

A.  A complaint that this Code of Ethics has been 

violated shall be filed with the City Manager, or 

with the Director of Human Resources, who shall 

promptly provide same to the City Manager. 

 

B. No person shall knowingly file a false 

complaint or report of violation of this Code of 

Ethics. 

 

C. Upon receipt of the complaint, the City 

Manager may  designate an individual to conduct 

an investigation of the matters set forth in the 

complaint. The individual designated to conduct 

the investigation shall complete the investigation 

and prepare written findings and conclusions, 

which shall be provided to the City Manager 

within fifteen (15) working days, unless an 

extension of time for completion of same is 

granted by the City Manager. 

 

D. Upon completion of the investigation, and 

upon receipt of review of the designated 

investigator’s written findings and conclusions, as 

well as consideration of any other facts and 

information deemed appropriate by the City 

Manager, the City Manager shall render a final 

decision on the complaint and shall provide a 

copy of same to the party complained against at 

their last known addresses.   

 

E. A finding by the City Manager that an 

employee has violated the Code of Ethics as set 

forth in the Policy Manual may result in 

disciplinary action, up to and including immediate 

termination of employment 

 

7.1 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE 

7.1.1  City of Stonecrest has a vital interest in 

maintaining a safe, healthy, and efficient working 

environment free from the adverse effects of 

employee drug and alcohol abuse.  Employee 

drug and alcohol abuse poses serious safety and 

health risks to the user, and to those who work or 

come in contact with the user in the workplace.  

Accordingly, the City does not and will not 

tolerate any employee’s consumption, possession, 

sale, distribution, or presence in the body of 

illegal drugs or alcoholic beverages while on City 

property and/or on City work time.  The City 

further expresses its intent, through this policy, to 

comply with Federal, State and local laws and 

regulations that relate to the maintenance of a 

workplace free of illegal drugs and alcohol. 

 

7.1.2  Scope of Policy and Prohibitions.  This policy 

applies to all City employees, volunteers, interns, 

and any other individuals performing services on 

the City’s behalf, whether paid or unpaid.  For 

purposes of this policy section, all such persons 

shall be referred to herein as City employees.  The 

66

Item III. c.



28 

 

policy applies to all off-site meal breaks or rest 

breaks when an employee is scheduled to return 

to work, as well as to all work, activities, and 

occupation and use of City property and facilities. 

 

7.1.3 Prohibitions.  The City prohibits all employees 

from engaging in the following conduct or 

behavior while performing City business, while 

on City property, while in use of City property, or 

while operating or riding in a City vehicle and/or 

conducting City business: 

 

1. The use or consumption of illegal drugs, 

controlled substances, and/or alcohol; 

 

2. The possession of illegal drugs, controlled 

substances, and/or alcohol; 

 

3. The abuse of prescription medications and over 

the counter medications; 

 

4. Being impaired by and/or under the influence 

of illegal drugs, controlled substances, and/or 

alcohol;  

 

5. The manufacture, sale, purchase, transfer, 

dispensing of, and/or distribution of illegal drugs, 

controlled substances, prescription medications, 

and/or alcohol; and/or  

 

6. The use of City property to store, conceal, or 

transport illegal drugs, controlled substances, 

and/or alcohol. 

 

7.1.4  Definitions.  For purposes of this Drug-Free 

Workplace policy, the following definitions 

apply: 

Alcohol – Any beverage or substance that 

contains alcohol manufactured for the primary 

purpose of personal consumption, including, but 

not limited to, beer, wine, and distilled spirits. 

Illegal Drugs (includes Controlled Substances) – 

Any drug or substance the law prohibits 

individuals from manufacturing, dispensing, 

using, consuming, possessing, distributing, 

purchasing, selling, or otherwise transferring, 

including, without limitation, all drugs listed as 

controlled substances under Title 16 of the 

Official Code of Georgia Annotated.  This 

definition encompasses any measurable amount 

of any drugs or controlled substances such as 

amphetamines, cannabinoids, cocaine, 

phencyclidine (PCP), methadone, methaqualone, 

opiates, barbiturates, benzodiazepines, 

propoxyphene, or other drugs made unlawful 

under Federal or State laws, or a metabolite of 

any such substances, “look-alikes,” “designer 

drugs” having the same or similar psychotropic 

effects, unauthorized alcoholic beverages, 

marijuana, hallucinogens (whether natural or 

synthetic), inhalants, unauthorized prescription 

drugs, or authorized drugs which are not 

prescribed for a verifiable medical condition 

and/or are not used in strict accordance with this 

policy and with the prescribing physician’s 

instructions, or any other substances that are 

mood-altering, mind or consciousness-affecting, 

or which are likely to have an effect upon a 

person’s perceptions, sensations, thought 

processes, self-awareness, emotions, or other 

mental or physiological or psychological 

reactions or behavior.  It also includes urinaids or 

other substances, natural or synthetic, of a similar 

nature or purpose designed or used to alter a urine 

specimen or to conceal illicit chemical substances 

or other metabolites in an initial screening test. 

Impaired – The condition of being weakened, 

diminished, or damaged, or of functioning poorly, 

incompetently, uncontrollably, or with less 

control or ability, due to the consumption, use, or 

abuse of illegal drugs, controlled substances, 

and/or alcohol, or if the employee’s drug test 

results indicate the presence of an illegal drug or 

controlled substance in an amount that constitutes 

a positive test under accepted scientific standards. 

Legally Obtained Drug – Includes prescription 

drugs and over-the-counter medications. 

Over-The-Counter Medication – Includes any 

drug or substance that does not require a 

prescription, but which has the capacity to affect a 

person physically, mentally, or emotionally or 

which could otherwise affect a person’s ability to 

perform. 

Prescription Drug – Any drug or substance that is 

attainable only by lawful prescription from a 

licensed physician. 

 

Reasonable Suspicion – A belief based on 

objective facts sufficient to lead a prudent person 

to conclude that a particular employee has used, 

consumed, is impaired by, or is under the 

influence of illegal drugs, controlled substances, 

and/or alcohol.  Reasonable suspicion must be 

directed at a specific person and must be based 

upon specific and articulable facts and the logical 

inferences and deductions that can be drawn upon 

such things as observable phenomena, such as 

direct observation of the possession or use of an 

illegal drug, controlled substance, and/or 

alcoholic beverage, or the direct observation of 

physical symptoms of being impaired by or under 

the influence of illegal drugs, controlled 

substances, and/or alcohol, such as slurred 

speech, unsteady gait, a pattern of unusual or 

abnormal conduct or erratic behavior, odor of the 

employee,  information provided by a reliable and 

credible source, and/or involvement in a work-

67

Item III. c.



29 

 

related accident, and/or deviation from safe 

working practices. 

 

7.1.5  Use of Legally Obtained Drugs 

 

City employees must not be on the job, be on City 

property, operate a City vehicle, or operate any 

other equipment or vehicle while in performance 

of City business while impaired due to any drug, 

legal or illegal, that renders the employee unfit for 

duty.  An employee is “unfit for duty” if, in the 

City’s opinion, the employee’s use of legally 

obtained drugs jeopardizes his or her ability to 

work safely and efficiently. 

 

An employee who is using legally obtained drugs 

must notify his or her immediate Supervisor or 

Department Director, of any and all known or 

experienced symptoms and probable adverse side 

effects that may render the employee unfit for 

duty.  An employee’s failure to so notify the City 

constitutes grounds for disciplinary action, up to 

and including termination.  An employee is not 

expected to notify the City of legally obtained 

drugs that are unlikely to render him or her unfit 

for duty.  

 

Employees using legally obtained drugs while on 

the job shall do so in strict accordance with 

physician and/or manufacturer’s directions.  It is 

the employee’s responsibility to notify the 

prescribing physician of the duties required by the 

employee’s position and to ensure that the 

physician approves the use of the prescription 

medication while the employee is performing his 

or her duties. 

 

The abuse and/or inappropriate use of legally 

obtained drugs while on the job, while on City 

property, while in operation of a City vehicle, or 

while in operation of any other equipment or 

vehicle in performance of City business is 

prohibited and shall constitute grounds for 

disciplinary action, up to and including 

termination. 

7.1.6  When Testing is Required 

7.1.6.0 All applicants for full-time and part-time 

positions of employment with the City will be 

tested for drugs after a conditional offer of 

employment has been extended.  No such 

applicant or new hire shall be permitted to report 

for duty until the results of the drug test are 

obtained.  All applicants for temporary full-time 

and temporary part-time positions of employment 

will be tested for drugs after a conditional offer of 

employment has been extended in the discretion 

of the City Manager, depending on the nature of 

the temporary position.  The cost of a pre-

employment drug test shall be the responsibility 

of the applicant and will be deducted from the 

first check of the employee. 

 

7.1.6.1 All City employees will be subject to immediate 

testing when there is reasonable suspicion that the 

employee has used or misused drugs or alcohol in 

violation of this policy.  Any employee who is 

required to take a reasonable suspicion test will 

be immediately placed on administrative leave 

with pay pending the results of the test and 

confirmation of the results.  Supervisors who 

suspect that an employee is under the influence of 

drugs or alcohol shall document all credible 

evidence on the Reasonable Suspicion Incident 

Checklist provided by the Human Resources 

Department and shall seek confirmation of the 

observations from the Director of Human 

Resources or another employee with Reasonable 

Suspicion training before transporting the 

employee for testing. 

 

7.1.6.2 Drug and alcohol testing must be performed when 

any employee, while in operation of a City 

vehicle, equipment, or heavy machinery, or while 

in operation of any other vehicle or equipment 

while in the performance of City of Stonecrest 

business, is involved in an accident that results in: 

(1) a fatality; or (2) a citation issued to the 

employee; or (3) an injured person requiring 

immediate medical treatment; or (4) damage to 

City property; or (5) damage to any other 

property.  Alcohol and drug test(s) shall be 

completed within eight hours of an accident.  This 

testing is to be performed in addition to any drug 

or alcohol test(s) ordered by law enforcement 

authorities.  The involved City employee must 

report immediately for testing, or be subject to 

disciplinary action, up to and including 

termination. 

7.1.7  Procedures for Testing 

Alcohol screening will be conducted using a 

federally approved evidential breath-testing 

device or the use of a swab/saliva test performed 

by an approved independent medical facility.  In 

the event that it is not reasonable under the 

circumstances to conduct an alcohol test based on 

a breath test or a swab/saliva test, the City 

reserves the right to test for the presence of drugs 

or alcohol by a blood test analysis. 

 

All drug tests shall be administered and accounted 

for by an approved laboratory and/or medical 

facility that are operating in compliance with the 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 

(DHHS).  Testing will involve an initial screening 

test(s) and confirmation of positive tests by gas 

chromatography/mass spectrometry (GC/MS) 

analysis, or other test(s) that are approved by the 

DHHS for screening and confirmation of drugs or 

68

Item III. c.



30 

 

alcohol in a person’s system.  Tests will be 

certified, to the fullest extent possible under the 

circumstances, by a laboratory approved by the 

DHHS. 

 

All positive test results for drugs will be 

interpreted by a physician approved by the City as 

a medical review officer (MRO) before the results 

are reported to the City.  Prior to notifying the 

City, the MRO will make reasonable efforts to 

contact the employee for the purpose of allowing 

the employee to offer an alternative medical 

explanation for the positive test result.  If the 

MRO is able to contact the applicant or employee 

and determine there is a legitimate medical 

explanation for the positive test, the result will be 

communicated as negative to the City.  The 

MRO’s inability to contact the applicant or 

employee before providing test results to the City 

will not void the test results or make the test 

results unusable in any subsequent disciplinary 

action.  An applicant or employee who fails to 

respond to an inquiry by the MRO within forty-

eight (48) hours of such inquiry shall have waived 

his or her opportunity to offer an alternative 

medical explanation for the positive result or to 

request confirmation testing. 

 

7.1.8  Test Refusal.  The City has a zero tolerance 

policy regarding test refusals.  As such, any 

employee so refusing to immediately proceed as 

directed will be subject to disciplinary action 

including termination from employment.   

 

Other actions that constitute a test refusal occur 

when an employee: 

 

 Fails to appear for any test (excluding pre-

employment) within a reasonable time, as 

determined by the employer, after being 

directed to do so by the employer 

 Fails to remain at the testing site until the 

testing process is complete; 

 Fails to provide a urine or breath specimen 

for any drug or alcohol test required; 

 In the case of a directly observed or 

monitored collection in a drug test, fails to 

permit the observation or monitoring of 

his/her provision of a specimen  

 Fails to provide a sufficient amount of urine 

or breath when directed, and it has been 

determined, through a required medical 

evaluation, that there was no adequate 

medical explanation for the failure  

 Fails or declines to take a second test the 

employer or collector has directed the 

employee to take; 

 Fails to undergo a medical examination or 

evaluation, as directed by the MRO as part of 

the verification process; 

 Fails to cooperate with any part of the testing 

process (e.g., refuse to empty pockets when 

so directed by the collector, behave in a 

confrontational way that disrupts the 

collection process); and/or 

 If the MRO reports that there is verified 

adulterated or substituted test result Failure 

or refusal to sign Step 2 of the alcohol testing 

form. 

 

7.1.9  Investigation of Prohibited Drug and Alcohol Use 

and Searches.  All City-issued equipment, 

property, and facilities, including, but not limited 

to, desks, workstations, file cabinets, lockers, 

vehicles, or any other property or equipment 

owned, leased, or provided by the City is subject 

to inspection at any time and for any reason.  No 

employee shall have any privacy interest 

whatsoever in any City-issued property.  If a 

search uncovers evidence of employee 

wrongdoing, illegal activity, or employee 

violations of City rules or policies, the evidence 

may be used to support disciplinary action, up to 

and including termination.  In cases involving 

suspected illegal activities, the evidence may be 

turned over to appropriate legal authorities. 

 

7.1.10  Discipline.  An employee who violates any 

provision of this policy is subject to discipline, up 

to and including termination. 

 

The following actions shall be presumed to result 

in immediate termination of an employee: 

 

 Manufacturing, dispensing, using, 

consuming, possessing, distributing, 

purchasing, selling, or otherwise transferring 

an illegal drug(s) or controlled substance(s) 

while on the job, while on City property, 

while in operation of a City vehicle, or while 

in operation any other equipment or vehicle 

while in performance of City business; 

 Refusing to consent to or to take a drug or 

alcohol test pursuant to this policy, or failure 

to appear at the designated collection site to 

take a drug or alcohol test when so directed; 

and/or 

 A confirmed positive test for drugs and/or 

alcohol. 

 

7.1.11 Treatment.  Employees who have a problem with 

drugs and/or alcohol are urged to seek help before 

the problem adversely affects their health, 

relationships, or work performance, or before it 

results in a violation of this policy. 

 

7.2  GARNISHMENTS   

 

69

Item III. c.



31 

 

  Employee indebtedness is a personal concern, but 

multiple garnishments of an employee's salary 

may lead to disciplinary action.  No employee 

shall allow his personal finances to hamper the 

performance of his job or create undue 

administrative problems for the City.  A history of 

garnishments may be viewed adversely. 

 

7.3 HARASSMENT/SEXUAL HARASSMENT   

 

The City is committed to maintaining a work 

environment that is free of inappropriate or 

unlawful conduct.  In keeping with this 

commitment, the City will not tolerate 

harassment, discrimination or the unlawful 

treatment of employees by anyone, including any 

supervisor, co-worker, vendor, client or customer 

of the City. Likewise, the City expressly prohibits 

such actions by employees against others, 

including vendors, clients, citizens, or customers 

of the City. 
 

7.3.1 Prohibited Conduct. Harassment, discrimination 

and/or improper conduct consists of misconduct 

that includes unwelcome conduct, whether verbal, 

physical, or visual, that is based upon a person’s 

protected status, such as sex, color, race, religion, 

national origin, age, disability or other protected 

group status or activity (e.g. opposition to 

prohibited discrimination or participation in the 

statutory complaint process) as provided for by 

law. This includes conduct by someone to another 

of the same gender.  

 

The City will not tolerate conduct that affects 

tangible job benefits, that interferes unreasonably 

with an individual's work performance, or that 

creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 

working environment. No supervisor or City 

employee has authority to engage in such 

conduct.  

 

If an employee feels they have been subject to the 

type of conduct prohibited by this policy, they 

must report this conduct. They are specifically 

authorized to bypass their supervisor and directly 

file an EEO complaint with the Human Resources 

Department as provided for in this policy. If an 

employee complains to their supervisor and no 

action is taken, they are directed to report the 

conduct as described below to the Human 

Resources Department. An employee should 

report any improper conduct before it becomes 

severe or pervasive and does not have to wait 

until it rises to the level of an unlawful action.  

 

7.3.2  Sexual Harassment. Unwelcome sexual advances, 

requests for sexual favors, and other physical, 

verbal, or visual conduct based on sex constitute 

sexual harassment when (1) submission to the 

conduct is an explicit or implicit term or 

condition of employment; (2) submission to or 

rejection of the conduct is used as the basis for an 

employment decision; or (3) the conduct has the 

purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with 

an individual’s work performance or creating an 

intimidating, hostile, or offensive working 

environment. Inappropriate conduct may include 

explicit sexual propositions, sexual innuendo, 

suggestive comments, sexually oriented ”kidding” 

or ”teasing,” ”practical jokes,” jokes about 

gender-specific traits, foul or obscene language or 

gestures, displays of foul or obscene printed or 

visual material, and physical contact, such as 

patting, pinching, or brushing against another’s 

body.   

 

7.3.3  What is Not Harassment.  Harassment does not 

include the normal and lawful exercise of 

supervisory responsibilities, including direction, 

counseling, and discipline when necessary. 

 

7.3.4  Retaliation. The City will not tolerate any 

retaliation against anyone pursuing in good faith 

the objectives or acting in accordance with this 

policy.  Any complaints of retaliation should be 

reported to the Director of Human resources in 

the same manner as violations of these policies 

are to be reported.  Any employee found by the 

City to have retaliated against another employee 

for these reasons will be subject to appropriate 

disciplinary action ranging from written 

reprimand up to and including termination.    

 

7.3.5  Complaint Procedure.  All employees should help 

to assure that we avoid any form of unlawful or 

inappropriate treatment. If you feel that you have 

experienced or witnessed harassment, 

discrimination or unlawful or inappropriate 

treatment, you are to notify immediately 

(preferably in writing within 24 hours) the 

Department Director.  

 

If the employee is not contacted promptly about 

their complaint, they are to re-file it with the 

Director of Human Resources. The address and 

telephone number for the Human Resources 

Department is 3120 Stonecrest Blvd, suite 190, 

Stonecrest, GA 30038, (470) 727-0070.   

 

The City forbids retaliation against anyone who 

has made a complaint or provides information 

related to a complaint. 

 

The City will undertake an objective and 

appropriate review of any complaint.  To the 

extent practicable and appropriate, the City will 

keep any complaint and the terms of its resolution 

confidential.  The City will take corrective action 

as it determines is appropriate, including such 

70

Item III. c.



32 

 

discipline up to and including immediate 

termination of employment.   

 

The City will undertake corrective action to stop 

inappropriate conduct before it rises to the level 

of an unlawful action.  You will be notified as to 

the outcome of your complaint.  If you have any 

questions about the status of your complaint, you 

should contact the Director of Human Resources 

at the above telephone number and address. 

 

7.3.6  Malicious or Bad Faith Complaints.  The City 

recognizes that intentional or malicious false 

accusations of misconduct can have a serious 

effect on innocent men and women. Individuals 

falsely accusing another of misconduct will be 

disciplined in accordance with the nature and 

extent of his or her false accusation. The City 

encourages any employee to raise questions he or 

she may have regarding misconduct or this policy 

with the Director of Human Resources or higher 

level officer.  

 

   

7.4 CONFIDENTIALITY  

 

As public servants, City of Stonecrest employees 

should carry out their duties in a manner which 

would withstand public scrutiny. Some 

employees handle confidential City-related or 

employee-related documents while others handle 

sensitive matters, such as health records and 

investigations. Consequently, employees should 

maintain the confidentiality of matters they 

handle assuring information about these activities 

is made public only upon appropriate 

authorization. 

 

7.5  OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT   

 

The City is sympathetic to the fact that employees 

may find it necessary to engage in outside 

employment.  However, each City full-time 

employee position should be considered the 

employee’s primary employment.  Therefore, 

City employees should carefully evaluate other 

employment that interferes with the employee’s 

duties and obligation as a City employee, 

involves a potential conflict of interest, or in any 

way compromises the integrity or credibility of 

the department or City government. 

 

7.5.1  Prohibitions.  All City employees should avoid 

the following outside employment situations: 

 

  1. Outside employment with any entity that 

conducts business with the City without full 

disclosure and satisfactory management of any 

conflict of interest. 

 

  2. Outside employment which cannot be 

accomplished outside of the Employee’s normal 

working hours or is otherwise incompatible with 

the performance of the Employee’s duties by 

placing the employee in a position of conflict 

between the Employee’s position with the City 

and the Employee’s position with the outside 

employer/employment. 

 

  3. Outside employment which exploits the 

Employee’s position with the City or the 

confidential information acquired in the 

performance of City duties. 

 

4. Outside employment which the public may 

reasonably view as work on behalf of the 

City. 

 

Due to the importance of the public’s perception 

of the City of Stonecrest government, all 

employees who engage in outside employment 

must disclose such work to the Supervisor, 

Department Head and Director of Human 

Resources.  Outside employment is subject to 

review for conformance with this Policy.  

Employees engaged in outside employment 

determined not to be in conformance may be 

required to cease such outside employment 

 

7.6 EMPLOYEE DISCLOSURE 

 

Due to the importance of the public’s perception 

of the City of Stonecrest government, all   

Department Directors, managers, and supervisors 

shall disclose all outside interests and financial 

relationships that may place the employee in 

conflict with each person’s obligations to the City 

and to his or her profession.  Timely and 

complete disclosure of potential conflicts of 

interest protects employees from suspicion and 

accusations of breach of professional integrity.  

Disclosure forms are available in the Human 

Resources Department. 

 

7.7  WORKPLACE SAFETY   
 

7.7.1  It is the policy of City of Stonecrest that every 

employee is entitled to work under the safest 

conditions reasonably possible.  Every reasonable 

effort will be made to provide and maintain a safe 

and healthy workplace, safe equipment, and 

proper materials, and to establish and insist upon 

safe methods and practices at all times.  It is the 

basic responsibility of every employee to make 

safety a part of their daily concern.  Employees 

are obligated to observe all guidelines governing 

safety and appropriate conduct, to properly use 

the safety equipment provided, and to follow 

common-sense safety practices.  Employees 

should always be conscious of the safety of 

71

Item III. c.



33 

 

others, as well as themselves.  Employees should 

always observe the following guidelines: 

 

1.   Observe all safety rules, practices, and 

procedures. 

 

2.   Promptly report any unsafe conditions, 

accidents, damaged or malfunctioning vehicles or 

equipment, any employee who is performing his 

or her job in an unsafe manner, or any other type 

of hazardous situation. 

 

3.   Only operate equipment assigned to the 

employee and for which the employee has 

received full training. 

 

4.   Use proper safety clothing, equipment, and 

personal protective equipment wherever provided, 

assigned, or required, as designated for the work 

performed. 

 

5.   Wear a seat belt when in a City of Stonecrest 

vehicle, when driving on City of Stonecrest 

business, or when operating any vehicle on City 

of Stonecrest premises. 

 

6. Use appropriate, safe methods to lift heavy 

objects, and use back braces, handcarts, or other 

devices to assist with lifting or moving activities. 

 

7. Never endanger themselves or other individuals 

through inappropriate actions, horseplay, practical 

jokes, or by taking unnecessary chances. 

 

8. Be prepared for fire or other emergency 

situations.  Know what to do, what actions to 

take, where to go, and the location of exits, 

firefighting equipment, and alarm pulls within the 

work environment. 

 

9. Observe proper maintenance practices to keep 

work areas, vehicles, tools, or other equipment in 

a clean, safe, and operable condition. 

 

7.7.2  Reporting Safety Hazards or Deficiencies – Any 

employee who believes that a safety or health risk 

exists must report the matter to their supervisor so 

that the City may take appropriate action.  The 

employee should make this report immediately 

upon detection of the safety or health risk.  A 

safety or health risk may consist of, among other 

things, a condition in the workplace or the work 

methods of other employees. 

 

7.7.3  Reporting Employee Injuries or Accidents – All 

workplace injuries and accidents must be reported 

immediately to the employee’s immediate 

Supervisor, or Department Director.  This ensures 

prompt and appropriate medical treatment, allows 

for timely completion of reports as required by 

law, and enables eligible employees to qualify for 

coverage as quickly as possible.  Except for 

emergencies (in which case the employee should 

seek emergency treatment), if medical attention 

by a physician is needed, the employee must use 

one of the physicians specifically listed on the 

Workers’ Compensation Notice posted by City of 

Stonecrest in a conspicuous place and on the City 

internal website (intranet).  Failure to report an 

injury or to receive medical treatment from a 

physician on the posted panel may jeopardize 

payment of medical bills or other benefits under 

workers’ compensation insurance.   

 

7.7.4  Response to Emergency Situations* – Employees 

should become familiar with emergency plans 

established within their assigned department or 

work area, as well as with their assigned role in 

the event of an emergency situation. 

 

*A call to 9-1-1 may be appropriate first, in the 

judgment of the staff or managers involved. 

 

Decisions may need to be made quickly to prevent 

a threat from being carried out, a violent act from 

occurring, or a life-threatening situation from 

developing.  Nothing in this policy is intended to 

prevent quick action to stop or reduce the risk of 

harm to anyone, including requesting immediate 

assistance from law enforcement or emergency 

response resources. 

 

7.7.5  Safety Violations – Accidents, injuries, damaged 

equipment, or destruction of materials or property 

can cause needless suffering, inconvenience, and 

expense to City of Stonecrest or its employees.  

As a result, any such actions by employees that 

could be avoided by utilizing appropriate safety 

practices may result in disciplinary action up to, 

and including, termination. 

 

7.7.6  Office Closings – Information about reporting 

procedures when the City of Stonecrest closes (or 

postpones opening) due to inclement weather or 

other situations, will be posted on the internal site 

and communicated to all employees. 

 

 

7.7.7  Risk Management/Safety Committee – The City 

Manager has the discretion to create a Risk 

Management/Safety Committee to provide 

oversight of a risk management program for the 

City of Stonecrest or to participate in a risk 

management program established by an approved 

municipal association.  The purpose of the risk 

management program is to minimize the adverse 

effects of loss through identification and 

assessment of actual and potential losses, loss 

prevention, risk financing, and claims control. 

72

Item III. c.



34 

 

 

7.8   WORKPLACE VIOLENCE 

 

7.8.1   The City is concerned about the well-being and 

personal safety of its employees and anyone 

doing business with the City, and consequently 

strictly prohibits workplace violence.  Acts of 

violence and/or threats of violence, whether 

expressed or implied toward individuals in the 

City workplace, are strictly prohibited and will 

not be tolerated.  All reports of incidents or 

perceived incidents of workplace violence or 

threats of workplace violence will be taken 

seriously and addressed appropriately.  This 

policy concerns prohibited conduct, as well as 

general procedures and potential responsive steps 

in the unfortunate event that workplace violence 

occurs despite these preventive measures. 

 

  Workplace violence is any conduct that is severe, 

offensive, or intimidating enough to make an 

individual reasonably fear for his or her personal 

safety or the safety of family, friends, or property.  

Examples of conduct that may be considered 

threats or acts of violence under this policy 

include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 

1. Threats of any kind (veiled or direct, verbal or 

non-verbal); intimidation or attempts to instill 

fear in others. 

 

2. Physically aggressive, hostile, or violent 

behavior. 

 

3. Behavior that suggests a propensity for 

violence, such as belligerent speech, excessive 

arguing or swearing, or sabotage or threats of 

sabotage of City property. 

 

4. Intentional damage or destruction of City 

property or of another's property. 

 

5. Harassing or threatening physical, verbal, 

written, or electronic communications, including 

comments, phone calls, emails, letters, faxes, 

website materials, diagrams or drawings, 

gestures, or any other form of communication that 

causes a reasonable fear or intimidation response 

in others. 

 

6. Stalking (defined as a pattern of conduct over a 

period of time, however short, which evidences a 

continuity of purpose and includes physical 

presence, telephone calls, emails, or any other 

type of correspondence sent by any means). 

 

7. Unauthorized or illegal possession of firearms, 

ammunition, explosives, knives, or weaponry of 

any type on City property is strictly prohibited.  A 

lawfully possessed firearm may be stored within a 

personal vehicle that is locked out of sight within 

the trunk, glove box, or other enclosed 

compartment or area within such vehicle. 

 

7.8.2  Reporting Incidents – Any employee who is 

subjected to, observes, hears of, or becomes 

aware of any of the above actions or behavior by 

an individual in the City workplace must 

immediately report such incident to a Supervisor, 

Manager, or the Department Director. 

 

All acts of violence, or threats thereof, should be 

reported no matter how minor or insignificant 

they may appear.  If an employee does not feel he 

or she can discuss an act or threat of violence with 

his or her immediate Supervisor, or if an 

employee is not satisfied with the manner in 

which a complaint was handled, the employee 

should contact the Department Director directly.  

Failure to report any threats or acts of violence in 

violation of this policy appropriately is in itself a 

violation of this policy, and may subject any 

employees involved to disciplinary action, up to 

and including termination. 

 

7.8.3  Investigations – All reports of acts or threats of 

violence will be promptly investigated.  The City 

may consult with law enforcement authorities or 

other resources as it deems appropriate.  To the 

extent possible, identities of the reporting 

employee, any witnesses, and any individuals 

alleged to be involved in actual or threatened 

violence will be protected against unnecessary 

disclosure.  All persons involved in the 

investigation are expected to refrain from 

discussing the matter with any person outside the 

investigation process.  All employees – whether 

complainant, witness, or accused – are required to 

be truthful, accurate, and cooperative during a 

City investigation.  The Department  Director will 

decide whether the workplace violence policy has 

been violated and, based upon his or her findings, 

will take appropriate preventive, corrective, or 

disciplinary action, up to and including 

termination. 

 

7.8.4  Consequences – Any employee found by the City 

to have engaged in violence or threats of violence 

will be subject to immediate and appropriate 

disciplinary action, ranging from a written 

reprimand up to and including termination. 

 

7.8.5  Non-Retaliation Policy – Retaliation will not be 

tolerated against an employee for reporting in 

good faith a suspected act or threat of violence, or 

for providing information in good faith regarding 

a report made by another employee.  Any 

complaints about retaliation should be reported in 

the same manner as violations of this policy are to 

be reported.  Any employee found by the City to 

73

Item III. c.



35 

 

have retaliated against another employee for these 

reasons will be subject to appropriate disciplinary 

action, ranging from a written reprimand up to 

and including termination.   

  

Conversely, an intentional or malicious false 

accusation could have a serious effect on an 

individual who has been falsely accused, and any 

individual found to have knowingly made false 

complaints will be disciplined based on the extent 

of the false accusation, up to and including 

termination. 

 

7.8.6  Searches and Inspection – All City equipment, 

property, and facilities (including, but not limited 

to, desks, workstations, file cabinets, lockers, 

computers and computer-stored information, 

email, voicemail, business records, vehicles, or 

any other property or equipment owned, leased, 

or provided by the City) are subject to inspection 

at any time and for any reason.  No employee 

shall have any privacy interest or reasonable 

expectation of privacy whatsoever in any City 

equipment, property, or facilities.  If a search 

uncovers evidence of employee wrongdoing, 

illegal activity, or employee violations of City 

rules or policies, such evidence may be used to 

support disciplinary action up to and including 

termination.  In cases involving suspected illegal 

activity, the evidence may be provided to the 

proper law enforcement authorities.  Further, if 

the City reasonably suspects that an employee has 

violated a policy that directly affects the safety or 

security of City employees, patrons, or facilities, 

the City will take appropriate actions (such as 

contacting law enforcement officials, placing 

employee on administrative leave while an 

investigation is conducted, or other actions as 

deemed appropriate). 

 

7.9 USE OF CITY PROPERTY 

The purpose of this section is to provide a broad 

overview of guidelines for the use of City 

property, including property related to 

information technology.   

 

7.9.1 City Property.  All computers, telephones, 

facsimile machines, copiers, communication 

systems, electronic equipment, and/or any other 

material, property, or equipment provided by the 

City and used in the course of employment is 

property that is exclusively owned, leased, 

borrowed, and/or held by the City.  Such property 

is, or for the purposes of this Policy shall be 

deemed and considered, exclusively the property 

of the City.  City employees should have no 

expectation of privacy with respect to same.  

 

7.9.2  Telephone Use.  When making personal local 

telephone calls from the workplace, and/or using 

a City mobile phone or similar device, employees 

must use judgment and discretion to limit the 

number and/or length of any calls.  Personal long-

distance calls are not permitted on City 

telephones.  Excessive or unauthorized telephone 

use may subject an employee to disciplinary 

action, up to and including termination.  Upon 

separation of employment, employees must return 

any mobile phone or device issued for City 

business.  Upon the return of mobile devices, the 

employee must also provide the access pin used 

to activate the device. 

 

7.9.3  Communication Systems.  The City provides a 

variety of channels for communication to promote 

the efficient operation of City business.  These 

communication systems include, and are not 

limited to, voicemail, email, facsimile, computer 

networks, internet connections, online services, 

computer files, telephone systems, mobile 

phones, and similar devices.  All information 

transmitted by, received from, or stored in these 

systems is the sole property of the City, and an 

employee should have no expectation of privacy 

related thereto. 

 

7.9.4 Email and Internet Access and Code of Conduct.  

Access to email and the Internet is provided by 

the City to its employees for the benefit of City 

employees and patrons, and as valuable sources 

of information to allow for the provision of better 

and more efficient services.  It allows employees 

to connect to information resources around the 

state, the country, and the world.  Every employee 

has a responsibility to maintain and enhance the 

City’s public image and to use the internet in a 

productive manner.  

 

7.9.5  Confidentiality, Privacy, and Monitoring.  As set 

forth herein, all City computer systems, including 

email, internet connections, instant messaging, 

and similar protocols, are the property of the City.  

All documents, information, and data created in, 

stored in, and/or copied to City computer systems 

are the property of the City and may not be 

copied or in any form transmitted to any third 

party other than in the ordinary course of business 

on behalf of the City.  Employees using the City’s 

computer systems are cautioned that email and 

internet systems do not provide complete 

confidentiality and employees have no right to 

privacy when using same.  The City has the right 

to access, monitor, and disclose the contents of 

any file or electronic message composed, sent, 

received, or viewed on City computer systems, 

for any business purpose, including but not 

limited to investigating potential security 

breaches, policy violations, or misuse of 

computer systems or email.  Employees should be 

74

Item III. c.



36 

 

aware and understand that the use of personal 

email accounts to engage in City business may 

result in those personal accounts being subject to 

the provisions of the Georgia Open Records Act 

and/or other statutes pertaining to access to 

government records. 

 

7.9.6  Email Communications.  All employees are 

responsible for the content of all text, audio, or 

images that they place or send via email or over 

the internet.  Fraudulent, harassing, or obscene 

messages are prohibited.  Information published 

on the internet should not violate or infringe upon 

the rights of others.  No abusive, profane, or 

offensive language may be transmitted through 

the system.  Notwithstanding the City’s right to 

read and retrieve any electronic mail messages, 

such messages should be treated as confidential 

by other employees and accessed only by the 

intended recipient.  Employees are not authorized 

to retrieve or read any email messages that are not 

sent to them.  Employees should not attempt to 

gain access to another employee's messages 

without the employee’s permission, except as 

expressly authorized elsewhere.  

  

7.9.7  Prohibited Activities.  City employees are strictly 

prohibited from using City email, internet, 

communication systems, computers, electronic 

equipment, or other City property to engage in the 

following activities (except where expressly 

authorized elsewhere): 

1. Sending, retrieving, or storing offensive, 

obscene, or defamatory material; 

2. Engaging in illegal, fraudulent, or malicious 

conduct; 

3. Transmitting or receiving messages 

containing derogatory, harassing, or 

inflammatory remarks about an individual's 

or a group's race, color, religion, sex, national 

origin, age, disability, genetic information, 

uniformed service status, pregnancy or 

related condition, physical attributes, or 

sexual orientation; 

4. Working for or on behalf of another 

employer, business, association, or 

organization, without obtaining prior 

supervisor approval;  

5. Sending uninvited email of a personal nature; 

6. Personal activities that incur additional costs 

to the City or interfere with an employee’s 

performance; 

7. Sending City proprietary or confidential 

information and/or materials to anyone not 

entitled to know or receive same; 

8. Monitoring or intercepting the files or 

electronic communications of other 

employees or of third parties;  

9. Obtaining illegal or unauthorized access to 

another person’s or entity’s computer system; 

10. Using another individual’s account or 

identity without authorization; 

11. Attempting to test, circumvent, or defeat the 

security or auditing systems of the City or 

any other person or organization or to 

otherwise “hack” into a City file or system 

that the employee is not authorized to access. 

12. Distributing or storing chain letters, jokes, 

solicitations, or offers to buy or sell goods; or 

Downloading files or programs not 

authorized by the City. 

 

7.9.8  Software.  To prevent software compatibility 

issues, licensing infractions, and security or 

privacy concerns (such as computer viruses being 

transmitted through the system), there will be no 

unauthorized installations of any software.  All 

software downloads must first be authorized by 

the Department Director.  Employees with any 

questions should contact their supervisor or the IT 

Department.  The City reserves the right to 

remove any programs that have been installed or 

downloaded without authorization. 

 

7.9.9  Security.  All messages created, sent, or retrieved 

via email or over the internet are the property of 

the City.  The City reserves the right to access and 

monitor all messages and files on the computer 

system as deemed necessary and appropriate.  The 

confidentiality of any messages should not be 

assumed.  Even when a message is erased, it is 

possible to retrieve and read that message.  

Further, the use of passwords for security does 

not guarantee confidentiality.  All 

communications may be disclosed by the City to 

law enforcement or other third parties without the 

prior consent of the sender or the receiver. 

 

7.9.10  Use of City Property in General.  All City 

property, including and not limited to, all 

electronic property (such as computers, 

telephones, facsimile machines, copiers, 

communication systems, mailing systems, and 

electronic equipment) and non-electronic property 

(such as vehicles, buildings, furnishings, fixtures, 

furniture, books, supplies, and materials), shall be 

used in the manner for which it is intended and 

treated by City employees with care and due 

regard.  City employees should keep in mind that 

they are the trustees, caretakers, and beneficiaries 

of such property, which has primarily been 

purchased, leased, or provided via public funding.  

No City employee shall abuse or misuse City 

property.  Employees must return all City 

75

Item III. c.



37 

 

property that is in their possession or use upon 

separation of employment, or immediately upon 

request.  Violation of this policy may result in 

disciplinary action, up to and including 

termination.  Further, the City may also take all 

action lawful and deemed appropriate to recover 

or protect its property.   

  

7.9.11  Passwords and Access.  Access to computers, 

email, voicemail, and select applications may 

be password protected.  Such passwords, access, 

and accounts, and any other types of authorization 

employed by the City, are confidentially assigned 

to individual employees and may not be shared 

with others.  Each employee is responsible for 

any access to and use of his or her assigned 

computer, email, voicemail, and applications. 

Upon the return of mobile devices, the employee 

must also provide the access pin used to activate 

the device. 

 

7.9.12  Employer Monitoring.  City employees should 

not expect privacy with respect to their work-

related activities.  Video surveillance may be used 

by the City to monitor job performance, monitor 

interaction and communication with the public, 

assure conformance with safety procedures, and 

guard against employee misconduct.  However, 

no video surveillance  will occur in City 

restrooms. 

 

7.9.13  Violations.  Violations of any guidelines listed 

above may result in disciplinary action, up to and 

including termination.  If deemed necessary or 

appropriate, the City may advise appropriate legal 

officials of any perceived illegal activities or 

violations via use of City communication 

systems. 

 

7.10   SMOKE-FREE ENVIRONMENT 

 

City of Stonecrest complies with the Georgia 

Smoke free Air Act of 2005.  All City buildings 

and vehicles are designated as smoke-free and 

tobacco-free areas.  Neither smoking nor tobacco 

use is permitted within 25 feet of any City 

building entrance or exit.  This policy applies to 

the use of any tobacco product, including 

smokeless tobacco, and applies to both employees 

and visitors of the City. 

 

Further, smoking (which means the burning of a 

lighted cigarette, cigar, pipe, or any other matter 

or substance) is strictly prohibited in all privately-

owned vehicles while used in the course of City 

work whenever other City employees or persons 

are present in the vehicle, regardless of whether 

the vehicle’s windows are open.  Smoking and/or 

tobacco use in privately-owned vehicles is 

otherwise permissible, provided that it is done 

within the vehicle and is not within 25 feet of any 

City building entrance or exit. 

 

The City understands that tobacco is a legal 

product and further recognizes that, as an 

employer, the City may not require that 

employees or prospective employees refrain from 

tobacco use when not at work.  

 

The success of this policy will depend on the 

courtesy and cooperation of both tobacco users 

and nonusers.  All City employees are responsible 

for following and helping to enforce this policy, 

and should report any problems or violations to a 

supervisor.  Violations of this policy will subject 

an employee to disciplinary action, ranging from 

an oral reprimand up to and including 

termination. 

 

7.11   PROPER WORK ATTIRE AND 

STANDARDS FOR DRESS 

 

7.11.1  Dress Standards – To maintain a public image 

consistent with a professional organization, the 

City adopts a conservative business casual dress 

code.  (For purposes of this policy, the term 

“conservative” refers to modest clothing that is in 

keeping with traditional standards for business 

attire.)  When away from work, an employee’s 

choice of attire is a matter of personal preference.  

However, when the employee is working, attire 

must be within parameters that reflect the 

professional, neutral environment that the City 

strives to provide.  If an employee must conduct 

personal business that involves non-professional 

apparel before or after work, the employee should 

plan to change clothes. 

 

7.11.2 Guidelines for Attire – The goal is for each 

employee to present a neat, clean, well-groomed, 

appearance while at work.  Rather than focusing 

on individual items of clothing, the employee 

should consider the overall image that he or she 

presents.  It is possible for one aspect of an outfit 

to be considered somewhat casual, but when 

paired with professional clothing the overall 

appearance may be professional.   

 

No dress code can address all contingencies, and 

this policy does not attempt to itemize all current 

and future clothing options.  Employees are 

expected to use judgment in selecting work attire.   

 

Following are guidelines to assist employees in 

determining whether attire is acceptable. 

 Business casual shall be the standard dress. 

 Clothing that is see-through is unacceptable. 

 Clothing should cover the chest, back, and 

midriff (including when standing, sitting, 

76

Item III. c.



38 

 

stooping, while arms are extended over the 

head or while bending over), and should not 

reveal undergarments. 

 Pants made of blue denim (or fabric that 

resembles blue denim) may be allowed, as 

approved by the Department Director.  Other 

pants may be acceptable if the overall image 

the employee presents is professional. 

 Solid T-shirts may be allowed, but shirts 

printed with political or social leanings, 

sayings, or graphics should not be worn 

(unless related to a City-approved activity). 

 

7.11.3  Shoes and Footwear – Flip-flops are not allowed.  

Clean athletic shoes are acceptable. 

 

7.11.4  Personal Grooming, Accessories, and Use of 

Fragrances – Good personal hygiene is expected 

at all times.  Clothing should be clean, neat, and 

well kept (no holes, tears, patches, fading, or 

frayed areas).  Facial hair should be clean and 

neatly trimmed.  Fragrances, if used, must be 

mild; patrons and other employees may be 

allergic or sensitive to perfumes, colognes, or 

other fragrant products. 

 

7.11.5  Compliance.  Dressing appropriately is a 

condition of employment with the City.  Failure 

to adhere to the dress code will be addressed as a 

policy violation.  Repeated or obvious violations 

of this policy will result in disciplinary action, up 

to and including termination.  In extreme cases, 

the City reserves the right to require an employee 

to leave work to change into appropriate clothing.  

Any time spent away from work would be 

without pay. 

 

Employees are expected to comply with the above 

standards and should not put their Supervisors in 

the position of having to police attire.  If there is 

any doubt as to whether an aspect of attire is 

appropriate, the employee should assume it is not.  

Employees with questions about what is 

appropriate for their positions should contact their 

Supervisor or the Department Director.  The City 

reserves the right to prohibit certain articles of 

clothing.  The Department Director may approve 

dress code exceptions in certain circumstances, 

and will consider such instances on a case-by-

case basis.   

 

As stated above, no dress code can address all 

contingencies.  The City reserves the right to 

interpret what is acceptable in the matter of 

overall appearance, and to interpret and apply this 

policy to other aspects of appearance not 

specifically covered in this policy. 

 

7.12 PROFESSIONAL HONOR 

 

7.12.0  As a part of the commitment to maintaining a 

professional work environment, all employees in 

leadership positions as determined by the City 

Manager shall adhere to the following 

Professional Honor Code. 

 

   “The City of Stonecrest Leadership Professional 

Honor Code assures our valued residents, visitors, 

and co-workers that when they place their trust in 

us, they can expect a high standard of 

professional excellence, integrity, tolerance and 

optimism – all within a framework that 

emphasizes respect for the people we work with 

and for.  I acknowledge that I am expected to: 

 

 uphold and promote the City of Stonecrest 

Code of Ethics; 

 

 serve the people I work with and for with 

integrity, competence, objectivity, 

independence and professionalism; 

 

 ensure that considerations of personal 

benefit will never override my focus on the 

interests of the people I work with and for; 

 

 exemplify the values I publicly espouse in 

making this pledge.  I will be equally 

vigilant in ensuring the professional 

behavior of my co-workers and 

subordinates within my department, or the 

entire organization, and will bring to the 

attention of my supervisor any violation of 

this shared professional oath of honor; 

 

 treat all persons fairly and equally 

regardless of race, gender, nationality, 

religion, politics, sexual orientation or 

social status.  I will be respectful of those 

whose wellbeing may be contingent on any 

decisions or advice; 

 

 diligently apply objective judgment to all 

assignments; 

 

 continually invest in professional 

development to keep abreast of evolving 

knowledge within my profession and in my 

areas of technical expertise; and 

 

 recognize that my status and privileges as a 

professional – a leader of City government 

stem from the respect and trust that I must 

earn each and every day; and I accept my 

responsibility to employ, protect and 

develop the above standards to enhance 

that respect and trust.” 

 

77

Item III. c.



39 

 

SECTION 8: 

DISCIPLINE  
 

8.0 DEFINITION 

 

  As an At-Will employer, the City reaffirms its 

authority to terminate employment with or 

without cause, with or without notice.  However, 

there are times when the City recognizes that it is 

in its best interest to attempt to take rehabilitative 

actions to positively affect employee behavior and 

performance.  In so doing, the City may utilize 

progressive discipline.  Progressive discipline is a 

process in which disciplinary action is taken in 

degrees of increasing severity.  The City may use 

a policy of progressive discipline when 

applicable.  An employee who fails to perform 

assigned duties adequately or who violates City 

policies will be disciplined.  Disciplinary actions 

taken may depend on the degree and 

circumstances of the violation and will be 

determined on a case-by-case basis.    

 

8.1  CAUSES FOR ACTION 

 

 Certain actions or forms of behavior are 

considered unacceptable in the workplace.  In 

general, conduct that interferes with the 

operations of the City, brings discredit to the City, 

or is offensive to the City, supervisors, co-

workers, or the public is not tolerated.  While it is 

not possible to list all of the actions considered 

unacceptable, the following are examples of 

conduct that is not permitted and will subject the 

individual involved to disciplinary action, up to 

and including immediate termination of 

employment: 

1. Theft, abuse, misappropriation, or misuse of City 

property or vehicles; failure to report damage or 

destruction of City property to a supervisor; 

loaning City property or equipment without 

permission or proper authority; negligence or 

improper conduct leading to damage of property. 

2. Theft, destruction, unauthorized use, or 

inappropriate removal or possession of property 

of other employees, patrons, or others doing 

business with the City. 

3. Unauthorized use of, or access to, City computer 

systems or communication systems (such as 

computers, databases, email, internet, telephones, 

cell phones, voicemail, postal or interoffice mail), 

and/or violation of City policies governing the use 

of City property (including telephone, Internet, 

and electronic property and equipment). 

4. Falsification or destruction of official records or 

documents. 

5. Willfully giving false statements to supervisors, 

officials, or the public. 

6. Careless, negligent, or inappropriate handling of 

City funds or financial records; failure to follow 

laws or procedures governing the reporting or use 

of funds. 

7. Violation of City policies regarding business 

ethics, conflict of interest, or acceptance of gifts 

or gratuities. 

8. Use of official position for personal benefit, 

profit, or advantage. 

9. Any use, threatening of use, or attempt at use of 

personal or political influence to secure 

employment benefits, including but not limited to 

promotion, transfer, change of pay rate, leave of 

absence, or character of work. 

10. Violation of traffic laws while driving a City 

vehicle; failure to report to a supervisor any 

traffic violation or citation issued while on 

official City business. 

11. Conviction of a felony or a crime involving moral 

turpitude. 

12. Violation of a crime or City Ordinance that tends 

to bring discredit upon the City. 

13. Acts during duty hours which are incompatible 

with public service; 

14. Failure to do work at an acceptable level of 

competence as determined by the City. 

15. Wasting time, inefficiency, sleeping while at 

work, and/or loitering during working hours. 

16. Behavior reflecting conduct and misconduct 

identified in the City’s policy against workplace 

violence.  

17. Disorderly conduct or violence in the workplace, 

including fighting, threatening, abusing, or 

intimidating other individuals; using physical 

force against another individual except in self-

defense; provoking a fight; causing a disturbance; 

engaging in horseplay or boisterous, disruptive 

activity; engaging in lewd, obscene, or otherwise 

inappropriate conduct. 

18. Use of profane, obscene, or abusive language or 

discourteous treatment of the public or other 

employees; use of any form of physical abuse of 

the public or other employees or making threats 

to the public or other employees. 

19. Engaging in obscene or offensive conduct. 

20. Insubordination or uncooperative behavior 

78

Item III. c.



40 

 

attitude, including, and not limited to, disrespect 

to a supervisor, co-worker, or the public. 

21. Failure to follow the lawful orders or direct 

instructions of a Supervisor. 

22. Carelessness or negligence with the monies or 

other property received by the City. 

23. Failure to cooperate during an internal 

investigation of the City. 

24. Excessive absenteeism or tardiness; unexcused 

absence, absence without notice, or failure to 

notify employer of absence or tardiness in a 

timely manner; absence when employee does not 

have sufficient accrued paid leave to 

accommodate the absence; leaving a scheduled 

work shift without authorization; absence due to 

incarceration.   

25. Failure to report an occupational injury or 

accident during the shift on which it occurred. 

26. Failure to disclose criminal records on 

employment applications, and/or to report 

criminal convictions and arrests as required by 

this Policy Manual. 

27. Violation of City policies against discrimination 

and harassment. 

28. Violation of City policies for workplace safety 

and workplace security. 

29. Violation of City policies for a drug and alcohol 

free workplace. 

30. Failure to adhere to City dress code and 

guidelines for acceptable attire and personal 

grooming. 

31. Unauthorized solicitation or distribution or 

posting of materials at or in City work areas. 

32. Unauthorized public statements to the media 

pertaining to the City Manager, Mayor, a Council 

member or the City Council, the employees of the 

City, or the work and/or operations of the City. 

33. Unauthorized statements to any City Board or 

Committee member or body reflecting discredit 

upon the City, Mayor, a Council member, the 

City Council, City Manager, Department. 

34. Negligence, inefficiency or inability to properly 

perform assigned duties. 

35. Misconduct. 

36. Violation of any City policies or provisions of 

this Manual. 

37. Any other action or inaction not in the City’s best 

interest.    

38. Violation of any Administrative Policy and 

Procedure adopted by the City Manager. 

 

Off-Duty Conduct – In general, the City will only 

apply its disciplinary policies to any off-duty conduct 

that affects City’s business interests.  Off-duty 

conduct such as membership in organizations to 

promote civil rights, religious practices protected by 

law, smoking, or other lawful off-duty conduct is not a 

matter of concern to the City.  While it is not possible 

to list all of the potential off-duty conduct that may 

affect City interests, below are examples of off-duty 

conduct that is not permitted and will subject the 

individual involved to disciplinary action, up to and 

including immediate termination of employment: 

 

 Off-duty sexual harassment of City employees. 

 Off-duty illegal conduct that occurs on City 

property. 

 Off-duty illegal conduct that indicates the 

potential for violence. 

 Off-duty illegal conduct that causes the employee 

to be unable to perform his or her essential job 

functions. 

 Off-duty disruptive actions at a City-sponsored 

event. 

 Off-duty conduct that interferes with the 

operations of the City, brings discredit to the City, 

or is offensive to the City, supervisors, co-

workers, or the public, including, but not limited 

to, arrests for alleged criminal conduct. 

 

8.2 TYPES OF ACTIONS 
 

Disciplinary actions fall into two general classes: 

reprimands and adverse actions: 

 

8.2.1 Reprimands - A reprimand is a formal means of 

advising the employee that a problem exists and 

must be corrected.   

 

a. Oral Reprimand (referred to as a counseling 

session) - A verbal explanation of a problem 

with an employee and what must be done to 

correct the problem.  This discussion should 

be between the immediate supervisor, 

department manager, or  Department Director 

and the employee in a private setting.  A 

written record shall be maintained for all oral 

reprimands for inclusion within the 

departmental personnel file. 

 

b. Written Reprimand - A written statement of a 

problem with an employee and what must be 

done to correct the problem.  The reprimand 

79

Item III. c.



41 

 

should also reflect the likely result of not 

correcting the problem. The employee should 

be given a copy of this reprimand in a private 

interview with the immediate supervisor, 

department manager, or Department Director.  

A written record shall be maintained and 

submitted to Human Resources for inclusion 

within the employee’s personnel file. 

 

8.2.2 Adverse Action - An action taken by the City 

Manager, or Department Director, that results in a 

suspension without pay, salary reduction, 

demotion, or dismissal.   

 

a. Suspension Without Pay - An employee may 

be suspended without pay, not to exceed 30 

days, for a violation of policies governing 

performance and conduct. 

 

b. Salary Reduction - An employee's salary may 

be reduced for disciplinary purposes.  A 

salary reduction is not a demotion in pay 

grade. 

 

c. Demotion - An employee may be demoted 

for disciplinary or other involuntary reasons 

if a) a lower position is open, and b) the 

employee is qualified to perform the work at 

the lower position.  A disciplinary demotion 

must include a decrease in salary as outlined 

in Section 4.2. 

 

d. Dismissal - An employee may be dismissed 

for disciplinary or other involuntary reasons.  

A dismissal may also take place if the 

employee must be removed from the work 

place immediately and/or permanently. 

 

8.2.3 Emergency Action - The City Manager and/or  

Department Director may take immediate action 

against an employee under emergency situations.  

Immediate action shall be to place the employee 

on Administrative Leave with or without pay until 

an investigation can be conducted.  For the 

purpose of this policy, an emergency situation 

may include but is not limited to the following: 

 

a. an employee commits a crime of moral 

turpitude.  For the purpose of this policy, 

moral turpitude is defined as conduct that is 

considered contrary to community standards 

of justice, honesty or good morals, and may 

include but is not limited to the following:  

 Making false representation  

 An intent to defraud  

 The actual act of committing fraud  

 Arson  

 Blackmail  

 Burglary  

 Embezzlement  

 Extortion  

 Forgery  

 Larceny (grand or petty)  

 Malicious destruction of property  

 Receiving stolen goods (with guilty 

knowledge)  

 Theft (when it involves the intention of 

permanent taking)  

 Assault  

 Contributing to the delinquency of a 

minor  

 Gross indecency  

 Kidnapping  

 Lewdness  

 Manslaughter  

 Murder  

 Pandering  

 Prostitution  

 Rape (including "Statutory rape" by 

virtue of the victim's age);  

 

b. when an employee may harm himself, fellow 

workers or the general public; 

 

c. when an employee may damage public 

property; and/or 

 

d. when there is reasonable suspicion that the 

employee has used or misused drugs or 

alcohol in violation of policy for a drug and 

alcohol free workplace. 

 

8.2.4 Notice of Pending Action: For disciplinary 

actions listed under Section 8.2.2 (a-d), the 

immediate supervisor shall advise the employee 

in writing of his/her intent to recommend 

disciplinary action be taken against the employee.  

The written notice shall include the specific 

policy violation, performance deficiency, or 

inappropriate behavior exhibited by the employee, 

and schedule a date and time for a pre-

disciplinary meeting with the employee and 

Department Director.  

 

8.2.5 In the pre-disciplinary meeting the employee will 

have the opportunity to respond to the pending 

disciplinary action and provide relevant 

witnesses. 

 

8.2.6 After hearing the evidence presented by the 

supervisor and the response by the employee, the 

Department Director shall render a decision on 

the recommended action and provide both parties 

with a written record of the decision.  If the 

decision is to uphold the recommendation to 

discipline the employee, a copy of the decision 

shall be provided to the Director of Human 

80

Item III. c.

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Arson
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Blackmail
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Burglary
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Embezzlement
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Extortion
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Forgery
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Larceny
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Malice_(legal_term)
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Theft
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Assault
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Child
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Decency
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Kidnapping
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Lascivious
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Manslaughter
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Murder
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Procuring_(prostitution)
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Prostitution
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Rape
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Statutory_rape


42 

 

Resources for inclusion within the employee’s 

personnel file.   

 

8.2.7 The decision of the Department Director shall be 

final, unless the action taken results in a 

termination of employment.  In the event that the 

action taken results in a termination of 

employment, the employee may utilize the 

grievance procedure as outlined in Section 8.3.5, 

Step 3. 

 

8.3 GRIEVANCE 

 

An employee may file a written grievance with 

his Department Director, Director of Human 

Resources, or City Manager, in accordance with 

the process/policies defined as follows:     

 

8.3.1 Grievance shall be defined as a claim by an 

employee declaring: 

 

a. Unsafe or unhealthy working conditions; 

 

b.  Unlawful discrimination; or 

 

c. Application of City policies in violation of 

this Policy Manual. 

 

d. Disciplinary demotion, a disciplinary 

reduction in pay, or termination. 

 

8.3.2 The following areas are NOT grievable: 

   

a. Issues which are pending or which have been 

concluded by other administrative or judicial 

procedures; 

 

b. Management’s rights to assign work and/or 

establish work processes; 

 

  

c. Disciplinary actions that do not result in a 

termination, demotion or salary reduction; 

 

d. Budget allocations and expectations and 

organizational structure, including the 

persons or number of persons assigned to 

particular jobs or units; 

 

e. The content or rating of a performance 

evaluation; 

 

f. The selection of an individual by the   

Department Director, or City Manager to fill 

a position through appointment, promotion, 

or transfer, except when the employee can 

show adverse effect because of unlawful 

discrimination;  

 

 

g. Any matter which is not within the 

jurisdiction or control of the City;  

 

h. Internal security practices established by the 

City Manager and/ or Mayor and City 

Council; and 

 

i. Decisions, practices, resolutions, or policies 

made or passed by the Mayor and City 

Council or City Manager. 

 

8.3.3 Managers and supervisors are responsible for 

ensuring that the grievance is fully processed.  No 

employee shall be retaliated against for using the 

City grievance procedures. 

 

8.3.4 Any complaint shall follow the procedure 

outlined below and shall refer to the provision or 

provisions of City policy, shall identify the 

manner in which City policy is alleged to have 

been applied in violation of this Policy Manual, 

shall identify the practice, procedure, rules or 

regulation alleged to have been violated, and shall 

adequately set forth the facts pertaining to the 

alleged violation. 

 

8.3.5 Any grievance submitted shall be dated and 

signed by the employee. Any decision shall be 

written to the employee and shall be dated and 

signed by the City representative at that step. 

 

Step 1.  The employee shall present a grievance 

or complaint in writing to his/her department 

director within five (5) working days from the 

date that the grievable action or violation occurs. 

Discussions shall be informal for the purpose of 

settling the issue in the simplest and most direct 

manner. The department director shall reach a 

decision and communicate in writing to the 

employee within five (5) working days from the 

date that the grievance was presented. If there is 

no applicable Department Director, the employee 

shall proceed directly to Step 2 within five (5) 

working days from the date that the grievable 

action or violation occurs. 

 

Step 2.  If the employee is not satisfied with the 

decision in Step 1, and the action taken results in 

termination of employment or the grievance 

contends a violation of State or Federal law, the 

employee may appeal the decision in writing 

within five (5) working days of the Step 1 

decision to the Director of Human Resources and 

City Manager.    

 

a. Included in the appeal shall be:  

 

1. The specific violation contended within 

the original grievance,  

 

81

Item III. c.



43 

 

2. A complete copy of all of the grievance 

materials generated through Step 1, and   

 

3. Specific information that establishes that 

a termination is not warranted or 

supporting the employee’s position that 

the aggrieved matter constitutes a 

violation of State or Federal law.   

 

b. The Director of Human Resources shall 

review the appeal on its merits and, if 

appropriate, meet with the employee within 

ten (10) working days after receipt of the 

appeal.  The Director of Human Resources 

shall investigate the contentions and forward 

his review of facts to the City Manager.  The 

City Manager will review the facts and 

communicate a decision to the grievant 

within twenty (20) working days from the 

date the grievance was received by the 

Director of Human Resources and City 

Manager.  The decision of the City Manager 

shall be final, without further right to appeal. 

 

8.3.6 The time limit at any step set forth in Section 

8.3.5 may be extended by the City Manager or 

mutually agreed to by all parties involved. A 

grievance not advanced to the higher step within 

the time limit provided shall be deemed 

permanently withdrawn, and as having been 

settled on the basis of the decision most recently 

given. Failure on the part of the City’s 

representative to answer within the time limit set 

forth may entitle the employee to proceed to the 

next step. 

 

 

 

SECTION 9: 

REPEAL/SEVERABILITY/ 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
9.0  REPEALER 

 

All provisions of the ordinances of City of 

Stonecrest in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed, and all other 

provisions of the ordinances of the City of 

Stonecrest, not in conflict with the provisions of 

this Ordinance, shall remain in full force and 

effect. 

 

9.1  SEVERABILITY   

 

It is the intention of the City of Stonecrest that 

this Ordinance, and every provision thereof, shall 

be considered severable and the invalidity of any 

section, clause or provision or part or portion of 

any section, clause, or provision of this Ordinance 

shall not affect the validity of any other portion of 

this Ordinance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted by the City of Stonecrest City Council 

this ___ day of ____, 2021. 
 

 

__________________________________    

Mayor Pro-Tempore 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________   

Acting City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

82

Item III. c.



44 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF PERSONNEL POLICY 

MANUAL 
 

 

By signing below, I acknowledge that I have received a copy of the City of Stonecrest Personnel Policy 

Manual.  I understand that it is my responsibility to read and comply with the policies contained in this 

Manual as well as any revisions made to it.  I also understand that if I need additional information, or if 

there is anything I do not understand in this Manual, I should contact my immediate supervisor, or other 

appropriate City management personnel, or the City Manager. 

 

I understand that the City of Stonecrest is an "at will" employer and, as such, employment with 

City of Stonecrest is not for any definite period of time and may be terminated at the option of 

either me or the City, with or without cause, and with or without prior notice.  I also understand 

that nothing contained in this Policy Manual may be construed as creating a promise of future 

benefits or a binding contract with the City for employment, benefits, or any other purpose. 

 

In addition, I understand that this Manual reflects policies, practices, and procedures in effect on the date 

of publication, and that it supersedes any prior policy manual, handbook, work rules, benefits, and 

practices of City of Stonecrest.  I further understand that the rules, policies, benefits, and practices 

referred to in this Manual are continually evaluated and may be modified, reduced, or discontinued at any 

time by City of Stonecrest, in its judgment and discretion, with or without notice. 

 

 

 

RECEIVED BY: 

 

___________________________________________ 

(Print employee name) 

 

___________________________________________ 

(Employee signature) 

 

83

Item III. c.



2 

 

___________________________________________ 

(Date signed) 

 
 

 

 

Return signed Acknowledgment page to Human Resources  

84

Item III. c.



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

tmp615F  - Page 1 of 2 
  

SUBJECT: Mauldin and Jenkins Expansion of Services 
 

 

AGENDA SECTION: (check all that apply) 
 

☐ PRESENTATION      ☐ PUBLIC HEARING      ☐ CONSENT AGENDA     ☐ OLD BUSINESS   

☒ NEW BUSINESS       ☐ OTHER, PLEASE STATE: Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

 

CATEGORY: (check all that apply) 
 

☐ ORDINANCE ☐ RESOLUTION  ☒ CONTRACT  ☐ POLICY ☐  STATUS REPORT     

☐ OTHER, PLEASE STATE: Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

 

ACTION REQUESTED: ☐ DECISION ☒ DISCUSSION, ☐ REVIEW, or ☐ UPDATE ONLY       
 

 

Previously Heard Date(s):  Click or tap to enter a date. & Click or tap to enter a date. 

Current Work Session:  Monday, December 13, 2021     

Current Council Meeting: Click or tap to enter a date.     
 

 

SUBMITTED BY: Gia Scruggs, Finance Director 
 

PRESENTER: Gia Scruggs  
 

PURPOSE: Mauldin & Jenkins was contracted earlier in the year by the City to provide annual audit 

services for FY20. Mauldin & Jenkins contacted the Acting City Manager and Finance Director to discuss 

their need to perform additional audit procedures that are above the initial scope of work due to the recent 

allegations of fraud and misconduct related to the Federal funds received by the City of Stonecrest. The 

City’s purchasing policy requires a contract amendment to be approved by Council prior to the initiation 

of this additional work when the increase is greater than 5% or $2500. The Finance department has also 

requested another extension from Georgia Department of Audits and Accounts. The Finance Department 

will be bringing a contract amendment for your consideration at the December 20, 2021, Council meeting. 

The potential contact amendment would be for a cost not to exceed the $20,000 as reflected in the letter 

that we received from Mauldin & Jenkins. 

 

FACTS: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 

OPTIONS: Choose an item. Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

85

Item III. d.



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

tmp615F  - Page 2 of 2 
  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

(1) Attachment 1 -  Mauldin & Jenkins Request for Change Order Approval – 2020 Audit  

86

Item III. d.



87

Item III. d.



88

Item III. d.



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

tmp5604  - Page 1 of 1 
  

SUBJECT: American Relief Plan Act Management Presentation 
 

 

AGENDA SECTION: (check all that apply) 
 

☐ PRESENTATION      ☐ PUBLIC HEARING      ☐ CONSENT AGENDA     ☐ OLD BUSINESS   

☒ NEW BUSINESS       ☐ OTHER, PLEASE STATE: Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

 

CATEGORY: (check all that apply) 
 

☐ ORDINANCE ☐ RESOLUTION  ☐ CONTRACT  ☐ POLICY ☐  STATUS REPORT     

☒ OTHER, PLEASE STATE: Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

 

ACTION REQUESTED: ☐ DECISION ☒ DISCUSSION, ☐ REVIEW, or ☐ UPDATE ONLY       
 

 

Previously Heard Date(s):   

Current Work Session:  Monday, December 13, 2021     

Current Council Meeting: Click or tap to enter a date.     
 

 

SUBMITTED BY: Gia Scruggs, Finance Director 
 

PRESENTER: Gia Scruggs  
 

PURPOSE: The Finance Department is providing Berry Dunn with an opportunity to present the 

highlights of their proposal, discuss their methodology and approach to providing the management services 

for the relief plan funds. This presentation was requested by the Finance Department to offer to Mayor and 

Council an overview and provide an opportunity to answer questions.  The recommendation of this firm to 

provide the services will be presented before Mayor and Council at the December 20, 2021 Council 

meeting. 

 

FACTS:  

 

OPTIONS: Discussion only  
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

89

Item III. e.



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

tmp1CD1  - Page 1 of 1 
  

SUBJECT: Draft Fleet Policy 
 

 

AGENDA SECTION: (check all that apply) 
 

☐ PRESENTATION      ☐ PUBLIC HEARING      ☐ CONSENT AGENDA     ☐ OLD BUSINESS   

☒ NEW BUSINESS       ☐ OTHER, PLEASE STATE:  
 

 

CATEGORY: (check all that apply) 
 

☐ ORDINANCE ☐ RESOLUTION  ☐ CONTRACT  ☒ POLICY ☐  STATUS REPORT     

☐ OTHER, PLEASE STATE:  
 

 

ACTION REQUESTED: ☐ DECISION ☒ DISCUSSION, ☐ REVIEW, or ☐ UPDATE ONLY       
 

 

Previously Heard Date(s):   

Current Work Session:  Monday, December 13, 2021     

Current Council Meeting:  
 

 

SUBMITTED BY: Gia Scruggs, Finance Director 
 

PRESENTER: Gia Scruggs  
 

PURPOSE: In preparation for the for the pending transition of municipal government services to be 

performed by City of Stonecrest employees, the City of Stonecrest is in need of a policy to govern the use 

of the City’s fleet vehicles. The Finance Department has drafted a Fleet Policy that incorporates the 

processes and procedures that will be required to manage fleet for the City of Stonecrest. We welcome 

the Mayor and Council’s feedback on this propose policy.  

 

FACTS:  

 

OPTIONS: Discussion only  
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discussion only 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 

(1) Attachment 1 -  Draft Fleet Policy  

90

Item III. f.



 

It is the policy of the City of Stonecrest(“City”) to promote cost-effective vehicle 
management through efficient acquisition, operation, maintenance, disposal and 
recordkeeping.  
 

1.0  Purpose 
 

This policy establishes guidelines, responsibilities and procedures to ensure 
proper acquisition, operation, maintenance, disposal and recordkeeping for all 
vehicles operated by the City of Stonecrest.  The City Manager has the discretion 
to designate the facility coordinator or a designee in his/her absence to perform 
the duties of the Facility Coordinator to ensure operational efficiency.  
 

2.0  Persons Affected 
 
All elected officials and employees of the City of Stonecrest.  
 

3.0      Definitions 
 

3.1  Authorized driver means an employee who has been vetted through the City 
 Manager’s Office and approved to drive a vehicle that is owned/leased by 
 the City of Stonecrest. 

 
3.2   Stonecrest vehicle means a motor vehicle or trailer for which the CITY OF 

 STONECREST holds title or registration. This includes vehicles that were 
 obtained through lease, purchase, donation, forfeiture or surplus. The CITY 
 OF STONECREST vehicles display the City of Stonecrest logo and have a 
 governmental license plate. 

 
3.3  Cost-benefit analysis means an assessment of various alternatives to 

 compare their costs versus benefits. 
 

 
3.4  Fuel card PIN, also known as Driver Identification (ID) means the six (6) 

 digit numerical Personal Identification Number (PIN) selected by the 
 employee for use with the fuel card. 

 
3.5 Fleet Coordinator means an employee designated by a division, 
 department, program or functional unit to be responsible for the 
 accountability, use, and maintenance of City of Stonecrest vehicles. 
 
3.6 Official Travel Status 

 
4.0  Responsibilities 

 
4.1 Facility Coordinator is responsible for: 
 

91

Item III. f.



 

4.1.1 Managing and overseeing all agency vehicles (including inventory, 
 use, repair, and maintenance) and the issuance and use of fuel 
 cards.  

 
4.1.2 Serving as the liaison for accounting and maintenance of vehicles 

used by to the City of Stonecrest. 
 

4.1.3 Ensure the City of Stonecrest is in compliance with fleet 
requirements set forth under state law. 

 
4.1.4 Approving or denying an employee’s request to be an authorized 

driver based on the individual’s motor vehicle report (i.e., driving 
record). Finance Director can also revoke an employee’s status as 
an authorized driver.  

 
4.1.5 Acquiring vehicles utilizing all acquisition methods, (even when 

payment is not required), including: 
 

4.1.5.1 Donation;  
 

4.1.5.2 Surplus property procedure; 
 

4.1.5.3 Sponsored projects and similar contractual processes. 
 

4.1.6 Disposing of existing vehicles in accordance with State of Georgia 
and the City of Stonecrest surplus property procedures. 
 

4.1.7 Accounting for assigned vehicles and fuel cards. 
 

4.1.8 Maintaining and repairing vehicles in accordance with the City of 
Stonecrest’s and manufacturer’s guidelines, (including state vehicle 
inspection requirements) and submitting the maintenance and repair 
history to the Fleet Coordinator on a quarterly basis. 

 
4.1.9 Ensuring that all authorized drivers under his or her purview 

complete a mileage report. The vehicle coordinator is also 
responsible for completing the maintenance and reconciliation of 
monthly mileage reports no later than the third workday of the 
following month. 

 
 

4.2 City Manager and Department Directors are responsible for: 
 

4.2.1 Submitting employee names to facility coordinator for consideration 
to become an authorized driver. 

 

92

Item III. f.



 

 
4.3 Authorized drivers are responsible for: 
 

4.3.1 Operating vehicles in manner.  
 
4.3.2 Ensuring assigned vehicles are returned full of fuel at the end of the 

reserved period.  
 

4.3.3 Completing a mileage log and submitting it to their department or 
program’s vehicle coordinator.  

 
4.3.4 Notifying the fleet coordinator of any changes to their driving status 

including, but not limited to: traffic warnings; traffic tickets; driver’s 
license suspensions and driver’s license revocations.  

 
4.3.5 Reporting any vandalism, theft, accidents, damages and losses to 

authorized vehicles.  
 

5.0  Financial Responsibility 
 

5.1  The division director is responsible for ensuring the proper use of vehicles by 
authorized drivers and for paying vehicle repair costs resulting from misuse.  

 
5.2  The authorized driver of is responsible for paying all traffic and parking fines   

incurred during the use of a City of Stonecrest vehicle. Unauthorized use of a 
vehicle or fuel card or; failure to follow policies and guidelines, may result in 
disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment. 

 
5.3  The City does not assume liability or, expense incurred by authorized drivers 

resulting from: 
 

5.3.1 Unauthorized or prohibited use of a vehicle; 
 
5.3.2 Improper use of a fuel card; 
 
5.3.3 Towing, storage or impound charges resulting from an improper 

parking violation; 
 
5.3.4 Vehicle damage, mechanical failure, or losses resulting from driver 

negligence;  
 
5.3.5 Misuse including, but not limited to, personal use, abuse or use of 

vehicle while impaired. 
 
 
 

93

Item III. f.



 

 
6.0 Authorized Drivers 
 

6.1 Prior to operating a City of Stonecrest vehicle, authorized drivers must 
complete and submit to fleet coordinator, the City of Stonecrest’s Driver 
Acknowledgement Form, indicating that they: 

 
6.1.1 Possess a valid driver’s license. 

 
6.1.2 Agree to use vision correction measures, if applicable, while 

operating a vehicle. 
 
6.1.3 Agree to report any ticket or warning received while operating any 

motorized vehicle. 
 
6.1.4 Have no more than six (6) points on their vehicle report. 

 
6.1.5 Have not had an “at fault” accident in the previous three (3) years. 
 
6.1.6 Have had no charges or convictions within the previous three (3) 

years and have no pending charges for any of the following offenses: 

6.1.6.1 Driving under the influence (known as “driving while 
intoxicated” in some states). 

6.1.6.2 Refusing to take a chemical test for intoxication. 

6.1.6.3 Leaving the scene of an accident. 
 

6.1.6.4 Driving aggressively or exceeding the speed limit by more 
than 19 miles per hour. 
 

6.2 Facility Manager or designee must check the motor vehicle record of an 
employee applying to become an authorized driver. To accomplish this, the 
employee must authorize the Georgia Department of Driver Services to 
release their motor vehicle record (MVR) to City Manager’s Office. 
Authorization is given by the employee completing Driver Services’ Request 
for Motor Vehicle Report (DDC-18).  
 
6.2.1. Facility Manager or designee must check authorized drivers’ MVRs 
annually. 
 
6.2.2. Failure to consent to the MVR check will make an employee ineligible 
to become an authorized driver. 
 

6.3 A change to an authorized driver’s status, such as receiving a traffic ticket 
or warning or losing their driver’s license must be reported to their 

94

Item III. f.



 

immediate supervisor and Facility Coordinator on the City of Stonecrest’s 
Driver Notification Form. Facility Coordinator will review the changes and 
decide whether the employee’s status as an authorized driver should be 
revoked.  

 
6.3.1 Facility Coordinator will notify the relevant vehicle coordinator and 

the driver of the decision.  
 

6.3.2 If the decision is made to revoke, documentation will be placed in the 
driver’s file in facility coordinator files and their personnel file in 
Human Resources.  

 
6.4 Authorized drivers are subject to random drug testing. 

 
6.4.1 Costs associated with drug testing will be the responsibility of  the 

employee’s division, department or program. 
 

6.4.2 A failed drug test will terminate an employee’s status as an 
authorized driver. 

 
6.4.3 A failed drug test may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and 

including termination of employment.  
 
7.0 Authorized Use of Vehicles 
 

7.1 City vehicles are issued to authorized drivers to perform official City 
business.  
 

7.2 Authorized drivers must observe all traffic laws and proper driving etiquette. 
 
7.3 Authorized uses of vehicles include: 
 

7.3.1 Travel between the place from where the vehicle is dispatched and 
the place where the official City business is performed;  
 

7.3.2 Transport of employees, Council members and guests when they are 
on official City business; 

 
7.3.3 Transport of consultants, contractors and commercial firms’ 

representatives when such transport is in the direct interest of the 
City;  

 
7.3.4 Transport of materials, supplies, parcels, luggage and other items 

belonging to or serving the interest of the City; and  
 

95

Item III. f.



 

7.3.5 Transport of any person or item in the event of a declared 
emergency. 

 
7.4 In addition to the uses listed in 8.3, authorized uses of City vehicles when 

in official travel status include: 
 
7.4.1 Travel between the place of City business and the place of temporary 

lodging. 
 

7.4.2 Travel between the place of City business or the place of temporary 
lodging; and  

 
7.4.3 Any of the following when on official travel status and the distance is 

not reasonable for walking: 
 

7.4.3.1 Dining establishments; 
 

7.4.3.2 Places to obtain medical assistance, including drug 
stores; 

 
7.4.3.3 Dry cleaners and laundromats; 

 
7.4.3.4 Similar places required to sustain the health, welfare or 

efficient performance of the authorized driver, 
excluding places of entertainment. 

 
7.5 A City of Stonecrest vehicle may be driven to an employee’s home after 

work hours under the following circumstances: 
 
7.5.1 The employee must be on approved travel status with prior take-

home vehicle approval from the City Manager, Finance Director or 
designee,  
 

7.5.2 The employee must travel directly to a remote site from his or her 
home the next business day; or  
 

7.5.3 The employee will suffer great inconvenience by having to pick up or 
drop a vehicle off at his or her office at the beginning or end of a 
workday during which the employee has used the vehicle in an 
authorized manner.  
 

 
 
 
 

 

96

Item III. f.



 

8.0 Unauthorized Use of Vehicles 
 
8.1 Unauthorized use or misuse of a vehicle includes, but is not limited to the 

following: 
 

8.1.1 Use by unauthorized personnel; 

8.1.2 Driving violations; 

8.1.3 Any personal use; 

8.1.4 Use of a wireless device, other than a hands-free device, while 
operating a vehicle;  

8.1.5 Smoking in or within twenty (20) feet of a vehicle; 

8.1.6 Use of alcohol or illicit substance use in a vehicle or while operating 
a vehicle;  

8.1.7 Travel to attend a sporting event, including hunting and fishing, that 
is not in the service of the City; 

8.1.8 Off-road use; 

8.1.9 Travel and tasks that are beyond a vehicle’s rated capacity; 

8.1.10 Towing vehicles or trailers, unless a vehicle is designed and 
designated for that specific purpose; 

8.1.11 Travel to engage in soliciting votes; and 

8.1.12 Unnecessary extension of the period a vehicle is in the authorized 
driver’s possession. 

8.1.13 Transport of: 

8.1.13.1 Other City employees to restaurants, cafes, drug 
stores or other places, when not in the service of the 
City or another authorized use; 

8.1.13.2 Relatives, friends, associates and other persons who 
are not employees of the City or serving the interest of 
the City; 

8.1.13.3 Hitchhikers; 

8.1.13.4 Cargo that is unrelated to official City business; 

97

Item III. f.



 

8.1.13.5 Any item or equipment projecting from the side, front or 
rear of a vehicle in a way that obstructs safe driving or 
creates a hazard to pedestrians or other vehicles; 

8.1.13.6 Political campaign literature or matter or any person or 
persons soliciting votes in any election; and   

8.1.13.7 Acids, explosives, weapons, ammunition and highly 
flammable material, except by specific authorization 
from the City Manager or their designee or in a 
declared emergency. 

8.2 When in doubt about whether a specific use is authorized, the decision must 
be based on whether the use would serve the interest of the City (rather 
than the driver or others) and would be defensible in the event of questions 
from the public, a higher government authority or an auditor.  

 

9.0 Fuel Cards 

.  

9.1 Each vehicle is assigned a fuel card and each authorized driver selects an 
individual personal identification number (PIN). An authorized driver can  
only use their PIN. Sharing a fuel card PIN Is prohibited.  

 
9.2 The fuel card must be used only at fuel stations where it is accepted, if a 

service station refuses to honor the card, the authorized driver must seek a 
station that will honor it.  

 
 

9.3 When refueling a City vehicle with a fuel card, the authorized driver must 
follow the proper procedures, which includes entering their PIN and the 
vehicle’s current reading. 

 
9.4 The City does not reimburse for cash or personal credit card purchases of 

fuel for City vehicles. However, if a driver cannot access a fuel station that 
honors the fuel card, the City Manager or their designee has the authority 
to approve reimbursement.  

 
9.5 Fuel cards cannot be used to purchase: 
 

9.5.1 Fuel for non-City vehicles; and  
 

9.5.2 Food, candy, beverages or similar items. 
 

98

Item III. f.



 

9.6 Fuel card use violations are subject to disciplinary action, up to and 
including termination of employment.  

 
10.0 Vehicle Cleanliness 
 

10.1 Eating food in vehicles is prohibited.  
 
10.2 Vehicles must be kept clean. 
 
10.3 Authorized drivers must remove litter from vehicles after each use.  
 
10.4 Authorized drivers are responsible for ensuring the vehicle is washed and 

the interior cleaned by using an authorized car wash vendor. 
 

10.4.1 Authorized drivers must identify themselves as City of Stonecrest 
employees. 
 

10.4.2 Authorized drivers must write the vehicle number and license plate 
number on the vendor’s invoice. Failure to identify the vehicle on the 
invoice may cause the burden of payment to fall to the driver. 

 
10.5 If an authorized driver repeatedly returns vehicles that are not clean, the 

driver may lose the right to use a vehicle.  
 
11.0 Driver Safety 

 
11.1 Authorized drivers and passengers must use all available safety devices, 

 including safety belts, and follow all the vehicle manufacturer’s safety 
 guidelines.  

 
11.2 Authorized drivers must always:  
 

11.2.1 Turn off and lock vehicles when left unattended; 
 

11.2.2 Park vehicles in well-lit areas at night or in populated areas during 
the day; 

 
11.2.3 Remove from view, valuables that are inside the vehicle when it is 

left unattended; and 
 

11.2.4 Check for items left in vehicles before returning them to City Hall, 
facility coordinator.  

 
11.3 Authorized drivers must always report acts of vandalism or theft to: 
 

11.3.1 Local law enforcement; 

99

Item III. f.



 

 
11.3.2 The insurance company by immediately calling the number on the 

insurance card in the vehicle; 
 

11.3.3 Facility Coordinator. 
 

11.3.4 The authorized driver must submit, within 24 hours the following 
documents: 

 
11.3.4.1 City of Stonecrest Liability Incident Report Form; and 
 
11.3.4.2 City of Stonecrest Incident Report form. 

 
 

 
11.4 Authorized drivers should not leave a disabled vehicle unattended along the 

roadway Should a vehicle become disabled, the driver should: 
 

11.4.1 Take safety precautions to avoid injury and damage. 
 
12.0 Insurance 

 
12.1 City vehicles are insured in accordance with state law. 

 
12.2 An insurance card should remain in the vehicle at all times. 
 
12.3 Vehicle insurance coverage is in effect only when the authorized driver is 

operating the vehicle for official City business. 
 
12.4 Only employees injured while engaged in official City business or an 

authorized use are covered by the state’s workers’ compensation program. 
 
12.5 Liability insurance is in effect only when the authorized driver is operating 

the vehicle for official City business. It covers physical damage to the 
vehicles of and the personal injury to parties who are involved in an 
accident. 

 
13.0 Accidents, Damages and Losses 
 

13.1 If a vehicle sustains damage and/or the authorized driver is involved in an 
accident, the driver should: 

 
13.1.1 Contact local law enforcement 
 
13.1.2 Follow the instructions on the insurance card in the vehicle. 

 

100

Item III. f.



 

13.1.3 Notify Facility Coordinator and submit, within 24 hours the following 
documentation: 

 
 
13.1.3.1 Driver Notification Form 
 
13.1.3.2 Liability Incident Report Form 
 
13.1.3.3 Incident Report Form 
 

13.1.4 Notify the department director, department manager and/or vehicle 
coordinator. 
 

13.2 The department director and/or vehicle coordinator will: 
 

13.2.1 Complete the Supervisor’s Accident Follow-Up Form and send it to 
facility Coordinator within two (2) business days of learning of an 
accident. The supervisor should also send a copy of this form to 
Human Resources for inclusion in the driver’s personnel file.   
 

13.2.2 Send a copy of the Driver Notification Form to Human Resources. 
 

14.0 Attachments 
 

 CITY OF STONECREST’s Incident Reporting form 

 CITY OF STONECREST’s Driver Acknowledgement form  

 CITY OF STONECREST’s Driver Notification form 

 CITY OF STONECREST’s Liability Incident Report form 

 CITY OF STONECREST’s Supervisor’s Accident Follow-Up form 

 Georgia Department of Driver Services’ Request for Motor Vehicle Report 
(DDS-18) 

 
 
15.0 Revision History 

 

Date 
Rev. 
No. 

Change 
Reference(s)

Sectis) 

11/10/21 1.0 Initial Version 
 

N/A 

 
 
 

Approved and Effective this ____________day of the month of_________________, 
2021 by: 
 
 

101

Item III. f.



 

 
 

Gia Scruggs, M.B.A., CPM Finance Director 

102

Item III. f.



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

  

SUBJECT: Parks Department Proposed FY22 Special Event City Calendar 
 

 

AGENDA SECTION: (check all that apply) 
 

☐ PRESENTATION      ☐ PUBLIC HEARING      ☐ CONSENT AGENDA     ☐ OLD BUSINESS   

☒ NEW BUSINESS       ☐ OTHER, PLEASE STATE: Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

 

CATEGORY: (check all that apply) 
 

☐ ORDINANCE ☐ RESOLUTION  ☐ CONTRACT  ☐ POLICY ☐  STATUS REPORT     

☒ OTHER, PLEASE STATE: Discussion 
 

 

ACTION REQUESTED: ☐ DECISION ☒ DISCUSSION, ☐ REVIEW, or ☐ UPDATE ONLY       
 

 

Current Work Session:  Monday, December 13, 2021     
 

 

SUBMITTED BY: Brandon Riley, Parks and Recreation Director 
 

PRESENTER: Brandon Riley  
 

PURPOSE: The Parks and Recreation Department is seeking feedback from the Mayor and Council 

regarding the proposed FY22 Special event City calendar. 

 

FACTS: The proposed Department of Leisure Services has developed a draft calendar of special events 

that will provide recreational, cultural, educational, and health benefits to the local community and the 

residents of Stonecrest. In addition to the City Special Events, there are also potential partnership 

opportunities for special events. Organized by individuals, commercial organizations, non-profits, 

neighboring cities, and other departments, these added events can include concerts, festivals and fairs, 

cultural events, celebrations, fundraisers, large-scale sports activities, marathons, and carnivals. When 

properly permitted, these events may feature alcohol, food, live entertainment, and arts/crafts. These events 

may be accessible to the public or possibly ticketed with an entrance fee. Staff is seeking input from the 

Mayor and Council on the proposed event calendar.  

 

OPTIONS: Discussion only  
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Feedback 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

(1) Attachment 1 -  Proposed FY22 Calendar 

103

Item III. g.



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

  

(2) Attachment 2 -  Proposed FY22 Vendor Calendar 

104

Item III. g.



 
2022 PARKS & RECREATION & 

 CITY CALENDAR OF EVENTS 

Black= Parks & Recreation Events          **This list does not include programs** 

Green- City Events 

Date Description Location Partnering 
Organizations 

 
 
 
 

                
 
 
 

February 12, 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

February 18, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 

February 19, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Black History Events for 
February 
**Museum set up inside 
Browns Mill Recreation 
Center 
 
 
Painting with a Twist-
Afrocentric Art 
1pm – 4pm 
$35/per person covers 
supplies 
 
 
Couples Night Out (Valentine) 
6pm – 9pm 
 
 
 
Black History Movie Night 
6pm – 9pm 
Capacity Fifty 
 
 
 
Stonecrest Youth 
Entrepreneur Expo 
Main Event Entertainer will be 
Manga African Dance Group 
10AM – 1:00PM 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Browns Mill 
Recreation Center 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Christine Benta 
 
 
 

 
 

Parks & Rec/DJ Team 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Parks & Rec/ DJ Team 

March 5, 2022 Women’s History Month: 
Brunch 

Browns Mill 
Recreation Center 

City Event 

March 19, 2022 Stonecrest Day 
Stonecrest City Anniversary- 

March 17-Actual Date 

 

*Have a celebration at City 
Hall or in parking lot of City 

Hall 
 

***Need City Council Input & 
Involvement 

 

City Hall or Sam’s 
Club 

City Event-  
Parks Department, 

City staff and 
administration 

 
City Council 

 
City 

Committees/HOA’s 

105

Item III. g.



 
March 23,2022 Career Fair 

 
**City Council Involvement as 
well  

Browns Mill 
Recreation Center 

City Event- 
 P&R Staff, Stonecrest 

Chamber/ 
Department of Labor 

April 9, 2022 Stonecrest Easter Egg Drop 
 

Southeast Athletic 
Complex 

City Event 
 

July 2022 
 
 
 

Park & Recreation Month 
Activities 

**Activities all month 
 
 

Virtual/Parks 
 
 
 

PR Team/Instructors 
 
 
 

July 23, 2022 Back to School & Parent Expo TBD-At one of our 
parks 

Staff will collaborate 
with athletic vendors 

and other 
organizations to 
make this a joint 

event 

 
August 2, 2022 

 
 
 
 

National Night Out 
 

***Need City Council Input & 
Involvement 

 
 
 
 
 

City Hall or Browns 
Mill Recreation 

Center 
 
 
 
 

City Event 
HOA’s in Stonecrest 

City Council 
City Staff 
ATL Shout 

 
 

 
August 13, 2022 

 
Household Hazardous Event 

Sustainability Project 

 
Sam’s Club  

 
PR 

August 27, 2022 2022 Woof Mob Doggy 
Takeover Festival 

Southeast Athletic 
Complex 

 City Event w/ 
Councilman 
Turner/Woof Mob/ 
Parks 

September 17, 2022 
 

Screen on the Green w/ 
Councilwoman Cobble 

Fairington Park Parks & Rec/City 
Event 

September 20 – September 22, 2022 2022 NRPA Annual 
Conference- 

Parks Professional 
Development 

Phoenix, Arizona 

  

October 2022 City of Stonecrest Day of 
Service: GA Cities 

 City Event 

October 28 or 29, 2022 Halloween Event: Stonecrest 
Trunk or Treat 

 
*Get HOA/Community 

involvement 

 City Event: 
HOA 

Stonecrest 
Committees 

City Staff 

November 7 – November 10, 2022 2022 GRPA Conference 
Jekyll, Island 

 
Parks Professional 

Development 

  

106

Item III. g.



 
 November 12th, or 19th 2022 Thanksgiving Distribution 

***Partner with local 
organization or church** 

Sam’s 
Club/Browns Mill 

City of Stonecrest 
Staff and Council in 
collaboration with 

Vision Christian 
Center (Pastor White) 

and any other 
nonprofit.  

December 10, 2022 Stonecrest Holiday Event 
 

 
 

Possible Toy Giveaway in 
collaboration with local 

organizations or churches 

Sam’s Club 
 

Browns Mill 
Recreation 

 
Event Center 

City Event 
City Staff 

 
 

City Council 
Local Organization 

 

  

107

Item III. g.



PROPOSED VENDOR EVENTS FOR 2022 
 

**Subject to change, and subject for more to be added to it, as vendors come frequently to request to 
do events. They must first meet with staff before anything is approved.  

 

Date Description Location Partnering 
Organizations 

April 3, 2022 
 
 

Taste Stonecrest (not approved 
yet) 

 
 

Southeast 
 
 

Vendor Event- Mr. 
Moore 

 
 

May 21, 2022 
 

Caribbean Festival Southeast Vendor Event- DJ 
Bui Campbell John 

June 18, 2022 Juneteenth Celebration: 
Fireworks, Food Trucks 

*City collaborates with this 
group to host an impactful 

Juneteenth.  Other activities may 
be planned as well 

 

Southeast Vendor Event & 
City Event 

-Mr. Senior 

 
July 3, 2022 

 
Rub a Dub Festival (not 
sponsored by Parks and 

Recreation) 

 
Southeast 

 
Georgia Byron 

 
July 23, 2022 

Or July 30, 2022 
 

Back to School & Parent Expo 
(bookbag) give-a-way and 

multiple resources for students 
and parents available…including 

workshops.) 

Browns Mill 
Recreation Center 

 
Southeast 

Or this can be done 
in collaboration 
with a school in 
District 5, which 

gives that 
Councilperson an 

activity to be 
involved with 

Vendor & City 
Event with Sports 

Association, 
Nonprofits, and 

Stonecrest 

September 3, 2022 Jerkfest Southeast Athletic 
Complex 

Vendor Event- 
Clinton Garibaldi 

 

108

Item III. g.



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

tmp8BE9  - Page 1 of 2 
  

SUBJECT: Cooperation Agreement with the East Metro Dekalb CID 
 

 

AGENDA SECTION: (check all that apply) 
 

☐ PRESENTATION      ☐ PUBLIC HEARING      ☐ CONSENT AGENDA     ☐ OLD BUSINESS   

☒ NEW BUSINESS       ☐ OTHER, PLEASE STATE: Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

 

CATEGORY: (check all that apply) 
 

☐ ORDINANCE ☒ RESOLUTION  ☒ CONTRACT  ☐ POLICY ☐  STATUS REPORT     

☐ OTHER, PLEASE STATE: Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

 

ACTION REQUESTED: ☐ DECISION ☐ DISCUSSION, ☒ REVIEW, or ☐ UPDATE ONLY       
 

 

Previously Heard Date(s):  Click or tap to enter a date. & Click or tap to enter a date. 

Current Work Session:  Monday, December 13, 2021     

Current Council Meeting: Click or tap to enter a date.     
 

 

SUBMITTED BY: Jonathan Bartlett, Economic Development Director 
 

PRESENTER: Jonathan Bartlett  
 

PURPOSE: To discuss entering into a cooperation agreement with the East Metro Dekalb CID  

 

FACTS: The CID Advisory Committee believes that it is proper and in the City’s interest – and in the 

mutual interest of the CID and its members -  to formalize our relationship with the East Metro Dekalb 

CID. The CID derives revenue from certain commercial properties in the City, which is used for capital 

improvements and other programs within the CID’s boundaries, both in Stonecrest and in unincorporated 

Dekalb County. The Cooperation Agreement will establish, among other things, when and how the City 

and the CID will communicate their respective plans and activities in the City’s portion of Community 

Improvement District.           

 The City Attorney has advised that, prior to executing the Cooperation Agreement, the City must 

first acknowledge and consent to the CID’s formation via the attached CID Creation Resolution. A second 

Resolution will authorize the City to enter into the Cooperation Agreement itself.     

 The CID Advisory Committee approved this item for presentation to Council in its 12/2/2021 

meeting.     

109

Item III. h.



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

tmp8BE9  - Page 2 of 2 
  

 

OPTIONS: Discussion only  
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: NA 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

(1) Attachment 1 -  East Metro Dekalb Creation Resolution 

(2) Attachment 2 -  East Metro Dekalb Cooperation Agreement Resolution 

(3) Attachment 3 -  Draft Cooperation Agreement Between East Metro Dekalb and City 

 

110

Item III. h.



STATE OF GEORGIA 

COUNTY OF DEKALB  

CITY OF STONECREST 

 

A RESOLUTION BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

STONECREST, GEORGIA AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A COOPERATION 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF STONECREST AND EAST METRO DEKALB COMMUNITY 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (CID) AND FOR OTHER LAWFUL PURPOSES. 

WHEREAS, the DeKalb County Community Improvement Act of 2008, Ga. L. 2008, P. 

3817, as amended by Ga. L. 2016, P. 3956 (“Act”), provided for the creation of the CID; and 

WHEREAS, the CID is intended to create a means to provide, supplement, and enhance 

various planning and improvements within the boundary of the CID; and 

WHEREAS, a majority of the owners of real property within the CID which would be 

subject to taxes, fees and assessments levied by the CID consented in writing to the creation of the 

CID; and 

WHEREAS, the owners of the real property within the CID which constitutes at least 

seventy-five percent (75%) of all real property within said CID, and which would be subject to 

taxes, fees, and assessments levied by the CID according to the most recently approved County ad 

valorem tax digest, consented in writing to the creation of the CID; and 

WHEREAS, the DeKalb Tax Commissioner certified said consents in accordance with the 

Charter; and 

WHEREAS, the DeKalb County Board of Commissioners (“BOC”) created the CID by 

Resolution approved May 13, 2014, and expanded the CID by Resolution approved April 28, 2015; 

and  

WHEREAS, Section 1322 of the Act requires that “services and facilities provided 

pursuant hereto will be provided for in a cooperation agreement executed jointly by the board and 

by the governing authority of DeKalb County if any of the district is in the unincorporated area of 

111

Item III. h.



the county, and by any municipalities within which the district is partially located” (emphasis 

supplied); and 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the CID’s creation, the City of Stonecrest has been 

incorporated, a portion of which includes real property within the CID boundaries; and 

 WHEREAS, the City and the CID desire to enter into a cooperation agreement to 

effectuate the organization and operation of the CID in accordance with the Act. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA, that the Mayor is hereby authorized, on behalf 

of the City to enter into a cooperation agreement between the City of Stonecrest and the East Metro 

DeKalb Community Improvement District (“Cooperation Agreement”) in substantially similar 

form as attached hereto as Exhibit A.   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, under the Cooperation Agreement the CID is created 

for the provision of governmental services and facilities. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Attorney, or her designee is hereby 

authorized to prepare the Cooperation Agreement.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Cooperation Agreement will not become binding 

against the City until the executed by both parties.  

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with 

herewith are waived to the extent of the conflict.  

SO RESOLVED, this ____ day of ___________ 2021.     

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

 

 

 

112

Item III. h.



City of Stonecrest, Georgia 

 

       

___________________________________ 

Jason Lary, Mayor  

 

Attest: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Tomika R. Lewis, Acting City Clerk 

 

Approved As to Form: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

City Attorney 

113

Item III. h.



STATE OF GEORGIA 

COUNTY OF DEKALB  

CITY OF STONECREST 

 

A RESOLUTION BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

STONECREST, GEORGIA CONSENTING TO THE CREATION OF THE EAST 

METRO DEKALB COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (CID) AS 

AUTHORIZED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF GEORGIA IN 

THE DEKALB COUNTY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT ACT OF 2008; AND FOR 

OTHER LAWFUL PURPOSES.  

WHEREAS, by Act of the Georgia General Assembly, Ga. L. 2008, P. 3817, as 

amended by Ga. L. 2016, P. 3956, the Dekalb County Community Improvement Act Of 2008 

(the “Act”) was enacted; and 

WHEREAS, the CID was intended to create a means to provide, supplement, and 

enhance various planning and improvements within its boundaries; and 

WHEREAS, a majority of the owners of real property within the CID which would be 

subject to taxes, fees and assessments levied by the EMCID consented in writing to the creation 

of the CID; and 

WHEREAS, the owners of the real property within the CID which constitutes at least 

seventy-five percent (75%) of all real property within said CID, and which would be subject to 

taxes, fees, and assessments levied by the CID according to the most recently approved County 

ad valorem tax digest, consented in writing to the creation of the CID; and 

WHEREAS, the aforesaid written consents have been certified as satisfactory in 

compliance with the Act for the creation of the CID; and 

WHEREAS, the DeKalb County Board of Commissioners (“BOC”) created the CID by 

Resolution approved May 13, 2014, and expanded the CID by Resolution approved April 28, 

2015; and  

114

Item III. h.



WHEREAS, Section 1322 of the Act requires that services and facilities provided 

pursuant hereto will be provided for in a cooperation agreement executed jointly by the 

governing authority of  DeKalb County and the CID if any of the district is in the unincorporated 

area of the county, and by any municipalities within which the district is partially located” 

(emphasis supplied); and 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the CID’s creation, the City of Stonecrest was incorporated, a 

portion of which included real property within the CID boundaries; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined the CID would help provide governmental services 

and facilities within said district; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined the activation of the CID would be in the best 

interest of, and would promote the health, safety and welfare of, the citizens of the City.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Stonecrest, Georgia consents to 

the creation of a CID to be known as the East Metro Dekalb Community Improvement District as 

previously approved by the DeKalb County Board of Commissioners in 2014 and expanded in 

2015 and as  for the provision of the following governmental services and facilities: 

1) Street and road construction and maintenance, including curbs, sidewalks, street lights, 

and devices to control the flow of traffic on streets and roads; 

2) Parks and recreation areas and facilities;                            

3) Storm water and sewage collection and disposal systems; 

4) Development, storage, treatment, purification, and distribution of water 

5) Public Transportation including, but not limited to, services intended to reduce the 

volume of traffic or transport two or more persons in common vehicles or conveyances; 

6) Terminal and dock facilities and parking facilities; and 

7) Such other services and facilities as may be provided for by general law. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City has made an appointment to the CID in 

accordance with the Act. 

115

Item III. h.



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all those elected shall take an oath of office upon 

election to faithfully administer their duties under the Act. 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED that the Municipal Clerk is directed to forward a copy of 

this resolution to the Tax Commissioner of DeKalb County. 

SO RESOLVED, this ____ day of ______ 2021. 

       

City of Stonecrest, Georgia 

  

     

___________________________________ 

Jason Lary, Mayor  

 

Attest: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Tomika R. Lewis, Acting City Clerk 

 

Approved As to Form: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

City Attorney 

 

 

116

Item III. h.



 

1 
 

COOPERATION AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this _______day of _________ 

2021, by and between the CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA, a political subdivision 

of the State of Georgia (“City”), and the EAST METRO DEKALB COMMUNITY 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (“CID”). 

WHEREAS, the DeKalb County Community Improvement Act of 2008, Ga. L. 

2008, P. 3817, as amended by Ga. L. 2016, P. 3956 (“Act”), provided for the creation of 

the CID; and 

WHEREAS, the CID is intended to create a means to provide, supplement, and 

enhance various planning and improvements within the boundary of the CID; and 

WHEREAS, a majority of the owners of real property within the CID which would 

be subject to taxes, fees and assessments levied by the CID consented in writing to the 

creation of the CID; and 

WHEREAS, the owners of the real property within the CID which constitutes at 

least seventy-five percent (75%) of all real property within said CID, and which would be 

subject to taxes, fees, and assessments levied by the CID according to the most recently 

approved County ad valorem tax digest, consented in writing to the creation of the CID; 

and 

WHEREAS, the DeKalb Tax Commissioner certified said consents in accordance 

with the Charter; and 

117

Item III. h.



 

2 
 

WHEREAS, the DeKalb County Board of Commissioners (“BOC”) created the 

CID by Resolution approved May 13, 2014, and expanded the CID by Resolution 

approved April 28, 2015; and  

WHEREAS, Section 1322 of the Act requires that “services and facilities provided 

pursuant hereto will be provided for in a cooperation agreement executed jointly by the 

board and by the governing authority of DeKalb County if any of the district is in the 

unincorporated area of the county, and by any municipalities within which the district is 

partially located” (emphasis supplied); and 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the CID’s creation, the City of Stonecrest has been 

incorporated, a portion of which includes real property within the CID boundaries; and 

 WHEREAS, the City and the CID desire to enter into a cooperation agreement to 

effectuate the organization and operation of the CID in accordance with the Act; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and benefits 

flowing to the parties, the City and the CID agree as follows: 

      1. 

This Agreement shall in no way limit the authority of the City to provide services 

or facilities within the CID. The City shall retain full and complete authority over the 

provision of governmental services and over any of its facilities located within the CID. 

 

 

118

Item III. h.



 

3 
 

             2. 

Both parties acknowledge that the CID is authorized to exercise such powers as 

granted under the Act as may be reasonably necessary to provide, supplement, and 

enhance various aspects of the CID. 

3. 

The CID shall not have any power or authority to contract in the name of, 

encumber, or create debt for or on behalf of the City. 

4. 

At the beginning of each calendar year, the City shall advise the CID of the City’s 

plan for improvements and services within the CID, and the CID shall advise the City of 

the CID’s plan to enhance and supplement the services provided within the CID. Any 

plans proposed by the CID shall be compatible with adopted City policies and planning 

for the CID’s area. Each of the parties hereto shall endeavor to act in such manner so as 

to coordinate actions for the maximum improvement of the CID and each shall endeavor 

not to duplicate services and actions so as to obtain efficiency of effort. 

5. 

(a) The CID shall be responsible for providing written notice of its regular 

meetings and minutes thereof to an individual designated by the City. Such individual 

shall be the City Manager, whose address is City of Stonecrest, 3120 Stonecrest 

Boulevard, Stonecrest, GA 30038, unless the City notifies the CID of a replacement. Such 

notice shall be sent at least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the meetings. 

119

Item III. h.



 

4 
 

(b) The CID shall be responsible for providing public written notice of its regular 

meetings and caucuses of electors by publishing notices thereof at least fourteen (14) 

calendar days prior to the meetings in the City of Stonecrest legal organ, and by making 

copies of the meeting agenda and agenda packet available to the public at the CID’s 

website at least three (3) business days before the meeting. 

6. 

The CID shall levy and tax the millage as provided by law each calendar year and 

shall notify the DeKalb County Tax Commissioner of the amount of the levy, in writing, 

so that the levy may be included on the regular County ad valorem tax bills.  

7. 

The City shall not be required to send out any special bills. Any tax, fee or 

assessment levied by the CID shall be collected by the DeKalb County Tax Commissioner 

(“Tax Commissioner”) in the same manner as other property taxes levied and collected 

by the City.  

8. 

The Tax Commissioner shall retain a fee equal to one percent (1%) of the proceeds 

of taxes, fees and assessments levied by the CID, or $25,000 per calendar year, whichever 

is less in accordance with the Act to cover the costs of collection. The remaining proceeds 

shall be transmitted by the Tax Commissioner on behalf of the City to the CID within the 

thirty (30) days after collection so as to be expended by the CID for the purposes stated 

herein.  

120

Item III. h.



 

5 
 

 

9. 

This Agreement shall expire fifty (50) years from the date last signed below or 

upon the dissolution of the CID. This Agreement shall not be modified except by formal 

written action of all parties. 

10.  

Either party may terminate the agreement with thirty (30) days notice to the other 

party.  

WHEREFORE, the parties have made and executed this Cooperation Agreement 

the day and year first above written. 

         EAST METRO DEKALB                     CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA 

      COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

 

 

By:   ______________________________           By: ______________________________ 

 Chairman, CID     (Name and Title) 

 

 

Attest: ___________________________  

    Secretary, CID 

 

        

 

 

 

121

Item III. h.



 

6 
 

 (OFFICIAL SEAL) 

 

 

 

 

 

               ATTEST: 

 

 

               __________________________________ 

                         (Name and Title) 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:            APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

_________________________________           __________________________________ 

    Attorney for CID      City Attorney 

        City of Stonecrest, Georgia 

122

Item III. h.



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

tmp1887  - Page 1 of 2 
  

SUBJECT: ARC Freight Cluster Plan Grant Award 
 

 

AGENDA SECTION: (check all that apply) 
 

☐ PRESENTATION      ☐ PUBLIC HEARING      ☐ CONSENT AGENDA     ☒ OLD BUSINESS   

☐ NEW BUSINESS       ☐ OTHER, PLEASE STATE: Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

 

CATEGORY: (check all that apply) 
 

☐ ORDINANCE ☐ RESOLUTION  ☐ CONTRACT  ☐ POLICY ☒  STATUS REPORT     

☐ OTHER, PLEASE STATE: Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

 

ACTION REQUESTED: ☐ DECISION ☐ DISCUSSION, ☐ REVIEW, or ☒ UPDATE ONLY       
 

 

Previously Heard Date(s):  06/28/21 & Click or tap to enter a date. 

Current Work Session:  Monday, December 13, 2021     

Current Council Meeting: Click or tap to enter a date.     
 

 

SUBMITTED BY: Jonathan Bartlett, Economic Development Director 
 

PRESENTER: Jonathan Bartlett, Tom Udell  
 

PURPOSE: Update the Mayor and Council on the City’s successful application for a grant from the 

Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) 

 

FACTS: The City was recently awarded a grant of $250,000 by the ARC in order to conduct a multi-

faceted Freight Cluster Plan. The ARC has secured federal funds for this initiative, with a local match of 

$62,500 for a total proposed project cost of $312,500.  This grant should help the City identify potential 

improvements to safety and mobility related to trucking and industrial activity in Stonecrest, and reflects 

the City’s importance to regional logistics and employment.  

 

OPTIONS: Discussion only Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: NA 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

(1) Attachment 1 -  Stonecrest FCP Award Letter 

123

Item III. i.



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

tmp1887  - Page 2 of 2 
  

(2) Attachment 2 -  Click or tap here to enter text. 
(3) Attachment 3 -  Click or tap here to enter text. 
(4) Attachment 4 -  Click or tap here to enter text. 
(5) Attachment 5 -  Click or tap here to enter text.  

124

Item III. i.



August 31, 2021 
 

 

 

Mr. Thomas Udell, City Engineer 

City of Stonecrest 

3120 Stonecrest Blvd #100 

Stonecrest, GA 30038 

 

RE: Allocation of Funding for the Stonecrest Freight Cluster Plan 

 

Dear Mr. Udell: 

 

This letter serves as confirmation that the application from the City of Stonecrest for the 

"Stonecrest Freight Cluster Plan" has been allocated funding. This funding comes from ARC’s 

Freight Cluster Plan program. 

 

The total project cost as submitted is $312,500. The federal funding amount from ARC is 

$250,000, and the required 20% match, $62,500, is to be provided by the City of Stonecrest. 

 

The City of Stonecrest will manage the project and assume primary administrative responsibility. 

ARC’s project manager for this plan will be Daniel Studdard, Principal Planner.  He will 

coordinate with ARC’s contracting staff to get ARC under contract with GDOT for this federal 

funding, and then to get ARC under contract with the City of Stonecrest.  Once the project 

begins, he will serve as the day-to-day project manager for this plan. If you have any questions, 

please contact Mr. Studdard at DStuddard@atlantaregional.org or 470.378.1593. 

 

We look forward to working with you and your staff on this timely project. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
 

 

John Orr 

Manager, Transportation Access & Mobility Group 

ARC 

125

Item III. i.

mailto:DStuddard@atlantaregional.org


 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

tmp526F - Page 1 of 1 
  

SUBJECT: 2021-22 Paving Program Update and Capital Improvement Plan 
 

 

AGENDA SECTION: (check all that apply) 
 

☒ PRESENTATION      ☐ PUBLIC HEARING      ☐ CONSENT AGENDA     ☐ OLD BUSINESS   

☐ NEW BUSINESS       ☐ OTHER, PLEASE STATE: Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

 

CATEGORY: (check all that apply) 
 

☐ ORDINANCE ☐ RESOLUTION  ☐ CONTRACT  ☐ POLICY ☒  STATUS REPORT     

☐ OTHER, PLEASE STATE: Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

 

ACTION REQUESTED: ☐ DECISION ☒ DISCUSSION, ☐ REVIEW, or ☐ UPDATE ONLY       
 

 

Previously Heard Date(s):  03/11/21  

Current Work Session:  Monday, December 13, 2021     

Current Council Meeting: Click or tap to enter a date.     
 

 

SUBMITTED BY: Tom Udell 
 

PRESENTER: Tom Udell   
 

PURPOSE: Discuss the 2021 paving program just completed and 2022’s upcoming program and review 

the City’s proposed Capital Improvement Plan. 

 

FACTS: In March of 2021 Council was presented with a proposed two-year paving program. The City is halfway 

through and preparing for the 2022 program. With three years of paving complete, Engineering is revisiting the 

estimates we have been using and adjusting them based on the experience to date. In addition, we are reviewing 

the latest proposed five-year Capital Improvement Plan. 

 

OPTIONS: Discussion only  
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Seeking Council feedback 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

(1) Attachment 1 -  March 11, 2021 presentation 

(2) Attachment 2 -  Paving working document 

(3) Attachment 3 -  Photos from the 2021 paving. 
(4) Attachment 4 -  Proposed 5 year CIP 

126

Item III. j.



Discussion of SPLOST 
Five Year Program

Sept. 22, 2021

127

Item III. j.



Project Fiscal Year Total Budget
Name 2021 2022
Transportation Projects

Road Paving $       7,834,909 $       8,000,000 

Bus Pads, Benches, Shelters $            81,455 

Construction Engineering and Inspection Services $            59,750 $            65,000 

Industrial way (Home Depot) $       2,000,000 
Capital Building Improvements
Future City Hall $             24,520 $           150,000 
Park Improvements

Riverbank Restoration $            62,465 $       1,062,565 

Southeast Athletic Complex Baseball Field Upgrades $          950,000 

Playground install/upgrade $          450,000 

Southeast Complex Driving Range $          150,000 

New Salem Park Property Demonstration Garden $          100,000 

ERP System(s) $          500,000 

Totals $    10,063,099 $    10,927,565 

Current Year Budgets

128

Item III. j.



2021 Main Roads
Street Name From To

PCI 

Score

S GODDARD RD KLONDIKE RD HEIGHTS AVE SW 33.0

MALL PKWY TURNER HILL RD STONECREST PKWY E 33.4

HONEYCREEK CT MALL PKWY END 33.4

DEKALB MEDICAL PKWY HILLANDALE DR COVINGTON HWY 35.4

ROCK CHAPEL RD BRASWELL ST STATE RTE 124 37.9

RAILROAD ST ROCK ST ROCK CHAPEL RD 37.9

MINOLA DR MILLER RD PANOLA RD 39.1

KLONDIKE RD HAYDEN QUARRY RD CITY LIMIT 41.4

MALL PKWY KLONDIKE RD TURNER HILL RD 42.3

PANOLA RD
SNAPFINGER WOODS 

DR
PANOLA WAY LN 43.3

TURNER HILL RD HAYDEN QUARRY RD I-20 WB 46.7

MCDANIEL MILL RD FALLS BROOKE DR ROCKLAND RD 48.2

SNAPFINGER WOODS DR ACUITY WAY PANOLA RD 48.6

MILLER RD
PANOLA INDUSTRIAL 

BLVD
COVINGTON HWY 49.7

CLEVELAND RD SNAPFINGER RD ROCK SPRINGS RD 51.1

ROCK SPRINGS RD CLEVELAND RD THOMPSON MILL RD 51.1
129

Item III. j.



2022 Local Roads
Street Name From To

Pavement 

Condition 

Index 

(PCI)

District

Hunters Crossing Subdivision 20.6 3

Flat Rock Road Browns Mill Road Evans Mill Road 22.7 5

Winchester Subdivision 24.5 4

McKenna Square Subdivision 24.6 2

E Glen Road Evans Mill Road End 25.6 5

Woodgrove Subdivision 25.6 3

Trails at Savoy Chase Subdivision 26.0 4

Ragsdale Road Rockland Road Evans Mill Road 26.4 5

Marbut Commons Subdivision 26.5 1

Rolling Meadow Court Thompson Mill Road End 27.2 2

Stratford Farms Subdivision 27.2 2

Davidson Drive/Court Covington Highway Main Street 27.3 1

Evans Mill Drive Chupp Road End 27.3 5

Stonecrest Trace Mall Parkway Mall Ring Road 27.3 1

Woodcliffe West Subdivision 27.4 1

Maddox Road Rogers Lake Road Rock Chapel Road 28.3 1

Sandstone Estates Subdivision 28.4 4

Panola Valley Subdivision 28.9 4

Millers Crossing Subdivision 28.9 2

Williams Grant Reynolds Drive Magnolia Street Klondike Road 28.9 1

Havenwood Subdivision 29.0 3

Windsor Estates Subdivision 29.5 2

Coffee Road Rogers Lake Road End 29.9 1

Glencroft Subdivision 31.2 3

Plunkett Road S Goddard Road End 31.5 5

Idlewood Crossing Subdivision 31.7 5

Spangle Way Covington Highway End 32.1 2

Lithonia West Drive Covington Highway End 32.5 2

Buckingham Subdivision 33.1 3

Laurel Post Close Subdivision 33.1 1

Cleveland Woods Subdivision 33.9 4

Snapfinger Square Industrial Park 34.4 2

Wade Road Rockland Road End 34.4 5

Easterly Place Panola Industrial Blvd Snapfinger Woods Dr 34.9 2

130

Item III. j.



PANOLA SHOALS BANK STABILIZATION

131

Item III. j.



Project Fiscal Year Total Budget
Name 2023 2024 2025

Transportation Projects

Road Paving $6,400,000 $6,250,000 $6,000,000 

Bus Pads, Benches, Shelters $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 
Construction Engineering and Inspection Services *City staff ? * *
Quick Response Improvement Projects $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 
Traffic Signal Maintenance/Upgrades $225,000 $450,000 
Gateway Bridge Study $75,000 
Stonecrest Streetscape Design $75,000 
Freight Traffic Ordinance $50,000 
Panola Road Study $100,000 
Browns Mill Elementary School Sidewalks $120,500 
Browns Mill Rd Sidewalks (Segment 1) $93,300 
Covington Highway Sidewalk - Miller Rd $230,300 
Evans Mill Rd Sidewalks (Segment 1) $119,700 
Evans Mill Rd Sidewalks (Segment 2) $15,700 
Ottawa Trail Sidewalk $186,600 
Panola Road Sidewalks - North Segment 1 $66,900 
Panola Road Sidewalks - Segment 1 $43,800 

2020 TMP Mid Term Recommendation Intersection Improvement $200,000 $350,000 $1,025,000 

2020 TMP Mid Term Recommendation Intersection Improvement $200,000 $350,000 
2020 TMP Mid Term Recommendation Sidewalk Improvement $500,000 $500,000 

Subtotal $8,000,400 $8,001,400 $8,000,000 

TRANSPORTATION

132

Item III. j.



Project Fiscal Year Total Budget
Name 2023 2024 2025

Field upgrades $1,000,000 $1,000,000 
Playground upgrades $450,000 $150,000 
Prefabricated Restrooms $360,000 
Masterplan for park studies and design $200,000 $200,000 
Parking lot paving $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 
Fencing improvements $100,000 
Outdoor Exercise equipment $80,000 
Park Furniture $80,000 $80,000 
Basketball court upgrades $60,000 
Pavilion upgrades $60,000 
Walking path upgrades $44,000 
Modular Classroom $40,000 
4 Granite stone retaining wall @ Salem park $30,000 
Building upgrades $200,000 $250,000
Driving range @ Southeast $1,000,000 
Light upgrades $300,000 $500,000 
Subtotal $2,704,000 $2,980,000 $1,100,000 

PARKS

133

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

S190 S190 W MORGANS BLUFF CT 913.9 0.35 24075 2,675 441 68,413$      26$             Local 17.5 $120,375 2019 45.00$            $  10,860.50 22,246.58$   18,122.19$     51,229.27$     19.15$    

0000016730 W MORGANS BLUFF CT MARBUT RD END 913.9 0.35 24075 2,675 441 68,413$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $  10,860.50 22,246.58$   18,122.19$     51,229.27$     19.15$    

S150 S150 PHILLIPS PL 1784.3 0.68 41932 4,659 769 119,157$    26$             Local 20.5 $209,660 2019 45.00$            $  18,915.99 38,747.40$   31,563.85$     89,227.24$     19.15$    

0000017050 PHILLIPS PL PHILLIPS RD END 1784.3 0.68 41932 4,659 769 119,157$    26$             Local 2019 -$                $  18,915.99 38,747.40$   31,563.85$     89,227.24$     19.15$    

S1230 S1230 HUNTERS CROSSING PT 1955 0.74 55987 6,221 1,026 159,096$    26$             Local 20.6 $279,935 2022 45.00$            $  25,256.36 51,734.97$   42,143.59$     119,134.92$   19.15$    119,134.92$   

0000006560 HUNTERS CROSSING PT END HUNTERS CROSSING CT 315.7 0.12 10468 1,163 192 29,747$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    4,722.23 9,672.99$      7,879.67$       22,274.89$     19.15$     )

0000006570 HUNTERS CROSSING PT HUNTERS CROSSING CT ROCK SPRINGS RD 760 0.29 18280 2,031 335 51,946$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    8,246.31 16,891.69$   13,760.07$     38,898.07$     19.15$     )

0000006580 HUNTERS CROSSING CT HUNTERS CROSSING PT HUNTERS CROSSING FRD 235.9 0.09 5441 605 100 15,462$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    2,454.50 5,027.77$      4,095.65$       11,577.92$     19.15$     )

0000006590 HUNTERS CROSSING CT HUNTERS CROSSING FRD END 189.7 0.07 7512 835 138 21,347$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,388.75 6,941.49$      5,654.57$       15,984.81$     19.15$     )

0000006600 HUNTERS CROSSING FRD HUNTERS CROSSING CT END 453.7 0.17 14286 1,587 262 40,596$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    6,444.57 13,201.03$   10,753.63$     30,399.23$     19.15$     )

S2340 S2340 TURNER HILL RD ROCKLAND RD HAYDEN QUARRY RD 3959.2 1.50 99512 11,057 1,824 282,780$    26$             Major Arterial 22.6 $497,560 2018 - FDR 45.00$            $  44,890.97 91,954.40$   74,906.55$     211,751.92$   19.15$     )

0000010620 TURNER HILL RD ROCKLAND RD STAR MAGNOLIA DR 1581.9 0.60 33062 3,674 606 93,951$      26$             Major Arterial 2019 - FDR -$                $  14,914.64 30,551.05$   24,887.05$     70,352.74$     19.15$     )

0000010630 TURNER HILL RD STAR MAGNOLIA DR FOREST LAKE PKWY 1116.8 0.42 23341 2,593 428 66,327$      26$             Major Arterial 2019 - FDR -$                $  10,529.38 21,568.33$   17,569.68$     49,667.39$     19.15$     )

0000010640 TURNER HILL RD FOREST LAKE PKWY HAYDEN QUARRY RD 1260.5 0.72 43109 4,790 790 122,501$    26$             Major Arterial 2019 - FDR -$                $  19,446.95 39,835.02$   32,449.82$     91,731.78$     19.15$     )

S210 S210 BEDFORD CT 641.7 0.24 18624 2,069 341 52,923$      26$             Local 22.7 $93,120 2020 45.00$            $    8,401.49 17,209.57$   14,019.01$     39,630.07$     19.15$     )

0000016750 BEDFORD CT MARBUT RD END 641.7 0.24 18624 2,069 341 52,923$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    8,401.49 17,209.57$   14,019.01$     39,630.07$     19.15$     )

S2180 S2180 FLAT ROCK RD 3055.7 1.16 77501 8,611 1,421 220,232$    26$             Local 22.7 $387,505 2022 45.00$            $  34,961.56 71,615.06$   58,338.02$     164,914.64$   19.15$    164,914.64$   

0000001920 FLAT ROCK RD BROWNS MILL RD SOUTHCREST LN 1934.2 0.73 51912 5,768 952 147,517$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  23,418.08 47,969.46$   39,076.18$     110,463.72$   19.15$     )

0000001930 FLAT ROCK RD SOUTHCREST LN EVANS MILL RD 1121.5 0.42 25589 2,843 469 72,715$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $  11,543.48 23,645.60$   19,261.84$     54,450.92$     19.15$     )

S550 S550 FIELD SPRING DR 6579.3 2.49 2E+05 21,862 3,607 559,118$    26$             Local 24.3 $983,785 2020 45.00$            $  88,759.27 181,813.96$ 148,106.65$   418,679.88$   19.15$     )

0000015170 FIELD SPRING DR HILLVALE RD BROOK HOLLOW LN 523.6 0.20 12156 1,351 223 34,543$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    5,483.71 11,232.79$   9,150.29$       25,866.79$     19.15$     )

0000015180 FIELD SPRING DR BROOK HOLLOW LN WILLOW WAY DR [N] 467.1 0.18 16225 1,803 297 46,106$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    7,319.28 14,992.77$   12,213.19$     34,525.23$     19.15$     )

0000015190 FIELD SPRING DR WILLOW WAY DR [N] WILLOW WAY DR [S] 1181.3 0.45 34376 3,820 630 97,685$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $  15,507.40 31,765.26$   25,876.15$     73,148.80$     19.15$     )

0000015200 FIELD SPRING DR WILLOW WAY DR [S] MEADOW BROOKE CT 288.2 0.11 7521 836 138 21,372$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    3,392.81 6,949.81$      5,661.35$       16,003.96$     19.15$     )

0000015210 FIELD SPRING DR MEADOW BROOKE CT MEADOW SPRING DR 1446.1 0.55 48005 5,334 880 136,414$    26$             Local 2020 -$                $  21,655.59 44,359.18$   36,135.23$     102,150.00$   19.15$     )

0000015220 FIELD SPRING DR MEADOW SPRING DR END 496 0.19 14632 1,626 268 41,579$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    6,600.66 13,520.75$   11,014.08$     31,135.48$     19.15$     )

0000015230 BROOK HOLLOW LN END FIELD SPRING DR 173.4 0.07 7689 854 141 21,850$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    3,468.59 7,105.05$      5,787.81$       16,361.45$     19.15$     )

0000015240 WILLOW WAY DR FIELD SPRING DR [S] FIELD SPRING DR [N] 646.4 0.24 13456 1,495 247 38,237$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    6,070.15 12,434.06$   10,128.85$     28,633.07$     19.15$     )

0000015250 MEADOW BROOKE CT FIELD SPRING DR END 368.3 0.14 12229 1,359 224 34,751$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    5,516.64 11,300.25$   9,205.24$       26,022.13$     19.15$     )

0000015260 MEADOW SPRING DR FIELD SPRING DR HILLVALE RD 988.9 0.37 30468 3,385 559 86,580$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $  13,744.45 28,154.06$   22,934.45$     64,832.96$     19.15$     )

S2120 S2120 WINCHESTER PL 2649.8 1.00 79075 8,786 1,450 224,705$    26$             Local 24.5 $395,375 2022 45.00$            $  35,671.61 73,069.52$   59,522.83$     168,263.96$   19.15$    168,263.96$   

0000002170 WINCHESTER PL EVANS MILL RD HERITAGE POINTE 334.6 0.13 8997 1,000 165 25,566$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    4,058.65 8,313.71$      6,772.39$       19,144.75$     19.15$     )

0000002180 WINCHESTER PL HERITAGE POINTE END 1514.2 0.57 45459 5,051 833 129,179$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  20,507.06 42,006.54$   34,218.76$     96,732.36$     19.15$     )

0000002190 HERITAGE POINTE WINCHESTER PL END 801 0.30 24619 2,735 451 69,959$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $  11,105.90 22,749.27$   18,531.68$     52,386.85$     19.15$     )

S280 S280 KENNONBRIAR CT 2254.7 0.85 49487 5,499 907 140,626$    26$             Local 24.6 $158,358 2022 28.80$            $  22,324.14 45,728.63$   37,250.79$     105,303.55$   19.15$    105,303.55$   

0000016030 CAMDEN OAK WAY COVINGTON HWY KINSLAND CT 292.5 0.11 6857 762 126 19,485$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,093.27 6,336.23$      5,161.53$       14,591.03$     19.15$     )

0000016040 CAMDEN OAK WAY KINSLAND CT MCKENNA SQUARE DR 274.7 0.10 6461 718 118 18,360$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    2,914.63 5,970.31$      4,863.45$       13,748.38$     19.15$     )

0000016050 MCKENNA SQUARE DR CAMDEN OAK WAY KENNONBRIAR CT 332.7 0.13 6573 730 121 18,678$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    2,965.15 6,073.80$      4,947.75$       13,986.71$     19.15$     )

0000016060 KINSLAND CT CAMDEN OAK WAY END 230.6 0.09 5406 601 99 15,362$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    2,438.71 4,995.43$      4,069.31$       11,503.45$     19.15$     )

0000016070 CAMDEN OAK WAY END MCKENNA SQUARE DR 359.6 0.14 7331 815 134 20,832$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,307.10 6,774.23$      5,518.33$       15,599.66$     19.15$     )

0000016080 KENNONBRIAR CT PHILLIPS RD MCKENNA SQUARE DR 631.9 0.24 13819 1,535 253 39,269$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    6,233.90 12,769.49$   10,402.10$     29,405.50$     19.15$     )

0000016090 KENNONBRIAR CT MCKENNA SQUARE DR END 132.7 0.05 3040 338 56 8,639$        26$             Local 2022 -$                $    1,371.38 2,809.12$      2,288.33$       6,468.83$       19.15$     )

S1810 S1810 BROWNS MILL FERRY DR 2697.8 1.02 74295 8,255 1,362 211,122$    26$             Local 25.3 $371,475 2020 45.00$            $  33,515.30 68,652.54$   55,924.74$     158,092.58$   19.15$     )

0000009930 BROWNS MILL FERRY DR END BROWNS MILL TRL 641.6 0.24 18767 2,085 344 53,330$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    8,466.00 17,341.71$   14,126.65$     39,934.36$     19.15$     )

0000009940 BROWNS MILL FERRY DR BROWNS MILL TRL BROWNS MILL WALK 282.3 0.11 7352 817 135 20,892$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    3,316.57 6,793.64$      5,534.14$       15,644.35$     19.15$     )

0000009950 BROWNS MILL FERRY DR BROWNS MILL WALK BROWNS MILL FERRY RD 955.7 0.36 24213 2,690 444 68,805$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $  10,922.75 22,374.10$   18,226.07$     51,522.92$     19.15$     )

0000009970 BROWNS MILL TRL BROWNS MILL FERRY DR END 448.7 0.17 13630 1,514 250 38,732$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    6,148.64 12,594.85$   10,259.83$     29,003.32$     19.15$     )

0000009980 BROWNS MILL WALK BROWNS MILL FERRY DR END 369.5 0.14 10333 1,148 189 29,363$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    4,661.33 9,548.24$      7,778.05$       21,987.63$     19.15$     )

S1780 S1780 CHESTNUT LAKE AVE 5122.8 1.94 2E+05 17,126 2,826 438,009$    26$             Local 25.6 $493,242 2019 28.80$            $  69,533.36 142,431.73$ 116,025.67$   327,990.76$   19.15$     )

0000009550 CHESTNUT LAKE AVE END CHESTNUT OAKS RDG 1466.2 0.56 44532 4,948 816 126,545$    26$             Local 2019 -$                $  20,088.88 41,149.94$   33,520.97$     94,759.79$     19.15$     )

0000009560 CHESTNUT LAKE AVE CHESTNUT OAKS RDG LAKE MILL TRCE 293.1 0.11 7321 813 134 20,804$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    3,302.58 6,764.99$      5,510.80$       15,578.38$     19.15$     )

0000009570 CHESTNUT LAKE AVE LAKE MILL TRCE LAKE MILL CT 860.7 0.33 22068 2,452 405 62,710$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    9,955.12 20,392.01$   16,611.44$     46,958.57$     19.15$     )

0000009580 CHESTNUT LAKE AVE LAKE MILL CT CHESTNUT LAKE XING 292.2 0.11 7790 866 143 22,137$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    3,514.16 7,198.38$      5,863.84$       16,576.37$     19.15$     )

0000009590 CHESTNUT LAKE AVE CHESTNUT LAKE XING BROWNS MILL RD 199.2 0.08 4351 483 80 12,364$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    1,962.78 4,020.56$      3,275.17$       9,258.51$       19.15$     )

0000009600 CHESTNUT OAKS RDG CHESTNUT LAKE AVE CHESTNUT OAKS TRCE 332 0.13 8624 958 158 24,507$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    3,890.38 7,969.04$      6,491.62$       18,351.04$     19.15$     )

0000009610 CHESTNUT OAKS RDG CHESTNUT OAKS TRCE END 211.3 0.08 9336 1,037 171 26,530$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    4,211.57 8,626.96$      7,027.57$       19,866.11$     19.15$     )

0000009620 CHESTNUT OAKS TRCE CHESTNUT OAKS RDG END 226.6 0.09 9472 1,052 174 26,916$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    4,272.92 8,752.63$      7,129.94$       20,155.50$     19.15$     )

0000009630 LAKE MILL TRCE CHESTNUT LAKE AVE END 437.7 0.17 12358 1,373 227 35,117$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    5,574.83 11,419.45$   9,302.35$       26,296.63$     19.15$     )

0000009640 LAKE MILL CT CHESTNUT LAKE AVE END 441.4 0.17 17945 1,994 329 50,994$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    8,095.19 16,582.14$   13,507.90$     38,185.23$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

1 3:28 PM

134

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000009650 CHESTNUT LAKE XING CHESTNUT LAKE AVE END 362.4 0.14 10341 1,149 190 29,386$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    4,664.94 9,555.64$      7,784.07$       22,004.65$     19.15$     )

S1390 S1390 E GLEN RD 1378.2 0.52 20601 2,289 378 58,541$      26$             Local 25.6 $65,923 2022 28.80$            $    9,293.34 19,036.42$   15,507.17$     43,836.94$     19.15$    43,836.94$     

0000011540 E GLEN RD END EVANS MILL RD 1378.2 0.52 20601 2,289 378 58,541$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    9,293.34 19,036.42$   15,507.17$     43,836.94$     19.15$     )

S800 S800 WINDING GROVE DR 2729.7 1.03 93342 10,371 1,711 265,247$    26$             Local 25.6 $298,694 2022 28.80$            $  42,107.61 86,252.99$   70,262.15$     198,622.75$   19.15$    198,622.75$   

0000005390 WINDING GROVE DR THOMPSON MILL RD GROVE FIELD PT 654.7 0.25 18302 2,034 336 52,008$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    8,256.24 16,912.02$   13,776.63$     38,944.89$     19.15$     )

0000005400 WINDING GROVE DR GROVE FIELD PT GROVE FIELD PL 669.1 0.25 25470 2,830 467 72,377$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $  11,489.80 23,535.64$   19,172.26$     54,197.70$     19.15$     )

0000005410 WINDING GROVE DR GROVE FIELD PL END 623.9 0.24 20770 2,308 381 59,021$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    9,369.58 19,192.59$   15,634.39$     44,196.55$     19.15$     )

0000005420 GROVE FIELD PL WINDING GROVE DR END 666.3 0.25 21929 2,437 402 62,315$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    9,892.42 20,263.57$   16,506.81$     46,662.79$     19.15$     )

0000005430 GROVE FIELD PT WINDING GROVE DR END 115.7 0.04 6871 763 126 19,525$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,099.58 6,349.17$      5,172.07$       14,620.82$     19.15$     )

S1140 S1140 E SADDLERIDGE DR 2970.6 1.13 96309 10,701 1,766 273,678$    26$             Local 26 $308,189 2022 28.80$            $  43,446.06 88,994.65$   72,495.53$     204,936.24$   19.15$    204,936.24$   

0000001200 E SADDLERIDGE DR BROWNS MILL RD E SADDLERIDGE CT 1260.1 0.48 40492 4,499 742 115,065$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  18,266.39 37,416.77$   30,479.90$     86,163.06$     19.15$     )

0000001210 E SADDLERIDGE DR E SADDLERIDGE CT E SADDLERIDGE LN 407.9 0.15 10884 1,209 200 30,929$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    4,909.89 10,057.40$   8,192.81$       23,160.10$     19.15$     )

0000001220 E SADDLERIDGE DR E SADDLERIDGE LN END 961.4 0.36 28080 3,120 515 79,794$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $  12,667.20 25,947.42$   21,136.91$     59,751.53$     19.15$     )

0000001230 E SADDLERIDGE LN E SADDLERIDGE DR END 141.7 0.05 7439 827 136 21,139$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,355.82 6,874.03$      5,599.62$       15,829.47$     19.15$     )

0000001240 E SADDLERIDGE CT E SADDLERIDGE DR END 199.5 0.08 9414 1,046 173 26,751$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    4,246.76 8,699.04$      7,086.28$       20,032.08$     19.15$     )

S2020 S2020 RAGSDALE RD 2745.5 1.04 62532 6,948 1,146 177,695$    26$             Local 26.4 $200,102 2022 28.80$            $  28,208.88 57,782.90$   47,070.27$     133,062.05$   19.15$    133,062.05$   

0000010820 RAGSDALE RD ROCKLAND RD EVANS MILL RD 2745.5 1.04 62532 6,948 1,146 177,695$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  28,208.88 57,782.90$   47,070.27$     133,062.05$   19.15$     )

S220 S220 CHARTER LN 4276.1 1.62 1E+05 13,564 2,238 346,905$    26$             Local 26.5 $200,102 2022 14.75$            $  55,070.74 112,806.58$ 91,892.86$     259,770.18$   19.15$    259,770.18$   

0000016760 CHARTER LN MARBUT RD BEDFORD LN 309.5 0.12 7095 788 130 20,162$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,200.63 6,556.16$      5,340.68$       15,097.47$     19.15$     )

0000016770 CHARTER LN BEDFORD LN CHARTER WAY 1064.6 0.40 26469 2,941 485 75,216$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $  11,940.46 24,458.77$   19,924.25$     56,323.47$     19.15$     )

0000016780 BEDFORD LN WEST END CHARTER LN 242.9 0.09 10027 1,114 184 28,493$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    4,523.29 9,265.48$      7,547.71$       21,336.49$     19.15$     )

0000016790 BEDFORD LN CHARTER LN EAST END 360.8 0.14 12034 1,337 221 34,197$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    5,428.67 11,120.06$   9,058.46$       25,607.19$     19.15$     )

0000016800 CHARTER WAY WEST END MARBUT TRCE 290.5 0.11 10753 1,195 197 30,556$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    4,850.80 9,936.35$      8,094.20$       22,881.34$     19.15$     )

0000016810 CHARTER WAY MARBUT TRCE CHARTER MNR 351.2 0.13 8073 897 148 22,941$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,641.82 7,459.88$      6,076.86$       17,178.56$     19.15$     )

0000016820 CHARTER WAY CHARTER MNR CHARTER LN 286.1 0.11 6647 739 122 18,889$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    2,998.54 6,142.18$      5,003.46$       14,144.17$     19.15$     )

0000016830 CHARTER WAY CHARTER LN SOUTH END 773.4 0.29 20248 2,250 371 57,538$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    9,134.10 18,710.23$   15,241.46$     43,085.79$     19.15$     )

0000016840 MARBUT TRCE END CHARTER WAY 241.8 0.09 8832 981 162 25,098$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,984.21 8,161.24$      6,648.19$       18,793.64$     19.15$     )

0000016850 CHARTER MNR END CHARTER WAY 355.3 0.13 11900 1,322 218 33,816$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    5,368.22 10,996.23$   8,957.59$       25,322.05$     19.15$     )

S2300 S2300 ROCKLAND RD EVANS MILL RD N GODDARD RD 4398.4 1.67 91926 10,214 1,685 261,223$    26$             Minor Arterial 27.1 $294,163 2019 28.80$            $  41,468.84 84,944.53$   69,196.28$     195,609.64$   19.15$     )

0000010490 ROCKLAND RD EVANS MILL RD TRINITY PL 1497.7 0.57 31302 3,478 574 88,950$      26$             Minor Arterial 2019 -$                $  14,120.68 28,924.72$   23,562.23$     66,607.63$     19.15$     )

0000010500 ROCKLAND RD TRINITY PL SERENITY LN 2408.3 0.91 50333 5,593 923 143,030$    26$             Minor Arterial 2019 -$                $  22,705.78 46,510.38$   37,887.61$     107,103.76$   19.15$     )

0000010510 ROCKLAND RD SERENITY LN ROMAN WOODS 299.2 0.11 6253 695 115 17,769$      26$             Minor Arterial 2019 -$                $    2,820.80 5,778.11$      4,706.88$       13,305.78$     19.15$     )

0000010520 ROCKLAND RD ROMAN WOODS N GODDARD RD 193.2 0.07 4038 449 74 11,475$      26$             Minor Arterial 2019 -$                $    1,821.59 3,731.33$      3,039.56$       8,592.47$       19.15$     )

S790 S790 ROLLING MEADOW CT 1167.3 0.44 35672 3,964 654 101,368$    26$             Local 27.2 $200,102 2022 50.49$            $  16,092.04 32,962.83$   26,851.70$     75,906.57$     19.15$    75,906.57$     

0000005210 ROLLING MEADOW CT THOMPSON MILL RD END 1167.3 0.44 35672 3,964 654 101,368$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  16,092.04 32,962.83$   26,851.70$     75,906.57$     19.15$     )

S770 S770 STRATFORD MILL RD 3744 1.42 1E+05 11,785 1,945 301,404$    26$             Local 27.2 $339,411 2022 28.80$            $  47,847.55 98,010.64$   79,840.00$     225,698.19$   19.15$    225,698.19$   

0000005270 STRATFORD MILL RD THOMPSON MILL RD [W] STRATFORD MILL RD 160.1 0.06 3797 422 70 10,790$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    1,712.87 3,508.63$      2,858.15$       8,079.65$       19.15$     )

0000005280 STRATFORD MILL RD STRATFORD MILL RD THOMPSON MILL RD [E] 364.1 0.14 9956 1,106 183 28,292$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    4,491.26 9,199.87$      7,494.27$       21,185.41$     19.15$     )

0000005290 STRATFORD MILL RD STRATFORD MILL RD STRATFORD MILL CT 432.1 0.16 10322 1,147 189 29,332$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    4,656.37 9,538.08$      7,769.77$       21,964.22$     19.15$     )

0000005300 STRATFORD MILL RD STRATFORD MILL CT HAMLET CT 299 0.11 8672 964 159 24,643$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,912.04 8,013.39$      6,527.75$       18,453.18$     19.15$     )

0000005310 STRATFORD MILL RD HAMLET CT THAMES CT 759.5 0.29 19234 2,137 353 54,657$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    8,676.67 17,773.24$   14,478.18$     40,928.09$     19.15$     )

0000005320 STRATFORD MILL RD THAMES CT END 352.5 0.13 10688 1,188 196 30,372$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    4,821.48 9,876.28$      8,045.27$       22,743.03$     19.15$     )

0000005330 THAMES CT STRATFORD MILL RD END 506.7 0.19 14932 1,659 274 42,432$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    6,735.99 13,797.96$   11,239.90$     31,773.85$     19.15$     )

0000005340 HAMLET CT STRATFORD MILL RD END 569.9 0.22 17653 1,961 324 50,164$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    7,963.46 16,312.31$   13,288.10$     37,563.88$     19.15$     )

0000005350 STRATFORD MILL CT STRATFORD MILL RD END 300.1 0.11 10812 1,201 198 30,724$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    4,877.41 9,990.86$      8,138.61$       23,006.89$     19.15$     )

S430 S430 DAVIDSON DR 2256.8 0.85 59393 6,599 1,089 168,775$    26$             Local 27.3 $190,058 2022 28.80$            $  26,792.84 54,882.30$   44,707.42$     126,382.56$   19.15$    126,382.56$   

0000015500 DAVIDSON DR COVINGTON HWY DAVIDSON CT 425.5 0.16 10135 1,126 186 28,800$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    4,572.01 9,365.28$      7,629.01$       21,566.30$     19.15$     )

0000015510 DAVIDSON DR DAVIDSON CT EVANS MILL RD 1424.1 0.54 36068 4,008 661 102,493$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  16,270.68 33,328.76$   27,149.79$     76,749.22$     19.15$     )

0000015520 DAVIDSON CT END DAVIDSON DR 407.2 0.15 13190 1,466 242 37,482$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    5,950.16 12,188.26$   9,928.63$       28,067.04$     19.15$     )

S510 S510 EVANS MILL DR 1003.1 0.38 26466 2,941 485 75,208$      26$             Local 27.3 $84,691 2022 28.80$            $  11,939.11 24,456.00$   19,921.99$     56,317.09$     19.15$    56,317.09$     

0000015420 EVANS MILL DR CHUPP RD END 1003.1 0.38 26466 2,941 485 75,208$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $  11,939.11 24,456.00$   19,921.99$     56,317.09$     19.15$     )

S1520 S1520 STONECREST TRCE 965.8 0.37 46842 5,205 859 133,109$    26$             Local 27.3 $149,894 2022 28.80$            $  21,130.95 43,284.51$   35,259.80$     99,675.25$     19.15$    99,675.25$     

0000012850 STONECREST TRCE MALL PKWY MALL RING RD 965.8 0.37 46842 5,205 859 133,109$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  21,130.95 43,284.51$   35,259.80$     99,675.25$     19.15$     )

S180 S180 STABLEWOOD WAY 1582.9 0.60 49154 5,462 901 139,679$    26$             Local 27.4 $157,293 2022 28.80$            $  22,173.92 45,420.92$   37,000.13$     104,594.96$   19.15$    104,594.96$   

0000016880 STABLEWOOD WAY PHILLIPS RD STABLEWOOD CV 230 0.09 5335 593 98 15,160$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    2,406.68 4,929.82$      4,015.86$       11,352.36$     19.15$     )

0000016890 STABLEWOOD WAY STABLEWOOD CV END 1184.2 0.45 36270 4,030 665 103,067$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  16,361.80 33,515.41$   27,301.84$     77,179.05$     19.15$     )

0000016900 STABLEWOOD CV STABLEWOOD WAY END 168.7 0.06 7549 839 138 21,452$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,405.44 6,975.68$      5,682.43$       16,063.54$     19.15$     )

S80 S80 MADDOX RD 6404.1 2.43 1E+05 13,790 2,275 352,688$    26$             Local 28.3 $397,162 2022 28.80$            $  55,988.75 114,687.03$ 93,424.68$     264,100.47$   19.15$    264,100.47$   

0000017610 MADDOX RD ROGERS LAKE RD ROCK CHAPEL RD 6404.1 2.43 1E+05 13,790 2,275 352,688$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  55,988.75 114,687.03$ 93,424.68$     264,100.47$   19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

2 3:28 PM

135

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

S2200 S2200 SANDSTONE SHORES DR 5807.9 2.20 2E+05 19,110 3,153 488,750$    26$             Local 28.4 $550,381 2022 28.80$            $  77,588.40 158,931.63$ 129,466.57$   365,986.61$   19.15$    365,986.61$   

0000001250 SANDSTONE SHORES DR SOUTH END SANDY SHORES CT 1522 0.58 48476 5,386 889 137,753$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  21,868.06 44,794.41$   36,489.77$     103,152.24$   19.15$     )

0000001260 SANDSTONE SHORES DR SANDY SHORES CT SANDY LK E 1410 0.53 37730 4,192 692 107,216$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  17,020.42 34,864.53$   28,400.84$     80,285.79$     19.15$     )

0000001270 SANDY SHORES CT WEST END SANDSTONE SHORES DR 1422.7 0.54 44424 4,936 814 126,238$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  20,040.16 41,050.15$   33,439.67$     94,529.98$     19.15$     )

0000001280 SANDY LK E WEST END SANDSTONE SHORES DR 421.2 0.16 15573 1,730 286 44,253$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    7,025.15 14,390.28$   11,722.40$     33,137.84$     19.15$     )

0000001290 SANDY LK E SANDSTONE SHORES DR BROWNS MILL RD 1032 0.39 25791 2,866 473 73,289$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $  11,634.61 23,832.26$   19,413.89$     54,880.75$     19.15$     )

S1070 S1070 BUTTON GATE CT 8626.5 3.27 2E+05 26,463 4,366 676,791$    26$             Local 28.9 $762,134 2022 28.80$           ########## 220,079.01$ 179,277.56$   506,796.35$   19.15$    506,796.35$   

0000000780 CAIN MILL DR WOLVERTON CIR CAIN MILL CT 678.8 0.26 15327 1,703 281 43,554$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    6,914.18 14,162.97$   11,537.23$     32,614.37$     19.15$     )

0000000790 CAIN MILL DR CAIN MILL CT BUTTON GATE CT 1093.2 0.41 33952 3,772 622 96,480$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $  15,316.12 31,373.46$   25,556.99$     72,246.57$     19.15$     )

0000000800 CAIN MILL DR BUTTON GATE CT PANOLA WOODS DR 373.3 0.14 9743 1,083 179 27,686$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    4,395.18 9,003.05$      7,333.93$       20,732.16$     19.15$     )

0000000810 PANOLA WOODS DR CAIN MILL DR PANOLA WOODS CT 355.7 0.13 7974 886 146 22,659$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,597.16 7,368.40$      6,002.34$       16,967.90$     19.15$     )

0000000820 PANOLA WOODS DR PANOLA WOODS CT PANOLA LAKE CIR 658.1 0.25 17738 1,971 325 50,405$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    8,001.81 16,390.86$   13,352.08$     37,744.75$     19.15$     )

0000000830 PANOLA WOODS CT PANOLA WOODS DR END 549.1 0.21 18283 2,031 335 51,954$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    8,247.66 16,894.47$   13,762.33$     38,904.46$     19.15$     )

0000000840 BUTTON GATE CT CAIN MILL DR WOLVERTON CIR 1470.9 0.56 39361 4,373 722 111,851$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  17,756.18 36,371.66$   29,628.56$     83,756.40$     19.15$     )

0000000850 BUTTON GATE CT WOLVERTON CIR END 627.7 0.24 19992 2,221 367 56,811$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    9,018.61 18,473.67$   15,048.76$     42,541.04$     19.15$     )

0000000860 CAIN MILL CT CAIN MILL DR END 222.6 0.08 8621 958 158 24,498$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,889.03 7,966.26$      6,489.36$       18,344.65$     19.15$     )

0000000870 PANOLA LAKE CIR WEST END PANOLA WOODS DR 503.9 0.19 14169 1,574 260 40,264$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    6,391.79 13,092.91$   10,665.56$     30,150.26$     19.15$     )

0000000880 PANOLA LAKE CIR PANOLA WOODS DR PANOLA VALLEY DR 658 0.25 16172 1,797 296 45,955$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    7,295.37 14,943.79$   12,173.29$     34,412.45$     19.15$     )

0000000890 PANOLA LAKE CIR PANOLA VALLEY DR EAST END 712.2 0.27 20845 2,316 382 59,235$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    9,403.41 19,261.89$   15,690.84$     44,356.14$     19.15$     )

0000000900 PANOLA VALLEY DR PANOLA LAKE CIR PANOLA RD 723 0.27 15990 1,777 293 45,438$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    7,213.27 14,775.61$   12,036.29$     34,025.17$     19.15$     )

S840 S840 MILLERS GLN 978.5 0.37 28562 3,174 524 81,164$      26$             Local 28.9 $91,398 2022 28.80$            $  12,884.64 26,392.81$   21,499.73$     60,777.18$     19.15$    60,777.18$     

0000005360 MILLERS RUN THOMPSON MILL RD MILLERS GLN 203.7 0.08 5484 609 101 15,584$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    2,473.89 5,067.51$      4,128.02$       11,669.42$     19.15$     )

0000005370 MILLERS RUN MILLERS GLN END 380.5 0.14 11733 1,304 215 33,341$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    5,292.89 10,841.92$   8,831.89$       24,966.69$     19.15$     )

0000005380 MILLERS GLN END MILLERS RUN 394.3 0.15 11345 1,261 208 32,239$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    5,117.86 10,483.39$   8,539.82$       24,141.06$     19.15$     )

S540 S540 WILLIAMS GRANT REYNOLDS DR 1105.6 0.42 15383 1,709 282 43,713$      26$             Local 28.9 $49,226 2022 28.80$            $    6,939.44 14,214.71$   11,579.38$     32,733.54$     19.15$    32,733.54$     

0000015540 WILLIAMS GRANT REYNOLDS DR MAGNOLIA ST KLONDIKE RD 1105.6 0.42 15383 1,709 282 43,713$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    6,939.44 14,214.71$   11,579.38$     32,733.54$     19.15$     )

S810 S810 HAVENWOOD WAY 1238.5 0.47 42267 4,696 775 120,109$    26$             Local 29 $135,254 2022 28.80$            $  19,067.11 39,056.96$   31,816.01$     89,940.09$     19.15$    89,940.09$     

0000005440 HAVENWOOD WAY THOMPSON MILL RD HAVENWOOD PL 325.1 0.12 8744 972 160 24,848$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,944.52 8,079.92$      6,581.95$       18,606.39$     19.15$     )

0000005450 HAVENWOOD WAY HAVENWOOD PL END 545.7 0.21 20209 2,245 370 57,427$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    9,116.50 18,674.19$   15,212.10$     43,002.80$     19.15$     )

0000005460 HAVENWOOD PL END HAVENWOOD WAY 367.7 0.14 13314 1,479 244 37,834$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    6,006.09 12,302.85$   10,021.97$     28,330.90$     19.15$     )

S920 S920 SUNNYFORD LN 6792.2 2.57 2E+05 20,520 3,386 524,796$    26$             Local 29.5 $590,973 2022 28.80$            $  83,310.75 170,653.25$ 139,015.07$   392,979.06$   19.15$    392,979.06$   

0000004840 ROSEHEATH LN ROCK SPRINGS RD CLEETHORPES DR 358.3 0.14 7196 800 132 20,449$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,246.20 6,649.49$      5,416.71$       15,312.39$     19.15$     )

0000004850 ROSEHEATH LN CLEETHORPES DR ROSEHEATH CT 503.2 0.19 12169 1,352 223 34,580$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    5,489.57 11,244.81$   9,160.08$       25,894.46$     19.15$     )

0000004860 ROSEHEATH LN ROSEHEATH CT SUNNYFORD LN 540.9 0.20 12741 1,416 234 36,206$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    5,747.61 11,773.36$   9,590.65$       27,111.62$     19.15$     )

0000004870 ROSEHEATH LN SUNNYFORD LN OXBRIDGE WAY 509.6 0.19 12944 1,438 237 36,783$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    5,839.18 11,960.95$   9,743.45$       27,543.58$     19.15$     )

0000004880 ROSEHEATH LN OXBRIDGE WAY THOMPSON MILL RD 430.5 0.16 13003 1,445 238 36,950$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    5,865.80 12,015.47$   9,787.86$       27,669.13$     19.15$     )

0000004890 CLEETHORPES DR THOMPSON MILL RD ROSEHEATH LN 674.2 0.26 17944 1,994 329 50,991$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    8,094.74 16,581.21$   13,507.15$     38,183.10$     19.15$     )

0000004900 ROSEHEATH CT END ROSEHEATH LN 288.3 0.11 8063 896 148 22,912$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,637.31 7,450.64$      6,069.33$       17,157.28$     19.15$     )

0000004910 SUNNYFORD LN ROSEHEATH LN ROCK SPRINGS RD 1480.8 0.56 43041 4,782 789 122,308$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  19,416.27 39,772.18$   32,398.63$     91,587.09$     19.15$     )

0000004920 OXBRIDGE WAY ROCK SPRINGS RD OXBRIDGE WAY 651.8 0.25 18226 2,025 334 51,792$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    8,221.95 16,841.80$   13,719.42$     38,783.17$     19.15$     )

0000004930 OXBRIDGE WAY EAST END OXBRIDGE WAY 108.7 0.04 3436 382 63 9,764$        26$             Local 2022 -$                $    1,550.02 3,175.05$      2,586.41$       7,311.48$       19.15$     )

0000004940 OXBRIDGE WAY OXBRIDGE WAY ROSEHEATH LN 1245.9 0.47 35916 3,991 658 102,061$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  16,202.11 33,188.30$   27,035.37$     76,425.78$     19.15$     )

S90 S90 COFFEE RD 2585 0.98 46846 5,205 859 133,121$    26$             Local 29.9 $149,907 2022 28.80$            $  21,132.75 43,288.20$   35,262.81$     99,683.76$     19.15$    99,683.76$     

0000017580 COFFEE RD END ROGERS LAKE RD 2585 0.98 46846 5,205 859 133,121$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  21,132.75 43,288.20$   35,262.81$     99,683.76$     19.15$     )

S1200 S1200 SALEM RD CROSSVALE RD EVANS MILL RD 5645.5 2.14 1E+05 15,776 2,603 403,474$    26$             Collector 30.8 $454,352 2019 28.80$            $  64,051.01 131,201.71$ 106,877.63$   302,130.35$   19.15$     )

0000002300 SALEM RD CROSSVALE RD SALEM TER 1643.4 0.62 40592 4,510 744 115,349$    26$             Collector 2019 -$                $  18,311.50 37,509.17$   30,555.18$     86,375.85$     19.15$     )

0000002310 SALEM RD SALEM TER HUNTERS HILL DR 391 0.15 9658 1,073 177 27,445$      26$             Collector 2019 -$                $    4,356.83 8,924.51$      7,269.95$       20,551.29$     19.15$     )

0000002320 SALEM RD HUNTERS HILL DR BRAMBLEVINE CIR 1001.3 0.38 24732 2,748 453 70,280$      26$             Collector 2019 -$                $  11,156.88 22,853.69$   18,616.74$     52,627.31$     19.15$     )

0000002330 SALEM RD BRAMBLEVINE CIR CAPE COD LN 904.8 0.34 24068 2,674 441 68,393$      26$             Collector 2019 -$                $  10,857.34 22,240.12$   18,116.92$     51,214.38$     19.15$     )

0000002340 SALEM RD CAPE COD LN MILL VIEW WAY 432.2 0.16 11497 1,277 211 32,671$      26$             Collector 2019 -$                $    5,186.42 10,623.84$   8,654.24$       24,464.50$     19.15$     )

0000002350 SALEM RD MILL VIEW WAY EVANS MILL RD 1272.8 0.48 31438 3,493 576 89,336$      26$             Collector 2019 -$                $  14,182.03 29,050.39$   23,664.61$     66,897.02$     19.15$     )

S2250 S2250 CROSSVALE RD EVANS MILL RD SALEM RD 7269.9 2.75 2E+05 20,269 3,344 518,371$    26$             Collector 31.2 $583,738 2020 28.80$            $  82,290.79 168,563.96$ 137,313.12$   388,167.87$   19.15$     )

0000001730 CROSSVALE RD EVANS MILL RD MARBLE DR 2801 1.06 74507 8,279 1,366 211,724$    26$             Collector 2020 -$                $  33,610.94 68,848.44$   56,084.32$     158,543.69$   19.15$     )

0000001740 CROSSVALE RD MARBLE DR HUNTERS VALLEY 1300.7 0.49 29656 3,295 544 84,272$      26$             Collector 2020 -$                $  13,378.15 27,403.73$   22,323.22$     63,105.10$     19.15$     )

0000001750 CROSSVALE RD HUNTERS VALLEY SALEM RD 3168.2 1.20 78255 8,695 1,435 222,375$    26$             Collector 2020 -$                $  35,301.70 72,311.79$   58,905.58$     166,519.08$   19.15$     )

S820 S820 WINDING GLEN DR 4241.7 1.61 2E+05 24,410 4,028 624,280$    26$             Local 31.2 $703,002 2022 28.80$            $  99,103.70 203,003.43$ 165,367.70$   467,474.83$   19.15$    467,474.83$   

0000005470 GLENCROFT ENTRY THOMPSON MILL RD WINDING GLEN DR 196.3 0.04 8048 894 148 22,870$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,630.54 7,436.78$      6,058.04$       17,125.37$     19.15$     )

0000005480 WINDING GLEN DR CENTRAL END GLENCROFT ENTRY 1619.2 0.61 55627 6,181 1,020 158,073$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  25,093.96 51,402.31$   41,872.61$     118,368.88$   19.15$     )

0000005490 WINDING GLEN DR GLENCROFT ENTRY GLENCROFT PL 414.1 0.16 10360 1,151 190 29,440$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    4,673.51 9,573.19$      7,798.37$       22,045.08$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

3 3:28 PM

136

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000005500 WINDING GLEN DR GLENCROFT PL NORTH END 1687.1 0.64 1E+05 14,829 2,447 379,246$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  60,204.84 123,323.23$ 100,459.78$   283,987.85$   19.15$     )

0000005510 GLENCROFT PL END WINDING GLEN DR 325 0.12 12194 1,355 224 34,651$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    5,500.85 11,267.91$   9,178.90$       25,947.65$     19.15$     )

S1190 S1190 SALEM RD BROWNS MILL RD CROSSVALE RD 7053.3 2.67 2E+05 24,250 4,001 620,194$    26$             Collector 31.4 $698,400 2019 - FDR 28.80$            $  98,455.00 201,674.64$ 164,285.26$   464,414.90$   19.15$     )

0000002230 SALEM RD BROWNS MILL RD VALLEY OAKS RD 1180.7 0.45 33650 3,739 617 95,622$      26$             Collector 2019 - FDR -$                $  15,179.89 31,094.39$   25,329.66$     71,603.95$     19.15$     )

0000002240 SALEM RD VALLEY OAKS RD PANOLA RD 1269.7 0.72 45836 5,093 840 130,251$    26$             Collector 2019 - FDR -$                $  20,677.13 42,354.91$   34,502.54$     97,534.58$     19.15$     )

0000002250 SALEM RD PANOLA RD BIG MILLER GROVE WAY 829.2 0.47 25208 2,801 462 71,633$      26$             Collector 2019 -$                $  11,371.61 23,293.54$   18,975.04$     53,640.19$     19.15$     )

0000002260 SALEM RD BIG MILLER GROVE WAY SALEM HILLS DR 331.8 0.25 11978 1,331 220 34,037$      26$             Collector 2019 -$                $    5,403.41 11,068.31$   9,016.31$       25,488.03$     19.15$     )

0000002270 SALEM RD SALEM HILLS DR SALEM GLEN RD 1482.8 0.84 50712 5,635 930 144,107$    26$             Collector 2019 -$                $  22,876.75 46,860.59$   38,172.89$     107,910.23$   19.15$     )

0000002280 SALEM RD SALEM GLEN RD WALNUT CREEK WAY 435.1 0.33 19014 2,113 349 54,031$      26$             Collector 2019 -$                $    8,577.43 17,569.95$   14,312.58$     40,459.95$     19.15$     )

0000002290 SALEM RD WALNUT CREEK WAY CROSSVALE RD 1524 0.58 31852 3,539 584 90,513$      26$             Collector 2019 -$                $  14,368.79 29,432.95$   23,976.24$     67,777.98$     19.15$     )

S1700 S1700 PLUNKETT RD 2885.5 1.09 45927 5,103 842 130,509$    26$             Local 31.5 $146,966 2022 28.80$            $  20,718.18 42,439.00$   34,571.04$     97,728.22$     19.15$    97,728.22$     

0000010470 PLUNKETT RD S GODDARD RD END 2885.5 1.09 45927 5,103 842 130,509$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  20,718.18 42,439.00$   34,571.04$     97,728.22$     19.15$     )

S1950 S1950 IDLEWOOD PARK 8424 3.19 2E+05 23,926 3,948 611,919$    26$             Local 31.7 $689,082 2022 28.80$            $  97,141.36 198,983.80$ 162,093.29$   458,218.45$   19.15$    458,218.45$   

0000008010 IDLEWOOD GATE BROWNS MILL RD IDLEWOOD MNR 178.9 0.07 4546 505 83 12,918$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    2,050.75 4,200.75$      3,421.95$       9,673.45$       19.15$     )

0000008020 IDLEWOOD GATE IDLEWOOD MNR IDLEWOOD PARK 264.7 0.10 5710 634 105 16,226$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    2,575.84 5,276.34$      4,298.14$       12,150.33$     19.15$     )

0000008030 IDLEWOOD MNR IDLEWOOD GATE END 148.9 0.06 6940 771 127 19,721$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,130.71 6,412.93$      5,224.01$       14,767.65$     19.15$     )

0000008040 IDLEWOOD PARK IDLEWOOD GATE IDLEWOOD PL 1242.6 0.47 33771 3,752 619 95,966$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $  15,234.47 31,206.21$   25,420.75$     71,861.42$     19.15$     )

0000008050 IDLEWOOD PARK IDLEWOOD PL IDLEWOOD TRCE 256.1 0.10 5379 598 99 15,285$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    2,426.53 4,970.48$      4,048.98$       11,445.99$     19.15$     )

0000008060 IDLEWOOD PARK IDLEWOOD TRCE IDLEWOOD PASS 256.1 0.10 6427 714 118 18,263$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    2,899.29 5,938.89$      4,837.85$       13,676.03$     19.15$     )

0000008070 IDLEWOOD PARK IDLEWOOD PASS IDLEWOOD CIR [E] 255.2 0.10 7119 791 131 20,230$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,211.46 6,578.34$      5,358.75$       15,148.54$     19.15$     )

0000008080 IDLEWOOD PARK IDLEWOOD CIR [E] IDLEWOOD CIR [W] 323.1 0.12 8135 904 149 23,117$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,669.79 7,517.17$      6,123.53$       17,310.49$     19.15$     )

0000008090 IDLEWOOD PARK IDLEWOOD CIR [W] IDLEWOOD PASS 767.5 0.29 19594 2,177 359 55,680$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    8,839.07 18,105.90$   14,749.17$     41,694.14$     19.15$     )

0000008100 IDLEWOOD PARK IDLEWOOD PASS IDLEWOOD TRCE 288.7 0.11 6684 743 123 18,994$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,015.23 6,176.37$      5,031.31$       14,222.91$     19.15$     )

0000008110 IDLEWOOD PARK IDLEWOOD TRCE IDLEWOOD PL 360.6 0.14 8243 916 151 23,424$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,718.51 7,616.97$      6,204.83$       17,540.31$     19.15$     )

0000008120 IDLEWOOD PARK IDLEWOOD PL IDLEWOOD GATE 403.2 0.15 13242 1,471 243 37,629$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    5,973.61 12,236.31$   9,967.77$       28,177.70$     19.15$     )

0000008130 IDLEWOOD PARK IDLEWOOD PARK IDLEWOOD CIR 297.3 0.11 7562 840 139 21,489$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,411.30 6,987.69$      5,692.21$       16,091.21$     19.15$     )

0000008140 IDLEWOOD CIR IDLEWOOD PARK [S] IDLEWOOD PARK [N] 497.9 0.19 12965 1,441 238 36,842$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    5,848.66 11,980.35$   9,759.26$       27,588.27$     19.15$     )

0000008150 IDLEWOOD PASS IDLEWOOD PARK [W] IDLEWOOD PARK [E] 880 0.33 19641 2,182 360 55,813$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    8,860.27 18,149.33$   14,784.54$     41,794.15$     19.15$     )

0000008160 IDLEWOOD TRCE IDLEWOOD PARK [W] IDLEWOOD PARK [E] 948.9 0.36 22874 2,542 419 65,000$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $  10,318.72 21,136.80$   17,218.15$     48,673.66$     19.15$     )

0000008170 IDLEWOOD PL IDLEWOOD PARK [W] IDLEWOOD PARK [E] 1054.3 0.40 26506 2,945 486 75,321$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $  11,957.15 24,492.96$   19,952.10$     56,402.21$     19.15$     )

S690 S690 SPANGLE WAY 465.7 0.18 12134 1,348 222 34,481$      26$             Local 32.1 $38,829 28.80$            $    5,473.78 11,212.46$   9,133.73$       25,819.98$     19.15$     )

0000013780 SPANGLE WAY END COVINGTON HWY 465.7 0.18 12134 1,348 222 34,481$      26$             Local -$                $    5,473.78 11,212.46$   9,133.73$       25,819.98$     19.15$     )

S290 S290 LITHONIA WEST DR 1539.9 0.58 47519 5,280 871 135,033$    26$             Local 32.5 $152,061 28.80$            $  21,436.35 43,910.09$   35,769.40$     101,115.84$   19.15$     )

15730 LITHONIA WEST DR END COVINGTON HWY 1539.9 0.58 47519 5,280 871 135,033$    26$             Local -$                $  21,436.35 43,910.09$   35,769.40$     101,115.84$   19.15$     )

S1840 S1840 BROWNS MILL FERRY RD 5505 2.09 1E+05 13,003 2,145 332,549$    26$             Local 33 $374,483 28.80$            $  52,791.73 108,138.27$ 88,090.02$     249,020.02$   19.15$     )

0000009660 BROWNS MILL FERRY RD END MOYE DR 109.3 0.04 2432 270 45 6,911$        26$             Local 2020 -$                $    1,097.10 2,247.30$      1,830.66$       5,175.06$       19.15$     )

0000009670 BROWNS MILL FERRY RD MOYE DR LAMAR CT 296.1 0.11 6600 733 121 18,755$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    2,977.33 6,098.75$      4,968.08$       14,044.16$     19.15$     )

0000009680 BROWNS MILL FERRY RD LAMAR CT BOWIE DR 303.1 0.11 6587 732 121 18,718$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    2,971.47 6,086.74$      4,958.29$       14,016.50$     19.15$     )

0000009690 BROWNS MILL FERRY RD BOWIE DR RAVENWOOD LN 296.8 0.11 5798 644 106 16,476$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    2,615.54 5,357.66$      4,364.38$       12,337.58$     19.15$     )

0000009700 BROWNS MILL FERRY RD RAVENWOOD LN SETTERS WAY 385 0.15 8361 929 153 23,759$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    3,771.74 7,726.01$      6,293.65$       17,791.40$     19.15$     )

0000009710 BROWNS MILL FERRY RD SETTERS WAY RED BONE WAY 298.7 0.11 6228 692 114 17,698$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    2,809.52 5,755.00$      4,688.06$       13,252.58$     19.15$     )

0000009720 BROWNS MILL FERRY RD RED BONE WAY MAHONIA PL 323.2 0.12 6665 741 122 18,940$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    3,006.66 6,158.82$      5,017.00$       14,182.48$     19.15$     )

0000009730 BROWNS MILL FERRY RD MAHONIA PL BROWNS MILL FERRY CT 1262 0.48 24388 2,710 447 69,303$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $  11,001.70 22,535.81$   18,357.80$     51,895.31$     19.15$     )

0000009740 BROWNS MILL FERRY RD BROWNS MILL FERRY CT BROWNS MILL FERRY DR 429.6 0.16 8852 984 162 25,154$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    3,993.24 8,179.72$      6,663.24$       18,836.20$     19.15$     )

0000009750 BROWNS MILL FERRY RD BROWNS MILL FERRY DR BROWNS MILL LAKE RD 830.5 0.31 18634 2,070 342 52,952$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    8,406.00 17,218.81$   14,026.54$     39,651.35$     19.15$     )

0000009760 BROWNS MILL FERRY RD BROWNS MILL LAKE RD BROWNS MILL RD 970.7 0.37 22481 2,498 412 63,884$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $  10,141.43 20,773.64$   16,922.32$     47,837.39$     19.15$     )

S1720 S1720 S GODDARD RD/ FLAT SHOALS RD KLONDIKE RD HEIGHTS AVE SW 10011 3.79 2E+05 22,658 3,739 579,473$    26$             Collector 33 $652,544 2021 28.80$            $  91,990.58 188,432.96$ 153,498.51$   433,922.05$   19.15$     )

0000010390 S GODDARD RD KLONDIKE RD HOUSWORTH DR 1778.3 0.67 33788 3,754 619 96,014$      26$             Collector 2021 -$                $  15,242.14 31,221.91$   25,433.54$     71,897.60$     19.15$     )

0000010400 S GODDARD RD HOUSWORTH DR BERLINE DR 1173 0.44 22287 2,476 409 63,332$      26$             Collector 2021 -$                $  10,053.91 20,594.38$   16,776.29$     47,424.58$     19.15$     )

0000010410 S GODDARD RD BERLINE DR COLEY CT 237.8 0.09 4970 552 91 14,123$      26$             Collector 2021 -$                $    2,242.02 4,592.55$      3,741.11$       10,575.68$     19.15$     )

0000010420 S GODDARD RD COLEY CT ROUNDTREE LN 1715.2 0.65 35848 3,983 657 101,868$    26$             Collector 2021 -$                $  16,171.43 33,125.46$   26,984.18$     76,281.08$     19.15$     )

0000010430 S GODDARD RD ROUNDTREE LN PLUNKETT RD 1690.1 0.64 35323 3,925 648 100,376$    26$             Collector 2021 -$                $  15,934.60 32,640.34$   26,589.00$     75,163.93$     19.15$     )

0000010440 S GODDARD RD PLUNKETT RD FLAT SHOALS RD 2667.3 1.01 55747 6,194 1,022 158,414$    26$             Collector 2021 -$                $  25,148.09 51,513.20$   41,962.93$     118,624.23$   19.15$     )

0000010450 S GODDARD RD FLAT SHOALS RD HEIGHTS AVE SW 432.7 0.16 8438 938 155 23,978$      26$             Local 2021 -$                $    3,806.48 7,797.16$      6,351.61$       17,955.25$     19.15$     )

0000010480 FLAT SHOALS RD CITY LIMIT S GODDARD RD 317 0.12 7519 835 138 21,366$      26$             Local 2021 -$                $    3,391.90 6,947.96$      5,659.84$       15,999.71$     19.15$     )

S1280 S1280 HIGHLAND PARK LN 7307.8 2.77 2E+05 22,034 3,636 563,508$    26$             Local 33.1 $634,566 2022 28.80$            $  89,456.24 183,241.62$ 149,269.63$   421,967.49$   19.15$    421,967.49$   

0000007450 BUCKINGHAM WAY W FAIRINGTON PKWY MAYFAIR CROSSING DR 202.5 0.04 9126 1,014 167 25,933$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    4,116.84 8,432.91$      6,869.50$       19,419.25$     19.15$     )

0000007460 MAYFAIR CROSSING DR WEST END HAMPTON CLUB WAY 395.5 0.15 13288 1,476 244 37,760$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    5,994.36 12,278.82$   10,002.39$     28,275.58$     19.15$     )

0000007470 MAYFAIR CROSSING DR HAMPTON CLUB WAY BUCKINGHAM WAY 213 0.08 4957 551 91 14,086$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    2,236.16 4,580.53$      3,731.33$       10,548.02$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

4 3:28 PM

137

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000007480 MAYFAIR CROSSING DR BUCKINGHAM WAY HIGHLAND PARK CIR 557.5 0.21 12028 1,336 221 34,180$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    5,425.96 11,114.51$   9,053.94$       25,594.42$     19.15$     )

0000007490 MAYFAIR CROSSING DR HIGHLAND PARK CIR CLARIDGE CIR [W] 282 0.11 6687 743 123 19,002$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,016.58 6,179.14$      5,033.56$       14,229.29$     19.15$     )

0000007500 MAYFAIR CROSSING DR CLARIDGE CIR [W] CLARIDGE CIR [E] 918.1 0.35 24790 2,754 454 70,445$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $  11,183.04 22,907.28$   18,660.40$     52,750.72$     19.15$     )

0000007510 MAYFAIR CROSSING DR CLARIDGE CIR [E] EAST END 179 0.07 8601 956 158 24,441$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,880.01 7,947.78$      6,474.31$       18,302.10$     19.15$     )

0000007520 HAMPTON CLUB WAY END HAMPTON MANOR CT 777.1 0.29 21533 2,393 395 61,190$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    9,713.78 19,897.64$   16,208.73$     45,820.14$     19.15$     )

0000007530 HAMPTON CLUB WAY HAMPTON MANOR CT MAYFAIR CROSSING DR 457.7 0.17 9061 1,007 166 25,748$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    4,087.52 8,372.85$      6,820.57$       19,280.93$     19.15$     )

0000007540 HAMPTON MANOR CT END HAMPTON CLUB WAY 364.9 0.14 13347 1,483 245 37,928$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    6,020.98 12,333.34$   10,046.81$     28,401.13$     19.15$     )

0000007550 HIGHLAND PARK CIR END HIGHLAND PARK LN [S] 106 0.04 5796 644 106 16,470$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    2,614.64 5,355.81$      4,362.87$       12,333.33$     19.15$     )

0000007560 HIGHLAND PARK CIR HIGHLAND PARK LN [S] HIGHLAND PARK LN [N] 582.9 0.22 15602 1,734 286 44,336$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    7,038.24 14,417.08$   11,744.23$     33,199.55$     19.15$     )

0000007570 HIGHLAND PARK CIR HIGHLAND PARK LN [N] MAYFAIR CROSSING DR 238.8 0.09 5918 658 108 16,817$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    2,669.68 5,468.55$      4,454.71$       12,592.93$     19.15$     )

0000007580 HIGHLAND PARK LN HIGHLAND PARK CIR [S] HIGHLAND PARK CIR [N] 1141.5 0.43 23601 2,622 433 67,066$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $  10,646.67 21,808.58$   17,765.39$     50,220.65$     19.15$     )

0000007590 CLARIDGE CIR MAYFAIR CROSSING DR [W] MAYFAIR CROSSING DR [E] 891.3 0.34 23967 2,663 439 68,106$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $  10,811.78 22,146.79$   18,040.89$     50,999.46$     19.15$     )

S170 S170 LAUREL POST DR 9268 3.51 3E+05 32,585 5,376 833,350$    26$             Local 33.1 $938,435 2022 28.80$           ########## 270,988.80$ 220,748.96$   624,031.06$   19.15$    624,031.06$   

0000016910 PHILLIPS CREEK DR PHILLIPS RD EASTBRIAR DR [W] 1329.4 0.50 32127 3,570 589 91,294$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $  14,492.85 29,687.06$   24,183.24$     68,363.15$     19.15$     )

0000016920 PHILLIPS CREEK DR EASTBRIAR DR [W] EASTBRIAR DR [E] 1103.9 0.42 31462 3,496 577 89,405$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $  14,192.86 29,072.57$   23,682.67$     66,948.09$     19.15$     )

0000016930 LAUREL POST DR PHILLIPS RD LAUREL POST CT 1579.2 0.60 38167 4,241 700 108,458$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  17,217.56 35,268.34$   28,729.79$     81,215.69$     19.15$     )

0000016940 LAUREL POST DR LAUREL POST CT EASTBRIAR DR 257.1 0.10 6102 678 112 17,340$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    2,752.68 5,638.57$      4,593.21$       12,984.47$     19.15$     )

0000016950 LAUREL POST CT LAUREL POST DR END 667.1 0.25 19130 2,126 351 54,361$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    8,629.76 17,677.14$   14,399.89$     40,706.79$     19.15$     )

0000016960 EASTBRIAR DR END BIG BRANCH CT 204 0.08 7555 839 139 21,469$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,408.14 6,981.22$      5,686.94$       16,076.31$     19.15$     )

0000016970 EASTBRIAR DR BIG BRANCH CT LONGWOOD CT 334.3 0.13 7508 834 138 21,335$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,386.94 6,937.79$      5,651.56$       15,976.30$     19.15$     )

0000016980 EASTBRIAR DR LONGWOOD CT LAUREL POST DR 274.6 0.10 5919 658 109 16,820$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    2,670.13 5,469.47$      4,455.46$       12,595.06$     19.15$     )

0000016990 EASTBRIAR DR LAUREL POST DR PHILLIPS CREEK DR [E] 1342 0.51 88724 9,858 1,627 252,124$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  40,024.38 81,985.71$   66,786.01$     188,796.10$   19.15$     )

0000017000 EASTBRIAR DR PHILLIPS CREEK DR [E] PHILLIPS CREEK DR [W] 1411.9 0.53 32209 3,579 590 91,527$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $  14,529.84 29,762.83$   24,244.97$     68,537.64$     19.15$     )

0000017010 BIG BRANCH CT EASTBRIAR DR END 279.5 0.11 10122 1,125 186 28,763$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    4,566.15 9,353.27$      7,619.22$       21,538.64$     19.15$     )

0000017020 LONGWOOD CT EASTBRIAR DR END 485 0.18 14236 1,582 261 40,454$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    6,422.02 13,154.82$   10,715.99$     30,292.83$     19.15$     )

S1570 S1570 MALL PKWY 6200.1 2.35 3E+05 31,017 5,118 793,265$    26$             Local 33.4 $893,296 2022 28.80$           ########## 257,954.11$ 210,130.82$   594,014.86$   19.15$    594,014.86$   

0000001630 MALL PKWY TURNER HILL RD STONECREST BLVD 805.7 0.61 70614 7,846 1,295 200,661$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  31,854.76 65,251.10$   53,153.90$     150,259.77$   19.15$     )

0000001640 MALL PKWY STONECREST BLVD HONEYCREEK CT 904.6 0.69 54958 6,106 1,008 156,172$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  24,792.16 50,784.12$   41,369.02$     116,945.31$   19.15$     )

0000001650 MALL PKWY HONEYCREEK CT STONECREST PKWY E 1058.8 0.80 65617 7,291 1,203 186,462$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  29,600.56 60,633.61$   49,392.47$     139,626.63$   19.15$     )

0000001660 MALL PKWY STONECREST PKWY E DEER CREEK CIR 2399.7 0.91 52580 5,842 964 149,415$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  23,719.42 48,586.72$   39,579.01$     111,885.16$   19.15$     )

0000001670 MALL PKWY DEER CREEK CIR HAYNES PARK DR 285.3 0.11 12648 1,405 232 35,941$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    5,705.65 11,687.43$   9,520.64$       26,913.72$     19.15$     )

0000001680 MALL PKWY HAYNES PARK DR CITY LIMIT 104.4 0.04 2756 306 51 7,832$        26$             Local 2022 -$                $    1,243.26 2,546.69$      2,074.55$       5,864.50$       19.15$     )

0000012940 HONEYCREEK CT MALL PKWY END 641.6 0.24 19982 2,220 366 56,782$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    9,014.10 18,464.43$   15,041.23$     42,519.76$     19.15$     )

S1330 S1330 FAIRINGTON DR 5585 2.12 1E+05 14,863 2,452 380,121$    26$             Local 33.9 $428,054 2022 28.80$            $  60,343.78 123,607.84$ 100,691.62$   284,643.25$   19.15$    284,643.25$   

0000007750 TRENT WALK DR END TRENT JONES WAY 207.9 0.08 3908 434 72 11,105$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    1,762.94 3,611.20$      2,941.70$       8,315.85$       19.15$     )

0000007760 TRENT WALK DR TRENT JONES WAY DOGWOOD MNR 248.4 0.09 6837 760 125 19,428$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,084.25 6,317.75$      5,146.48$       14,548.48$     19.15$     )

0000007770 TRENT WALK DR DOGWOOD MNR SHERWOOD TRCE 242.7 0.09 5828 648 107 16,561$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    2,629.08 5,385.38$      4,386.96$       12,401.42$     19.15$     )

0000007780 TRENT WALK DR SHERWOOD TRCE FAIRINGTON DR 727.2 0.28 16305 1,812 299 46,333$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    7,355.37 15,066.69$   12,273.41$     34,695.46$     19.15$     )

0000007790 TRENT JONES WAY TRENT WALK DR SHERWOOD TRCE 484.5 0.18 10726 1,192 197 30,480$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    4,838.62 9,911.40$      8,073.88$       22,823.89$     19.15$     )

0000007800 TRENT JONES WAY SHERWOOD TRCE FAIRINGTON DR 196.8 0.07 5318 591 97 15,112$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    2,399.01 4,914.12$      4,003.07$       11,316.19$     19.15$     )

0000007810 FAIRINGTON DR TRENT JONES WAY TRENT WALK DR 1069.1 0.40 21803 2,423 400 61,957$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    9,835.58 20,147.13$   16,411.97$     46,394.68$     19.15$     )

0000007820 FAIRINGTON DR TRENT WALK DR PARC LORRAINE 244.5 0.09 7608 845 139 21,619$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,432.05 7,030.20$      5,726.84$       16,189.09$     19.15$     )

0000007830 FAIRINGTON DR PARC LORRAINE TIBURON DR 301.6 0.11 8286 921 152 23,546$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,737.91 7,656.71$      6,237.19$       17,631.81$     19.15$     )

0000007840 FAIRINGTON DR TIBURON DR CHUPP WAY 265.3 0.10 8072 897 148 22,938$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,641.37 7,458.96$      6,076.11$       17,176.44$     19.15$     )

0000007850 SHERWOOD TRCE TRENT WALK DR DOGWOOD MNR 755.7 0.29 15904 1,767 292 45,194$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    7,174.47 14,696.14$   11,971.56$     33,842.17$     19.15$     )

0000007860 SHERWOOD TRCE DOGWOOD MNR TRENT JONES WAY 334.3 0.13 10138 1,126 186 28,809$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    4,573.36 9,368.05$      7,631.27$       21,572.68$     19.15$     )

0000007870 DOGWOOD MNR TRENT WALK DR SHERWOOD TRCE 507 0.19 13034 1,448 239 37,038$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    5,879.78 12,044.11$   9,811.20$       27,735.09$     19.15$     )

S940 S940 GOLDENCHAIN DR 6638 2.51 2E+05 18,656 3,078 477,122$    26$             Local 33.9 $537,286 2022 28.80$            $  75,742.46 155,150.40$ 126,386.36$   357,279.23$   19.15$    357,279.23$   

0000004310 CORKTREE TRL CLEVELAND RD GOLDENCHAIN DR 266.8 0.10 7238 804 133 20,568$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,265.14 6,688.30$      5,448.32$       15,401.76$     19.15$     )

0000004320 CORKTREE TRL GOLDENCHAIN DR WILDGINGER RUN 1299.9 0.49 31982 3,554 586 90,882$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $  14,427.44 29,553.07$   24,074.10$     68,054.60$     19.15$     )

0000004330 GOLDENCHAIN DR CORKTREE TRL WINTERCREEPER DR 350.3 0.13 8413 935 154 23,907$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,795.20 7,774.06$      6,332.79$       17,902.05$     19.15$     )

0000004340 GOLDENCHAIN DR WINTERCREEPER DR WILDGINGER RUN 1547 0.59 38031 4,226 697 108,071$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  17,156.21 35,142.67$   28,627.41$     80,926.29$     19.15$     )

0000004350 WINTERCREEPER DR GOLDENCHAIN DR WILDGINGER RUN 1304.4 0.49 34891 3,877 640 99,149$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $  15,739.72 32,241.14$   26,263.81$     74,244.68$     19.15$     )

0000004360 WILDGINGER RUN WEST END GOLDENCHAIN DR 187.4 0.07 4687 521 86 13,319$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    2,114.36 4,331.04$      3,528.09$       9,973.48$       19.15$     )

0000004370 WILDGINGER RUN GOLDENCHAIN DR WINTERCREEPER DR 450.4 0.17 11150 1,239 204 31,685$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    5,029.89 10,303.19$   8,393.04$       23,726.12$     19.15$     )

0000004380 WILDGINGER RUN WINTERCREEPER DR CORKTREE TRL 348.8 0.13 8032 892 147 22,824$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    3,623.32 7,422.00$      6,046.00$       17,091.32$     19.15$     )

0000004390 WILDGINGER RUN CORKTREE TRL CLEVELAND RD 883 0.33 23478 2,609 430 66,717$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $  10,591.19 21,694.92$   17,672.80$     49,958.91$     19.15$     )

S630 S630 DIVIDEND DR 5404.8 2.05 2E+05 17,159 2,831 438,844$    26$             Local 34.4 $494,182 28.80$            $  69,665.99 142,703.40$ 116,246.97$   328,616.37$   19.15$     )

0000013950 DIVIDEND DR PARK CENTRAL BLVD MELLON CT 1440.3 0.55 35456 3,940 650 100,754$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  15,994.60 32,763.23$   26,689.11$     75,446.94$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

5 3:28 PM

138

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000013960 DIVIDEND DR MELLON CT PANOLA RD 964.9 0.37 27706 3,078 508 78,731$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $  12,498.48 25,601.82$   20,855.38$     58,955.69$     19.15$     )

0000013970 MORSE DR PARK CENTRAL BLVD MELLON CT 1363.2 0.52 38736 4,304 710 110,075$    26$             Local 2022 -$                $  17,474.24 35,794.13$   29,158.09$     82,426.46$     19.15$     )

0000013980 MELLON CT DIVIDEND DR MORSE DR 658 0.25 18070 2,008 331 51,349$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    8,151.58 16,697.64$   13,601.99$     38,451.21$     19.15$     )

0000013990 MELLON CT MORSE DR END 978.4 0.37 34464 3,829 632 97,935$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $  15,547.09 31,846.57$   25,942.39$     73,336.06$     19.15$     )

S2010 S2010 WADE RD 1207.4 0.46 13518 1,502 248 38,414$      26$             Local 34.4 $43,258 2022 28.80$            $    6,098.12 12,491.35$   10,175.52$     28,765.00$     19.15$    28,765.00$     

0000010810 WADE RD ROCKLAND RD END 1207.4 0.46 13518 1,502 248 38,414$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $    6,098.12 12,491.35$   10,175.52$     28,765.00$     19.15$     )

S730 S730 EASTERLY PL 1089 0.41 33361 3,707 612 94,801$      26$             Local 34.9 $106,755 2022 28.80$            $  15,049.52 30,827.34$   25,112.12$     70,988.98$     19.15$    70,988.98$     

0000013830 EASTERLY PL PANOLA INDUSTRIAL BLVD SNAPFINGER WOODS DR 1089 0.41 33361 3,707 612 94,801$      26$             Local 2022 -$                $  15,049.52 30,827.34$   25,112.12$     70,988.98$     19.15$     )

S390 S390 PHILLIPS RD COVINGTON HWY MARBUT RD 3971 1.50 1E+05 15,025 2,479 384,264$    26$             Collector 35.1 $432,720 28.80$            $  61,001.50 124,955.11$ 101,789.12$   287,745.73$   19.15$     )

0000015740 PHILLIPS RD COVINGTON HWY WELLINGTON WALK WAY 462 0.26 15800 1,756 290 44,898$      26$             Collector 2020 -$                $    7,127.56 14,600.04$   11,893.27$     33,620.87$     19.15$     )

0000015750 PHILLIPS RD WELLINGTON WALK WAY KENNONBRIAR CT 249.6 0.24 15176 1,686 278 43,125$      26$             Collector 2020 -$                $    6,846.06 14,023.43$   11,423.57$     32,293.06$     19.15$     )

0000015760 PHILLIPS RD KENNONBRIAR CT CREEKFORD DR 480 0.18 12768 1,419 234 36,282$      26$             Collector 2020 -$                $    5,759.79 11,798.31$   9,610.97$       27,169.07$     19.15$     )

0000015770 PHILLIPS RD CREEKFORD DR CREEKFORD LN 262.1 0.10 6972 775 128 19,812$      26$             Collector 2020 -$                $    3,145.15 6,442.50$      5,248.10$       14,835.74$     19.15$     )

0000015780 PHILLIPS RD CREEKFORD LN STONEBRIDGE CREEK LN 492.8 0.19 14045 1,561 257 39,911$      26$             Collector 2020 -$                $    6,335.86 12,978.33$   10,572.22$     29,886.40$     19.15$     )

0000015790 PHILLIPS RD STONEBRIDGE CREEK LN MARBUT FARMS LN 956.3 0.36 27255 3,028 500 77,450$      26$             Collector 2020 -$                $  12,295.03 25,185.07$   20,515.90$     57,996.01$     19.15$     )

0000015800 PHILLIPS RD MARBUT FARMS LN MARBUT FARMS TRL 251 0.14 10015 1,113 184 28,459$      26$             Collector 2020 -$                $    4,517.88 9,254.39$      7,538.68$       21,310.95$     19.15$     )

0000015810 PHILLIPS RD MARBUT FARMS TRL MARBUT FARMS RD 251 0.19 13830 1,537 254 39,300$      26$             Collector 2020 -$                $    6,238.87 12,779.66$   10,410.38$     29,428.90$     19.15$     )

0000015820 PHILLIPS RD MARBUT FARMS RD MARBUT RD 566.2 0.32 19364 2,152 355 55,026$      26$             Collector 2020 -$                $    8,735.32 17,893.37$   14,576.04$     41,204.72$     19.15$     )

S1400 S1400 FAIRINGTON RD PANOLA RD HILLANDALE DR 8861.6 3.36 3E+05 34,974 5,771 894,460$    26$             Collector 35.2 ######## 28.80$           ########## 290,860.57$ 236,936.61$   669,791.62$   19.15$     )

0000006960 FAIRINGTON RD PANOLA RD FAIRINGTON PKWY SB 2208.9 2.09 1E+05 12,059 1,990 308,403$    26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $  48,958.64 100,286.58$ 81,694.00$     230,939.22$   19.15$     )

0000006970 FAIRINGTON RD FAIRINGTON PKWY SB FAIRINGTON PKWY NB 149 0.08 5945 661 109 16,894$      26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $    2,681.86 5,493.50$      4,475.03$       12,650.39$     19.15$     )

0000006980 FAIRINGTON RD FAIRINGTON PKWY NB WALDEN BROOK DR 1591.5 0.60 42334 4,704 776 120,299$    26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $  19,097.34 39,118.87$   31,866.45$     90,082.66$     19.15$     )

0000006990 FAIRINGTON RD WALDEN BROOK DR TIBURON DR 2730 1.03 72618 8,069 1,331 206,356$    26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $  32,758.79 67,102.90$   54,662.39$     154,524.08$   19.15$     )

0000007000 FAIRINGTON RD TIBURON DR CHUPP WAY 1020 0.77 48450 5,383 888 137,679$    26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $  21,856.33 44,770.38$   36,470.20$     103,096.92$   19.15$     )

0000007010 FAIRINGTON RD CHUPP WAY ATHENA LN 306.9 0.17 11662 1,296 214 33,140$      26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $    5,260.86 10,776.31$   8,778.44$       24,815.61$     19.15$     )

0000007020 FAIRINGTON RD ATHENA LN START OF DIVIDED 448.4 0.25 13631 1,515 250 38,735$      26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $    6,149.10 12,595.77$   10,260.58$     29,005.45$     19.15$     )

0000007030 FAIRINGTON RD START OF DIVIDED HILLANDALE DR 406.9 0.15 11597 1,289 213 32,955$      26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $    5,231.54 10,716.25$   8,729.51$       24,677.29$     19.15$     )

S1240 S1240 MCCROSSIN CIR 1508.7 0.57 46960 5,218 861 133,445$    26$             Local 35.3 $117,400 2022 22.50$            $  21,184.18 43,393.54$   35,348.62$     99,926.34$     19.15$    99,926.34$     

S1240 0000006380 PEARCE CT SOUTH END HALSTED WAY 338.8 0.13 11897 1,322 218 33,807$      26$             Local -$                $    5,366.87 10,993.46$   8,955.33$       25,315.67$     19.15$     )

S1240 0000006390 PEARCE CT HALSTED WAY MCCROSSIN CIR 289.6 0.11 7328 814 134 20,824$      26$             Local -$                $    3,305.74 6,771.46$      5,516.07$       15,593.28$     19.15$     )

S1240 0000006400 PEARCE CT MCCROSSIN CIR ROCK SPRINGS RD 187.6 0.07 4899 544 90 13,921$      26$             Local -$                $    2,209.99 4,526.94$      3,687.67$       10,424.60$     19.15$     )

S1240 0000006440 HALSTED WAY END PEARCE CT 335.6 0.13 11262 1,251 206 32,003$      26$             Local -$                $    5,080.41 10,406.69$   8,477.35$       23,964.45$     19.15$     )

S1240 0000006450 MCCROSSIN CIR END PEARCE CT 357.1 0.14 11574 1,286 212 32,889$      26$             Local -$                $    5,221.16 10,694.99$   8,712.20$       24,628.35$     19.15$     )

S590 S590 DEKALB MEDICAL PKWY HILLANDALE DR COVINGTON HWY 5090.6 3.86 2E+05 22,405 3,697 573,019$    26$             Collector 35.4 $645,277 2021 28.80$            $  90,966.10 186,334.43$ 151,789.04$   429,089.58$   19.15$     )

0000014800 DEKALB MEDICAL PKWY HILLANDALE DR SNAPFINGER WOODS DR 1508.8 1.14 55690 6,188 1,021 158,252$    26$             Collector 2021 -$                $  25,122.38 51,460.53$   41,920.03$     118,502.94$   19.15$     )

0000014810 DEKALB MEDICAL PKWY SNAPFINGER WOODS DR HERITAGE PARK TRL 1449.5 1.10 65658 7,295 1,204 186,578$    26$             Collector 2021 -$                $  29,619.05 60,671.49$   49,423.33$     139,713.88$   19.15$     )

0000014820 DEKALB MEDICAL PKWY HERITAGE PARK TRL HILLVALE WAY 664.9 0.38 20213 2,246 371 57,439$      26$             Collector 2021 -$                $    9,118.31 18,677.89$   15,215.11$     43,011.31$     19.15$     )

0000014830 DEKALB MEDICAL PKWY HILLVALE WAY HILLVALE RD 726.8 0.41 22095 2,455 405 62,787$      26$             Collector 2021 -$                $    9,967.30 20,416.96$   16,631.77$     47,016.02$     19.15$     )

0000014840 DEKALB MEDICAL PKWY HILLVALE RD COVINGTON HWY 740.6 0.56 37993 4,221 697 107,963$    26$             Collector 2021 -$                $  17,139.06 35,107.56$   28,598.81$     80,845.43$     19.15$     )

S1660 S1660 FALK TRCE 1692.6 0.64 46569 5,174 854 132,334$    26$             Local 35.6 $116,422 2022 22.50$            $  21,007.79 43,032.24$   35,054.30$     99,094.33$     19.15$    99,094.33$     

0000011770 FALK TRCE CITY LIMIT FALLS CREEK CT 913.5 0.35 23990 2,666 440 68,172$      26$             Local -$                $  10,822.16 22,168.04$   18,058.21$     51,048.40$     19.15$     )

0000011780 FALK TRCE FALLS CREEK CT END 134.7 0.05 6484 720 119 18,425$      26$             Local -$                $    2,925.00 5,991.56$      4,880.76$       13,797.33$     19.15$     )

0000011790 FALLS CREEK CT FALK TRCE END 644.4 0.24 16095 1,788 295 45,737$      26$             Local -$                $    7,260.63 14,872.64$   12,115.33$     34,248.60$     19.15$     )

S1510 S1510 STONECREST SQ 1960.5 0.74 1E+05 14,113 2,329 360,929$    26$             Local 35.6 $317,532 2022 22.50$            $  57,296.98 117,366.79$ 95,607.62$     270,271.39$   19.15$    270,271.39$   

0000012840 STONECREST SQ MALL PKWY MALL RING RD 1960.5 0.74 1E+05 14,113 2,329 360,929$    26$             Local -$                $  57,296.98 117,366.79$ 95,607.62$     270,271.39$   19.15$     )

S2220 S2220 MINERS CREEK RD 6453.5 2.44 1E+05 11,292 1,863 288,793$    26$             Local 35.7 $401,415 2022 35.55$            $  45,845.52 93,909.69$   76,499.35$     216,254.56$   19.15$    216,254.56$   

0000000960 MINERS CREEK RD PANOLA RD LOST DUTCHMAN DR 1265.9 0.48 29674 3,297 544 84,324$      26$             Local -$                $  13,386.27 27,420.36$   22,336.77$     63,143.40$     19.15$     )

0000000970 MINERS CREEK RD LOST DUTCHMAN DR MINERS CREEK WAY 776.1 0.29 16894 1,877 310 48,007$      26$             Local -$                $    7,621.07 15,610.96$   12,716.77$     35,948.80$     19.15$     )

0000000980 MINERS CREEK RD MINERS CREEK WAY LOST DUTCHMAN DR 1835.2 0.70 44494 4,944 816 126,437$    26$             Local -$                $  20,071.74 41,114.83$   33,492.36$     94,678.93$     19.15$     )

0000000990 MINERS CREEK WAY MINERS CREEK RD END 468.8 0.18 10566 1,174 194 30,025$      26$             Local -$                $    4,766.44 9,763.55$      7,953.44$       22,483.43$     19.15$     )

0000001000 LOST DUTCHMAN DR WEST END MINERS CREEK RD 514 0.19 17464 1,940 320 49,627$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    7,878.20 16,137.67$   13,145.83$     37,161.70$     19.15$     )

0000001010 LOST DUTCHMAN DR MINERS CREEK RD MINERS CREEK RD 1442.8 0.55 37438 4,160 686 106,386$    26$             Local 2019 -$                $  16,888.70 34,594.71$   28,181.04$     79,664.44$     19.15$     )

0000001020 LOST DUTCHMAN DR MINERS CREEK RD EAST END 150.7 0.06 4036 448 74 11,469$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    1,820.68 3,729.48$      3,038.05$       8,588.22$       19.15$     )

S160 S160 PHILLIPS CT 1902 0.72 46273 5,141 848 131,492$    26$             Local 36 $115,682 2022 22.50$            $  20,874.26 42,758.72$   34,831.49$     98,464.47$     19.15$    98,464.47$     

0000017040 PHILLIPS CT PHILLIPS RD END 1902 0.72 46273 5,141 848 131,492$    26$             Local -$                $  20,874.26 42,758.72$   34,831.49$     98,464.47$     19.15$     )

S2290 S2290 MALL PKWY WOODROW DR KLONDIKE RD 3109.3 2.94 2E+05 21,665 3,575 554,085$    26$             Minor Arterial 36.4 $623,955 28.80$            $  87,960.35 180,177.46$ 146,773.54$   414,911.36$   19.15$     )

0000001580 MALL PKWY WOODROW DR KLONDIKE RD 3109.3 2.94 2E+05 21,665 3,575 554,085$    26$             Minor Arterial 2020 -$                $  87,960.35 180,177.46$ 146,773.54$   414,911.36$   19.15$     )

S2370 S2370 PANOLA RD SNAPFINGER RD BROWNS MILL RD 7493.3 2.84 2E+05 19,930 3,288 509,715$    26$             Major Arterial 36.6 $573,990 28.80$            $  80,916.70 165,749.29$ 135,020.28$   381,686.28$   19.15$     )

0000000020 PANOLA RD SNAPFINGER RD MINERS CREEK CIR 1624.5 0.92 33952 3,772 622 96,480$      26$             Major Arterial 2020 -$                $  15,316.12 31,373.46$   25,556.99$     72,246.57$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

6 3:28 PM

139

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000000030 PANOLA RD MINERS CREEK CIR MINERS CREEK RD 513.8 0.29 16596 1,844 304 47,160$      26$             Major Arterial 2020 -$                $    7,486.64 15,335.59$   12,492.45$     35,314.68$     19.15$     )

0000000040 PANOLA RD MINERS CREEK RD MINERS CREEK CIR 353.7 0.20 11425 1,269 209 32,466$      26$             Major Arterial 2020 -$                $    5,153.94 10,557.31$   8,600.04$       24,311.30$     19.15$     )

0000000050 PANOLA RD MINERS CREEK CIR SANDY LAKE WAY 1129.1 0.64 36470 4,052 669 103,636$    26$             Major Arterial 2020 -$                $  16,452.02 33,700.23$   27,452.39$     77,604.63$     19.15$     )

0000000060 PANOLA RD SANDY LAKE WAY TWIN LAKES DR 497.5 0.19 10398 1,155 191 29,548$      26$             Major Arterial 2020 -$                $    4,690.65 9,608.31$      7,826.98$       22,125.94$     19.15$     )

0000000070 PANOLA RD TWIN LAKES DR BROWNS MILL RD 3374.7 1.28 70531 7,837 1,293 200,426$    26$             Major Arterial 2020 -$                $  31,817.32 65,174.41$   53,091.43$     150,083.15$   19.15$     )

S850 S850 THOMPSON MILL RD CITY LIMIT PANOLA RD 7663.6 2.90 2E+05 22,957 3,788 587,120$    26$             Collector 36.7 $661,155 28.80$            $  93,204.52 190,919.58$ 155,524.13$   439,648.24$   19.15$     )

0000005080 THOMPSON MILL RD CITY LIMIT ROCK SPRINGS RD 1275.4 0.48 29079 3,231 533 82,633$      26$             Collector 2019 -$                $  13,117.86 26,870.55$   21,888.89$     61,877.30$     19.15$     )

0000005090 THOMPSON MILL RD ROCK SPRINGS RD CLEETHORPES DR 449.9 0.17 10258 1,140 188 29,150$      26$             Collector 2019 -$                $    4,627.50 9,478.94$      7,721.60$       21,828.03$     19.15$     )

0000005100 THOMPSON MILL RD CLEETHORPES DR ROLLING MEADOW CT 211 0.08 4811 535 88 13,671$      26$             Collector 2019 -$                $    2,170.30 4,445.62$      3,621.43$       10,237.34$     19.15$     )

0000005110 THOMPSON MILL RD ROLLING MEADOW CT INVERMERE WOODS CT 387.8 0.22 11789 1,310 216 33,500$      26$             Collector 2019 -$                $    5,318.15 10,893.66$   8,874.04$       25,085.85$     19.15$     )

0000005120 THOMPSON MILL RD INVERMERE WOODS CT STRATFORD MILL RD [W] 583.4 0.33 17735 1,971 325 50,397$      26$             Collector 2019 -$                $    8,000.46 16,388.09$   13,349.82$     37,738.37$     19.15$     )

0000005130 THOMPSON MILL RD STRATFORD MILL RD [W] ROSEHEATH LN 340.7 0.19 10357 1,151 190 29,431$      26$             Collector 2019 -$                $    4,672.16 9,570.42$      7,796.12$       22,038.69$     19.15$     )

0000005140 THOMPSON MILL RD ROSEHEATH LN STRATFORD MILL RD [E] 71.1 0.04 2161 240 40 6,141$        26$             Collector 2019 -$                $       974.85 1,996.88$      1,626.67$       4,598.40$       19.15$     )

0000005150 THOMPSON MILL RD STRATFORD MILL RD [E] MILLER RD 862.8 0.33 19672 2,186 361 55,901$      26$             Collector 2019 -$                $    8,874.26 18,177.98$   14,807.88$     41,860.11$     19.15$     )

0000005160 THOMPSON MILL RD MILLER RD MILLERS RUN 541.8 0.21 13382 1,487 245 38,027$      26$             Collector 2019 -$                $    6,036.77 12,365.68$   10,073.15$     28,475.60$     19.15$     )

0000005170 THOMPSON MILL RD MILLERS RUN WINDING GROVE DR 576.2 0.22 14232 1,581 261 40,443$      26$             Collector 2019 -$                $    6,420.21 13,151.13$   10,712.98$     30,284.32$     19.15$     )

0000005180 THOMPSON MILL RD WINDING GROVE DR HAVENWOOD WAY 587.9 0.22 14521 1,613 266 41,264$      26$             Collector 2019 -$                $    6,550.58 13,418.18$   10,930.52$     30,899.28$     19.15$     )

0000005190 THOMPSON MILL RD HAVENWOOD WAY GLENCROFT ENTRY 666.1 0.25 16453 1,828 302 46,754$      26$             Collector 2019 -$                $    7,422.13 15,203.45$   12,384.81$     35,010.39$     19.15$     )

0000005200 THOMPSON MILL RD GLENCROFT ENTRY PANOLA RD 1109.5 0.63 42161 4,685 773 119,808$    26$             Collector 2019 -$                $  19,019.30 38,959.01$   31,736.22$     89,714.53$     19.15$     )

S1250 S1250 ABERDEEN WAY 5323.3 2.02 2E+05 17,847 2,945 456,431$    26$             Local 36.8 $401,552 22.50$            $  72,457.92 148,422.37$ 120,905.67$   341,785.96$   19.15$     )

0000006410 REGENCY PARK DR ROCK SPRINGS RD ALPINE CT 373.7 0.14 9118 1,013 167 25,910$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    4,113.23 8,425.52$      6,863.47$       19,402.22$     19.15$     )

0000006420 REGENCY PARK DR ALPINE CT HARDIN CT 252.1 0.10 6448 716 118 18,323$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    2,908.76 5,958.30$      4,853.66$       13,720.72$     19.15$     )

0000006430 REGENCY PARK DR HARDIN CT ABERDEEN WAY 492.5 0.19 12469 1,385 229 35,433$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    5,624.90 11,522.02$   9,385.90$       26,532.83$     19.15$     )

0000006460 ALPINE CT END REGENCY PARK DR 444.6 0.17 15627 1,736 286 44,407$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    7,049.51 14,440.18$   11,763.05$     33,252.75$     19.15$     )

0000006470 HARDIN CT REGENCY PARK DR END 310.2 0.12 12261 1,362 225 34,842$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    5,531.07 11,329.82$   9,229.33$       26,090.22$     19.15$     )

0000006480 ABERDEEN WAY WEST END ABERDEEN CV 658.7 0.25 20123 2,236 369 57,183$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    9,077.71 18,594.73$   15,147.36$     42,819.80$     19.15$     )

0000006490 ABERDEEN WAY ABERDEEN CV REGENCY FOREST CT 893.6 0.34 23920 2,658 439 67,973$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $  10,790.58 22,103.36$   18,005.51$     50,899.45$     19.15$     )

0000006500 ABERDEEN WAY REGENCY FOREST CT REGENCY MANOR CT 331 0.13 8256 917 151 23,461$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    3,724.37 7,628.98$      6,214.61$       17,567.97$     19.15$     )

0000006510 ABERDEEN WAY REGENCY MANOR CT REGENCY PARK DR 337.1 0.13 7238 804 133 20,568$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    3,265.14 6,688.30$      5,448.32$       15,401.76$     19.15$     )

0000006520 ABERDEEN WAY REGENCY PARK DR SOUTH END 183.9 0.07 8431 937 155 23,958$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    3,803.32 7,790.69$      6,346.34$       17,940.35$     19.15$     )

0000006530 ABERDEEN CV ABERDEEN WAY END 246.2 0.09 10420 1,158 191 29,610$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    4,700.58 9,628.64$      7,843.54$       22,172.75$     19.15$     )

0000006540 REGENCY FOREST CT END ABERDEEN WAY 591.3 0.22 18093 2,010 332 51,414$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    8,161.95 16,718.90$   13,619.30$     38,500.16$     19.15$     )

0000006550 REGENCY MANOR CT END ABERDEEN WAY 208.4 0.08 8217 913 151 23,350$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    3,706.78 7,592.95$      6,185.26$       17,484.98$     19.15$     )

S1010 S1010 EASTMONT LN 22081 8.36 6E+05 67,485 11,135 1,725,929$ 26$             Local 37.5 ######## 2022 22.75$           ########## 561,237.65$ 457,187.26$   ########### 19.15$    ###########

0000003650 FRAMINGHAM DR BROWNS MILL RD E FRAMINGHAM CT 596.9 0.23 17177 1,909 315 48,811$      26$             Local -$                $    7,748.74 15,872.46$   12,929.80$     36,551.00$     19.15$     )

0000003660 FRAMINGHAM DR E FRAMINGHAM CT PORTSMOUTH CIR 940.5 0.36 23169 2,574 425 65,839$      26$             Local -$                $  10,451.79 21,409.39$   17,440.21$     49,301.39$     19.15$     )

0000003670 FRAMINGHAM DR PORTSMOUTH CIR ARDSLEY DR 523.8 0.20 12563 1,396 230 35,700$      26$             Local -$                $    5,667.31 11,608.88$   9,456.66$       26,732.85$     19.15$     )

0000003680 W FRAMINGHAM CT WEST END FRAMINGHAM DR 175.6 0.07 6997 777 128 19,883$      26$             Local -$                $    3,156.42 6,465.60$      5,266.91$       14,888.94$     19.15$     )

0000003690 E FRAMINGHAM CT FRAMINGHAM DR EAST END 165.5 0.06 8693 966 159 24,703$      26$             Local -$                $    3,921.51 8,032.80$      6,543.56$       18,497.86$     19.15$     )

0000003700 ARDSLEY DR END EARLHAN CT 241.6 0.09 8605 956 158 24,453$      26$             Local -$                $    3,881.81 7,951.48$      6,477.32$       18,310.61$     19.15$     )

0000003710 ARDSLEY DR EARLHAN CT FRAMINGHAM DR 1160.1 0.44 29734 3,304 545 84,494$      26$             Local -$                $  13,413.34 27,475.80$   22,381.94$     63,271.08$     19.15$     )

0000003720 ARDSLEY DR FRAMINGHAM DR PORTSMOUTH CIR 388.2 0.15 10220 1,136 187 29,042$      26$             Local -$                $    4,610.36 9,443.83$      7,692.99$       21,747.17$     19.15$     )

0000003730 EARLHAN CT END ARDSLEY DR 276.7 0.10 10415 1,157 191 29,596$      26$             Local -$                $    4,698.32 9,624.02$      7,839.78$       22,162.11$     19.15$     )

0000003740 PORTSMOUTH CIR FRAMINGHAM DR S PORTSMOUTH CIR 523 0.20 13839 1,538 254 39,326$      26$             Local -$                $    6,242.93 12,787.97$   10,417.15$     29,448.05$     19.15$     )

0000003750 PORTSMOUTH CIR S PORTSMOUTH CIR GRACEHILL RD 643.9 0.24 16845 1,872 309 47,868$      26$             Local -$                $    7,598.97 15,565.68$   12,679.89$     35,844.53$     19.15$     )

0000003760 PORTSMOUTH CIR GRACEHILL RD PORTSMOUTH CT 309.1 0.12 7892 877 145 22,426$      26$             Local -$                $    3,560.17 7,292.63$      5,940.62$       16,793.41$     19.15$     )

0000003770 PORTSMOUTH CIR PORTSMOUTH CT ARDSLEY DR 333.7 0.13 8785 976 161 24,964$      26$             Local -$                $    3,963.01 8,117.81$      6,612.81$       18,693.63$     19.15$     )

0000003780 PORTSMOUTH CIR ARDSLEY DR GREAT MEADOWS RD 507.3 0.19 13188 1,465 242 37,476$      26$             Local -$                $    5,949.25 12,186.42$   9,927.12$       28,062.79$     19.15$     )

0000003790 PORTSMOUTH CT END PORTSMOUTH CIR 344.4 0.13 12362 1,374 227 35,129$      26$             Local -$                $    5,576.64 11,423.15$   9,305.36$       26,305.14$     19.15$     )

0000003800 S PORTSMOUTH CIR PORTSMOUTH CIR END 119 0.05 6829 759 125 19,406$      26$             Local 2019 -$               -$         )

0000003810 GRACEHILL RD PORTSMOUTH CIR DEER TRCE 452.8 0.17 10830 1,203 199 30,775$      26$             Local -$                $    4,885.53 10,007.50$   8,152.16$       23,045.19$     19.15$     )

0000003820 GRACEHILL RD DEER TRCE OAK RUN DR 360.6 0.14 9342 1,038 171 26,547$      26$             Local -$                $    4,214.28 8,632.51$      7,032.09$       19,878.87$     19.15$     )

0000003830 GRACEHILL RD OAK RUN DR VALLEY OAKS RD 299 0.11 8091 899 148 22,992$      26$             Local -$                $    3,649.94 7,476.52$      6,090.41$       17,216.87$     19.15$     )

0000003840 DEER TRCE GRACEHILL RD GREAT MEADOWS RD 1173.3 0.44 27147 3,016 498 77,143$      26$             Local -$                $  12,246.31 25,085.28$   20,434.60$     57,766.19$     19.15$     )

0000003850 OAK RUN DR GRACEHILL RD GREAT MEADOWS RD 968.7 0.37 23748 2,639 435 67,484$      26$             Local -$                $  10,712.99 21,944.42$   17,876.04$     50,533.45$     19.15$     )

0000003860 VALLEY OAKS RD SALEM RD GRACEHILL RD 194 0.07 4962 551 91 14,100$      26$             Local -$                $    2,238.41 4,585.15$      3,735.09$       10,558.66$     19.15$     )

0000003870 VALLEY OAKS RD GRACEHILL RD ANGELA LN 375.3 0.14 10194 1,133 187 28,968$      26$             Local -$                $    4,598.63 9,419.80$      7,673.42$       21,691.85$     19.15$     )

0000003880 VALLEY OAKS RD ANGELA LN GREAT MEADOWS RD 532.9 0.20 12253 1,361 225 34,819$      26$             Local -$                $    5,527.46 11,322.43$   9,223.31$       26,073.20$     19.15$     )

0000003890 ANGELA LN VALLEY OAKS RD VALLEY CHASE CT 427 0.16 8584 954 157 24,393$      26$             Local -$                $    3,872.34 7,932.07$      6,461.51$       18,265.92$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

7 3:28 PM

140

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000003900 VALLEY CHASE CT END ANGELA LN 202.3 0.08 8227 914 151 23,378$      26$             Local -$                $    3,711.29 7,602.19$      6,192.78$       17,506.26$     19.15$     )

0000003910 VALLEY CHASE CT ANGELA LN GREAT MEADOWS RD 413.9 0.16 10955 1,217 201 31,130$      26$             Local -$                $    4,941.92 10,123.00$   8,246.25$       23,311.18$     19.15$     )

0000003920 EASTMONT LN ENDICOTT LN GREAT MEADOWS RD 1295.8 0.49 38479 4,275 705 109,344$    26$             Local -$                $  17,358.30 35,556.65$   28,964.64$     81,879.59$     19.15$     )

0000003930 GREAT MEADOWS RD EASTMONT LN ENDICOTT LN 341.1 0.13 9132 1,015 167 25,950$      26$             Local -$                $    4,119.55 8,438.46$      6,874.01$       19,432.01$     19.15$     )

0000003940 GREAT MEADOWS RD ENDICOTT LN HERRENHUT RD 651.3 0.25 17287 1,921 317 49,124$      26$             Local -$                $    7,798.36 15,974.11$   13,012.60$     36,785.06$     19.15$     )

0000003950 GREAT MEADOWS RD HERRENHUT RD PORTSMOUTH CIR 140.5 0.05 3830 426 70 10,884$      26$             Local -$                $    1,727.76 3,539.12$      2,882.99$       8,149.87$       19.15$     )

0000003960 GREAT MEADOWS RD PORTSMOUTH CIR DEER TRCE 481.4 0.18 13098 1,455 240 37,220$      26$             Local -$                $    5,908.65 12,103.25$   9,859.37$       27,871.28$     19.15$     )

0000003970 GREAT MEADOWS RD DEER TRCE OAK RUN DR 303.1 0.11 7142 794 131 20,295$      26$             Local -$                $    3,221.84 6,599.59$      5,376.06$       15,197.49$     19.15$     )

0000003980 GREAT MEADOWS RD OAK RUN DR VALLEY OAKS RD 376.9 0.14 10083 1,120 185 28,653$      26$             Local -$                $    4,548.55 9,317.23$      7,589.87$       21,455.65$     19.15$     )

0000003990 GREAT MEADOWS RD VALLEY OAKS RD PETES RD 289 0.11 7120 791 131 20,233$      26$             Local -$                $    3,211.91 6,579.26$      5,359.50$       15,150.67$     19.15$     )

0000004000 GREAT MEADOWS RD PETES RD VALLEY CHASE CT 143.7 0.05 3542 394 65 10,065$      26$             Local -$                $    1,597.84 3,273.00$      2,666.20$       7,537.03$       19.15$     )

0000004010 GREAT MEADOWS RD VALLEY CHASE CT GREAT MEADOWS CT 299.6 0.11 8115 902 149 23,060$      26$             Local -$                $    3,660.77 7,498.69$      6,108.48$       17,267.94$     19.15$     )

0000004020 GREAT MEADOWS RD GREAT MEADOWS CT END 955.6 0.36 32051 3,561 588 91,078$      26$             Local -$                $  14,458.56 29,616.83$   24,126.03$     68,201.43$     19.15$     )

0000004030 GREAT MEADOWS CT END GREAT MEADOWS RD 482.7 0.18 17358 1,929 318 49,326$      26$             Local -$                $    7,830.39 16,039.72$   13,066.04$     36,936.15$     19.15$     )

0000004040 PETES RD GREAT MEADOWS RD END 128.3 0.05 2989 332 55 8,494$        26$             Local -$                $    1,348.37 2,762.00$      2,249.94$       6,360.30$       19.15$     )

0000004050 HERRENHUT RD GREAT MEADOWS RD HERRENHUT CT 1075.4 0.41 29447 3,272 540 83,679$      26$             Local -$                $  13,283.87 27,210.60$   22,165.90$     62,660.37$     19.15$     )

0000004060 HERRENHUT RD HERRENHUT CT ENDICOTT LN 313.2 0.12 8561 951 157 24,328$      26$             Local -$                $    3,861.96 7,910.82$      6,444.20$       18,216.98$     19.15$     )

0000004070 HERRENHUT RD ENDICOTT LN END 748.3 0.28 22816 2,535 418 64,835$      26$             Local -$                $  10,292.55 21,083.20$   17,174.49$     48,550.24$     19.15$     )

0000004080 ENDICOTT LN GREAT MEADOWS RD EASTMONT LN 943.2 0.36 25704 2,856 471 73,042$      26$             Local -$                $  11,595.36 23,751.87$   19,348.40$     54,695.63$     19.15$     )

0000004090 ENDICOTT LN EASTMONT LN HERRENHUT RD 359.1 0.14 9866 1,096 181 28,036$      26$             Local -$                $    4,450.66 9,116.71$      7,426.52$       20,993.89$     19.15$     )

0000004100 HERRENHUT CT HERRENHUT RD END 103.4 0.04 5928 659 109 16,845$      26$             Local -$                $    2,674.19 5,477.79$      4,462.24$       12,614.21$     19.15$     )

S860 S860 PANOLA MILL DR 7126.5 2.70 2E+05 21,626 3,568 553,093$    26$             Local 37.8 $486,592 22.50$            $  87,802.91 179,854.97$ 146,510.84$   414,168.72$   19.15$     )

0000005520 PANOLA MILL DR PALM TREE DR PANOLA MILL CT 296.4 0.11 7875 875 144 22,378$      26$             Local -$                $    3,552.50 7,276.92$      5,927.82$       16,757.24$     19.15$     )

0000005530 PANOLA MILL DR PANOLA MILL CT PALM RIDGE DR 2816.7 1.07 77043 8,560 1,412 218,931$    26$             Local -$                $  34,754.95 71,191.84$   57,993.26$     163,940.06$   19.15$     )

0000005540 PANOLA MILL DR PALM RIDGE DR PALM TREE DR 1335.7 0.51 36043 4,005 661 102,422$    26$             Local -$                $  16,259.40 33,305.65$   27,130.97$     76,696.02$     19.15$     )

0000005550 PANOLA MILL DR PALM TREE DR PANOLA RD 229.6 0.09 5384 598 99 15,300$      26$             Local -$                $    2,428.78 4,975.10$      4,052.75$       11,456.63$     19.15$     )

0000005560 PALM TREE DR PANOLA MILL DR PALM RIDGE DR 1235.3 0.47 31606 3,512 579 89,814$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $  14,257.82 29,205.63$   23,791.07$     67,254.51$     19.15$     )

0000005570 PALM TREE DR PALM RIDGE DR PANOLA MILL DR 273.7 0.10 4752 528 87 13,504$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    2,143.68 4,391.10$      3,577.02$       10,111.80$     19.15$     )

0000005580 PALM TREE DR PANOLA MILL DR END 160.3 0.06 7136 793 131 20,278$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    3,219.13 6,594.04$      5,371.54$       15,184.72$     19.15$     )

0000005590 PANOLA MILL CT PANOLA MILL DR END 265.3 0.10 11400 1,267 209 32,395$      26$             Local -$                $    5,142.67 10,534.21$   8,581.22$       24,258.10$     19.15$     )

0000005600 PALM RIDGE DR PANOLA MILL DR PALM TREE DR 513.5 0.19 13398 1,489 246 38,073$      26$             Local -$                $    6,043.99 12,380.47$   10,085.20$     28,509.65$     19.15$     )

S900 S900 NEEDLE KNOB CT 589.6 0.22 18009 2,001 330 51,176$      26$             Local 37.9 $45,022 22.50$            $    8,124.06 16,641.28$   13,556.07$     38,321.41$     19.15$     )

0000005060 NEEDLE KNOB CT END MILLER RD 589.6 0.22 18009 2,001 330 51,176$      26$             Local -$                $    8,124.06 16,641.28$   13,556.07$     38,321.41$     19.15$     )

S2380 S2380 PANOLA RD BROWNS MILL RD ROCK SPRINGS RD 6258.4 2.37 2E+05 21,688 3,579 554,679$    26$             Major Arterial 37.9 $624,624 28.80$            $  88,054.63 180,370.59$ 146,930.87$   415,356.09$   19.15$     )

0000000080 PANOLA RD BROWNS MILL RD SALEM RD 2802.9 1.06 65204 7,245 1,195 185,288$    26$             Major Arterial 2020 -$                $  29,414.25 60,251.97$   49,081.59$     138,747.81$   19.15$     )

0000000090 PANOLA RD SALEM RD BIG MILLER GROVE WAY 1397.3 0.53 43224 4,803 792 122,828$    26$             Major Arterial 2020 -$                $  19,498.83 39,941.28$   32,536.39$     91,976.49$     19.15$     )

0000000100 PANOLA RD BIG MILLER GROVE WAY CEDAR ROCK DR 736.3 0.42 22384 2,487 410 63,608$      26$             Major Arterial 2020 -$                $  10,097.67 20,684.01$   16,849.31$     47,630.99$     19.15$     )

0000000110 PANOLA RD CEDAR ROCK DR ROCK SPRINGS RD 1321.9 0.75 64383 7,154 1,180 182,955$    26$             Major Arterial 2020 -$                $  29,043.89 59,493.33$   48,463.59$     137,000.80$   19.15$     )

S50 S50 ROCK CHAPEL RD/ RAILROAD ST BRASWELL ST STATE RTE 124 4158.8 1.58 94881 10,542 1,739 269,620$    26$             Minor Arterial 37.9 $303,619 2021 28.80$            $  42,801.87 87,675.10$   71,420.62$     201,897.60$   19.15$     )

0000017630 RAILROAD ST ROCK ST ROCK CHAPEL RD 1081.6 0.41 12579 1,398 231 35,745$      26$             Local 2021 -$                $    5,674.53 11,623.67$   9,468.70$       26,766.90$     19.15$     )

0000017640 ROCK CHAPEL RD BRASWELL ST RAILROAD ST 405.7 0.15 10021 1,113 184 28,476$      26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $    4,520.58 9,259.94$      7,543.20$       21,323.72$     19.15$     )

0000017650 ROCK CHAPEL RD RAILROAD ST TURNER HILL NORTH RD 1179.9 0.45 29144 3,238 534 82,818$      26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $  13,147.18 26,930.61$   21,937.82$     62,015.61$     19.15$     )

0000017660 ROCK CHAPEL RD TURNER HILL NORTH RD CDS 1018.3 0.39 25152 2,795 461 71,474$      26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $  11,346.35 23,241.79$   18,932.89$     53,521.02$     19.15$     )

0000017670 ROCK CHAPEL RD CDS STATE RTE 124 473.3 0.27 17985 1,998 330 51,107$      26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $    8,113.23 16,619.10$   13,538.01$     38,270.34$     19.15$     )

S380 S380 PHILLIPS RD MARBUT RD REDAN W 4963.4 1.88 1E+05 15,554 2,566 397,785$    26$             Collector 38.1 $447,946 28.80$            $  63,147.89 129,351.76$ 105,370.65$   297,870.29$   19.15$     )

0000015830 PHILLIPS RD MARBUT RD PHILLIPS CORNER RD 745.3 0.28 21241 2,360 389 60,360$      26$             Collector -$                $    9,582.05 19,627.82$   15,988.93$     45,198.79$     19.15$     )

0000015840 PHILLIPS RD PHILLIPS CORNER RD STABLEWOOD WAY 171.7 0.10 6198 689 114 17,613$      26$             Collector -$                $    2,795.99 5,727.28$      4,665.48$       13,188.74$     19.15$     )

0000015850 PHILLIPS RD STABLEWOOD WAY PHILLIPS CREEK DR 283 0.16 10216 1,135 187 29,030$      26$             Collector -$                $    4,608.55 9,440.13$      7,689.98$       21,738.66$     19.15$     )

0000015860 PHILLIPS RD PHILLIPS CREEK DR LAUREL POST DR 326.7 0.19 11794 1,310 216 33,515$      26$             Collector -$                $    5,320.40 10,898.29$   8,877.80$       25,096.49$     19.15$     )

0000015870 PHILLIPS RD LAUREL POST DR GILES RD 189.9 0.11 7216 802 132 20,505$      26$             Collector -$                $    3,255.22 6,667.97$      5,431.76$       15,354.95$     19.15$     )

0000015880 PHILLIPS RD GILES RD PHILLIPS LAKE WAY 436.2 0.17 10774 1,197 198 30,616$      26$             Collector -$                $    4,860.27 9,955.75$      8,110.01$       22,926.03$     19.15$     )

0000015890 PHILLIPS RD PHILLIPS LAKE WAY PHILLIPS CT 535.9 0.20 15273 1,697 280 43,401$      26$             Collector -$                $    6,889.82 14,113.07$   11,496.58$     32,499.47$     19.15$     )

0000015900 PHILLIPS RD PHILLIPS CT PHILLIPS PL 285.6 0.11 8140 904 149 23,131$      26$             Collector -$                $    3,672.04 7,521.79$      6,127.29$       17,321.13$     19.15$     )

0000015910 PHILLIPS RD PHILLIPS PL REDAN W 1989.1 0.75 49131 5,459 901 139,614$    26$             Collector -$                $  22,163.54 45,399.66$   36,982.81$     104,546.02$   19.15$     )

S2260 S2260 EVANS MILL RD BROWNS MILL RD SALEM RD 5426 2.06 2E+05 18,600 3,069 475,701$    26$             Minor Arterial 38.3 $535,686 28.80$            $  75,516.90 154,688.38$ 126,010.00$   356,215.27$   19.15$     )

0000001360 EVANS MILL RD BROWNS MILL RD CROSSVALE RD 573.9 0.43 26058 2,895 478 74,048$      26$             Minor Arterial 2020 -$                $  11,755.05 24,078.98$   19,614.87$     55,448.91$     19.15$     )

0000001370 EVANS MILL RD CROSSVALE RD FLAT ROCK WOODS DR 607.8 0.35 23096 2,566 423 65,631$      26$             Minor Arterial 2020 -$                $  10,418.86 21,341.94$   17,385.26$     49,146.06$     19.15$     )

0000001380 EVANS MILL RD FLAT ROCK WOODS DR FLAT ROCK RD 1273.9 0.97 47111 5,235 864 133,874$    26$             Minor Arterial 2020 -$                $  21,252.30 43,533.08$   35,462.28$     100,247.65$   19.15$     )

0000001390 EVANS MILL RD FLAT ROCK RD WINDERMERE DR 161.3 0.06 4597 511 84 13,063$      26$             Minor Arterial 2020 -$                $    2,073.76 4,247.87$      3,460.34$       9,781.97$       19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

8 3:28 PM

141

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000001400 EVANS MILL RD WINDERMERE DR BELMONT RIDGE DR 387.3 0.15 11038 1,226 202 31,366$      26$             Minor Arterial 2020 -$                $    4,979.36 10,199.70$   8,308.73$       23,487.80$     19.15$     )

0000001410 EVANS MILL RD BELMONT RIDGE DR BROOKS MILL DR 598.1 0.23 17387 1,932 319 49,408$      26$             Minor Arterial 2020 -$                $    7,843.47 16,066.52$   13,087.87$     36,997.86$     19.15$     )

0000001420 EVANS MILL RD BROOKS MILL DR WINCHESTER PL 471.4 0.18 9852 1,095 181 27,996$      26$             Minor Arterial 2020 -$                $    4,444.35 9,103.77$      7,415.98$       20,964.10$     19.15$     )

0000001430 EVANS MILL RD WINCHESTER PL SALEM RD 1352.3 0.51 28263 3,140 518 80,314$      26$             Minor Arterial 2020 -$                $  12,749.75 26,116.52$   21,274.66$     60,140.93$     19.15$     )

S1890 S1890 LEVERETT DR 6749.8 2.56 2E+05 20,977 3,461 536,495$    26$             Local 38.3 $471,990 22.50$            $  85,167.97 174,457.57$ 142,114.09$   401,739.64$   19.15$     )

0000009300 FOREST CREEK LN END CREEK XING 189.5 0.07 8682 965 159 24,671$      26$             Local -$                $    3,916.55 8,022.63$      6,535.28$       18,474.46$     19.15$     )

0000009310 FOREST CREEK LN CREEK XING BRANCH CT 385.4 0.15 9019 1,002 165 25,629$      26$             Local -$                $    4,068.57 8,334.04$      6,788.95$       19,191.56$     19.15$     )

0000009320 CREEK XING END FOREST CREEK LN 137.3 0.05 6832 759 125 19,414$      26$             Local -$                $    3,081.99 6,313.13$      5,142.71$       14,537.84$     19.15$     )

0000009330 BRANCH CT END FOREST CREEK LN 168.1 0.06 8354 928 153 23,739$      26$             Local -$                $    3,768.58 7,719.54$      6,288.38$       17,776.50$     19.15$     )

0000009340 BRANCH CT FOREST CREEK LN LEVERETT DR 283.6 0.11 7463 829 137 21,207$      26$             Local -$                $    3,366.64 6,896.21$      5,617.69$       15,880.54$     19.15$     )

0000009350 LEVERETT DR START OF LOOP [WB] STEPHENSON CT 510 0.19 11040 1,227 202 31,372$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    4,980.27 10,201.55$   8,310.24$       23,492.05$     19.15$     )

0000009360 LEVERETT DR STEPHENSON CT BRANCH CT 529.6 0.20 12541 1,393 230 35,637$      26$             Local -$                $    5,657.38 11,588.55$   9,440.10$       26,686.04$     19.15$     )

0000009370 LEVERETT DR BRANCH CT FOREST TRL 1059.1 0.40 24403 2,711 447 69,345$      26$             Local -$                $  11,008.46 22,549.67$   18,369.09$     51,927.23$     19.15$     )

0000009380 LEVERETT DR FOREST TRL END OF LOOP 513.4 0.19 11554 1,284 212 32,833$      26$             Local -$                $    5,212.14 10,676.51$   8,697.15$       24,585.80$     19.15$     )

0000009390 LEVERETT DR END OF LOOP FORESTER WAY 325.1 0.12 7307 812 134 20,764$      26$             Local -$                $    3,296.27 6,752.06$      5,500.26$       15,548.59$     19.15$     )

0000009400 LEVERETT DR FORESTER WAY CATHEDRAL LN 167.8 0.06 4148 461 76 11,787$      26$             Local -$                $    1,871.21 3,832.97$      3,122.36$       8,826.54$       19.15$     )

0000009410 LEVERETT DR CATHEDRAL LN FORESTER WAY 721.4 0.27 18195 2,022 334 51,704$      26$             Local -$                $    8,207.97 16,813.15$   13,696.08$     38,717.20$     19.15$     )

0000009420 LEVERETT DR FORESTER WAY KLONDIKE RD 472.2 0.18 20783 2,309 381 59,058$      26$             Local -$                $    9,375.44 19,204.60$   15,644.17$     44,224.21$     19.15$     )

0000009430 STEPHENSON CT LEVERETT DR END 234.7 0.09 9062 1,007 166 25,751$      26$             Local -$                $    4,087.97 8,373.77$      6,821.32$       19,283.06$     19.15$     )

0000009440 FOREST TRL LEVERETT DR END 179.1 0.07 8745 972 160 24,850$      26$             Local -$                $    3,944.97 8,080.85$      6,582.70$       18,608.51$     19.15$     )

0000009450 FORESTER WAY LEVERETT DR [S] LEVERETT DR [N] 873.5 0.33 20668 2,296 379 58,732$      26$             Local -$                $    9,323.56 19,098.33$   15,557.61$     43,979.51$     19.15$     )

S880 S880 CHRISTIAN SPRINGS DR 2067.9 0.78 63408 7,045 1,162 180,184$    26$             Local 38.4 $158,520 22.50$            $  28,604.05 58,592.37$   47,729.67$     134,926.09$   19.15$     )

0000004670 CHRISTIAN SPRINGS DR ROCK SPRINGS RD CHRISTIAN SPRINGS CT 397.2 0.15 10349 1,150 190 29,408$      26$             Local -$                $    4,668.55 9,563.03$      7,790.09$       22,021.67$     19.15$     )

0000004680 CHRISTIAN SPRINGS DR CHRISTIAN SPRINGS CT CHRISTIAN SPRINGS LN 370.1 0.14 9718 1,080 178 27,615$      26$             Local -$                $    4,383.90 8,979.95$      7,315.12$       20,678.96$     19.15$     )

0000004690 CHRISTIAN SPRINGS DR CHRISTIAN SPRINGS LN END 910.2 0.34 26430 2,937 485 75,105$      26$             Local -$                $  11,922.87 24,422.73$   19,894.89$     56,240.49$     19.15$     )

0000004700 CHRISTIAN SPRINGS LN END CHRISTIAN SPRINGS DR 257.9 0.10 10188 1,132 187 28,951$      26$             Local -$                $    4,595.92 9,414.26$      7,668.90$       21,679.08$     19.15$     )

0000004710 CHRISTIAN SPRINGS CT END CHRISTIAN SPRINGS DR 132.5 0.05 6723 747 123 19,105$      26$             Local -$                $    3,032.82 6,212.41$      5,060.66$       14,305.89$     19.15$     )

S930 S930 LIONS CLUB LN 5412 2.05 2E+05 17,907 2,955 457,960$    26$             Local 38.7 $402,898 22.50$            $  72,700.62 148,919.51$ 121,310.65$   342,930.77$   19.15$     )

0000004730 LIONSHEAD CIR START OF LOOP [SB] NORTHCHESTER PL 563.6 0.21 16004 1,778 293 45,478$      26$             Local -$                $    7,219.58 14,788.55$   12,046.83$     34,054.96$     19.15$     )

0000004740 LIONSHEAD CIR NORTHCHESTER PL MEADOW GLADE CT 319.8 0.12 9007 1,001 165 25,595$      26$             Local -$                $    4,063.16 8,322.95$      6,779.92$       19,166.03$     19.15$     )

0000004750 LIONSHEAD CIR MEADOW GLADE CT LIONS CLUB LN 692.4 0.26 20040 2,227 367 56,947$      26$             Local -$                $    9,040.27 18,518.03$   15,084.89$     42,643.18$     19.15$     )

0000004760 LIONSHEAD CIR LIONS CLUB LN LION POINTE 955.3 0.36 25193 2,799 462 71,590$      26$             Local -$                $  11,364.84 23,279.68$   18,963.75$     53,608.27$     19.15$     )

0000004770 LIONSHEAD CIR LION POINTE LIONS CLUB LN 361.3 0.14 9803 1,089 180 27,857$      26$             Local -$                $    4,422.24 9,058.49$      7,379.10$       20,859.84$     19.15$     )

0000004780 LIONSHEAD CIR LIONS CLUB LN END OF LOOP 427.9 0.16 11295 1,255 207 32,097$      26$             Local -$                $    5,095.30 10,437.18$   8,502.19$       24,034.67$     19.15$     )

0000004790 LIONSHEAD CIR END OF LOOP ROCK SPRINGS RD 191.9 0.07 4604 512 84 13,083$      26$             Local -$                $    2,076.92 4,254.34$      3,465.61$       9,796.87$       19.15$     )

0000004800 NORTHCHESTER PL LIONSHEAD CIR END 406.6 0.15 14491 1,610 266 41,179$      26$             Local -$                $    6,537.05 13,390.46$   10,907.94$     30,835.45$     19.15$     )

0000004810 MEADOW GLADE CT LIONSHEAD CIR END 294.7 0.11 10707 1,190 196 30,426$      26$             Local -$                $    4,830.05 9,893.84$      8,059.58$       22,783.46$     19.15$     )

0000004820 LIONS CLUB LN LIONSHEAD CIR [S] LIONSHEAD CIR [N] 1009.1 0.38 31569 3,508 579 89,709$      26$             Local -$                $  14,241.13 29,171.44$   23,763.21$     67,175.78$     19.15$     )

0000004830 LION POINTE END LIONSHEAD CIR 189.4 0.07 8446 938 155 24,001$      26$             Local -$                $    3,810.08 7,804.55$      6,357.63$       17,972.27$     19.15$     )

S1440 S1440 ARABIAN TER 3597.6 1.36 1E+05 11,154 1,840 285,261$    26$             Local 38.8 $250,962 22.50$            $  45,284.79 92,761.09$   75,563.69$     213,609.58$   19.15$     )

0000011630 ARABIAN WOODS DR WOODROW DR ARABIAN TER 697.2 0.26 20333 2,259 373 57,780$      26$             Local -$                $    9,172.44 18,788.78$   15,305.44$     43,266.66$     19.15$     )

0000011640 ARABIAN WOODS DR ARABIAN TER END 436.3 0.17 10357 1,151 190 29,431$      26$             Local -$                $    4,672.16 9,570.42$      7,796.12$       22,038.69$     19.15$     )

0000011650 ARABIAN TER ARABIAN WOODS DR BAGDAD CT 472.4 0.18 12581 1,398 231 35,751$      26$             Local -$                $    5,675.43 11,625.51$   9,470.21$       26,771.15$     19.15$     )

0000011660 ARABIAN TER BAGDAD CT KLONDIKE RD 1634.8 0.62 45086 5,010 827 128,119$    26$             Local -$                $  20,338.80 41,661.87$   33,937.99$     95,938.65$     19.15$     )

0000011670 BAGDAD CT ARABIAN TER END 356.9 0.14 12028 1,336 221 34,180$      26$             Local -$                $    5,425.96 11,114.51$   9,053.94$       25,594.42$     19.15$     )

S670 S670 KEYSTONE GRV 3532.6 1.34 74422 8,269 1,364 211,483$    26$             Local 39.1 $186,055 22.50$            $  33,572.59 68,769.90$   56,020.33$     158,362.82$   19.15$     )

0000014650 STONEKEY PL SNAPFINGER WOODS DR KEYSTONE GRV 322.2 0.12 7172 797 131 20,380$      26$             Local -$                $    3,235.37 6,627.31$      5,398.64$       15,261.32$     19.15$     )

0000014660 STONEKEY PL KEYSTONE GRV START OF DIVIDED 171.8 0.07 4154 462 76 11,804$      26$             Local -$                $    1,873.92 3,838.52$      3,126.88$       8,839.31$       19.15$     )

0000014670 STONEKEY PL START OF DIVIDED END OF DIVIDED 282.1 0.11 5086 565 93 14,453$      26$             Local -$                $    2,294.35 4,699.74$      3,828.43$       10,822.52$     19.15$     )

0000014680 STONEKEY PL END OF DIVIDED KEYSTONE LN 145.7 0.03 5552 617 102 15,777$      26$             Local -$                $    2,504.57 5,130.34$      4,179.21$       11,814.12$     19.15$     )

0000014690 STONEKEY PL START OF DIVIDED END OF DIVIDED 223.8 0.08 3756 417 69 10,673$      26$             Local -$                $    1,694.37 3,470.74$      2,827.29$       7,992.40$       19.15$     )

0000014700 KEYSTONE GRV STONEKEY PL KEYSTONE BND 529.1 0.20 10547 1,172 193 29,971$      26$             Local -$                $    4,757.87 9,745.99$      7,939.14$       22,443.00$     19.15$     )

0000014710 KEYSTONE BND KEYSTONE WAY KEYSTONE GRV 237.4 0.09 5866 652 108 16,669$      26$             Local -$                $    2,646.22 5,420.50$      4,415.57$       12,482.28$     19.15$     )

0000014720 KEYSTONE BND KEYSTONE GRV START OF DIVIDED 53 0.02 1376 153 25 3,910$        26$             Local -$                $       620.73 1,271.50$      1,035.77$       2,927.99$       19.15$     )

0000014730 KEYSTONE BND START OF DIVIDED END OF DIVIDED 318.9 0.12 4933 548 90 14,018$      26$             Local -$                $    2,225.33 4,558.36$      3,713.26$       10,496.95$     19.15$     )

0000014740 KEYSTONE BND END OF DIVIDED KEYSTONE LN 186.5 0.07 4107 456 75 11,671$      26$             Local -$                $    1,852.71 3,795.09$      3,091.50$       8,739.30$       19.15$     )

0000014750 KEYSTONE BND START OF DIVIDED KEYSTONE PT 87.1 0.03 1681 187 31 4,777$        26$             Local -$                $       758.32 1,553.33$      1,265.35$       3,577.01$       19.15$     )

0000014760 KEYSTONE BND KEYSTONE PT END OF DIVIDED 222.3 0.08 3575 397 66 10,159$      26$             Local -$                $    1,612.72 3,303.49$      2,691.04$       7,607.25$       19.15$     )

0000014770 KEYSTONE PT END KEYSTONE BND 225.2 0.09 4867 541 89 13,830$      26$             Local -$                $    2,195.56 4,497.37$      3,663.58$       10,356.51$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

9 3:28 PM

142

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000014780 KEYSTONE LN END STONEKEY PL 158.8 0.06 3552 395 65 10,094$      26$             Local -$                $    1,602.35 3,282.24$      2,673.73$       7,558.31$       19.15$     )

0000014790 KEYSTONE LN STONEKEY PL KEYSTONE BND 368.7 0.14 8198 911 150 23,296$      26$             Local -$                $    3,698.21 7,575.39$      6,170.95$       17,444.55$     19.15$     )

S830 S830 MINOLA DR MILLER RD PANOLA RD 3826 1.45 91355 10,151 1,675 259,600$    26$             Collector 39.1 $292,336 2021 28.80$            $  41,211.26 84,416.89$   68,766.46$     194,394.61$   19.15$     )

0000006950 MINOLA DR MILLER RD PANOLA RD 3826 1.45 91355 10,151 1,675 259,600$    26$             Collector 2021 -$                $  41,211.26 84,416.89$   68,766.46$     194,394.61$   19.15$     )

S1150 S1150 SALEM SPRINGS PL 11148 4.22 3E+05 35,971 5,935 919,958$    26$             Local 39.1 $809,348 22.50$           ########## 299,152.10$ 243,690.94$   688,885.30$   19.15$     )

0000002360 SALEM HILLS DR SOUTH END SALEM SPRINGS PL 457.7 0.17 12653 1,406 232 35,956$      26$             Local -$                $    5,707.91 11,692.05$   9,524.41$       26,924.36$     19.15$     )

0000002370 SALEM HILLS DR SALEM SPRINGS PL SALEM RD 619.6 0.23 16665 1,852 306 47,356$      26$             Local -$                $    7,517.77 15,399.35$   12,544.39$     35,461.51$     19.15$     )

0000002380 SALEM SPRINGS PL WEST END SALEM HILLS DR 158.6 0.06 6265 696 115 17,803$      26$             Local -$                $    2,826.21 5,789.19$      4,715.91$       13,331.31$     19.15$     )

0000002390 SALEM SPRINGS PL SALEM HILLS DR SALEM SPRINGS DR 1427.3 0.54 36122 4,014 662 102,647$    26$             Local -$                $  16,295.04 33,378.65$   27,190.43$     76,864.12$     19.15$     )

0000002400 SALEM HILLS CT SOUTH END SALEM SPRINGS DR 171.5 0.06 8102 900 149 23,023$      26$             Local -$                $    3,654.90 7,486.68$      6,098.69$       17,240.27$     19.15$     )

0000002410 SALEM HILLS CT SALEM SPRINGS DR NORTH END 440 0.17 16339 1,815 300 46,430$      26$             Local -$                $    7,370.70 15,098.11$   12,299.00$     34,767.81$     19.15$     )

0000002420 SALEM SPRINGS DR SALEM HILLS CT SALEM SPRINGS PL 289.2 0.11 7388 821 135 20,994$      26$             Local -$                $    3,332.81 6,826.91$      5,561.23$       15,720.95$     19.15$     )

0000002430 SALEM SPRINGS DR SALEM SPRINGS PL SALEM KIRK DR 332.3 0.13 8394 933 154 23,853$      26$             Local -$                $    3,786.63 7,756.50$      6,318.49$       17,861.62$     19.15$     )

0000002440 SALEM SPRINGS DR SALEM KIRK DR SALEM CHAPEL DR 264.9 0.10 6340 704 116 18,016$      26$             Local -$                $    2,860.04 5,858.50$      4,772.36$       13,490.91$     19.15$     )

0000002450 SALEM SPRINGS DR SALEM CHAPEL DR SALEM MEADOWS DR 258.8 0.10 6518 724 119 18,522$      26$             Local -$                $    2,940.34 6,022.98$      4,906.35$       13,869.67$     19.15$     )

0000002460 SALEM SPRINGS DR SALEM MEADOWS DR SALEM SPRINGS CT 304.2 0.12 7602 845 139 21,602$      26$             Local -$                $    3,429.35 7,024.65$      5,722.32$       16,176.32$     19.15$     )

0000002470 SALEM SPRINGS DR SALEM SPRINGS CT SALEM GLEN RD 500.9 0.19 13695 1,522 251 38,917$      26$             Local -$                $    6,177.97 12,654.91$   10,308.76$     29,141.64$     19.15$     )

0000002480 SALEM SPRINGS DR SALEM GLEN RD END 829 0.31 26186 2,910 480 74,412$      26$             Local -$                $  11,812.80 24,197.26$   19,711.22$     55,721.28$     19.15$     )

0000002490 SALEM KIRK DR SALEM SPRINGS DR END 799.3 0.30 26939 2,993 494 76,552$      26$             Local -$                $  12,152.48 24,893.07$   20,278.03$     57,323.59$     19.15$     )

0000002500 SALEM CHAPEL DR SALEM SPRINGS DR END 783.3 0.30 25458 2,829 467 72,343$      26$             Local -$                $  11,484.39 23,524.55$   19,163.23$     54,172.16$     19.15$     )

0000002510 SALEM MEADOWS DR SALEM SPRINGS DR SALEM MEADOWS CT 250.7 0.09 7166 796 131 20,363$      26$             Local -$                $    3,232.66 6,621.77$      5,394.13$       15,248.56$     19.15$     )

0000002520 SALEM MEADOWS DR SALEM MEADOWS CT END 527.7 0.20 14473 1,608 265 41,127$      26$             Local -$                $    6,528.93 13,373.82$   10,894.39$     30,797.14$     19.15$     )

0000002530 SALEM MEADOWS CT SALEM MEADOWS DR END 562.2 0.21 16991 1,888 312 48,283$      26$             Local -$                $    7,664.83 15,700.59$   12,789.79$     36,155.21$     19.15$     )

0000002540 SALEM SPRINGS CT SALEM SPRINGS DR END 758.9 0.29 22868 2,541 419 64,983$      26$             Local -$                $  10,316.01 21,131.25$   17,213.63$     48,660.89$     19.15$     )

0000002550 SALEM GLEN RD SALEM SPRINGS DR SALEM RD 1411.8 0.53 37575 4,175 689 106,776$    26$             Local -$                $  16,950.50 34,721.30$   28,284.16$     79,955.97$     19.15$     )

S1130 S1130 W SADDLERIDGE DR 1685.6 0.64 52443 5,827 961 149,026$    26$             Local 39.3 $131,108 22.50$            $  23,657.62 48,460.13$   39,475.89$     111,593.63$   19.15$     )

0000001120 W SADDLERIDGE DR END SADDLEGATE PL 683.7 0.26 22108 2,456 405 62,824$      26$             Local -$                $    9,973.16 20,428.97$   16,641.55$     47,043.69$     19.15$     )

0000001130 W SADDLERIDGE DR SADDLEGATE PL BROWNS MILL RD 790.6 0.30 20986 2,332 385 59,635$      26$             Local -$                $    9,467.02 19,392.18$   15,796.98$     44,656.18$     19.15$     )

0000001190 SADDLEGATE PL W SADDLERIDGE DR END 211.3 0.08 9349 1,039 171 26,567$      26$             Local -$                $    4,217.44 8,638.97$      7,037.36$       19,893.77$     19.15$     )

S1830 S1830 MAHONIA PL 6768.4 2.56 2E+05 17,705 2,921 452,814$    26$             Local 39.5 $398,370 22.50$            $  71,883.65 147,246.05$ 119,947.44$   339,077.14$   19.15$     )

0000009850 MAHONIA PL END BOB WHITE RUN [S] 1287.7 0.49 32646 3,627 599 92,769$      26$             Local -$                $  14,726.97 30,166.65$   24,573.91$     69,467.53$     19.15$     )

0000009860 MAHONIA PL BOB WHITE RUN [S] BOB WHITE RUN [N] 1538.3 0.58 35679 3,964 654 101,388$    26$             Local -$                $  16,095.19 32,969.30$   26,856.97$     75,921.46$     19.15$     )

0000009870 MAHONIA PL BOB WHITE RUN [N] BROWNS MILL FERRY RD 896.1 0.34 22894 2,544 420 65,057$      26$             Local -$                $  10,327.74 21,155.28$   17,233.20$     48,716.22$     19.15$     )

0000009880 BOB WHITE RUN MAHONIA PL SETTERS WAY 369.1 0.14 8695 966 159 24,708$      26$             Local -$                $    3,922.41 8,034.64$      6,545.06$       18,502.12$     19.15$     )

0000009890 BOB WHITE RUN SETTERS WAY RED BONE WAY 376.7 0.14 9140 1,016 168 25,973$      26$             Local -$                $    4,123.16 8,445.85$      6,880.03$       19,449.04$     19.15$     )

0000009900 BOB WHITE RUN RED BONE WAY MAHONIA PL 380.2 0.14 7800 867 143 22,165$      26$             Local -$                $    3,518.67 7,207.62$      5,871.36$       16,597.65$     19.15$     )

0000009910 SETTERS WAY BOB WHITE RUN BROWNS MILL FERRY RD 983.9 0.37 19387 2,154 355 55,091$      26$             Local -$                $    8,745.69 17,914.62$   14,593.35$     41,253.66$     19.15$     )

0000009920 RED BONE WAY BOB WHITE RUN BROWNS MILL FERRY RD 936.4 0.35 23107 2,567 424 65,662$      26$             Local -$                $  10,423.82 21,352.10$   17,393.54$     49,169.46$     19.15$     )

S1030 S1030 CUMBERLAND WAY 1863.5 0.71 58313 6,479 1,069 165,706$    26$             Local 40.2 $145,782 22.50$            $  26,305.64 53,884.32$   43,894.46$     124,084.43$   19.15$     )

0000000360 CUMBERLAND GREEN DR SNAPFINGER RD CUMBERLAND WAY 456.7 0.17 13520 1,502 248 38,419$      26$             Local -$                $    6,099.02 12,493.20$   10,177.03$     28,769.25$     19.15$     )

0000000370 CUMBERLAND GREEN DR CUMBERLAND WAY CUMBERLAND CT 307.5 0.12 6792 755 125 19,301$      26$             Local -$                $    3,063.95 6,276.17$      5,112.60$       14,452.72$     19.15$     )

0000000380 CUMBERLAND GREEN DR CUMBERLAND CT END 146.3 0.06 2845 316 52 8,085$        26$             Local -$                $    1,283.41 2,628.93$      2,141.54$       6,053.88$       19.15$     )

0000000390 CUMBERLAND CT END CUMBERLAND GREEN DR 333.4 0.13 11966 1,330 219 34,003$      26$             Local -$                $    5,398.00 11,057.22$   9,007.27$       25,462.49$     19.15$     )

0000000400 CUMBERLAND WAY SOUTH END CUMBERLAND GREEN DR 127 0.05 6624 736 121 18,823$      26$             Local -$                $    2,988.16 6,120.93$      4,986.14$       14,095.23$     19.15$     )

0000000410 CUMBERLAND WAY CUMBERLAND GREEN DR NORTH END 492.6 0.19 16566 1,841 304 47,075$      26$             Local -$                $    7,473.11 15,307.87$   12,469.87$     35,250.85$     19.15$     )

S240 S240 RAMBLING WAY 21632 8.19 5E+05 57,014 9,407 1,458,125$ 26$             Local 40.3 ######## 22.50$           ########## 474,153.02$ 386,247.64$   ########### 19.15$     )

0000016110 STONEBRIDGE CREEK LN PHILLIPS RD RAMBLING WAY 176.4 0.07 4020 447 74 11,424$      26$             Local -$                $    1,813.47 3,714.69$      3,026.01$       8,554.17$       19.15$     )

0000016120 STONEBRIDGE CREEK LN RAMBLING WAY SHAFFERS WAY 264.4 0.10 5859 651 107 16,649$      26$             Local -$                $    2,643.06 5,414.03$      4,410.30$       12,467.39$     19.15$     )

0000016130 STONEBRIDGE CREEK LN SHAFFERS WAY RUSS LN 251.8 0.10 5976 664 110 16,982$      26$             Local -$                $    2,695.84 5,522.14$      4,498.37$       12,716.35$     19.15$     )

0000016140 STONEBRIDGE CREEK LN RUSS LN ABBOT LN 498.1 0.19 11018 1,224 202 31,309$      26$             Local -$                $    4,970.34 10,181.22$   8,293.68$       23,445.24$     19.15$     )

0000016150 STONEBRIDGE CREEK LN ABBOT LN RAMBLING WAY 235.4 0.09 4945 549 91 14,052$      26$             Local -$                $    2,230.74 4,569.44$      3,722.29$       10,522.48$     19.15$     )

0000016160 STONEBRIDGE CREEK LN RAMBLING WAY STONEBRIDGE CREEK DR 254.4 0.10 5974 664 110 16,976$      26$             Local -$                $    2,694.94 5,520.29$      4,496.86$       12,712.09$     19.15$     )

0000016170 STONEBRIDGE CREEK LN STONEBRIDGE CREEK DR POLE CREEK DR 511.4 0.19 11481 1,276 210 32,625$      26$             Local -$                $    5,179.21 10,609.06$   8,642.20$       24,430.46$     19.15$     )

0000016180 RAMBLING WAY RAMBLING WAY SHAFFERS WAY 986.5 0.37 23276 2,586 427 66,143$      26$             Local -$                $  10,500.06 21,508.27$   17,520.75$     49,529.08$     19.15$     )

0000016190 RAMBLING WAY SHAFFERS WAY STONEBRIDGE CREEK LN 704.1 0.27 21548 2,394 395 61,232$      26$             Local -$                $    9,720.54 19,911.50$   16,220.02$     45,852.06$     19.15$     )

0000016200 RAMBLING WAY STONEBRIDGE CREEK LN RUSS LN 1155.9 0.44 24308 2,701 446 69,075$      26$             Local -$                $  10,965.61 22,461.89$   18,297.58$     51,725.07$     19.15$     )

0000016210 RAMBLING WAY RUSS LN CHEE CHEE CV 539.5 0.20 12110 1,346 222 34,413$      26$             Local -$                $    5,462.96 11,190.29$   9,115.67$       25,768.91$     19.15$     )

0000016220 RAMBLING WAY CHEE CHEE CV SHAFFERS WAY 350.4 0.13 7680 853 141 21,824$      26$             Local -$                $    3,464.53 7,096.73$      5,781.03$       16,342.30$     19.15$     )

0000016230 RAMBLING WAY SHAFFERS WAY BRENDA ANN DR 253.5 0.10 5826 647 107 16,556$      26$             Local -$                $    2,628.17 5,383.53$      4,385.46$       12,397.16$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

10 3:28 PM

143

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000016240 RAMBLING WAY BRENDA ANN DR STONEBRIDGE CREEK LN 324.9 0.12 7750 861 142 22,023$      26$             Local -$                $    3,496.11 7,161.41$      5,833.73$       16,491.25$     19.15$     )

0000016250 RAMBLING WAY STONEBRIDGE CREEK LN MATHEWS DR 253.7 0.10 5996 666 110 17,039$      26$             Local -$                $    2,704.86 5,540.62$      4,513.42$       12,758.91$     19.15$     )

0000016260 RAMBLING WAY MATHEWS DR RAMBLING WAY 257.6 0.10 5752 639 105 16,345$      26$             Local -$                $    2,594.79 5,315.15$      4,329.75$       12,239.70$     19.15$     )

0000016270 RAMBLING WAY RAMBLING WAY STONEBRIDGE CREEK DR 1447.9 0.55 35440 3,938 650 100,709$    26$             Local -$                $  15,987.38 32,748.45$   26,677.07$     75,412.89$     19.15$     )

0000016280 RAMBLING WAY STONEBRIDGE CREEK DR POLE CREEK CT 453.1 0.17 10166 1,130 186 28,888$      26$             Local -$                $    4,586.00 9,393.93$      7,652.34$       21,632.27$     19.15$     )

0000016290 RAMBLING WAY POLE CREEK CT POLE CREEK DR 350.4 0.13 7484 832 137 21,267$      26$             Local -$                $    3,376.12 6,915.62$      5,633.50$       15,925.23$     19.15$     )

0000016300 RAMBLING WAY POLE CREEK DR APA LN 814.3 0.31 18134 2,015 332 51,531$      26$             Local -$                $    8,180.45 16,756.78$   13,650.17$     38,587.40$     19.15$     )

0000016310 CHEE CHEE CV END RAMBLING WAY 115.2 0.04 2715 302 50 7,715$        26$             Local -$                $    1,224.77 2,508.80$      2,043.69$       5,777.26$       19.15$     )

0000016320 RUSS LN RAMBLING WAY SHAFFERS WAY 253.5 0.10 6011 668 110 17,081$      26$             Local -$                $    2,711.63 5,554.48$      4,524.71$       12,790.83$     19.15$     )

0000016330 RUSS LN SHAFFERS WAY BRENDA ANN DR 243.3 0.09 5057 562 93 14,370$      26$             Local -$                $    2,281.27 4,672.94$      3,806.60$       10,760.81$     19.15$     )

0000016340 RUSS LN BRENDA ANN DR STONEBRIDGE CREEK LN 327 0.12 7752 861 142 22,029$      26$             Local -$                $    3,497.01 7,163.26$      5,835.23$       16,495.51$     19.15$     )

0000016350 SHAFFERS WAY RAMBLING WAY RUSS LN 731.4 0.28 16896 1,877 310 48,013$      26$             Local -$                $    7,621.97 15,612.81$   12,718.28$     35,953.05$     19.15$     )

0000016360 SHAFFERS WAY RUSS LN STONEBRIDGE CREEK LN 758.7 0.29 18443 2,049 338 52,409$      26$             Local -$                $    8,319.84 17,042.32$   13,882.76$     39,244.92$     19.15$     )

0000016370 SHAFFERS WAY STONEBRIDGE CREEK LN MATHEWS DR 253.4 0.10 5640 627 103 16,027$      26$             Local -$                $    2,544.27 5,211.66$      4,245.45$       12,001.37$     19.15$     )

0000016380 SHAFFERS WAY MATHEWS DR RAMBLING WAY 255.8 0.10 5734 637 105 16,294$      26$             Local -$                $    2,586.67 5,298.52$      4,316.20$       12,201.40$     19.15$     )

0000016390 BRENDA ANN DR RUSS LN ABBOT LN 492.8 0.19 11629 1,292 213 33,046$      26$             Local -$                $    5,245.97 10,745.82$   8,753.60$       24,745.39$     19.15$     )

0000016400 BRENDA ANN DR ABBOT LN RAMBLING WAY 237.5 0.09 5084 565 93 14,447$      26$             Local -$                $    2,293.45 4,697.89$      3,826.92$       10,818.26$     19.15$     )

0000016410 ABBOT LN BRENDA ANN DR STONEBRIDGE CREEK LN 324.3 0.12 8027 892 147 22,810$      26$             Local -$                $    3,621.07 7,417.38$      6,042.24$       17,080.68$     19.15$     )

0000016420 MATHEWS DR SHAFFERS WAY RAMBLING WAY 986 0.37 20215 2,246 371 57,444$      26$             Local -$                $    9,119.21 18,679.74$   15,216.62$     43,015.57$     19.15$     )

0000016430 STONEBRIDGE CREEK DR END KENDRA LN 145.9 0.06 7008 779 128 19,914$      26$             Local -$                $    3,161.39 6,475.77$      5,275.19$       14,912.35$     19.15$     )

0000016440 STONEBRIDGE CREEK DR KENDRA LN KENDRA CT 277.4 0.11 5714 635 105 16,237$      26$             Local -$                $    2,577.65 5,280.04$      4,301.15$       12,158.84$     19.15$     )

0000016450 STONEBRIDGE CREEK DR KENDRA CT STONEBRIDGE CREEK LN 205.3 0.08 4155 462 76 11,807$      26$             Local -$                $    1,874.37 3,839.44$      3,127.63$       8,841.44$       19.15$     )

0000016460 STONEBRIDGE CREEK DR STONEBRIDGE CREEK LN APA LN 255.6 0.10 5727 636 105 16,274$      26$             Local -$                $    2,583.51 5,292.05$      4,310.94$       12,186.50$     19.15$     )

0000016470 STONEBRIDGE CREEK DR APA LN POLE CREEK CT 1164.7 0.44 26094 2,899 478 74,150$      26$             Local -$                $  11,771.29 24,112.25$   19,641.97$     55,525.51$     19.15$     )

0000016480 STONEBRIDGE CREEK DR POLE CREEK CT RAMBLING WAY 305.7 0.12 8041 893 147 22,850$      26$             Local -$                $    3,627.38 7,430.31$      6,052.77$       17,110.47$     19.15$     )

0000016490 STONEBRIDGE CREEK DR RAMBLING WAY MARBUT RD 162.3 0.06 3542 394 65 10,065$      26$             Local -$                $    1,597.84 3,273.00$      2,666.20$       7,537.03$       19.15$     )

0000016500 POLE CREEK CT STONEBRIDGE CREEK DR RAMBLING WAY 257 0.10 5721 636 105 16,257$      26$             Local -$                $    2,580.81 5,286.51$      4,306.42$       12,173.73$     19.15$     )

0000016510 POLE CREEK CT RAMBLING WAY END 231 0.09 8641 960 158 24,555$      26$             Local -$                $    3,898.05 7,984.74$      6,504.42$       18,387.21$     19.15$     )

0000016520 APA LN STONEBRIDGE CREEK DR RAMBLING WAY 253.8 0.10 6273 697 115 17,826$      26$             Local -$                $    2,829.82 5,796.59$      4,721.93$       13,348.34$     19.15$     )

0000016530 APA LN RAMBLING WAY POLE CREEK DR 255.6 0.10 5940 660 109 16,880$      26$             Local -$                $    2,679.60 5,488.88$      4,471.27$       12,639.75$     19.15$     )

0000016540 KENDRA CT STONEBRIDGE CREEK DR POLE CREEK DR 468.2 0.18 11034 1,226 202 31,355$      26$             Local -$                $    4,977.56 10,196.00$   8,305.72$       23,479.29$     19.15$     )

0000016550 KENDRA LN STONEBRIDGE CREEK DR POLE CREEK DR 380 0.14 8748 972 160 24,859$      26$             Local -$                $    3,946.32 8,083.62$      6,584.96$       18,614.90$     19.15$     )

0000016560 POLE CREEK DR END KENDRA LN 409.1 0.15 13345 1,483 245 37,922$      26$             Local -$                $    6,020.08 12,331.49$   10,045.30$     28,396.87$     19.15$     )

0000016570 POLE CREEK DR KENDRA LN KENDRA CT 263.8 0.10 5787 643 106 16,445$      26$             Local -$                $    2,610.58 5,347.50$      4,356.10$       12,314.18$     19.15$     )

0000016580 POLE CREEK DR KENDRA CT STONEBRIDGE CREEK LN 225.6 0.09 4996 555 92 14,197$      26$             Local -$                $    2,253.75 4,616.57$      3,760.68$       10,631.01$     19.15$     )

0000016590 POLE CREEK DR STONEBRIDGE CREEK LN APA LN 254.6 0.10 5795 644 106 16,467$      26$             Local -$                $    2,614.19 5,354.89$      4,362.12$       12,331.20$     19.15$     )

0000016600 POLE CREEK DR APA LN RAMBLING WAY 1053.8 0.40 28616 3,180 525 81,317$      26$             Local -$                $  12,909.00 26,442.71$   21,540.38$     60,892.08$     19.15$     )

S1020 S1020 SPRINGTREE CT E 1615.9 0.61 49629 5,514 910 141,029$    26$             Local 40.7 $124,072 22.50$            $  22,388.19 45,859.84$   37,357.68$     105,605.71$   19.15$     )

0000002200 SPRINGTREE DR BROWNS MILL RD SPRINGTREE CT W 597.4 0.23 16708 1,856 306 47,479$      26$             Local -$                $    7,537.16 15,439.08$   12,576.76$     35,553.01$     19.15$     )

0000002210 SPRINGTREE CT W WEST END SPRINGTREE DR 202.8 0.08 6401 711 117 18,190$      26$             Local -$                $    2,887.56 5,914.87$      4,818.28$       13,620.71$     19.15$     )

0000002220 SPRINGTREE CT E SPRINGTREE DR EAST END 815.7 0.31 26520 2,947 486 75,361$      26$             Local -$                $  11,963.47 24,505.89$   19,962.64$     56,432.00$     19.15$     )

S2090 S2090 SPRING MILL CIR 3366.3 1.28 1E+05 12,099 1,996 309,421$    26$             Local 41.3 $272,218 22.50$            $  49,120.14 100,617.40$ 81,963.48$     231,701.01$   19.15$     )

0000002960 SPRING MILL CIR WEST END MILL VIEW WAY 1470.1 0.56 47160 5,240 865 134,013$    26$             Local -$                $  21,274.40 43,578.36$   35,499.17$     100,351.92$   19.15$     )

0000002970 SPRING MILL CIR MILL VIEW WAY EAST END 1091.3 0.41 34249 3,805 628 97,324$      26$             Local -$                $  15,450.10 31,647.90$   25,780.55$     72,878.56$     19.15$     )

0000002980 MILL VIEW WAY END SPRING MILL CIR 616.5 0.23 22642 2,516 415 64,341$      26$             Local -$                $  10,214.06 20,922.42$   17,043.51$     48,179.99$     19.15$     )

0000002990 MILL VIEW WAY SPRING MILL CIR SALEM RD 188.4 0.07 4836 537 89 13,742$      26$             Local -$                $    2,181.57 4,468.72$      3,640.25$       10,290.54$     19.15$     )

S1410 S1410 WOODROW RD 7577.2 2.87 2E+05 26,436 4,362 676,089$    26$             Local 41.3 $594,800 22.50$           ########## 219,850.77$ 179,091.64$   506,270.76$   19.15$     )

0000011160 WOODROW PL EVANS MILL WAY WOODROW RD 614.7 0.23 13777 1,531 253 39,150$      26$             Local -$                $    6,214.96 12,730.68$   10,370.48$     29,316.12$     19.15$     )

0000011170 WOODROW RD END EVANS MILL RD 2275.7 0.86 1E+05 13,617 2,247 348,260$    26$             Local -$                $  55,285.92 113,247.36$ 92,251.91$     260,785.19$   19.15$     )

0000011180 WOODROW RD EVANS MILL RD WOODROW PL 359.4 0.14 7576 842 139 21,528$      26$             Local -$                $    3,417.62 7,000.63$      5,702.75$       16,121.00$     19.15$     )

0000011190 WOODROW RD WOODROW PL BETHWOOD LN 1161.1 0.44 21563 2,396 395 61,275$      26$             Local -$                $    9,727.31 19,925.36$   16,231.31$     45,883.98$     19.15$     )

0000011200 WOODROW RD BETHWOOD LN CHAPARRAL PL 194.8 0.07 3717 413 68 10,562$      26$             Local -$                $    1,676.78 3,434.71$      2,797.93$       7,909.42$       19.15$     )

0000011210 WOODROW RD CHAPARRAL PL WOODROW MNR 531.1 0.20 11620 1,291 213 33,020$      26$             Local -$                $    5,241.91 10,737.50$   8,746.83$       24,726.24$     19.15$     )

0000011220 WOODROW RD WOODROW MNR WOODROW DR 1112.6 0.42 24232 2,692 444 68,859$      26$             Local -$                $  10,931.32 22,391.66$   18,240.37$     51,563.35$     19.15$     )

0000011230 BETHWOOD LN WOODROW RD END 680.6 0.26 12399 1,378 227 35,234$      26$             Local -$                $    5,593.33 11,457.34$   9,333.21$       26,383.87$     19.15$     )

0000011240 WOODROW MNR WOODROW RD END 647.2 0.25 20481 2,276 375 58,200$      26$             Local -$                $    9,239.21 18,925.54$   15,416.85$     43,581.59$     19.15$     )

S2270 S2270 EVANS MILL RD SALEM RD ROCK SPRINGS RD 9885.4 3.74 2E+05 23,715 3,913 606,522$    26$             Minor Arterial 41.4 $533,598 22.50$            $  96,284.70 197,229.02$ 160,663.84$   454,177.56$   19.15$     )

0000001440 EVANS MILL RD SALEM RD ROCKLAND RD 2807.1 1.06 59602 6,622 1,093 169,369$    26$             Minor Arterial 2020 -$                $  26,887.12 55,075.43$   44,864.74$     126,827.29$   19.15$     )

0000001450 EVANS MILL RD ROCKLAND RD BELAID LAKE RD 2962.7 1.12 61920 6,880 1,135 175,956$    26$             Minor Arterial 2020 -$                $  27,932.80 57,217.38$   46,609.59$     131,759.77$   19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

11 3:28 PM

144

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000001460 EVANS MILL RD BELAID LAKE RD LIONSGATE CT 686.2 0.26 14342 1,594 263 40,755$      26$             Minor Arterial 2020 -$                $    6,469.84 13,252.77$   10,795.78$     30,518.39$     19.15$     )

0000001470 EVANS MILL RD LIONSGATE CT SPRING LAKE OVERLOOK 1319.1 0.50 27569 3,063 505 78,342$      26$             Minor Arterial 2020 -$                $  12,436.68 25,475.23$   20,752.26$     58,664.17$     19.15$     )

0000001480 EVANS MILL RD SPRING LAKE OVERLOOK RAGSDALE RD 551.2 0.21 15709 1,745 288 44,640$      26$             Minor Arterial 2020 -$                $    7,086.50 14,515.95$   11,824.78$     33,427.23$     19.15$     )

0000001490 EVANS MILL RD RAGSDALE RD WADE RD 1333.9 0.76 27879 3,098 511 79,223$      26$             Minor Arterial 2020 -$                $  12,576.53 25,761.68$   20,985.61$     59,323.82$     19.15$     )

0000001500 EVANS MILL RD WADE RD ROCK SPRINGS RD 225.2 0.09 6418 713 118 18,238$      26$             Minor Arterial 2020 -$                $    2,895.23 5,930.57$      4,831.08$       13,656.88$     19.15$     )

S780 S780 INVERMERE WOODS CT 1436 0.54 49614 5,513 910 140,986$    26$             Local 41.4 $124,035 22.50$            $  22,381.43 45,845.98$   37,346.39$     105,573.80$   19.15$     )

0000005220 INVERMERE WOODS CT THOMPSON MILL RD INVERMERE CT 347.8 0.13 11411 1,268 209 32,426$      26$             Local -$                $    5,147.63 10,544.37$   8,589.50$       24,281.50$     19.15$     )

0000005230 INVERMERE WOODS CT INVERMERE CT INVERMERE TRL 338.7 0.13 9474 1,053 174 26,922$      26$             Local -$                $    4,273.83 8,754.48$      7,131.45$       20,159.76$     19.15$     )

0000005240 INVERMERE WOODS CT INVERMERE TRL END 318.8 0.12 11829 1,314 217 33,614$      26$             Local -$                $    5,336.19 10,930.63$   8,904.15$       25,170.97$     19.15$     )

0000005250 INVERMERE TRL INVERMERE WOODS CT END 218.8 0.08 8259 918 151 23,469$      26$             Local -$                $    3,725.73 7,631.76$      6,216.87$       17,574.35$     19.15$     )

0000005260 INVERMERE CT END INVERMERE WOODS CT 211.9 0.08 8641 960 158 24,555$      26$             Local -$                $    3,898.05 7,984.74$      6,504.42$       18,387.21$     19.15$     )

S1490 S1490 KLONDIKE RD HAYDEN QUARRY RD CITY LIMIT 4685.7 1.77 1E+05 12,084 1,994 309,045$    26$             Minor Arterial 41.4 $271,888 2021 22.50$            $  49,060.59 100,495.42$ 81,864.12$     231,420.13$   19.15$     )

0000008560 KLONDIKE RD HAYDEN QUARRY RD ARABIAN TER 989.3 0.37 24436 2,715 448 69,439$      26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $  11,023.35 22,580.17$   18,393.93$     51,997.45$     19.15$     )

0000008570 KLONDIKE RD ARABIAN TER WESLEY PROVIDENCE PKWY 156.2 0.09 4748 528 87 13,492$      26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $    2,141.88 4,387.41$      3,574.00$       10,103.29$     19.15$     )

0000008580 KLONDIKE RD WESLEY PROVIDENCE PKWY MALL PKWY 734.1 0.42 20288 2,254 372 57,652$      26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $    9,152.14 18,747.19$   15,271.57$     43,170.90$     19.15$     )

0000008590 KLONDIKE RD MALL PKWY I-20 EB ON RAMP 911.7 0.35 19690 2,188 361 55,952$      26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $    8,882.38 18,194.61$   14,821.43$     41,898.42$     19.15$     )

0000008600 KLONDIKE RD I-20 EB ON RAMP AMANDA DR 540.1 0.20 11288 1,254 207 32,077$      26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $    5,092.14 10,430.71$   8,496.92$       24,019.77$     19.15$     )

0000008610 KLONDIKE RD AMANDA DR COVINGTON HWY 520.4 0.20 10876 1,208 199 30,906$      26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $    4,906.28 10,050.00$   8,186.79$       23,143.08$     19.15$     )

0000008620 KLONDIKE RD COVINGTON HWY WILLIAMS GRANT REYNOLDS DR 138.5 0.05 2895 322 53 8,227$        26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $    1,305.97 2,675.13$      2,179.18$       6,160.28$       19.15$     )

0000008630 KLONDIKE RD WILLIAMS GRANT REYNOLDS DR CITY LIMIT 695.4 0.26 14534 1,615 266 41,301$      26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $    6,556.45 13,430.19$   10,940.31$     30,926.95$     19.15$     )

S2240 S2240 MCDONOUGH RD 1957.1 0.74 44238 4,915 811 125,710$    26$             Local 41.4 $110,595 22.50$            $  19,956.25 40,878.27$   33,299.66$     94,134.19$     19.15$     )

0000000010 MCDONOUGH RD SNAPFINGER RD CITY LIMIT 1957.1 0.74 44238 4,915 811 125,710$    26$             Local -$                $  19,956.25 40,878.27$   33,299.66$     94,134.19$     19.15$     )

S1050 S1050 OLD LANTERN DR 1102.1 0.42 30135 3,348 552 85,634$      26$             Local 41.4 $75,338 22.50$            $  13,594.23 27,846.35$   22,683.79$     64,124.37$     19.15$     )

0000000340 OLD LANTERN DR SNAPFINGER RD END 1102.1 0.42 30135 3,348 552 85,634$      26$             Local -$                $  13,594.23 27,846.35$   22,683.79$     64,124.37$     19.15$     )

S450 S450 HILLANDALE DR DEKALB MEDICAL PKWY LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD 5847.2 2.21 2E+05 22,915 3,781 586,057$    26$             Collector 41.5 $515,592 22.50$            $  93,035.80 190,573.99$ 155,242.61$   438,852.40$   19.15$     )

0000007040 HILLANDALE DR HILLANDALE DR END OF DIVIDED 165.1 0.09 5667 630 104 16,104$      26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $    2,556.45 5,236.61$      4,265.77$       12,058.83$     19.15$     )

0000013370 HILLANDALE DR DEKALB MEDICAL PKWY FAIRINGTON RD SB 271.4 0.21 11132 1,237 204 31,633$      26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $    5,021.77 10,286.56$   8,379.49$       23,687.82$     19.15$     )

0000013380 HILLANDALE DR FAIRINGTON RD SB ABCO CT 283.1 0.16 11296 1,255 207 32,099$      26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $    5,095.75 10,438.11$   8,502.94$       24,036.80$     19.15$     )

0000013390 HILLANDALE DR ABCO CT FAIRINGTON RD NB 44.8 0.03 1575 175 29 4,476$        26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $       710.50 1,455.38$      1,185.56$       3,351.45$       19.15$     )

0000013400 HILLANDALE DR FAIRINGTON RD NB SOMERSET PKWY 995.3 0.38 34572 3,841 634 98,242$      26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $  15,595.81 31,946.37$   26,023.69$     73,565.87$     19.15$     )

0000013410 HILLANDALE DR SOMERSET PKWY CAMBRIDGE HEIGHTS 578 0.33 20866 2,318 383 59,294$      26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $    9,412.88 19,281.30$   15,706.65$     44,400.83$     19.15$     )

0000013420 HILLANDALE DR CAMBRIDGE HEIGHTS GROVEWOOD PARK 538.9 0.31 19454 2,162 357 55,282$      26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $    8,775.92 17,976.53$   14,643.78$     41,396.23$     19.15$     )

0000013430 HILLANDALE DR GROVEWOOD PARK TATER WAY 251.6 0.14 7792 866 143 22,142$      26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $    3,515.06 7,200.22$      5,865.34$       16,580.62$     19.15$     )

0000013440 HILLANDALE DR TATER WAY EMBARCADERO BLVD 585.5 0.33 18752 2,084 344 53,287$      26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $    8,459.24 17,327.85$   14,115.36$     39,902.44$     19.15$     )

0000013450 HILLANDALE DR EMBARCADERO BLVD HILLANDALE THE CROSSINGS DR 101.6 0.06 4054 450 74 11,520$      26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $    1,828.80 3,746.11$      3,051.60$       8,626.52$       19.15$     )

0000013460 HILLANDALE DR HILLANDALE THE CROSSINGS DR HILLANDALE PARK DR 307.7 0.17 12277 1,364 225 34,887$      26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $    5,538.29 11,344.60$   9,241.38$       26,124.27$     19.15$     )

0000013470 HILLANDALE DR HILLANDALE PARK DR LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD 1724.2 0.65 58800 6,533 1,078 167,090$    26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $  26,525.33 54,334.34$   44,261.05$     125,120.72$   19.15$     )

S2400 S2400 PANOLA RD MINOLA DR SNAPFINGER WOODS DR 3088.2 3.51 2E+05 23,881 3,940 610,751$    26$             Major Arterial 41.7 $537,318 22.50$            $  96,955.96 198,604.01$ 161,783.91$   457,343.88$   19.15$     )

0000000190 PANOLA RD MINOLA DR I-20 EB ON RAMP 751.4 0.85 55193 6,133 1,012 156,840$    26$             Major Arterial -$                $  24,898.18 51,001.28$   41,545.92$     117,445.37$   19.15$     )

0000000200 PANOLA RD I-20 EB ON RAMP I-20 WB ON RAMP 464.3 0.53 29112 3,235 534 82,727$      26$             Major Arterial -$                $  13,132.75 26,901.04$   21,913.73$     61,947.52$     19.15$     )

0000000210 PANOLA RD I-20 WB ON RAMP HILLANDALE PARK CT 281.9 0.32 22822 2,536 418 64,853$      26$             Major Arterial -$                $  10,295.26 21,088.75$   17,179.01$     48,563.01$     19.15$     )

0000000220 PANOLA RD HILLANDALE PARK CT SNAPFINGER PARK DR 197.7 0.22 13684 1,520 251 38,885$      26$             Major Arterial -$                $    6,173.00 12,644.75$   10,300.48$     29,118.23$     19.15$     )

0000000230 PANOLA RD SNAPFINGER PARK DR HILLANDALE DR 658.4 0.87 48505 5,389 889 137,835$    26$             Major Arterial -$                $  21,881.14 44,821.21$   36,511.60$     103,213.95$   19.15$     )

0000000240 PANOLA RD HILLANDALE DR SNAPFINGER WOODS DR 734.5 0.70 45611 5,068 836 129,611$    26$             Major Arterial -$                $  20,575.63 42,147.00$   34,333.17$     97,055.80$     19.15$     )

S270 S270 WELLINGTON CHASE CT 1865.2 0.71 55411 6,157 1,016 157,460$    26$             Local 41.7 $138,528 22.50$            $  24,996.52 51,202.72$   41,710.01$     117,909.25$   19.15$     )

0000016100 WELLINGTON CHASE CT COVINGTON HWY END 1865.2 0.71 55411 6,157 1,016 157,460$    26$             Local -$                $  24,996.52 51,202.72$   41,710.01$     117,909.25$   19.15$     )

S1320 S1320 FIELDS DR 6955.2 2.63 2E+05 18,563 3,063 474,740$    26$             Local 41.8 $417,660 22.50$            $  75,364.43 154,376.05$ 125,755.57$   355,496.04$   19.15$     )

0000007600 CHUPP WAY FAIRINGTON RD FAIRINGTON DR 339.5 0.13 6172 686 113 17,539$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    2,784.26 5,703.26$      4,645.90$       13,133.42$     19.15$     )

0000007610 CHUPP WAY FAIRINGTON DR ATHENA LN [W] 405.4 0.15 10618 1,180 195 30,173$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    4,789.90 9,811.60$      7,992.58$       22,594.08$     19.15$     )

0000007620 CHUPP WAY ATHENA LN [W] ATHENA LN [E] 239.2 0.09 5453 606 100 15,496$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    2,459.91 5,038.86$      4,104.69$       11,603.46$     19.15$     )

0000007630 CHUPP WAY ATHENA LN [E] CHUPP WAY CIR 210.4 0.08 6360 707 117 18,073$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    2,869.07 5,876.98$      4,787.42$       13,533.47$     19.15$     )

0000007640 CHUPP WAY CHUPP WAY CIR FIELDS DR 217.4 0.08 6896 766 126 19,596$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    3,110.86 6,372.27$      5,190.89$       14,674.02$     19.15$     )

0000007650 CHUPP WAY FIELDS DR CHUPP WAY CIR 232.4 0.09 4807 534 88 13,660$      26$             Local 2020 -$                $    2,168.49 4,441.92$      3,618.42$       10,228.83$     19.15$     )

0000007660 FIELDS DR CHUPP WAY LOLA WAY 167.9 0.06 4126 458 76 11,725$      26$             Local -$                $    1,861.28 3,812.64$      3,105.80$       8,779.73$       19.15$     )

0000007670 FIELDS DR LOLA WAY LYRA LN 247.1 0.09 4496 500 82 12,776$      26$             Local -$                $    2,028.20 4,154.54$      3,384.31$       9,567.05$       19.15$     )

0000007680 FIELDS DR LYRA LN CHUPP WAY 2862.5 1.08 69134 7,682 1,267 196,456$    26$             Local -$                $  31,187.12 63,883.50$   52,039.85$     147,110.47$   19.15$     )

0000007690 CHUPP WAY CIR CHUPP WAY CHUPP WAY LN [E] 145.3 0.06 3223 358 59 9,159$        26$             Local -$                $    1,453.93 2,978.22$      2,426.08$       6,858.23$       19.15$     )

0000007700 CHUPP WAY CIR CHUPP WAY LN [E] CHUPP WAY LN [W] 1041.7 0.39 26398 2,933 484 75,014$      26$             Local -$                $  11,908.43 24,393.16$   19,870.80$     56,172.39$     19.15$     )

0000007710 CHUPP WAY CIR CHUPP WAY LN [W] CHUPP WAY 144 0.05 3298 366 60 9,372$        26$             Local -$                $    1,487.76 3,047.53$      2,482.53$       7,017.83$       19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

12 3:28 PM

145

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000007720 LYRA LN FIELDS DR END 134.2 0.05 3112 346 57 8,843$        26$             Local -$                $    1,403.86 2,875.65$      2,342.52$       6,622.04$       19.15$     )

0000007730 LOLA WAY FIELDS DR END 118.4 0.04 2550 283 47 7,246$        26$             Local -$                $    1,150.33 2,356.34$      1,919.48$       5,426.15$       19.15$     )

0000007740 CHUPP WAY LN CHUPP WAY CIR [W] CHUPP WAY CIR [E] 449.8 0.17 10421 1,158 191 29,613$      26$             Local -$                $    4,701.03 9,629.56$      7,844.29$       22,174.88$     19.15$     )

S1060 S1060 HODGDON CORNERS DR 4802.8 1.82 2E+05 16,740 2,762 428,128$    26$             Local 41.8 $376,652 22.50$            $  67,964.85 139,218.80$ 113,408.39$   320,592.04$   19.15$     )

0000000700 HODGDON CORNERS DR END TOPSFIELD TRL 642.2 0.24 24302 2,700 446 69,058$      26$             Local -$                $  10,962.90 22,456.34$   18,293.06$     51,712.31$     19.15$     )

0000000710 HODGDON CORNERS DR TOPSFIELD TRL TOPSFIELD LN 382.1 0.14 10222 1,136 187 29,048$      26$             Local -$                $    4,611.26 9,445.67$      7,694.50$       21,751.43$     19.15$     )

0000000720 HODGDON CORNERS DR TOPSFIELD LN HODGDON CORNERS CV 353 0.13 8951 995 164 25,436$      26$             Local -$                $    4,037.90 8,271.20$      6,737.77$       19,046.86$     19.15$     )

0000000730 HODGDON CORNERS DR HODGDON CORNERS CV VINE GATE DR 1327.8 0.50 35374 3,930 649 100,521$    26$             Local -$                $  15,957.60 32,687.46$   26,627.39$     75,272.45$     19.15$     )

0000000740 VINE GATE DR HODGDON CORNERS DR WOLVERTON CIR 259.2 0.10 6602 734 121 18,761$      26$             Local -$                $    2,978.24 6,100.60$      4,969.58$       14,048.42$     19.15$     )

0000000750 TOPSFIELD TRL HODGDON CORNERS DR END 586.7 0.22 19426 2,158 356 55,202$      26$             Local -$                $    8,763.28 17,950.66$   14,622.71$     41,336.65$     19.15$     )

0000000760 TOPSFIELD LN HODGDON CORNERS DR END 583 0.22 19503 2,167 358 55,421$      26$             Local -$                $    8,798.02 18,021.81$   14,680.67$     41,500.50$     19.15$     )

0000000770 HODGDON CORNERS CV END HODGDON CORNERS DR 668.8 0.25 26281 2,920 482 74,682$      26$             Local -$                $  11,855.65 24,285.05$   19,782.73$     55,923.43$     19.15$     )

S990 S990 ROCK SPRINGS RD CLEVELAND RD PANOLA RD 5717.2 2.17 2E+05 18,184 3,000 465,050$    26$             Collector 41.8 $409,135 22.50$            $  73,826.14 151,225.02$ 123,188.73$   348,239.89$   19.15$     )

0000004400 ROCK SPRINGS RD CLEVELAND RD RONDELAY DR 489.8 0.19 12098 1,344 222 34,378$      26$             Collector 2020 -$                $    5,457.54 11,179.20$   9,106.64$       25,743.37$     19.15$     )

0000004410 ROCK SPRINGS RD RONDELAY DR OXBRIDGE WAY 1004.9 0.38 24821 2,758 455 70,533$      26$             Collector 2020 -$                $  11,197.03 22,935.93$   18,683.73$     52,816.69$     19.15$     )

0000004420 ROCK SPRINGS RD OXBRIDGE WAY MILLER RD 429.8 0.16 10616 1,180 195 30,167$      26$             Collector 2020 -$                $    4,789.00 9,809.75$      7,991.08$       22,589.82$     19.15$     )

0000004430 ROCK SPRINGS RD MILLER RD FORREST RUN 891.3 0.51 30482 3,387 559 86,620$      26$             Collector 2020 -$                $  13,750.77 28,166.99$   22,944.99$     64,862.75$     19.15$     )

0000004440 ROCK SPRINGS RD FORREST RUN CHRISTIAN SPRINGS DR 1726.9 0.65 39373 4,375 722 111,885$    26$             Collector 2020 -$                $  17,761.60 36,382.75$   29,637.59$     83,781.94$     19.15$     )

0000004450 ROCK SPRINGS RD CHRISTIAN SPRINGS DR HILSON HEAD LN 927.7 0.53 31727 3,525 582 90,158$      26$             Collector 2020 -$                $  14,312.40 29,317.44$   23,882.15$     67,511.99$     19.15$     )

0000004460 ROCK SPRINGS RD HILSON HEAD LN PANOLA RD 246.8 0.19 14537 1,615 267 41,309$      26$             Collector 2020 -$                $    6,557.80 13,432.96$   10,942.57$     30,933.33$     19.15$     )

S1500 S1500 MALL PKWY KLONDIKE RD TURNER HILL RD 6746.6 6.39 4E+05 46,423 7,660 1,187,280$ 26$             Minor Arterial 42.3 ######## 2021 22.50$           ########## 386,079.65$ 314,502.59$   889,061.42$   19.15$     )

0000001590 MALL PKWY KLONDIKE RD STONECREST SQ 1380.2 1.31 73427 8,159 1,346 208,655$    26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $  33,123.74 67,850.46$   55,271.36$     156,245.56$   19.15$     )

0000001600 MALL PKWY STONECREST SQ STONECREST TRCE 1044.3 0.99 62566 6,952 1,147 177,792$    26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $  28,224.22 57,814.32$   47,095.86$     133,134.40$   19.15$     )

0000001610 MALL PKWY STONECREST TRCE STONECREST PROMENADE 2049.5 1.94 1E+05 14,350 2,368 367,004$    26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $  58,261.45 119,342.41$ 97,216.98$     274,820.84$   19.15$     )

0000001620 MALL PKWY STONECREST PROMENADE TURNER HILL RD 2272.6 2.15 2E+05 16,963 2,799 433,829$    26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $  68,869.78 141,072.45$ 114,918.39$   324,860.62$   19.15$     )

S2130 S2130 BELMONT RIDGE DR 4177.4 1.58 1E+05 14,097 2,326 360,534$    26$             Local 42.8 $317,185 22.50$            $  57,234.27 117,238.34$ 95,502.99$     269,975.61$   19.15$     )

0000002020 BELMONT RIDGE DR NORTH END BELMONT RIDGE CIR 460.1 0.17 13811 1,535 253 39,246$      26$             Local -$                $    6,230.30 12,762.10$   10,396.08$     29,388.47$     19.15$     )

0000002030 BELMONT RIDGE DR BELMONT RIDGE CIR BELMONT RIDGE CIR 1477.8 0.56 47667 5,296 874 135,454$    26$             Local -$                $  21,503.11 44,046.85$   35,880.80$     101,430.77$   19.15$     )

0000002040 BELMONT RIDGE DR BELMONT RIDGE CIR EVANS MILL RD 257.1 0.10 6986 776 128 19,852$      26$             Local -$                $    3,151.46 6,455.44$      5,258.63$       14,865.53$     19.15$     )

0000002050 BELMONT RIDGE CIR BELMONT RIDGE DR MANCHESTER LN 468.2 0.18 16287 1,810 299 46,282$      26$             Local -$                $    7,347.25 15,050.06$   12,259.86$     34,657.16$     19.15$     )

0000002060 BELMONT RIDGE CIR MANCHESTER LN BELMONT RIDGE DR 1250.4 0.47 31180 3,464 572 88,603$      26$             Local -$                $  14,065.64 28,811.98$   23,470.40$     66,348.03$     19.15$     )

0000002070 MANCHESTER LN BELMONT RIDGE CIR END 263.8 0.10 10943 1,216 201 31,096$      26$             Local -$                $    4,936.51 10,111.92$   8,237.22$       23,285.65$     19.15$     )

S960 S960 DEEVERS CT 324.8 0.12 13097 1,455 240 37,217$      26$             Local 42.9 $32,742 22.50$            $    5,908.20 12,102.33$   9,858.62$       27,869.15$     19.15$     )

0000004200 DEEVERS CT CLEVELAND RD END 324.8 0.12 13097 1,455 240 37,217$      26$             Local -$                $    5,908.20 12,102.33$   9,858.62$       27,869.15$     19.15$     )

S490 S490 HILLANDALE DR 1011.3 0.38 39866 4,430 731 113,286$    26$             Local 43.2 $99,665 22.50$            $  17,984.00 36,838.31$   30,008.69$     84,830.99$     19.15$     )

0000015440 HILLANDALE DR END HUBERT ST 332.5 0.13 10576 1,175 194 30,053$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    4,770.95 9,772.79$      7,960.97$       22,504.71$     19.15$     )

0000015450 HILLANDALE DR HUBERT ST EVANS MILL RD 678.8 0.26 29290 3,254 537 83,232$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $  13,213.04 27,065.52$   22,047.72$     62,326.29$     19.15$     )

S1380 S1380 STEWART LAKE CT 1742.8 0.66 52166 5,796 956 148,238$    26$             Local 43.2 $130,415 22.50$            $  23,532.66 48,204.17$   39,267.38$     111,004.21$   19.15$     )

0000011550 STEWART LAKE CT END EVANS MILL RD 1742.8 0.66 52166 5,796 956 148,238$    26$             Local -$                $  23,532.66 48,204.17$   39,267.38$     111,004.21$   19.15$     )

S2410 S2410 PANOLA RD SNAPFINGER WOODS DR PANOLA WAY LN 8212.9 7.78 5E+05 55,079 9,088 1,408,637$ 26$             Major Arterial 43.3 ######## 2021 22.50$           ########## 458,060.63$ 373,138.69$   ########### 19.15$     )

0000000250 PANOLA RD SNAPFINGER WOODS DR SHIREWICK DR 1332.4 1.26 81121 9,013 1,487 230,519$    26$             Major Arterial 2021 -$                $  36,594.58 74,960.13$   61,062.93$     172,617.65$   19.15$     )

0000000260 PANOLA RD SHIREWICK DR DIVIDEND DR 1548.3 1.47 1E+05 11,954 1,972 305,718$    26$             Major Arterial 2021 -$                $  48,532.34 99,413.35$   80,982.66$     228,928.35$   19.15$     )

0000000270 PANOLA RD DIVIDEND DR MILLER GROVE RD 683.3 0.65 35053 3,895 643 99,609$      26$             Major Arterial 2021 -$                $  15,812.80 32,390.84$   26,385.76$     74,589.40$     19.15$     )

0000000280 PANOLA RD MILLER GROVE RD BENTON DR 443.8 0.42 22767 2,530 417 64,696$      26$             Major Arterial 2021 -$                $  10,270.45 21,037.92$   17,137.61$     48,445.98$     19.15$     )

0000000290 PANOLA RD BENTON DR COVINGTON HWY 1401.9 1.33 85477 9,497 1,567 242,897$    26$             Major Arterial 2021 -$                $  38,559.62 78,985.31$   64,341.86$     181,886.79$   19.15$     )

0000000300 PANOLA RD COVINGTON HWY MALLARD TRL 1145 1.30 78641 8,738 1,442 223,472$    26$             Major Arterial 2021 -$                $  35,475.83 72,668.48$   59,196.14$     167,340.45$   19.15$     )

0000000310 PANOLA RD MALLARD TRL PERCHING PL 824 0.78 42271 4,697 775 120,120$    26$             Major Arterial 2021 -$                $  19,068.92 39,060.66$   31,819.03$     89,948.60$     19.15$     )

0000000320 PANOLA RD PERCHING PL PANOLA WAY LN 834.2 0.79 42794 4,755 785 121,606$    26$             Major Arterial 2021 -$                $  19,304.85 39,543.94$   32,212.71$     91,061.50$     19.15$     )

S2170 S2170 SAWGRASS DR 3317.4 1.26 92982 10,331 1,705 264,224$    26$             Local 43.6 $232,455 22.50$            $  41,945.21 85,920.33$   69,991.17$     197,856.71$   19.15$     )

0000001860 FLAT ROCK WOODS DR EVANS MILL RD SAWGRASS CIR 422.9 0.16 10301 1,145 189 29,272$      26$             Local -$                $    4,646.90 9,518.67$      7,753.96$       21,919.53$     19.15$     )

0000001870 SAWGRASS CIR WEST END SAWGRASS DR 100.9 0.04 6866 763 126 19,511$      26$             Local -$                $    3,097.33 6,344.55$      5,168.31$       14,610.18$     19.15$     )

0000001880 SAWGRASS CIR SAWGRASS DR FLAT ROCK WOODS DR 708 0.27 14657 1,629 269 41,650$      26$             Local -$                $    6,611.94 13,543.85$   11,032.89$     31,188.68$     19.15$     )

0000001890 SAWGRASS CIR FLAT ROCK WOODS DR SAWGRASS DR 813.7 0.31 23579 2,620 432 67,004$      26$             Local -$                $  10,636.75 21,788.25$   17,748.83$     50,173.83$     19.15$     )

0000001900 SAWGRASS CIR SAWGRASS DR EAST END 132.5 0.05 7400 822 136 21,028$      26$             Local -$                $    3,338.22 6,837.99$      5,570.27$       15,746.48$     19.15$     )

0000001910 SAWGRASS DR SAWGRASS CIR [W] SAWGRASS CIR [E] 1139.4 0.43 30179 3,353 553 85,759$      26$             Local -$                $  13,614.08 27,887.01$   22,716.91$     64,217.99$     19.15$     )

S320 S320 PHILLIPS ST 653.5 0.25 13840 1,538 254 39,329$      26$             Local 43.9 $34,600 22.50$            $    6,243.38 12,788.90$   10,417.91$     29,450.18$     19.15$     )

0000015650 PHILLIPS ST END PARKWAY RD 653.5 0.25 13840 1,538 254 39,329$      26$             Local -$                $    6,243.38 12,788.90$   10,417.91$     29,450.18$     19.15$     )

S530 S530 HILLANDALE PARK DR 3636 1.38 95281 10,587 1,747 270,757$    26$             Local 44.5 $238,202 22.50$            $  42,982.32 88,044.73$   71,721.71$     202,748.76$   19.15$     )

0000015330 HILLANDALE PARK DR HILLANDALE DR HILLANDALE CT 195.5 0.07 5351 595 98 15,206$      26$             Local -$                $    2,413.90 4,944.61$      4,027.91$       11,386.41$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

13 3:28 PM

146

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000015340 HILLANDALE PARK DR HILLANDALE CT HILLANDALE PARK WAY 357.9 0.14 7826 870 143 22,239$      26$             Local -$                $    3,530.40 7,231.64$      5,890.93$       16,652.97$     19.15$     )

0000015350 HILLANDALE PARK DR HILLANDALE PARK WAY HILLANDALE LN [S] 306.4 0.12 6959 773 128 19,775$      26$             Local -$                $    3,139.28 6,430.49$      5,238.31$       14,808.08$     19.15$     )

0000015360 HILLANDALE PARK DR HILLANDALE LN [S] HILLANDALE LN [N] 1176.5 0.45 25461 2,829 467 72,352$      26$             Local -$                $  11,485.74 23,527.32$   19,165.48$     54,178.55$     19.15$     )

0000015370 HILLANDALE CT HILLANDALE PARK DR END 110.4 0.04 6924 769 127 19,676$      26$             Local -$                $    3,123.49 6,398.15$      5,211.96$       14,733.60$     19.15$     )

0000015380 HILLANDALE PARK WAY HILLANDALE PARK DR END 255.1 0.10 10424 1,158 191 29,622$      26$             Local -$                $    4,702.38 9,632.33$      7,846.55$       22,181.26$     19.15$     )

0000015390 HILLANDALE LN HILLANDALE PARK DR [S] HILLANDALE PARK DR [N] 874.3 0.33 20073 2,230 368 57,041$      26$             Local -$                $    9,055.15 18,548.52$   15,109.73$     42,713.40$     19.15$     )

0000015400 HILLANDALE LN HILLANDALE PARK DR [N] END 359.9 0.14 12263 1,363 225 34,847$      26$             Local -$                $    5,531.98 11,331.67$   9,230.84$       26,094.48$     19.15$     )

S1920 S1920 LATCHWOOD DR 3372.3 1.28 1E+05 11,995 1,979 306,764$    26$             Local 44.8 $269,880 22.50$            $  48,698.35 99,753.41$   81,259.67$     229,711.42$   19.15$     )

0000008180 LATCHWOOD DR END POST RIDGE TRL 837.5 0.32 24962 2,774 458 70,934$      26$             Local -$                $  11,260.64 23,066.22$   18,789.87$     53,116.72$     19.15$     )

0000008190 LATCHWOOD DR POST RIDGE TRL LATCHWOOD CT 628.3 0.24 15689 1,743 288 44,583$      26$             Local -$                $    7,077.48 14,497.47$   11,809.72$     33,384.68$     19.15$     )

0000008200 LATCHWOOD DR LATCHWOOD CT BROWNS MILL RD 724.3 0.27 25118 2,791 460 71,377$      26$             Local -$                $  11,331.01 23,210.37$   18,907.30$     53,448.68$     19.15$     )

0000008210 LATCHWOOD CT LATCHWOOD DR END 147.8 0.06 7586 843 139 21,557$      26$             Local -$                $    3,422.13 7,009.87$      5,710.28$       16,142.27$     19.15$     )

0000008220 POST RIDGE TRL LATCHWOOD DR POST RIDGE LN 296.5 0.11 8145 905 149 23,145$      26$             Local -$                $    3,674.30 7,526.41$      6,131.06$       17,331.77$     19.15$     )

0000008230 POST RIDGE LN SOUTH END POST RIDGE TRL 437.2 0.17 14848 1,650 272 42,193$      26$             Local -$                $    6,698.10 13,720.34$   11,176.67$     31,595.11$     19.15$     )

0000008240 POST RIDGE LN POST RIDGE TRL NORTH END 300.7 0.11 11604 1,289 213 32,975$      26$             Local -$                $    5,234.69 10,722.71$   8,734.78$       24,692.19$     19.15$     )

S1530 S1530 STONECREST PROMENADE 639.7 0.24 35880 3,987 658 101,959$    26$             Local 44.9 $89,700 22.50$            $  16,185.87 33,155.03$   27,008.27$     76,349.17$     19.15$     )

0000012860 STONECREST PROMENADE MALL PKWY MALL RING RD 639.7 0.24 35880 3,987 658 101,959$    26$             Local -$                $  16,185.87 33,155.03$   27,008.27$     76,349.17$     19.15$     )

S1420 S1420 ROCKVIEW DR 8091.3 3.06 2E+05 23,922 3,947 611,797$    26$             Local 45.1 $538,238 22.50$            $  97,121.97 198,944.06$ 162,060.92$   458,126.95$   19.15$     )

0000011020 ROCKVIEW WAY EVANS MILL RD S ROCKVIEW CT 396.9 0.15 10016 1,113 184 28,462$      26$             Local -$                $    4,518.33 9,255.32$      7,539.43$       21,313.08$     19.15$     )

0000011030 ROCKVIEW WAY S ROCKVIEW CT E EVANS MILL CT 470.8 0.18 11350 1,261 208 32,253$      26$             Local -$                $    5,120.11 10,488.01$   8,543.59$       24,151.70$     19.15$     )

0000011040 ROCKVIEW WAY E EVANS MILL CT ROCKVIEW DR 457.4 0.17 9639 1,071 177 27,391$      26$             Local -$                $    4,348.26 8,906.95$      7,255.65$       20,510.86$     19.15$     )

0000011050 S ROCKVIEW CT ROCKVIEW WAY END 261.4 0.10 11397 1,266 209 32,386$      26$             Local -$                $    5,141.31 10,531.44$   8,578.97$       24,251.71$     19.15$     )

0000011060 E EVANS MILL CT END ROCKVIEW WAY 854.9 0.32 27926 3,103 512 79,356$      26$             Local -$                $  12,597.73 25,805.11$   21,020.99$     59,423.83$     19.15$     )

0000011070 ROCKVIEW DR END ROCKVIEW WAY 769.9 0.29 22424 2,492 411 63,722$      26$             Local -$                $  10,115.72 20,720.97$   16,879.42$     47,716.10$     19.15$     )

0000011080 ROCKVIEW DR ROCKVIEW WAY BOULDER BROOK DR 527.5 0.20 12781 1,420 234 36,319$      26$             Local -$                $    5,765.65 11,810.33$   9,620.76$       27,196.73$     19.15$     )

0000011090 ROCKVIEW DR BOULDER BROOK DR EVANS MILL WAY 1187 0.45 32675 3,631 599 92,851$      26$             Local -$                $  14,740.06 30,193.44$   24,595.74$     69,529.24$     19.15$     )

0000011100 BOULDER BROOK DR ROCKVIEW DR BOULDER BROOK WAY 516.5 0.20 10693 1,188 196 30,386$      26$             Local -$                $    4,823.73 9,880.90$      8,049.04$       22,753.67$     19.15$     )

0000011110 BOULDER BROOK DR BOULDER BROOK WAY END 1130.2 0.43 31678 3,520 581 90,018$      26$             Local -$                $  14,290.30 29,272.16$   23,845.26$     67,407.72$     19.15$     )

0000011120 BOULDER BROOK WAY BOULDER BROOK DR END 171 0.06 3369 374 62 9,574$        26$             Local -$                $    1,519.79 3,113.14$      2,535.98$       7,168.91$       19.15$     )

0000011130 EVANS MILL WAY EVANS MILL RD WOODROW PL 883.3 0.33 19838 2,204 364 56,373$      26$             Local -$                $    8,949.14 18,331.37$   14,932.83$     42,213.35$     19.15$     )

0000011140 EVANS MILL WAY WOODROW PL ROCKVIEW DR 291 0.11 7240 804 133 20,574$      26$             Local -$                $    3,266.04 6,690.15$      5,449.83$       15,406.02$     19.15$     )

0000011150 EVANS MILL WAY ROCKVIEW DR END 173.5 0.07 4269 474 78 12,131$      26$             Local -$                $    1,925.79 3,944.78$      3,213.44$       9,084.02$       19.15$     )

S1040 S1040 GREEN WAY 1064.6 0.40 25982 2,887 476 73,832$      26$             Local 45.3 $64,955 22.50$            $  11,720.77 24,008.75$   19,557.66$     55,287.18$     19.15$     )

0000000350 GREEN WAY SNAPFINGER RD END 1064.6 0.40 25982 2,887 476 73,832$      26$             Local -$                $  11,720.77 24,008.75$   19,557.66$     55,287.18$     19.15$     )

S460 S460 HILLANDALE DR PANOLA RD DEKALB MEDICAL PKWY 7300.5 2.77 2E+05 24,099 3,976 616,326$    26$             Collector 45.4 $542,222 22.50$            $  97,841.04 200,417.00$ 163,260.78$   461,518.83$   19.15$     )

0000013320 HILLANDALE DR PANOLA RD HILLANDALE PARK CT 870.4 0.66 24713 2,746 453 70,226$      26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $  11,148.31 22,836.13$   18,602.44$     52,586.88$     19.15$     )

0000013330 HILLANDALE DR HILLANDALE PARK CT CONCEPTS 21 DR 2678.1 1.01 71096 7,900 1,303 202,031$    26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $  32,072.20 65,696.50$   53,516.72$     151,285.42$   19.15$     )

0000013340 HILLANDALE DR CONCEPTS 21 DR KEYSTONE GATES DR 1307.2 0.74 40441 4,493 741 114,920$    26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $  18,243.38 37,369.64$   30,441.51$     86,054.54$     19.15$     )

0000013350 HILLANDALE DR KEYSTONE GATES DR APARTMENT RD 1396.6 0.79 35427 3,936 649 100,672$    26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $  15,981.51 32,736.44$   26,667.28$     75,385.23$     19.15$     )

0000013360 HILLANDALE DR APARTMENT RD DEKALB MEDICAL PKWY 1048.2 0.79 45212 5,024 829 128,477$    26$             Collector GDOT responsibility -$                $  20,395.64 41,778.30$   34,032.83$     96,206.77$     19.15$     )

S330 S330 HAWES DR 3248.3 1.23 73480 8,164 1,347 208,806$    26$             Local 45.5 $183,700 22.50$            $  33,147.64 67,899.44$   55,311.25$     156,358.34$   19.15$     )

0000015560 LAYTON DR COVINGTON HWY OLD COVINGTON RD 144.1 0.05 3909 434 72 11,108$      26$             Local -$                $    1,763.39 3,612.12$      2,942.46$       8,317.97$       19.15$     )

0000015570 LAYTON DR OLD COVINGTON RD HAWES DR 662.2 0.25 16147 1,794 296 45,884$      26$             Local -$                $    7,284.09 14,920.69$   12,154.47$     34,359.26$     19.15$     )

0000015580 LAYTON DR HAWES DR END 194.3 0.07 8339 927 153 23,697$      26$             Local -$                $    3,761.82 7,705.68$      6,277.09$       17,744.59$     19.15$     )

0000015590 HAWES DR LAYTON DR SPRING ST 847.7 0.32 18857 2,095 346 53,585$      26$             Local -$                $    8,506.60 17,424.87$   14,194.40$     40,125.87$     19.15$     )

0000015600 SPRING ST OLD COVINGTON RD HAWES DR 777.6 0.29 13518 1,502 248 38,414$      26$             Local -$                $    6,098.12 12,491.35$   10,175.52$     28,765.00$     19.15$     )

0000015610 SPRING ST HAWES DR PARKWAY RD 622.4 0.24 12710 1,412 233 36,118$      26$             Local -$                $    5,733.62 11,744.72$   9,567.31$       27,045.65$     19.15$     )

S1710 S1710 ROUNDTREE LN 2386.7 0.90 74075 8,231 1,358 210,496$    26$             Local 45.5 $185,188 22.50$            $  33,416.06 68,449.25$   55,759.13$     157,624.44$   19.15$     )

0000010460 ROUNDTREE LN END S GODDARD RD 2386.7 0.90 74075 8,231 1,358 210,496$    26$             Local -$                $  33,416.06 68,449.25$   55,759.13$     157,624.44$   19.15$     )

S1370 S1370 SPRING LAKE OVERLOOK 5564.6 2.11 2E+05 18,684 3,083 477,843$    26$             Local 45.8 $420,390 22.50$            $  75,857.04 155,385.11$ 126,577.56$   357,819.71$   19.15$     )

0000010840 SPRING LAKE OVERLOOK EVANS MILL RD SPRING LAKE WALK 194.6 0.07 5109 568 94 14,518$      26$             Local -$                $    2,304.73 4,720.99$      3,845.74$       10,871.46$     19.15$     )

0000010850 SPRING LAKE OVERLOOK SPRING LAKE WALK LAKEVIEW OVERLOOK 443.5 0.17 11187 1,243 205 31,790$      26$             Local -$                $    5,046.58 10,337.38$   8,420.89$       23,804.85$     19.15$     )

0000010860 SPRING LAKE OVERLOOK LAKEVIEW OVERLOOK LAKESIDE CIR 412.4 0.16 9048 1,005 166 25,711$      26$             Local -$                $    4,081.65 8,360.83$      6,810.78$       19,253.27$     19.15$     )

0000010870 SPRING LAKE OVERLOOK LAKESIDE CIR HIDDEN LAKE WALK 408 0.15 9582 1,065 176 27,229$      26$             Local -$                $    4,322.55 8,854.28$      7,212.74$       20,389.57$     19.15$     )

0000010880 SPRING LAKE OVERLOOK HIDDEN LAKE WALK SPRING LAKE HOLW 234.9 0.09 5267 585 97 14,967$      26$             Local -$                $    2,376.00 4,866.99$      3,964.68$       11,207.67$     19.15$     )

0000010890 SPRING LAKE OVERLOOK SPRING LAKE HOLW CRYSTAL CV 240.6 0.09 5062 562 93 14,385$      26$             Local -$                $    2,283.52 4,677.56$      3,810.36$       10,771.45$     19.15$     )

0000010900 SPRING LAKE OVERLOOK CRYSTAL CV END 562.8 0.21 16082 1,787 295 45,700$      26$             Local -$                $    7,254.77 14,860.63$   12,105.55$     34,220.94$     19.15$     )

0000010910 CRYSTAL CV SPRING LAKE OVERLOOK END 507.1 0.19 16251 1,806 298 46,180$      26$             Local -$                $    7,331.01 15,016.79$   12,232.76$     34,580.56$     19.15$     )

0000010920 SPRING LAKE HOLW END SPRING LAKE OVERLOOK 207.2 0.08 10091 1,121 185 28,675$      26$             Local -$                $    4,552.16 9,324.62$      7,595.89$       21,472.67$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

14 3:28 PM

147

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000010930 HIDDEN LAKE WALK END SPRING LAKE OVERLOOK 273.9 0.10 10083 1,120 185 28,653$      26$             Local -$                $    4,548.55 9,317.23$      7,589.87$       21,455.65$     19.15$     )

0000010940 LAKESIDE CIR SPRING LAKE OVERLOOK END 265.3 0.10 10279 1,142 188 29,209$      26$             Local -$                $    4,636.97 9,498.34$      7,737.40$       21,872.72$     19.15$     )

0000010950 SPRING LAKE WALK SPRING LAKE OVERLOOK END 267.6 0.10 10044 1,116 184 28,542$      26$             Local -$                $    4,530.96 9,281.19$      7,560.51$       21,372.66$     19.15$     )

0000010960 LAKEVIEW OVERLOOK END MAPLELEAF CT 187.6 0.07 8391 932 154 23,844$      26$             Local -$                $    3,785.27 7,753.73$      6,316.23$       17,855.24$     19.15$     )

0000010970 LAKEVIEW OVERLOOK MAPLELEAF CT LAKEVIEW LNDG 462.9 0.18 11249 1,250 206 31,966$      26$             Local -$                $    5,074.55 10,394.68$   8,467.56$       23,936.78$     19.15$     )

0000010980 LAKEVIEW OVERLOOK LAKEVIEW LNDG SPRING LAKE OVERLOOK 446.9 0.17 11976 1,331 220 34,032$      26$             Local -$                $    5,402.51 11,066.46$   9,014.80$       25,483.77$     19.15$     )

0000010990 MAPLELEAF CT END LAKEVIEW OVERLOOK 266 0.10 10371 1,152 190 29,471$      26$             Local -$                $    4,678.47 9,583.36$      7,806.66$       22,068.49$     19.15$     )

0000011000 LAKEVIEW LNDG LAKEVIEW OVERLOOK END 183.3 0.07 8084 898 148 22,972$      26$             Local -$                $    3,646.78 7,470.05$      6,085.14$       17,201.97$     19.15$     )

S2230 S2230 MINERS CREEK CIR 1569.7 0.59 44905 4,989 823 127,605$    26$             Local 46.2 $112,262 22.50$            $  20,257.14 41,494.61$   33,801.74$     95,553.50$     19.15$     )

0000000950 MINERS CREEK CIR PANOLA RD [S] PANOLA RD [N] 1569.7 0.59 44905 4,989 823 127,605$    26$             Local -$                $  20,257.14 41,494.61$   33,801.74$     95,553.50$     19.15$     )

S1940 S1940 CARRIAGE PARK DR 3244.4 1.23 90980 10,109 1,668 258,535$    26$             Local 46.5 $227,450 22.50$            $  41,042.09 84,070.37$   68,484.18$     193,596.65$   19.15$     )

0000007890 CARRIAGE PARK DR SOUTH END KINGSTON WOOD WAY 644.4 0.24 16557 1,840 304 47,049$      26$             Local -$                $    7,469.05 15,299.55$   12,463.10$     35,231.70$     19.15$     )

0000007900 CARRIAGE PARK DR KINGSTON WOOD WAY CARRIAGE VIEW PL 698.2 0.26 15758 1,751 289 44,779$      26$             Local -$                $    7,108.61 14,561.23$   11,861.66$     33,531.50$     19.15$     )

0000007910 CARRIAGE PARK DR CARRIAGE VIEW PL TRAILSIDE CV 253.4 0.10 5059 562 93 14,376$      26$             Local -$                $    2,282.17 4,674.79$      3,808.11$       10,765.06$     19.15$     )

0000007920 CARRIAGE PARK DR TRAILSIDE CV BROWNS MILL RD 179.9 0.07 4561 507 84 12,961$      26$             Local -$                $    2,057.52 4,214.61$      3,433.24$       9,705.37$       19.15$     )

0000007930 KINGSTON WOOD WAY END BRIDLE RIDGE WAY 543.1 0.21 15492 1,721 284 44,023$      26$             Local -$                $    6,988.61 14,315.43$   11,661.43$     32,965.48$     19.15$     )

0000007940 KINGSTON WOOD WAY BRIDLE RIDGE WAY CARRIAGE PARK DR 253.3 0.10 5150 572 94 14,635$      26$             Local -$                $    2,323.22 4,758.87$      3,876.61$       10,958.70$     19.15$     )

0000007950 BRIDLE RIDGE WAY END KINGSTON WOOD WAY 394.4 0.15 14158 1,573 260 40,232$      26$             Local -$                $    6,386.83 13,082.75$   10,657.28$     30,126.86$     19.15$     )

0000007960 CARRIAGE VIEW PL END CARRIAGE PARK DR 143.7 0.05 7384 820 135 20,983$      26$             Local -$                $    3,331.00 6,823.21$      5,558.22$       15,712.44$     19.15$     )

0000007970 TRAILSIDE CV END CARRIAGE PARK DR 134 0.05 6861 762 126 19,497$      26$             Local -$                $    3,095.07 6,339.93$      5,164.54$       14,599.54$     19.15$     )

S2350 S2350 TURNER HILL RD HAYDEN QUARRY RD I-20 WB 4617.5 3.50 3E+05 35,709 5,892 913,246$    26$             Major Arterial 46.7 $803,442 2021 22.50$           ########## 296,969.49$ 241,912.97$   683,859.19$   19.15$     )

0000010650 TURNER HILL RD HAYDEN QUARRY RD HAYDEN QUARRY RD 149.1 0.06 3116 346 57 8,855$        26$             Major Arterial 2021 -$                $    1,405.66 2,879.35$      2,345.53$       6,630.55$       19.15$     )

0000010660 TURNER HILL RD HAYDEN QUARRY RD MALL PKWY 1211.7 0.92 52951 5,883 971 150,469$    26$             Major Arterial 2021 -$                $  23,886.78 48,929.55$   39,858.28$     112,674.61$   19.15$     )

0000010670 TURNER HILL RD MALL PKWY STONECREST CONCOURSE 1086.1 1.44 1E+05 11,757 1,940 300,680$    26$             Major Arterial 2021 -$                $  47,732.52 97,775.01$   79,648.05$     225,155.58$   19.15$     )

0000010680 TURNER HILL RD STONECREST CONCOURSE STONECREST PKWY 896.8 1.19 61341 6,816 1,125 174,311$    26$             Major Arterial 2021 -$                $  27,671.61 56,682.36$   46,173.76$     130,527.72$   19.15$     )

0000010690 TURNER HILL RD STONECREST PKWY I-20 EB ON RAMP 778.6 1.33 68050 7,561 1,248 193,375$    26$             Major Arterial 2021 -$                $  30,698.11 62,881.83$   51,223.88$     144,803.82$   19.15$     )

0000010700 TURNER HILL RD I-20 EB ON RAMP I-20 WB 495.2 0.56 30108 3,345 552 85,557$      26$             Major Arterial 2021 -$                $  13,582.05 27,821.40$   22,663.46$     64,066.91$     19.15$     )

S1870 S1870 KLONDIKE RIVER RD 3432.6 1.30 96117 10,680 1,762 273,132$    26$             Local 47.1 $240,292 22.50$            $  43,359.45 88,817.23$   72,351.00$     204,527.68$   19.15$     )

0000009200 KLONDIKE DR JACKAM RIDGE CT KLONDIKE RIVER RD 284.2 0.11 6579 731 121 18,695$      26$             Local -$                $    2,967.86 6,079.35$      4,952.27$       13,999.48$     19.15$     )

0000009210 KLONDIKE DR KLONDIKE RIVER RD END 195 0.07 8175 908 150 23,231$      26$             Local -$                $    3,687.83 7,554.14$      6,153.64$       17,395.61$     19.15$     )

0000009220 KLONDIKE RIVER RD END KLONDIKE CIR 509.2 0.19 14940 1,660 274 42,455$      26$             Local -$                $    6,739.60 13,805.36$   11,245.92$     31,790.88$     19.15$     )

0000009230 KLONDIKE RIVER RD KLONDIKE CIR KLONDIKE DR 290.1 0.11 6275 697 115 17,831$      26$             Local -$                $    2,830.72 5,798.43$      4,723.44$       13,352.59$     19.15$     )

0000009240 KLONDIKE RIVER RD KLONDIKE DR KLONDIKE CV 289.2 0.11 6659 740 122 18,923$      26$             Local -$                $    3,003.95 6,153.27$      5,012.49$       14,169.71$     19.15$     )

0000009250 KLONDIKE RIVER RD KLONDIKE CV KLONDIKE WALK 289.8 0.11 6512 724 119 18,505$      26$             Local -$                $    2,937.64 6,017.44$      4,901.84$       13,856.91$     19.15$     )

0000009260 KLONDIKE RIVER RD KLONDIKE WALK KLONDIKE RD 1057 0.40 24891 2,766 456 70,732$      26$             Local -$                $  11,228.61 23,000.61$   18,736.42$     52,965.64$     19.15$     )

0000009270 KLONDIKE CIR END KLONDIKE RIVER RD 224.2 0.08 9345 1,038 171 26,555$      26$             Local -$                $    4,215.63 8,635.28$      7,034.34$       19,885.26$     19.15$     )

0000009280 KLONDIKE CV KLONDIKE RIVER RD END 155.4 0.06 5841 649 107 16,598$      26$             Local -$                $    2,634.94 5,397.40$      4,396.75$       12,429.08$     19.15$     )

0000009290 KLONDIKE WALK KLONDIKE RIVER RD END 138.5 0.05 6900 767 127 19,608$      26$             Local -$                $    3,112.67 6,375.97$      5,193.90$       14,682.53$     19.15$     )

S740 S740 SNAPFINGER PARK DR 2528.4 0.96 79982 8,887 1,466 227,282$    26$             Local 47.3 $199,955 22.50$            $  36,080.77 73,907.63$   60,205.56$     170,193.96$   19.15$     )

0000013790 SNAPFINGER PARK DR END EASTERLY PL 493.5 0.19 20552 2,284 377 58,402$      26$             Local -$                $    9,271.24 18,991.14$   15,470.29$     43,732.67$     19.15$     )

0000013800 SNAPFINGER PARK DR EASTERLY PL PANOLA RD 1424.6 0.54 41931 4,659 769 119,154$    26$             Local -$                $  18,915.54 38,746.48$   31,563.09$     89,225.11$     19.15$     )

0000013820 EASTERLY PL SNAPFINGER PARK DR PANOLA INDUSTRIAL BLVD 610.3 0.23 17499 1,944 321 49,726$      26$             Local -$                $    7,893.99 16,170.01$   13,172.18$     37,236.18$     19.15$     )

S140 S140 CHAPMAN RD 646.9 0.25 17230 1,914 316 48,962$      26$             Local 47.6 $43,075 22.50$            $    7,772.64 15,921.44$   12,969.69$     36,663.77$     19.15$     )

0000017240 CHAPMAN RD LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD END 646.9 0.25 17230 1,914 316 48,962$      26$             Local -$                $    7,772.64 15,921.44$   12,969.69$     36,663.77$     19.15$     )

S1670 S1670 MCDANIEL MILL RD FALLS BROOKE DR ROCKLAND RD 4567.7 1.73 98976 10,997 1,815 281,257$    26$             Minor Arterial 48.2 $247,440 2021 22.50$            $  44,649.17 91,459.10$   74,503.08$     210,611.36$   19.15$     )

0000011800 MCDANIEL MILL RD FALLS BROOKE DR GRANITE TER 2135.2 0.81 44626 4,958 818 126,812$    26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $  20,131.28 41,236.80$   33,591.73$     94,959.81$     19.15$     )

0000011810 MCDANIEL MILL RD GRANITE TER WATER WILLOW WAY 331.4 0.19 10437 1,160 191 29,658$      26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $    4,708.25 9,644.34$      7,856.34$       22,208.93$     19.15$     )

0000011820 MCDANIEL MILL RD WATER WILLOW WAY MOSS STONE DR 1711.6 0.65 35772 3,975 656 101,652$    26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $  16,137.15 33,055.24$   26,926.98$     76,119.36$     19.15$     )

0000011830 MCDANIEL MILL RD MOSS STONE DR ROCKLAND RD 389.5 0.15 8141 905 149 23,134$      26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $    3,672.50 7,522.72$      6,128.05$       17,323.26$     19.15$     )

S700 S700 SNAPFINGER WOODS DR ACUITY WAY PANOLA RD 5375.1 4.07 2E+05 23,095 3,811 590,655$    26$             Minor Arterial 48.6 $519,638 2021 22.50$            $  93,765.70 192,069.11$ 156,460.54$   442,295.35$   19.15$     )

0000013600 SNAPFINGER WOODS DR ACUITY WAY MILLER RD 1000 0.57 35738 3,971 655 101,555$    26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $  16,121.81 33,023.82$   26,901.38$     76,047.01$     19.15$     )

0000013610 SNAPFINGER WOODS DR MILLER RD SB MILLER RD NB 380.4 0.22 13732 1,526 252 39,022$      26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $    6,194.66 12,689.10$   10,336.61$     29,220.37$     19.15$     )

0000013620 SNAPFINGER WOODS DR MILLER RD NB LANTRAC CT 1573.5 1.19 61829 6,870 1,134 175,697$    26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $  27,891.75 57,133.29$   46,541.09$     131,566.14$   19.15$     )

0000013630 SNAPFINGER WOODS DR LANTRAC CT EASTERLY PL 131.5 0.10 4997 555 92 14,200$      26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $    2,254.20 4,617.49$      3,761.44$       10,633.13$     19.15$     )

0000013640 SNAPFINGER WOODS DR EASTERLY PL PARK CENTRAL BLVD 585.4 0.44 22245 2,472 408 63,213$      26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $  10,034.97 20,555.57$   16,744.68$     47,335.21$     19.15$     )

0000013650 SNAPFINGER WOODS DR PARK CENTRAL BLVD PANOLA RD 1704.3 1.29 69314 7,702 1,271 196,967$    26$             Minor Arterial 2021 -$                $  31,268.32 64,049.83$   52,175.34$     147,493.49$   19.15$     )

S1220 S1220 LA FLEUR TRL 10982 4.16 3E+05 34,919 5,762 893,045$    26$             Local 48.7 $785,670 22.50$           ########## 290,400.39$ 236,561.75$   668,731.92$   19.15$     )

0000005610 TASMAN TRL ROCK SPRINGS RD TASMAN CT 923.5 0.35 26504 2,945 486 75,316$      26$             Local -$                $  11,956.25 24,491.11$   19,950.59$     56,397.95$     19.15$     )

0000005620 TASMAN TRL TASMAN CT ARNHEM CT 268.5 0.10 7133 793 131 20,270$      26$             Local -$                $    3,217.78 6,591.27$      5,369.29$       15,178.33$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

15 3:28 PM

148

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000005630 TASMAN TRL ARNHEM CT ADELADE CT 285.2 0.11 7150 794 131 20,318$      26$             Local -$                $    3,225.44 6,606.98$      5,382.08$       15,214.51$     19.15$     )

0000005640 TASMAN TRL ADELADE CT TIMOR TRL 197.3 0.07 5173 575 95 14,700$      26$             Local -$                $    2,333.60 4,780.13$      3,893.92$       11,007.64$     19.15$     )

0000005650 TASMAN CT END TASMAN TRL 204.8 0.08 8501 945 156 24,157$      26$             Local -$                $    3,834.90 7,855.38$      6,399.03$       18,089.31$     19.15$     )

0000005660 ARNHEM CT END TASMAN TRL 172.3 0.07 7100 789 130 20,176$      26$             Local -$                $    3,202.89 6,560.78$      5,344.45$       15,108.11$     19.15$     )

0000005670 ADELADE CT END TASMAN TRL 160.3 0.06 7678 853 141 21,818$      26$             Local -$                $    3,463.63 7,094.88$      5,779.53$       16,338.04$     19.15$     )

0000005680 TIMOR TRL ROCK SPRINGS RD TASMAN TRL 501.1 0.19 13730 1,526 252 39,016$      26$             Local -$                $    6,193.76 12,687.25$   10,335.10$     29,216.11$     19.15$     )

0000005690 TIMOR TRL TASMAN TRL TIMOR TER 477.5 0.18 12328 1,370 226 35,032$      26$             Local -$                $    5,561.30 11,391.73$   9,279.77$       26,232.79$     19.15$     )

0000005700 TIMOR TRL TIMOR TER TIMOR CIR 584.7 0.22 15590 1,732 286 44,302$      26$             Local -$                $    7,032.82 14,405.99$   11,735.20$     33,174.01$     19.15$     )

0000005710 TIMOR TRL TIMOR CIR BRISBANE WAY 293 0.11 7156 795 131 20,335$      26$             Local -$                $    3,228.15 6,612.53$      5,386.60$       15,227.28$     19.15$     )

0000005720 TIMOR TRL BRISBANE WAY FORETTE LN 455.3 0.17 10268 1,141 188 29,178$      26$             Local -$                $    4,632.01 9,488.18$      7,729.12$       21,849.31$     19.15$     )

0000005730 TIMOR TRL FORETTE LN LA FLEUR TRL 305.7 0.12 8154 906 149 23,171$      26$             Local -$                $    3,678.36 7,534.73$      6,137.83$       17,350.92$     19.15$     )

0000005740 TIMOR TER END TIMOR TRL 212.9 0.08 12776 1,420 234 36,305$      26$             Local -$                $    5,763.40 11,805.71$   9,616.99$       27,186.09$     19.15$     )

0000005750 TIMOR CIR END TIMOR TRL 134.9 0.05 2995 333 55 8,511$        26$             Local -$                $    1,351.08 2,767.54$      2,254.45$       6,373.07$       19.15$     )

0000005760 BRISBANE WAY TIMOR TRL BRISBANE CT 528.7 0.20 13951 1,550 256 39,644$      26$             Local -$                $    6,293.45 12,891.47$   10,501.46$     29,686.38$     19.15$     )

0000005770 BRISBANE WAY BRISBANE CT LA FLEUR TRL 287.4 0.11 5486 610 101 15,589$      26$             Local -$                $    2,474.80 5,069.36$      4,129.53$       11,673.68$     19.15$     )

0000005780 BRISBANE WAY LA FLEUR TRL ROCK SPRINGS RD 199.7 0.08 4988 554 91 14,174$      26$             Local -$                $    2,250.14 4,609.18$      3,754.66$       10,613.98$     19.15$     )

0000005790 BRISBANE CT end BRISBANE WAY 305.2 0.12 12744 1,416 234 36,214$      26$             Local -$                $    5,748.96 11,776.14$   9,592.90$       27,118.00$     19.15$     )

0000005800 FORETTE LN TIMOR TRL LA FLEUR TRL 1071 0.41 27181 3,020 498 77,239$      26$             Local -$                $  12,261.65 25,116.69$   20,460.20$     57,838.54$     19.15$     )

0000005810 LA FLEUR TRL END TIMOR TRL 246.8 0.09 8911 990 163 25,322$      26$             Local -$                $    4,019.85 8,234.24$      6,707.66$       18,961.75$     19.15$     )

0000005820 LA FLEUR TRL TIMOR TRL MONETTE PL 702.8 0.27 16868 1,874 309 47,933$      26$             Local -$                $    7,609.34 15,586.93$   12,697.20$     35,893.47$     19.15$     )

0000005830 LA FLEUR TRL MONETTE PL MAISON CT 493.5 0.19 12348 1,372 226 35,089$      26$             Local -$                $    5,570.32 11,410.21$   9,294.82$       26,275.35$     19.15$     )

0000005840 LA FLEUR TRL MAISON CT FORETTE LN 1242.6 0.47 33668 3,741 617 95,673$      26$             Local -$                $  15,188.01 31,111.03$   25,343.21$     71,642.25$     19.15$     )

0000005850 LA FLEUR TRL FORETTE LN BRISBANE WAY 273.5 0.10 6792 755 125 19,301$      26$             Local -$                $    3,063.95 6,276.17$      5,112.60$       14,452.72$     19.15$     )

0000005860 MONETTE PL LA FLEUR TRL END 172.3 0.07 7900 878 145 22,449$      26$             Local -$                $    3,563.78 7,300.02$      5,946.64$       16,810.44$     19.15$     )

0000005870 MAISON CT END LA FLEUR TRL 281.7 0.11 11195 1,244 205 31,812$      26$             Local -$                $    5,050.19 10,344.78$   8,426.91$       23,821.88$     19.15$     )

S1910 S1910 SUNFLOWER PL 4625.9 1.75 1E+05 15,178 2,504 388,169$    26$             Local 49 $239,048 15.75$            $  61,621.33 126,224.76$ 102,823.38$   290,669.47$   19.15$     )

0000008250 GARDEN CITY DR BROWNS MILL RD SUNFLOWER PL 211.8 0.08 5035 559 92 14,308$      26$             Local -$                $    2,271.34 4,652.61$      3,790.04$       10,713.99$     19.15$     )

0000008260 GARDEN CITY DR SUNFLOWER PL DAISY LN 210.4 0.08 5335 593 98 15,160$      26$             Local -$                $    2,406.68 4,929.82$      4,015.86$       11,352.36$     19.15$     )

0000008270 GARDEN CITY DR DAISY LN SUNFLOWER PL 684.3 0.26 16959 1,884 311 48,192$      26$             Local -$                $    7,650.39 15,671.02$   12,765.70$     36,087.11$     19.15$     )

0000008280 GARDEN CITY DR SUNFLOWER PL TULIP CT 311.5 0.12 6897 766 126 19,599$      26$             Local -$                $    3,111.31 6,373.20$      5,191.64$       14,676.15$     19.15$     )

0000008290 GARDEN CITY DR TULIP CT LILLY PT 389 0.15 15256 1,695 280 43,352$      26$             Local -$                $    6,882.15 14,097.36$   11,483.78$     32,463.29$     19.15$     )

0000008300 GARDEN CITY DR LILLY PT END 537 0.20 18108 2,012 332 51,457$      26$             Local -$                $    8,168.72 16,732.76$   13,630.60$     38,532.07$     19.15$     )

0000008310 LILLY PT END GARDEN CITY DR 265.8 0.10 9378 1,042 172 26,649$      26$             Local -$                $    4,230.52 8,665.77$      7,059.19$       19,955.48$     19.15$     )

0000008320 TULIP CT END GARDEN CITY DR 129.7 0.05 5490 610 101 15,601$      26$             Local -$                $    2,476.60 5,073.05$      4,132.54$       11,682.19$     19.15$     )

0000008330 SUNFLOWER PL GARDEN CITY DR [S] GARDEN CITY DR [N] 901.6 0.34 22765 2,529 417 64,691$      26$             Local -$                $  10,269.54 21,036.07$   17,136.10$     48,441.72$     19.15$     )

0000008340 DAISY LN GARDEN CITY DR GARDEN CITY CT 532.7 0.20 13041 1,449 239 37,058$      26$             Local -$                $    5,882.94 12,050.58$   9,816.47$       27,749.99$     19.15$     )

0000008350 DAISY LN GARDEN CITY CT END 252 0.10 9527 1,059 175 27,073$      26$             Local -$                $    4,297.74 8,803.46$      7,171.34$       20,272.54$     19.15$     )

0000008360 GARDEN CITY CT END DAISY LN 200.1 0.08 8808 979 161 25,029$      26$             Local -$                $    3,973.39 8,139.06$      6,630.12$       18,742.57$     19.15$     )

S230 S230 JABCO CT 2593.2 0.98 64933 7,215 1,190 184,518$    26$             Local 49.1 $113,633 15.75$            $  29,292.00 60,001.56$   48,877.59$     138,171.15$   19.15$     )

0000016860 JABCO BLVD MARBUT RD JABCO CT 1140.9 0.43 28258 3,140 518 80,300$      26$             Local -$                $  12,747.50 26,111.90$   21,270.90$     60,130.29$     19.15$     )

0000016870 JABCO CT JABCO BLVD END 1452.3 0.55 36675 4,075 672 104,218$    26$             Local -$                $  16,544.50 33,889.66$   27,606.70$     78,040.85$     19.15$     )

S2140 S2140 BROOKS MILL DR 4460 1.69 1E+05 15,390 2,539 393,605$    26$             Local 49.2 $346,280 22.50$            $  62,484.30 127,992.48$ 104,263.37$   294,740.15$   19.15$     )

0000002080 BROOKS MILL DR EVANS MILL RD OLD MILL TRCE 1239.4 0.47 32927 3,659 604 93,568$      26$             Local -$                $  14,853.74 30,426.30$   24,785.43$     70,065.47$     19.15$     )

0000002090 BROOKS MILL DR OLD MILL TRCE MILL CREST WAY 353.9 0.13 9882 1,098 181 28,081$      26$             Local -$                $    4,457.88 9,131.50$      7,438.57$       21,027.94$     19.15$     )

0000002100 BROOKS MILL DR MILL CREST WAY BROOKS MILL CV 722.9 0.27 20730 2,303 380 58,908$      26$             Local -$                $    9,351.53 19,155.63$   15,604.28$     44,111.44$     19.15$     )

0000002110 BROOKS MILL DR BROOKS MILL CV CREST CV 327.4 0.12 9076 1,008 166 25,791$      26$             Local -$                $    4,094.28 8,386.71$      6,831.86$       19,312.85$     19.15$     )

0000002120 BROOKS MILL DR CREST CV END 142.7 0.05 7250 806 133 20,602$      26$             Local -$                $    3,270.56 6,699.39$      5,457.36$       15,427.30$     19.15$     )

0000002130 CREST CV BROOKS MILL DR END 139.1 0.05 7569 841 139 21,509$      26$             Local -$                $    3,414.46 6,994.16$      5,697.48$       16,106.10$     19.15$     )

0000002140 BROOKS MILL CV BROOKS MILL DR END 111.6 0.04 6701 745 123 19,042$      26$             Local -$                $    3,022.90 6,192.08$      5,044.10$       14,259.08$     19.15$     )

0000002150 MILL CREST WAY BROOKS MILL DR END 696 0.26 21843 2,427 400 62,071$      26$             Local -$                $    9,853.62 20,184.10$   16,442.08$     46,479.79$     19.15$     )

0000002160 OLD MILL TRCE BROOKS MILL DR END 727 0.28 22534 2,504 413 64,034$      26$             Local -$                $  10,165.34 20,822.62$   16,962.22$     47,950.17$     19.15$     )

S1580 S1580 HAYNES PARK DR 2738.9 1.04 69263 7,696 1,270 196,822$    26$             Local 49.2 $173,158 22.50$            $  31,245.31 64,002.71$   52,136.95$     147,384.97$   19.15$     )

0000012950 GARDEN GLADE LN CITY LIMIT GLADE TRL 245.3 0.09 5784 643 106 16,436$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    2,609.23 5,344.72$      4,353.84$       12,307.79$     19.15$     )

0000012960 GARDEN GLADE LN GLADE TRL GREEN GLADE WAY 217.2 0.08 6158 684 113 17,499$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    2,777.94 5,690.32$      4,635.37$       13,103.63$     19.15$     )

0000012970 GARDEN GLADE LN GREEN GLADE WAY HAYNES PARK ST 217.7 0.08 5492 610 101 15,606$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    2,477.50 5,074.90$      4,134.04$       11,686.45$     19.15$     )

0000012980 GARDEN GLADE LN HAYNES PARK ST NORTH END 260.5 0.10 6310 701 116 17,931$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    2,846.51 5,830.78$      4,749.78$       13,427.07$     19.15$     )

0000012990 HAYNES PARK DR CITY LIMIT GLADE WALK 44.9 0.02 1154 128 21 3,279$        26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $       520.58 1,066.36$      868.66$           2,455.60$       19.15$     )

0000013000 HAYNES PARK DR GLADE WALK GLADE TRL 195.2 0.07 5137 571 94 14,598$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    2,317.36 4,746.86$      3,866.82$       10,931.04$     19.15$     )

0000013010 HAYNES PARK DR GLADE TRL GREEN GLADE WAY 212.8 0.08 5281 587 97 15,007$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    2,382.32 4,879.93$      3,975.21$       11,237.46$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

16 3:28 PM

149

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000013020 HAYNES PARK DR GREEN GLADE WAY HAYNES PARK ST 212.5 0.08 4429 492 81 12,586$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    1,997.97 4,092.63$      3,333.88$       9,424.48$       19.15$     )

0000013030 HAYNES PARK DR HAYNES PARK ST MALL PKWY 406.7 0.15 10804 1,200 198 30,701$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    4,873.80 9,983.47$      8,132.59$       22,989.87$     19.15$     )

0000013040 GLADE WALK HAYNES PARK DR END 114.7 0.04 2706 301 50 7,690$        26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    1,220.71 2,500.49$      2,036.91$       5,758.11$       19.15$     )

0000013050 GLADE TRL GARDEN GLADE LN HAYNES PARK DR 247.5 0.09 6052 672 111 17,198$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    2,730.12 5,592.37$      4,555.58$       12,878.07$     19.15$     )

0000013060 GREEN GLADE WAY GARDEN GLADE LN HAYNES PARK DR 202.7 0.08 5103 567 94 14,501$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    2,302.02 4,715.44$      3,841.23$       10,858.69$     19.15$     )

0000013070 HAYNES PARK ST GARDEN GLADE LN HAYNES PARK DR 161.2 0.06 4853 539 89 13,791$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    2,189.24 4,484.43$      3,653.04$       10,326.71$     19.15$     )

S720 S720 ACUITY WAY/ MILLER RD PANOLA INDUSTRIAL BLVD COVINGTON HWY 6657.5 3.78 2E+05 23,808 3,928 608,881$    26$             Collector 49.7 $535,672 2021 22.50$            $  96,659.13 197,995.98$ 161,288.61$   455,943.72$   19.15$     )

0000013520 ACUITY WAY PANOLA INDUSTRIAL BLVD SNAPFINGER WOODS DR 1249.2 0.47 26108 2,901 479 74,190$      26$             Collector 2021 -$                $  11,777.61 24,125.18$   19,652.51$     55,555.30$     19.15$     )

0000013530 MILLER RD SNAPFINGER WOODS DR TREECREST PKWY 939.4 0.53 32127 3,570 589 91,294$      26$             Collector 2021 -$                $  14,492.85 29,687.06$   24,183.24$     68,363.15$     19.15$     )

0000013540 MILLER RD TREECREST PKWY WINDSOR DOWNS LN 571 0.32 19528 2,170 358 55,492$      26$             Collector 2021 -$                $    8,809.30 18,044.91$   14,699.49$     41,553.70$     19.15$     )

0000013550 MILLER RD WINDSOR DOWNS LN WINDSOR DOWNS DR 645.1 0.37 22062 2,451 404 62,693$      26$             Collector 2021 -$                $    9,952.41 20,386.46$   16,606.93$     46,945.80$     19.15$     )

0000013560 MILLER RD WINDSOR DOWNS DR MILLER WOODS DR 514.4 0.29 17592 1,955 323 49,991$      26$             Collector 2021 -$                $    7,935.95 16,255.95$   13,242.18$     37,434.08$     19.15$     )

0000013570 MILLER RD MILLER WOODS DR WILKINS RD 527.7 0.30 17045 1,894 312 48,436$      26$             Collector 2021 -$                $    7,689.19 15,750.49$   12,830.43$     36,270.11$     19.15$     )

0000013580 MILLER RD WILKINS RD HAMPTON DR 807.8 0.46 29162 3,240 535 82,869$      26$             Collector 2021 -$                $  13,155.30 26,947.24$   21,951.37$     62,053.92$     19.15$     )

0000013590 MILLER RD HAMPTON DR COVINGTON HWY 1402.9 0.80 50645 5,627 928 143,916$    26$             Collector 2021 -$                $  22,846.52 46,798.68$   38,122.46$     107,767.66$   19.15$     )

S620 S620 MALLARD TRL 3827 1.45 1E+05 12,424 2,050 317,752$    26$             Local 49.9 $279,548 22.50$            $  50,442.79 103,326.72$ 84,170.51$     237,940.02$   19.15$     )

0000014260 MALLARD TRL PANOLA RD PINTAIL DR 723.3 0.27 17077 1,897 313 48,527$      26$             Local -$                $    7,703.62 15,780.06$   12,854.52$     36,338.21$     19.15$     )

0000014270 MALLARD TRL PINTAIL DR GREEN WING PL 253.9 0.10 7011 779 129 19,923$      26$             Local -$                $    3,162.74 6,478.54$      5,277.45$       14,918.73$     19.15$     )

0000014280 MALLARD TRL GREEN WING PL MALLARD CRST 647.9 0.25 14507 1,612 266 41,224$      26$             Local -$                $    6,544.27 13,405.24$   10,919.98$     30,869.49$     19.15$     )

0000014290 MALLARD TRL MALLARD CRST DRAKE CT 396.6 0.15 9404 1,045 172 26,723$      26$             Local -$                $    4,242.25 8,689.80$      7,078.76$       20,010.80$     19.15$     )

0000014300 MALLARD TRL DRAKE CT PINTAIL CV 299.4 0.11 7546 838 138 21,443$      26$             Local -$                $    3,404.08 6,972.91$      5,680.17$       16,057.16$     19.15$     )

0000014310 MALLARD TRL PINTAIL CV CITY LIMIT 59.3 0.02 1252 139 23 3,558$        26$             Local -$                $       564.79 1,156.91$      942.43$           2,664.13$       19.15$     )

0000014320 PINTAIL CV SOUTH END MALLARD TRL 184.7 0.07 7172 797 131 20,380$      26$             Local -$                $    3,235.37 6,627.31$      5,398.64$       15,261.32$     19.15$     )

0000014330 PINTAIL CV MALLARD TRL CITY LIMIT 46.9 0.02 989 110 18 2,810$        26$             Local -$                $       446.15 913.89$         744.46$           2,104.50$       19.15$     )

0000014340 DRAKE CT SOUTH END MALLARD TRL 190.6 0.07 8282 920 152 23,535$      26$             Local -$                $    3,736.10 7,653.01$      6,234.18$       17,623.30$     19.15$     )

0000014350 DRAKE CT MALLARD TRL CITY LIMIT 45.2 0.02 1167 130 21 3,316$        26$             Local -$                $       526.45 1,078.37$      878.45$           2,483.26$       19.15$     )

0000014360 MALLARD CRST SOUTH END MALLARD TRL 371.6 0.14 15652 1,739 287 44,478$      26$             Local -$                $    7,060.79 14,463.28$   11,781.87$     33,305.94$     19.15$     )

0000014370 MALLARD CRST MALLARD TRL CITY LIMIT 53.5 0.02 1223 136 22 3,475$        26$             Local -$                $       551.71 1,130.12$      920.60$           2,602.43$       19.15$     )

0000014380 GREEN WING PL EAST END MALLARD TRL 232.1 0.09 9060 1,007 166 25,746$      26$             Local -$                $    4,087.07 8,371.92$      6,819.81$       19,278.80$     19.15$     )

0000014390 PINTAIL DR EAST END MALLARD TRL 274.7 0.10 10232 1,137 188 29,076$      26$             Local -$                $    4,615.77 9,454.91$      7,702.02$       21,772.71$     19.15$     )

0000014400 PINTAIL DR MALLARD TRL CITY LIMIT 47.3 0.02 1245 138 23 3,538$        26$             Local -$                $       561.63 1,150.45$      937.16$           2,649.24$       19.15$     )

S1800 S1800 BROWNS MILL FERRY DR 4600.6 1.74 1E+05 14,022 2,314 358,624$    26$             Local 50.1 $315,505 22.50$            $  56,931.12 116,617.38$ 94,997.15$     268,545.66$   19.15$     )

0000009960 BROWNS MILL FERRY DR BROWNS MILL FERRY RD BROWNS MILL LAKE RD 1040.9 0.39 20555 2,284 377 58,410$      26$             Local -$                $    9,272.59 18,993.92$   15,472.55$     43,739.05$     19.15$     )

0000009990 BROWNS MILL FERRY CT BROWNS MILL FERRY RD END 608.6 0.23 21336 2,371 391 60,630$      26$             Local -$                $    9,624.91 19,715.60$   16,060.44$     45,400.95$     19.15$     )

0000010000 BROWNS MILL LAKE RD BROWNS MILL FERRY RD BROWNS MILL LAKE CT 473.4 0.18 12045 1,338 221 34,228$      26$             Local -$                $    5,433.63 11,130.22$   9,066.74$       25,630.60$     19.15$     )

0000010010 BROWNS MILL LAKE RD BROWNS MILL LAKE CT BROWNS MILL DR 334 0.13 6822 758 125 19,386$      26$             Local -$                $    3,077.48 6,303.89$      5,135.18$       14,516.56$     19.15$     )

0000010020 BROWNS MILL LAKE RD BROWNS MILL DR BROWNS MILL FERRY DR 797.6 0.30 20696 2,300 379 58,811$      26$             Local -$                $    9,336.20 19,124.21$   15,578.68$     44,039.09$     19.15$     )

0000010030 BROWNS MILL LAKE RD BROWNS MILL FERRY DR END 614.6 0.23 20482 2,276 376 58,203$      26$             Local -$                $    9,239.66 18,926.46$   15,417.60$     43,583.72$     19.15$     )

0000010040 BROWNS MILL LAKE CT BROWNS MILL LAKE RD END 350.7 0.13 14692 1,632 269 41,750$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    6,627.72 13,576.19$   11,059.24$     31,263.16$     19.15$     )

0000010050 BROWNS MILL DR BROWNS MILL LAKE RD BROWNS MILL RD 380.8 0.14 9574 1,064 176 27,206$      26$             Local -$                $    4,318.94 8,846.89$      7,206.72$       20,372.55$     19.15$     )

S250 S250 RANDALL RD 2907.2 1.10 58871 6,541 1,079 167,292$    26$             Local 50.1 $147,178 22.50$            $  26,557.36 54,399.94$   44,314.49$     125,271.80$   19.15$     )

0000017130 RANDALL AVE CITY LIMIT VARKEL LN 491.7 0.19 6979 775 128 19,832$      26$             Local -$                $    3,148.30 6,448.97$      5,253.36$       14,850.64$     19.15$     )

0000017140 RANDALL RD VARKEL LN MARBUT RD 2415.5 0.91 51892 5,766 951 147,460$    26$             Local -$                $  23,409.06 47,950.98$   39,061.13$     110,421.16$   19.15$     )

S1210 S1210 FOX HOUND RUN 13434 5.09 4E+05 39,954 6,592 1,021,829$ 26$             Local 50.2 $898,970 22.50$           ########## 332,278.49$ 270,675.87$   765,168.50$   19.15$     )

0000003160 HUNTERS HILL DR SALEM RD FOX HOUND TRL 803.2 0.30 19328 2,148 354 54,924$      26$             Local -$                $    8,719.08 17,860.10$   14,548.94$     41,128.12$     19.15$     )

0000003170 HUNTERS HILL DR FOX HOUND TRL FOX DEN TRL 353.2 0.13 5516 613 101 15,675$      26$             Local -$                $    2,488.33 5,097.08$      4,152.11$       11,737.51$     19.15$     )

0000003180 HUNTERS HILL DR FOX DEN TRL GREY FOX CIR 705.7 0.27 13893 1,544 255 39,479$      26$             Local -$                $    6,267.29 12,837.87$   10,457.80$     29,562.96$     19.15$     )

0000003190 HUNTERS HILL DR GREY FOX CIR REYNARD TRL 792.1 0.30 16972 1,886 311 48,229$      26$             Local -$                $    7,656.26 15,683.03$   12,775.48$     36,114.78$     19.15$     )

0000003200 HUNTERS HILL DR REYNARD TRL HUNTERS CHASE CT 443.2 0.17 10741 1,193 197 30,522$      26$             Local -$                $    4,845.38 9,925.26$      8,085.17$       22,855.81$     19.15$     )

0000003210 HUNTERS HILL DR HUNTERS CHASE CT HUNTERS CHASE DR 356.6 0.14 8590 954 157 24,410$      26$             Local -$                $    3,875.04 7,937.62$      6,466.03$       18,278.69$     19.15$     )

0000003220 HUNTERS HILL DR HUNTERS CHASE DR HUNTERS CHASE WAY 206.7 0.08 4377 486 80 12,438$      26$             Local -$                $    1,974.51 4,044.58$      3,294.74$       9,313.83$       19.15$     )

0000003230 HUNTERS HILL DR HUNTERS CHASE WAY END 556.9 0.21 18768 2,085 344 53,332$      26$             Local -$                $    8,466.45 17,342.63$   14,127.40$     39,936.49$     19.15$     )

0000003240 HUNTERS CHASE WAY HUNTERS HILL DR END 542.7 0.21 15367 1,707 282 43,668$      26$             Local -$                $    6,932.22 14,199.93$   11,567.34$     32,699.49$     19.15$     )

0000003250 HUNTERS CHASE DR HUNTERS HILL DR END 549.2 0.21 14376 1,597 264 40,852$      26$             Local -$                $    6,485.17 13,284.19$   10,821.37$     30,590.74$     19.15$     )

0000003260 HUNTERS CHASE CT HUNTERS HILL DR END 1426.2 0.54 34572 3,841 634 98,242$      26$             Local -$                $  15,595.81 31,946.37$   26,023.69$     73,565.87$     19.15$     )

0000003270 REYNARD TRL WEST END HUNTERS TRCE 699 0.26 20712 2,301 380 58,857$      26$             Local -$                $    9,343.41 19,138.99$   15,590.73$     44,073.13$     19.15$     )

0000003280 REYNARD TRL HUNTERS TRCE REYNARD CT 197.9 0.07 5170 574 95 14,691$      26$             Local -$                $    2,332.24 4,777.36$      3,891.66$       11,001.26$     19.15$     )

0000003290 REYNARD TRL REYNARD CT FOX HOUND RUN 448.8 0.17 11286 1,254 207 32,071$      26$             Local -$                $    5,091.24 10,428.87$   8,495.41$       24,015.52$     19.15$     )

0000003300 REYNARD TRL FOX HOUND RUN HUNTERS HILL DR 295.1 0.11 5948 661 109 16,902$      26$             Local -$                $    2,683.21 5,496.27$      4,477.29$       12,656.77$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

17 3:28 PM

150

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000003310 REYNARD TRL HUNTERS HILL DR EAST END 837.3 0.32 21463 2,385 393 60,991$      26$             Local -$                $    9,682.20 19,832.96$   16,156.03$     45,671.19$     19.15$     )

0000003320 HUNTERS TRCE REYNARD TRL END 196.6 0.07 9742 1,082 179 27,684$      26$             Local -$                $    4,394.72 9,002.13$      7,333.18$       20,730.03$     19.15$     )

0000003330 REYNARD CT END REYNARD TRL 95.1 0.04 6242 694 114 17,738$      26$             Local -$                $    2,815.84 5,767.94$      4,698.60$       13,282.37$     19.15$     )

0000003340 GREY FOX CIR HUNTERS HILL DR END 291.6 0.11 12589 1,399 231 35,774$      26$             Local -$                $    5,679.04 11,632.91$   9,476.23$       26,788.18$     19.15$     )

0000003350 FOX DEN TRL WEST END FOX HOUND RUN 707.7 0.27 21066 2,341 386 59,863$      26$             Local -$                $    9,503.11 19,466.11$   15,857.20$     44,826.41$     19.15$     )

0000003360 FOX DEN TRL FOX HOUND RUN HUNTERS HILL DR 349.9 0.13 7103 789 130 20,184$      26$             Local -$                $    3,204.24 6,563.55$      5,346.70$       15,114.50$     19.15$     )

0000003370 FOX DEN TRL HUNTERS HILL DR EAST END 194.6 0.07 4587 510 84 13,035$      26$             Local -$                $    2,069.25 4,238.63$      3,452.81$       9,760.69$       19.15$     )

0000003380 FOX HOUND RUN FOX DEN TRL REYNARD TRL 1474.4 0.56 40629 4,514 745 115,454$    26$             Local -$                $  18,328.19 37,543.36$   30,583.03$     86,454.58$     19.15$     )

0000003390 FOX HOUND TRL END GREY FOX CHASE 236.4 0.09 6645 738 122 18,883$      26$             Local -$                $    2,997.63 6,140.33$      5,001.95$       14,139.92$     19.15$     )

0000003400 FOX HOUND TRL GREY FOX CHASE HUNTERS HILL DR 319.2 0.12 8900 989 163 25,291$      26$             Local -$                $    4,014.89 8,224.07$      6,699.38$       18,938.34$     19.15$     )

0000003410 GREY FOX CHASE FOX HOUND TRL END 355 0.13 15006 1,667 275 42,642$      26$             Local -$                $    6,769.37 13,866.34$   11,295.60$     31,931.32$     19.15$     )

S2100 S2100 SALEM TRL 6469.5 2.45 2E+05 21,122 3,485 540,201$    26$             Local 50.5 $475,250 22.50$            $  85,756.22 175,662.54$ 143,095.66$   404,514.42$   19.15$     )

0000002790 SALEM TER SALEM RD SALEM TRL 369 0.14 9356 1,040 172 26,587$      26$             Local -$                $    4,220.60 8,645.44$      7,042.63$       19,908.66$     19.15$     )

0000002800 SALEM TRL NORTH END SALEM TER 141.1 0.05 3493 388 64 9,926$        26$             Local -$                $    1,575.73 3,227.72$      2,629.32$       7,432.77$       19.15$     )

0000002810 SALEM TRL SALEM TER SALEM DR 221.2 0.08 6664 740 122 18,937$      26$             Local -$                $    3,006.20 6,157.89$      5,016.25$       14,180.35$     19.15$     )

0000002820 SALEM TRL SALEM DR BOBBY BROOK CT 1075.9 0.41 29539 3,282 542 83,940$      26$             Local -$                $  13,325.37 27,295.61$   22,235.15$     62,856.14$     19.15$     )

0000002830 SALEM TRL BOBBY BROOK CT CAPE COD LN 438 0.17 16454 1,828 302 46,757$      26$             Local -$                $    7,422.58 15,204.37$   12,385.57$     35,012.52$     19.15$     )

0000002840 BOBBY BROOK CT SALEM TRL END 199.6 0.08 9037 1,004 166 25,680$      26$             Local -$                $    4,076.69 8,350.67$      6,802.50$       19,229.86$     19.15$     )

0000002850 SALEM DR SOUTH END CAPE COD LN 119.2 0.05 3136 348 57 8,911$        26$             Local -$                $    1,414.68 2,897.83$      2,360.59$       6,673.10$       19.15$     )

0000002860 SALEM DR CAPE COD LN SALEM PL 828.8 0.31 26233 2,915 481 74,545$      26$             Local -$                $  11,834.00 24,240.69$   19,746.60$     55,821.29$     19.15$     )

0000002870 SALEM DR SALEM PL SALEM TRL 363.5 0.14 9758 1,084 179 27,729$      26$             Local -$                $    4,401.94 9,016.91$      7,345.23$       20,764.08$     19.15$     )

0000002880 SALEM PL END SALEM DR 147.4 0.06 4238 471 78 12,043$      26$             Local -$                $    1,911.81 3,916.14$      3,190.11$       9,018.05$       19.15$     )

0000002890 CAPE COD LN SALEM DR SALEM TRL 369.4 0.14 16538 1,838 303 46,995$      26$             Local -$                $    7,460.48 15,281.99$   12,448.80$     35,191.27$     19.15$     )

0000002900 CAPE COD LN SALEM TRL SALEM MILL TER 144 0.05 3173 353 58 9,017$        26$             Local -$                $    1,431.38 2,932.02$      2,388.44$       6,751.84$       19.15$     )

0000002910 CAPE COD LN SALEM MILL TER BAY SHORE CT 481.5 0.18 11093 1,233 203 31,523$      26$             Local -$                $    5,004.18 10,250.52$   8,350.13$       23,604.83$     19.15$     )

0000002920 CAPE COD LN BAY SHORE CT SALEM RD 417.7 0.16 9766 1,085 179 27,752$      26$             Local -$                $    4,405.55 9,024.30$      7,351.25$       20,781.10$     19.15$     )

0000002940 SALEM MILL TER CAPE COD LN END 959.1 0.36 22888 2,543 420 65,040$      26$             Local -$                $  10,325.03 21,149.73$   17,228.69$     48,703.45$     19.15$     )

0000002950 BAY SHORE CT END CAPE COD LN 194.1 0.07 8734 970 160 24,819$      26$             Local -$                $    3,940.00 8,070.68$      6,574.42$       18,585.11$     19.15$     )

S1110 S1110 EAGLE WOODS CIR 2962.9 1.12 79024 8,780 1,449 224,560$    26$             Local 50.8 $138,292 15.75$            $  35,648.60 73,022.39$   59,484.44$     168,155.43$   19.15$     )

0000001080 EAGLE WOODS CIR BROWNS MILL RD START OF LOOP [NB] 656.3 0.25 16382 1,820 300 46,552$      26$             Local -$                $    7,390.10 15,137.84$   12,331.37$     34,859.31$     19.15$     )

0000001090 EAGLE WOODS CIR START OF LOOP [NB] EAGLE WOODS TRL 1334.4 0.51 36780 4,087 674 104,517$    26$             Local -$                $  16,591.87 33,986.68$   27,685.74$     78,264.28$     19.15$     )

0000001100 EAGLE WOODS CIR EAGLE WOODS TRL END OF LOOP 598.6 0.23 17015 1,891 312 48,351$      26$             Local -$                $    7,675.66 15,722.77$   12,807.85$     36,206.28$     19.15$     )

0000001110 EAGLE WOODS TRL EAGLE WOODS CIR END 373.6 0.14 8847 983 162 25,140$      26$             Local -$                $    3,990.98 8,175.10$      6,659.48$       18,825.56$     19.15$     )

S2280 S2280 EVANS MILL RD ROCK SPRINGS RD WOODROW DR 7157 2.71 2E+05 23,616 3,897 603,979$    26$             Minor Arterial 50.9 $371,952 15.75$            $  95,880.96 196,401.99$ 159,990.13$   452,273.09$   19.15$     )

0000001510 EVANS MILL RD ROCK SPRINGS RD ROCKVIEW WAY 1042.4 0.39 29564 3,285 542 84,011$      26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  13,336.65 27,318.71$   22,253.97$     62,909.33$     19.15$     )

0000001520 EVANS MILL RD ROCKVIEW WAY EVANS MILL WAY 1423.4 0.54 35158 3,906 645 99,907$      26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  15,860.16 32,487.87$   26,464.79$     74,812.83$     19.15$     )

0000001530 EVANS MILL RD EVANS MILL WAY WOODROW RD 810.6 0.61 37268 4,141 683 105,903$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  16,812.01 34,437.62$   28,053.07$     79,302.70$     19.15$     )

0000001540 EVANS MILL RD WOODROW RD E GLEN RD 1574.3 0.60 32903 3,656 603 93,499$      26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  14,842.91 30,404.13$   24,767.37$     70,014.40$     19.15$     )

0000001550 EVANS MILL RD E GLEN RD STEWART LAKE CT 1276.3 0.73 43649 4,850 800 124,036$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  19,690.55 40,334.00$   32,856.30$     92,880.85$     19.15$     )

0000001560 EVANS MILL RD STEWART LAKE CT YMCA ENTRANCE 252.2 0.10 7188 799 132 20,426$      26$             Minor Arterial -$                $    3,242.59 6,642.10$      5,410.69$       15,295.37$     19.15$     )

0000001570 EVANS MILL RD YMCA ENTRANCE WOODROW DR 777.8 0.44 26814 2,979 492 76,196$      26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  12,096.09 24,777.57$   20,183.94$     57,057.60$     19.15$     )

S500 S500 HUBER ST 1051.4 0.40 17357 1,929 318 49,323$      26$             Local 51 $30,375 15.75$            $    7,829.94 16,038.79$   13,065.29$     36,934.02$     19.15$     )

0000015430 HUBER ST CHUPP RD COVINGTON HWY 1051.4 0.40 17357 1,929 318 49,323$      26$             Local -$                $    7,829.94 16,038.79$   13,065.29$     36,934.02$     19.15$     )

S1990 S1990 N GODDARD RD ROCKLAND RD KLONDIKE RD 7498.9 2.84 2E+05 22,163 3,657 566,830$    26$             Collector 51 $498,678 22.50$            $  89,983.58 184,321.84$ 150,149.58$   424,455.01$   19.15$     )

0000010800 N GODDARD RD ROCKLAND RD KLONDIKE RD 7498.9 2.84 2E+05 22,163 3,657 566,830$    26$             Collector -$                $  89,983.58 184,321.84$ 150,149.58$   424,455.01$   19.15$     )

S980 S980 CLEVELAND RD/ROCK SPRINGS RD SNAPFINGER RD THOMPSON MILL RD 5642.7 3.21 2E+05 21,404 3,532 547,404$    26$             Collector 51.1 $481,588 2021 22.50$            $  86,899.79 178,005.01$ 145,003.86$   409,908.66$   19.15$     )

0000004110 CLEVELAND RD SNAPFINGER RD DEEVERS CT 1100.6 0.83 48096 5,344 882 136,673$    26$             Collector 2021 -$                $  21,696.64 44,443.27$   36,203.73$     102,343.64$   19.15$     )

0000004120 CLEVELAND RD DEEVERS CT CORKTREE TRL 750.1 0.43 31354 3,484 575 89,098$      26$             Collector 2021 -$                $  14,144.14 28,972.77$   23,601.38$     66,718.28$     19.15$     )

0000004130 CLEVELAND RD CORKTREE TRL FETTER LN 414.1 0.16 11802 1,311 216 33,537$      26$             Collector 2021 -$                $    5,324.01 10,905.68$   8,883.82$       25,113.52$     19.15$     )

0000004140 CLEVELAND RD FETTER LN RONDELAY FORREST WAY 538 0.20 15333 1,704 281 43,571$      26$             Collector 2021 -$                $    6,916.89 14,168.51$   11,541.75$     32,627.14$     19.15$     )

0000004150 CLEVELAND RD RONDELAY FORREST WAY ROCK SPRINGS RD 1100.7 0.63 41827 4,647 767 118,858$    26$             Collector 2021 -$                $  18,868.62 38,650.38$   31,484.81$     89,003.81$     19.15$     )

0000004160 ROCK SPRINGS RD ROCK SPRINGS RD SUNNYFORD LN 234.6 0.09 6240 693 114 17,732$      26$             Collector 2021 -$                $    2,814.93 5,766.09$      4,697.09$       13,278.12$     19.15$     )

0000004170 ROCK SPRINGS RD SUNNYFORD LN ROSEHEATH LN 782.2 0.30 19320 2,147 354 54,901$      26$             Collector 2021 -$                $    8,715.47 17,852.71$   14,542.92$     41,111.09$     19.15$     )

0000004180 ROCK SPRINGS RD ROSEHEATH LN LIONSHEAD CIR 290.9 0.11 7185 798 132 20,417$      26$             Collector 2021 -$                $    3,241.23 6,639.32$      5,408.43$       15,288.99$     19.15$     )

0000004190 ROCK SPRINGS RD LIONSHEAD CIR THOMPSON MILL RD 431.5 0.16 11478 1,275 210 32,617$      26$             Collector 2021 -$                $    5,177.85 10,606.28$   8,639.94$       24,424.07$     19.15$     )

S1080 S1080 BURLINGHAM DR 15188 5.75 4E+05 43,696 7,210 1,117,537$ 26$             Local 51.4 $983,170 22.50$           ########## 363,400.61$ 296,028.12$   836,836.29$   19.15$     )

0000000420 LONDONDERRY CT SOUTH END WOLVERTON DR 1425.9 0.54 38517 4,280 706 109,452$    26$             Local -$                $  17,375.45 35,591.76$   28,993.24$     81,960.45$     19.15$     )

0000000430 LONDONDERRY CT WOLVERTON DR NORTH END 628.4 0.24 16771 1,863 307 47,658$      26$             Local -$                $    7,565.58 15,497.30$   12,624.18$     35,687.07$     19.15$     )

0000000440 WOLVERTON DR LONDONDERRY CT BURLINGHAM DR 446.5 0.17 10358 1,151 190 29,434$      26$             Local -$                $    4,672.61 9,571.34$      7,796.87$       22,040.82$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

18 3:28 PM

151

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000000450 WOLVERTON DR BURLINGHAM DR CHILTERN CT 532.8 0.20 11526 1,281 211 32,753$      26$             Local -$                $    5,199.51 10,650.64$   8,676.07$       24,526.21$     19.15$     )

0000000460 WOLVERTON DR CHILTERN CT WOLVERTON CIR 471.5 0.18 13000 1,444 238 36,942$      26$             Local -$                $    5,864.44 12,012.69$   9,785.61$       27,662.74$     19.15$     )

0000000470 WOLVERTON DR WOLVERTON CIR BURNLEY CT 279.8 0.11 5812 646 107 16,516$      26$             Local -$                $    2,621.86 5,370.60$      4,374.92$       12,367.37$     19.15$     )

0000000480 WOLVERTON DR BURNLEY CT CUMBRIAN LN 122.5 0.05 2736 304 50 7,775$        26$             Local -$                $    1,234.24 2,528.21$      2,059.49$       5,821.94$       19.15$     )

0000000490 WOLVERTON DR CUMBRIAN LN END 122.7 0.05 3137 349 58 8,914$        26$             Local -$                $    1,415.14 2,898.76$      2,361.34$       6,675.23$       19.15$     )

0000000500 BURLINGHAM DR WOLVERTON DR BROWNS MILL RD 1603.2 0.61 38254 4,250 701 108,705$    26$             Local -$                $  17,256.80 35,348.74$   28,795.27$     81,400.81$     19.15$     )

0000000510 CHILTERN CT END WOLVERTON DR 551 0.21 11460 1,273 210 32,566$      26$             Local -$                $    5,169.73 10,589.65$   8,626.39$       24,385.77$     19.15$     )

0000000520 BURNLEY CT WOLVERTON DR BURNLEY LN 495.3 0.19 10683 1,187 196 30,358$      26$             Local -$                $    4,819.22 9,871.66$      8,041.51$       22,732.39$     19.15$     )

0000000530 BURNLEY CT BURNLEY LN END 302.2 0.11 9533 1,059 175 27,090$      26$             Local -$                $    4,300.44 8,809.00$      7,175.86$       20,285.30$     19.15$     )

0000000540 BURNLEY LN BURNLEY CT END 258.6 0.10 8011 890 147 22,765$      26$             Local -$                $    3,613.85 7,402.59$      6,030.19$       17,046.63$     19.15$     )

0000000550 WOLVERTON CIR WOLVERTON DR BURLING MILL DR 329.1 0.12 8894 988 163 25,274$      26$             Local -$                $    4,012.18 8,218.53$      6,694.86$       18,925.57$     19.15$     )

0000000560 WOLVERTON CIR BURLING MILL DR BURLING GATE DR 745 0.28 20066 2,230 368 57,021$      26$             Local -$                $    9,052.00 18,542.05$   15,104.46$     42,698.51$     19.15$     )

0000000570 WOLVERTON CIR BURLING GATE DR VINE GATE DR 448.3 0.17 11721 1,302 215 33,307$      26$             Local -$                $    5,287.47 10,830.83$   8,822.85$       24,941.15$     19.15$     )

0000000580 WOLVERTON CIR VINE GATE DR CUMBRIAN LN 772.7 0.29 19155 2,128 351 54,432$      26$             Local -$                $    8,641.03 17,700.24$   14,418.71$     40,759.99$     19.15$     )

0000000590 WOLVERTON CIR CUMBRIAN LN CAIN MILL DR 553.9 0.21 13724 1,525 252 38,999$      26$             Local -$                $    6,191.05 12,681.71$   10,330.59$     29,203.35$     19.15$     )

0000000600 WOLVERTON CIR CAIN MILL DR BUTTON GATE CT 328.1 0.12 7899 878 145 22,446$      26$             Local -$                $    3,563.33 7,299.10$      5,945.88$       16,808.31$     19.15$     )

0000000610 CUMBRIAN LN WOLVERTON CIR VINE STONE DR 495.3 0.19 12084 1,343 222 34,339$      26$             Local -$                $    5,451.23 11,166.26$   9,096.10$       25,713.58$     19.15$     )

0000000620 CUMBRIAN LN VINE STONE DR BURLING GATE DR 528.6 0.20 13410 1,490 246 38,107$      26$             Local -$                $    6,049.40 12,391.56$   10,094.23$     28,535.18$     19.15$     )

0000000630 CUMBRIAN LN BURLING GATE DR WOLVERTON DR 1163.2 0.44 30862 3,429 566 87,700$      26$             Local -$                $  13,922.19 28,518.13$   23,231.03$     65,671.35$     19.15$     )

0000000640 BURLING GATE DR WOLVERTON CIR BURLING RDG 275.1 0.10 7496 833 137 21,301$      26$             Local -$                $    3,381.53 6,926.70$      5,642.53$       15,950.76$     19.15$     )

0000000650 BURLING GATE DR BURLING RDG BURLING MILL DR 495.5 0.19 12712 1,412 233 36,123$      26$             Local -$                $    5,734.52 11,746.57$   9,568.82$       27,049.91$     19.15$     )

0000000660 BURLING GATE DR BURLING MILL DR CUMBRIAN LN 354.9 0.13 9971 1,108 183 28,334$      26$             Local -$                $    4,498.03 9,213.74$      7,505.56$       21,217.32$     19.15$     )

0000000670 VINE STONE DR CUMBRIAN LN END 285.7 0.11 11256 1,251 206 31,986$      26$             Local -$                $    5,077.71 10,401.14$   8,472.83$       23,951.68$     19.15$     )

0000000680 BURLING RDG BURLING GATE DR END 315.8 0.12 11986 1,332 220 34,060$      26$             Local -$                $    5,407.02 11,075.70$   9,022.33$       25,505.05$     19.15$     )

0000000690 BURLING MILL DR WOLVERTON CIR BURLING GATE DR 856.5 0.32 22234 2,470 408 63,182$      26$             Local -$                $  10,030.00 20,545.40$   16,736.40$     47,311.80$     19.15$     )

S1540 S1540 STONECREST CIR 4968.5 1.88 2E+05 22,096 3,646 565,114$    26$             Local 51.5 $348,017 15.75$            $  89,711.11 183,763.71$ 149,694.92$   423,169.75$   19.15$     )

0000012870 STONECREST CONCOURSE MALL RING RD STONECREST PASS 553.4 0.21 31160 3,462 571 88,546$      26$             Local -$                $  14,056.62 28,793.50$   23,455.34$     66,305.47$     19.15$     )

0000012880 STONECREST CONCOURSE STONECREST PASS TURNER HILL RD 957.6 0.36 54320 6,036 996 154,359$    26$             Local -$                $  24,504.36 50,194.58$   40,888.78$     115,587.71$   19.15$     )

0000012890 STONECREST CIR MALL RING RD STONECREST PKWY 1285.2 0.49 23563 2,618 432 66,958$      26$             Local -$                $  10,629.53 21,773.47$   17,736.79$     50,139.79$     19.15$     )

0000012900 STONECREST PASS STONECREST PKWY STONECREST CONCOURSE 971.9 0.37 29801 3,311 546 84,685$      26$             Local -$                $  13,443.56 27,537.71$   22,432.37$     63,413.65$     19.15$     )

0000012910 STONECREST PKWY MALL RING RD STONECREST PASS 562.5 0.21 30637 3,404 562 87,060$      26$             Local -$                $  13,820.69 28,310.22$   23,061.66$     65,192.57$     19.15$     )

0000012920 STONECREST PKWY STONECREST PASS TURNER HILL RD 637.9 0.24 29386 3,265 539 83,505$      26$             Local -$                $  13,256.35 27,154.23$   22,119.98$     62,530.57$     19.15$     )

S1590 S1590 STONECREST BLVD 7220.8 2.74 3E+05 28,200 4,653 721,218$    26$             Local 51.7 $634,502 22.50$           ########## 234,525.66$ 191,045.88$   540,063.99$   19.15$     )

0000012490 STONECREST BLVD HAYDEN QUARRY RD WILLOW OAK WALK 512.2 0.19 24948 2,772 457 70,894$      26$             Local -$                $  11,254.32 23,053.28$   18,779.33$     53,086.93$     19.15$     )

0000012500 STONECREST BLVD WILLOW OAK WALK MALL PKWY 1440.4 0.55 1E+05 12,022 1,984 307,454$    26$             Local -$                $  48,807.97 99,977.95$   81,442.58$     230,228.50$   19.15$     )

0000012680 STONE CREEK PATH HAYDEN QUARRY RD SWEET MAPLE WALK 226.6 0.09 5801 645 106 16,485$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    2,616.90 5,360.43$      4,366.64$       12,343.97$     19.15$     )

0000012690 STONE CREEK PATH SWEET MAPLE WALK SPICY CEDAR LN 455.8 0.17 10508 1,168 193 29,860$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    4,740.28 9,709.95$      7,909.78$       22,360.01$     19.15$     )

0000012700 WILLOW OAK WALK STONECREST BLVD SPICY CEDAR LN 203 0.08 4429 492 81 12,586$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    1,997.97 4,092.63$      3,333.88$       9,424.48$       19.15$     )

0000012710 WILLOW OAK WALK SPICY CEDAR LN SWEET MAPLE WALK 68.8 0.01 1130 126 21 3,211$        26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $       509.76 1,044.18$      850.59$           2,404.53$       19.15$     )

0000012720 SPICY CEDAR LN WILLOW OAK WALK SUMMER BERRY LN [W] 67.7 0.01 1224 136 22 3,478$        26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $       552.16 1,131.04$      921.35$           2,604.55$       19.15$     )

0000012730 SPICY CEDAR LN SUMMER BERRY LN [W] SUMMER BERRY LN [E] 1019.3 0.19 23439 2,604 430 66,606$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $  10,573.59 21,658.89$   17,643.45$     49,875.93$     19.15$     )

0000012740 SPICY CEDAR LN SUMMER BERRY LN [E] ROSEBERRY WAY 319.9 0.06 8020 891 147 22,790$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    3,617.91 7,410.91$      6,036.97$       17,065.78$     19.15$     )

0000012750 SPICY CEDAR LN ROSEBERRY WAY STONE CREEK PATH 269.3 0.05 6198 689 114 17,613$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    2,795.99 5,727.28$      4,665.48$       13,188.74$     19.15$     )

0000012760 SPICY CEDAR LN STONE CREEK PATH SWEET MAPLE WALK 382.4 0.07 9503 1,056 174 27,004$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    4,286.91 8,781.28$      7,153.28$       20,221.47$     19.15$     )

0000012770 SWEET MAPLE WALK SPICY CEDAR LN STONE CREEK PATH 328 0.06 8156 906 150 23,177$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    3,679.26 7,536.58$      6,139.34$       17,355.18$     19.15$     )

0000012780 SWEET MAPLE WALK STONE CREEK PATH ROSEBERRY WAY 526.4 0.10 9946 1,105 182 28,263$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    4,486.75 9,190.63$      7,486.74$       21,164.13$     19.15$     )

0000012790 SWEET MAPLE WALK ROSEBERRY WAY WILLOW OAK WALK 168.3 0.03 3968 441 73 11,276$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    1,790.01 3,666.64$      2,986.87$       8,443.52$       19.15$     )

0000012800 SWEET MAPLE WALK WILLOW OAK WALK SUMMER BERRY LN 67 0.01 1247 139 23 3,544$        26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $       562.54 1,152.29$      938.67$           2,653.50$       19.15$     )

0000012810 ROSEBERRY WAY SWEET MAPLE WALK SPICY CEDAR LN 544.5 0.21 12748 1,416 234 36,226$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    5,750.76 11,779.83$   9,595.92$       27,126.51$     19.15$     )

0000012820 SUMMER BERRY LN SPICY CEDAR LN SWEET MAPLE WALK 73.6 0.01 1290 143 24 3,666$        26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $       581.93 1,192.03$      971.03$           2,745.00$       19.15$     )

0000012830 SUMMER BERRY LN SWEET MAPLE WALK SPICY CEDAR LN 547.6 0.21 13051 1,450 239 37,087$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    5,887.45 12,059.82$   9,824.00$       27,771.27$     19.15$     )

S260 S260 VARKEL LN 5321.2 2.02 1E+05 15,315 2,527 391,681$    26$             Local 51.8 $344,588 22.50$            $  62,178.90 127,366.89$ 103,753.76$   293,299.56$   19.15$     )

0000017060 TRIBBLE ST LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD VARKEL WAY 1413 0.54 38335 4,259 703 108,935$    26$             Local -$                $  17,293.34 35,423.58$   28,856.25$     81,573.17$     19.15$     )

0000017070 TRIBBLE ST VARKEL WAY PARC CHATEAU DR 613.1 0.23 15435 1,715 283 43,861$      26$             Local -$                $    6,962.90 14,262.76$   11,618.52$     32,844.19$     19.15$     )

0000017080 TRIBBLE ST PARC CHATEAU DR RUE DE PIERRE 325.7 0.12 8040 893 147 22,847$      26$             Local -$                $    3,626.93 7,429.39$      6,052.02$       17,108.34$     19.15$     )

0000017090 TRIBBLE ST RUE DE PIERRE RUE DE BELLEVUE 376.5 0.14 8396 933 154 23,859$      26$             Local -$                $    3,787.53 7,758.35$      6,320.00$       17,865.88$     19.15$     )

0000017100 TRIBBLE ST RUE DE BELLEVUE CITY LIMIT 278.7 0.11 5743 638 105 16,320$      26$             Local -$                $    2,590.73 5,306.84$      4,322.98$       12,220.55$     19.15$     )

0000017110 VARKEL WAY TRIBBLE ST VARKEL LN 697.3 0.26 18034 2,004 331 51,247$      26$             Local -$                $    8,135.34 16,664.38$   13,574.89$     38,374.61$     19.15$     )

0000017120 VARKEL LN VARKEL WAY RANDALL RD 1616.9 0.61 43852 4,872 804 124,613$    26$             Local -$                $  19,782.12 40,521.59$   33,009.11$     93,312.82$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

19 3:28 PM

152

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

S200 S200 CHARLES CUDD CT 905.2 0.34 24406 2,712 447 69,354$      26$             Local 51.9 $61,015 22.50$            $  11,009.82 22,552.45$   18,371.35$     51,933.61$     19.15$     )

0000016740 CHARLES CUDD CT MARBUT RD END 905.2 0.34 24406 2,712 447 69,354$      26$             Local -$                $  11,009.82 22,552.45$   18,371.35$     51,933.61$     19.15$     )

S2430 S2430 TRUMAN DR 9411.2 3.56 3E+05 29,542 4,874 755,539$    26$             Local 52 $664,698 22.50$           ########## 245,686.38$ 200,137.46$   565,764.81$   19.15$     )

0000013850 PARK CENTRAL BLVD SNAPFINGER WOODS DR PENN CIR 1008.2 0.38 27071 3,008 496 76,927$      26$             Local -$                $  12,212.03 25,015.05$   20,377.39$     57,604.47$     19.15$     )

0000013860 PARK CENTRAL BLVD PENN CIR TRUMAN DR 931.1 0.35 23011 2,557 422 65,390$      26$             Local -$                $  10,380.52 21,263.39$   17,321.27$     48,965.18$     19.15$     )

0000013870 PARK CENTRAL BLVD TRUMAN DR DIVIDEND DR 715.3 0.27 20105 2,234 369 57,132$      26$             Local -$                $    9,069.59 18,578.09$   15,133.82$     42,781.50$     19.15$     )

0000013880 PARK CENTRAL BLVD DIVIDEND DR MORSE DR 677.9 0.26 19474 2,164 357 55,339$      26$             Local -$                $    8,784.94 17,995.01$   14,658.84$     41,438.79$     19.15$     )

0000013890 PARK CENTRAL BLVD MORSE DR MARSHALLS INDUSTRIAL DR 917.6 0.35 24611 2,735 451 69,936$      26$             Local -$                $  11,102.30 22,741.88$   18,525.66$     52,369.83$     19.15$     )

0000013900 PARK CENTRAL BLVD MARSHALLS INDUSTRIAL DR COVINGTON HWY 1148 0.43 31390 3,488 575 89,200$      26$             Local -$                $  14,160.38 29,006.03$   23,628.47$     66,794.89$     19.15$     )

0000013910 PENN CIR PARK CENTRAL BLVD END 558.2 0.21 20924 2,325 384 59,459$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    9,439.05 19,334.89$   15,750.31$     44,524.25$     19.15$     )

0000013920 TRUMAN DR WEST END PARK CENTRAL BLVD 879.7 0.33 25612 2,846 470 72,781$      26$             Local -$                $  11,553.86 23,666.85$   19,279.15$     54,499.86$     19.15$     )

0000013930 TRUMAN DR PARK CENTRAL BLVD EAST END 1278.6 0.48 36991 4,110 678 105,116$    26$             Local -$                $  16,687.05 34,181.66$   27,844.56$     78,713.27$     19.15$     )

0000013940 DIVIDEND DR END PARK CENTRAL BLVD 337.9 0.13 9104 1,012 167 25,871$      26$             Local -$                $    4,106.92 8,412.58$      6,852.93$       19,372.43$     19.15$     )

0000014000 MARSHALLS INDUSTRIAL DR END PARK CENTRAL BLVD 958.7 0.36 27586 3,065 506 78,390$      26$             Local -$                $  12,444.35 25,490.94$   20,765.05$     58,700.34$     19.15$     )

S1260 S1260 WINSLOW XING 15200 5.76 4E+05 46,098 7,606 1,178,956$ 26$             Local 52.4 ######## 22.50$           ########## 383,373.10$ 312,297.82$   882,828.79$   19.15$     )

0000005880 BLACK FOOT DR PANOLA RD BLACK FOOT CT 463.6 0.18 10482 1,165 192 29,786$      26$             Local -$                $    4,728.55 9,685.93$      7,890.21$       22,304.68$     19.15$     )

0000005890 BLACK FOOT DR BLACK FOOT CT PEQUEA DR 301.1 0.11 6162 685 113 17,510$      26$             Local -$                $    2,779.75 5,694.02$      4,638.38$       13,112.14$     19.15$     )

0000005900 BLACK FOOT DR PEQUEA DR END 718.1 0.27 16554 1,839 303 47,041$      26$             Local -$                $    7,467.69 15,296.78$   12,460.84$     35,225.31$     19.15$     )

0000005910 BLACK FOOT CT END BLACK FOOT DR 449.6 0.17 15338 1,704 281 43,585$      26$             Local -$                $    6,919.14 14,173.13$   11,545.51$     32,637.78$     19.15$     )

0000005920 PEQUEA DR BLACK FOOT DR WINSLOW XING 392.7 0.15 8860 984 162 25,177$      26$             Local -$                $    3,996.84 8,187.11$      6,669.27$       18,853.22$     19.15$     )

0000005930 PEQUEA DR WINSLOW XING MEDENA WAY 378.1 0.14 8037 893 147 22,838$      26$             Local -$                $    3,625.58 7,426.62$      6,049.76$       17,101.96$     19.15$     )

0000005940 PEQUEA DR MEDENA WAY CAYUGA CT 326.7 0.12 7208 801 132 20,483$      26$             Local -$                $    3,251.61 6,660.58$      5,425.74$       15,337.93$     19.15$     )

0000005950 PEQUEA DR CAYUGA CT WINSLOW XING N 310.6 0.12 6868 763 126 19,517$      26$             Local -$                $    3,098.23 6,346.40$      5,169.81$       14,614.44$     19.15$     )

0000005960 WINSLOW XING PEQUEA DR KOLOMOKEE WAY 2010.3 0.76 53820 5,980 987 152,939$    26$             Local 2019 -$                $  24,278.80 49,732.55$   40,512.41$     114,523.76$   19.15$     )

0000005970 WINSLOW XING KOLOMOKEE WAY PATUXENT TRCE 534.4 0.20 13697 1,522 251 38,922$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    6,178.87 12,656.76$   10,310.26$     29,145.89$     19.15$     )

0000005980 WINSLOW XING PATUXENT TRCE OTTAWA TRL 249.8 0.09 5874 653 108 16,692$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    2,649.83 5,427.89$      4,421.59$       12,499.30$     19.15$     )

0000005990 WINSLOW XING OTTAWA TRL END 117.7 0.04 2721 302 50 7,732$        26$             Local 2019 -$                $    1,227.47 2,514.35$      2,048.20$       5,790.02$       19.15$     )

0000006000 PATUXENT TRCE END WINSLOW XING 222.8 0.08 10721 1,191 197 30,466$      26$             Local -$                $    4,836.36 9,906.78$      8,070.11$       22,813.25$     19.15$     )

0000006010 KOLOMOKEE WAY WINSLOW XING END 207.5 0.08 11286 1,254 207 32,071$      26$             Local -$                $    5,091.24 10,428.87$   8,495.41$       24,015.52$     19.15$     )

0000006020 MEDENA WAY PEQUEA DR CHAUVIN PL 750.9 0.28 19025 2,114 349 54,063$      26$             Local -$                $    8,582.39 17,580.11$   14,320.86$     40,483.36$     19.15$     )

0000006030 MEDENA WAY CHAUVIN PL LAMBRAY CT 312 0.12 7605 845 139 21,611$      26$             Local -$                $    3,430.70 7,027.43$      5,724.58$       16,182.70$     19.15$     )

0000006040 MEDENA WAY LAMBRAY CT WINSLOW XING N 719.1 0.27 19456 2,162 357 55,287$      26$             Local -$                $    8,776.82 17,978.38$   14,645.29$     41,400.49$     19.15$     )

0000006050 CHAUVIN PL MEDENA WAY END 505.2 0.19 15972 1,775 293 45,387$      26$             Local -$                $    7,205.15 14,758.98$   12,022.75$     33,986.87$     19.15$     )

0000006060 LAMBRAY CT MEDENA WAY END 273.2 0.10 9773 1,086 179 27,772$      26$             Local -$                $    4,408.71 9,030.77$      7,356.52$       20,796.00$     19.15$     )

0000006070 CAYUGA CT PEQUEA DR END 655.7 0.25 22543 2,505 413 64,060$      26$             Local -$                $  10,169.40 20,830.93$   16,968.99$     47,969.32$     19.15$     )

0000006080 WINSLOW XING N PANOLA RD PEQUEA DR 390 0.15 10341 1,149 190 29,386$      26$             Local -$                $    4,664.94 9,555.64$      7,784.07$       22,004.65$     19.15$     )

0000006090 WINSLOW XING N PEQUEA DR RULLY WAY 222 0.08 6585 732 121 18,712$      26$             Local -$                $    2,970.57 6,084.89$      4,956.79$       14,012.24$     19.15$     )

0000006100 WINSLOW XING N RULLY WAY MEDENA WAY 729.5 0.28 16150 1,794 296 45,893$      26$             Local -$                $    7,285.44 14,923.46$   12,156.73$     34,365.64$     19.15$     )

0000006110 WINSLOW XING N MEDENA WAY STOCKWELL CT 434.8 0.16 10980 1,220 201 31,202$      26$             Local -$                $    4,953.20 10,146.11$   8,265.07$       23,364.38$     19.15$     )

0000006120 WINSLOW XING N STOCKWELL CT FROST LN 842.5 0.32 20923 2,325 384 59,456$      26$             Local -$                $    9,438.60 19,333.97$   15,749.56$     44,522.12$     19.15$     )

0000006130 WINSLOW XING N FROST LN HERSCU WAY 567.5 0.21 13362 1,485 245 37,970$      26$             Local -$                $    6,027.75 12,347.20$   10,058.10$     28,433.04$     19.15$     )

0000006140 WINSLOW XING N HERSCU WAY OTTAWA TRL 368.9 0.14 9280 1,031 170 26,371$      26$             Local -$                $    4,186.31 8,575.21$      6,985.42$       19,746.94$     19.15$     )

0000006150 RULLY WAY END WINSLOW XING N 265.3 0.10 9987 1,110 183 28,380$      26$             Local -$                $    4,505.25 9,228.52$      7,517.60$       21,251.37$     19.15$     )

0000006160 STOCKWELL CT WINSLOW XING N END 419.2 0.16 12511 1,390 229 35,552$      26$             Local -$                $    5,643.85 11,560.83$   9,417.52$       26,622.20$     19.15$     )

0000006170 FROST LN WINSLOW XING N END 547.2 0.21 18445 2,049 338 52,415$      26$             Local -$                $    8,320.74 17,044.16$   13,884.27$     39,249.18$     19.15$     )

0000006180 HERSCU WAY END WINSLOW XING N 514 0.19 14316 1,591 262 40,681$      26$             Local -$                $    6,458.11 13,228.75$   10,776.21$     30,463.06$     19.15$     )

S1690 S1690 SCENIC BROOK TRL 1208.9 0.46 31835 3,537 584 90,464$      26$             Local 53 $79,588 22.50$            $  14,361.12 29,417.24$   23,963.44$     67,741.80$     19.15$     )

0000011730 SCENIC BROOK TRL END CITY LIMIT 497 0.19 14268 1,585 262 40,545$      26$             Local -$                $    6,436.45 13,184.39$   10,740.08$     30,360.92$     19.15$     )

0000011740 SCENIC BROOK DR CITY LIMIT SCENIC CT 326 0.12 8488 943 156 24,120$      26$             Local -$                $    3,829.03 7,843.36$      6,389.25$       18,061.64$     19.15$     )

0000011750 SCENIC CT SCENIC BROOK DR MCDANIEL MILL RD 318.6 0.12 7237 804 133 20,565$      26$             Local -$                $    3,264.69 6,687.37$      5,447.57$       15,399.64$     19.15$     )

0000011760 FALLS BROOKE DR MCDANIEL MILL RD CITY LIMIT 67.3 0.03 1842 205 34 5,234$        26$             Local -$                $       830.95 1,702.11$      1,386.55$       3,919.60$       19.15$     )

S1340 S1340 ROCK SPRINGS RD PANOLA RD EVANS MILL RD 15112 5.72 4E+05 42,006 6,931 1,074,292$ 26$             Collector 53.1 $945,125 22.50$           ########## 349,338.36$ 284,572.94$   804,453.86$   19.15$     )

0000004470 ROCK SPRINGS RD PANOLA RD TASMAN TRL 643.5 0.49 37902 4,211 695 107,705$    26$             Collector -$                $  17,098.01 35,023.47$   28,530.31$     80,651.79$     19.15$     )

0000004480 ROCK SPRINGS RD TASMAN TRL TIMOR TRL 1184.6 0.45 24758 2,751 454 70,354$      26$             Collector -$                $  11,168.61 22,877.71$   18,636.31$     52,682.63$     19.15$     )

0000004490 ROCK SPRINGS RD TIMOR TRL BRISBANE WAY 1273.5 0.48 26616 2,957 488 75,634$      26$             Collector -$                $  12,006.77 24,594.60$   20,034.90$     56,636.28$     19.15$     )

0000004500 ROCK SPRINGS RD BRISBANE WAY OTTAWA TRL 724.9 0.27 17905 1,989 328 50,880$      26$             Collector -$                $    8,077.14 16,545.17$   13,477.79$     38,100.11$     19.15$     )

0000004510 ROCK SPRINGS RD OTTAWA TRL PEARCE CT 804.4 0.30 21397 2,377 392 60,803$      26$             Collector -$                $    9,652.42 19,771.97$   16,106.35$     45,530.75$     19.15$     )

0000004520 ROCK SPRINGS RD PEARCE CT HUNTERS CROSSING PT 333.6 0.13 7606 845 139 21,614$      26$             Collector -$                $    3,431.15 7,028.35$      5,725.33$       16,184.83$     19.15$     )

0000004530 ROCK SPRINGS RD HUNTERS CROSSING PT WOODSIDE XING 1910.5 1.09 58079 6,453 1,065 165,041$    26$             Collector -$                $  26,200.08 53,668.09$   43,718.32$     123,586.50$   19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

20 3:28 PM

153

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000004540 ROCK SPRINGS RD WOODSIDE XING FAIRINGTON FARMS LN 5175 1.96 1E+05 12,018 1,983 307,349$    26$             Collector -$                $  48,791.28 99,943.76$   81,414.73$     230,149.77$   19.15$     )

0000004550 ROCK SPRINGS RD FAIRINGTON FARMS LN ROCK PORT DR 1415.6 0.54 34965 3,885 641 99,359$      26$             Collector -$                $  15,773.10 32,309.52$   26,319.52$     74,402.14$     19.15$     )

0000004560 ROCK SPRINGS RD ROCK PORT DR EVANS MILL RD 1646.3 0.62 40664 4,518 746 115,554$    26$             Collector -$                $  18,343.98 37,575.70$   30,609.37$     86,529.06$     19.15$     )

S1730 S1730 BERLINE DR 9170.5 3.47 2E+05 27,132 4,477 693,895$    26$             Local 53.4 $610,465 22.50$           ########## 225,640.89$ 183,808.30$   519,604.20$   19.15$     )

0000010230 WHITE CIR BROWNS MILL RD HOUSWORTH DR 465.6 0.18 10215 1,135 187 29,028$      26$             Local -$                $    4,608.10 9,439.20$      7,689.23$       21,736.53$     19.15$     )

0000010240 WHITE CIR HOUSWORTH DR BERLINE DR 301.1 0.11 7678 853 141 21,818$      26$             Local -$                $    3,463.63 7,094.88$      5,779.53$       16,338.04$     19.15$     )

0000010250 HOUSWORTH DR WHITE CIR PAULA LN 452.2 0.17 15176 1,686 278 43,125$      26$             Local -$                $    6,846.06 14,023.43$   11,423.57$     32,293.06$     19.15$     )

0000010260 HOUSWORTH DR PAULA LN CARMEN CT 680.6 0.26 16766 1,863 307 47,643$      26$             Local -$                $    7,563.33 15,492.68$   12,620.42$     35,676.43$     19.15$     )

0000010270 HOUSWORTH DR CARMEN CT HOUSWORTH LN 901.2 0.34 24248 2,694 445 68,905$      26$             Local -$                $  10,938.54 22,406.45$   18,252.41$     51,597.40$     19.15$     )

0000010280 HOUSWORTH DR HOUSWORTH LN CARLEEN CT 491.6 0.19 13856 1,540 254 39,374$      26$             Local -$                $    6,250.60 12,803.68$   10,429.95$     29,484.23$     19.15$     )

0000010290 HOUSWORTH DR CARLEEN CT S GODDARD RD 411.9 0.16 11474 1,275 210 32,605$      26$             Local -$                $    5,176.05 10,602.59$   8,636.93$       24,415.56$     19.15$     )

0000010300 CARLEEN CT END HOUSWORTH DR 281.2 0.11 12570 1,397 230 35,720$      26$             Local -$                $    5,670.47 11,615.35$   9,461.93$       26,747.74$     19.15$     )

0000010310 HOUSWORTH LN HOUSWORTH DR END 687.6 0.26 17824 1,980 327 50,650$      26$             Local -$                $    8,040.60 16,470.33$   13,416.82$     37,927.75$     19.15$     )

0000010320 CARMEN CT END HOUSWORTH DR 294.9 0.11 11032 1,226 202 31,349$      26$             Local -$                $    4,976.66 10,194.16$   8,304.22$       23,475.03$     19.15$     )

0000010330 PAULA LN HOUSWORTH DR PAULA CT 436.5 0.17 9325 1,036 171 26,499$      26$             Local -$                $    4,206.61 8,616.80$      7,019.29$       19,842.70$     19.15$     )

0000010340 PAULA CT WEST END PAULA LN 326.7 0.12 11285 1,254 207 32,068$      26$             Local -$                $    5,090.79 10,427.94$   8,494.66$       24,013.39$     19.15$     )

0000010350 PAULA CT PAULA LN EAST END 368.4 0.14 12510 1,390 229 35,549$      26$             Local -$                $    5,643.40 11,559.91$   9,416.76$       26,620.07$     19.15$     )

0000010360 BERLINE DR END WHITE CIR 904.7 0.34 29609 3,290 543 84,139$      26$             Local -$                $  13,356.95 27,360.30$   22,287.85$     63,005.09$     19.15$     )

0000010370 BERLINE DR WHITE CIR S GODDARD RD 2166.3 0.82 40618 4,513 745 115,423$    26$             Local -$                $  18,323.23 37,533.20$   30,574.75$     86,431.18$     19.15$     )

S100 S100 COFFEE RD S STONE MOUNTAIN LITHONIA RD CITY LIMIT 935.1 0.35 18665 2,074 342 53,040$      26$             Local 53.8 $32,664 15.75$            $    8,419.99 17,247.46$   14,049.87$     39,717.32$     19.15$     )

0000017260 COFFEE RD S STONE MOUNTAIN LITHONIA RD CITY LIMIT 935.1 0.35 18665 2,074 342 53,040$      26$             Local -$                $    8,419.99 17,247.46$   14,049.87$     39,717.32$     19.15$     )

S2390 S2390 PANOLA RD ROCK SPRINGS RD MINOLA DR 5220 5.93 3E+05 29,090 4,800 743,965$    26$             Major Arterial 53.8 $458,160 15.75$           ########## 241,922.71$ 197,071.56$   557,097.86$   19.15$     )

0000000120 PANOLA RD ROCK SPRINGS RD BLACK FOOT DR 831.9 0.63 42766 4,752 784 121,527$    26$             Major Arterial -$                $  19,292.22 39,518.06$   32,191.63$     91,001.91$     19.15$     )

0000000130 PANOLA RD BLACK FOOT DR PANOLA MILL DR 1282.7 0.49 26808 2,979 491 76,179$      26$             Major Arterial -$                $  12,093.39 24,772.02$   20,179.42$     57,044.83$     19.15$     )

0000000140 PANOLA RD PANOLA MILL DR WINSLOW XING N 216.6 0.12 7819 869 143 22,219$      26$             Major Arterial -$                $    3,527.24 7,225.17$      5,885.67$       16,638.08$     19.15$     )

0000000150 PANOLA RD WINSLOW XING N THOMPSON MILL RD 531 0.50 27240 3,027 499 77,407$      26$             Major Arterial -$                $  12,288.27 25,171.21$   20,504.61$     57,964.09$     19.15$     )

0000000160 PANOLA RD THOMPSON MILL RD CAVALIER XING 597 0.57 30626 3,403 561 87,029$      26$             Major Arterial -$                $  13,815.73 28,300.06$   23,053.38$     65,169.17$     19.15$     )

0000000170 PANOLA RD CAVALIER XING W FAIRINGTON PKWY 290.1 0.27 14882 1,654 273 42,290$      26$             Major Arterial -$                $    6,713.44 13,751.76$   11,202.26$     31,667.46$     19.15$     )

0000000180 PANOLA RD W FAIRINGTON PKWY MINOLA DR 1470.7 1.67 1E+05 12,407 2,047 317,315$    26$             Major Arterial -$                $  50,373.32 103,184.42$ 84,054.59$     237,612.33$   19.15$     )

S1630 S1630 FOREST LAKE PKWY 4546.6 1.72 2E+05 16,820 2,775 430,172$    26$             Local 54 $264,915 15.75$            $  68,289.20 139,883.19$ 113,949.61$   322,122.01$   19.15$     )

0000012220 FOREST LAKE PKWY END KENSINGTON CIR 682 0.26 27322 3,036 501 77,640$      26$             Local -$                $  12,325.26 25,246.99$   20,566.33$     58,138.57$     19.15$     )

0000012230 FOREST LAKE PKWY KENSINGTON CIR KENSINGTON TRL 366.3 0.14 11415 1,268 209 32,438$      26$             Local -$                $    5,149.43 10,548.07$   8,592.51$       24,290.02$     19.15$     )

0000012240 FOREST LAKE PKWY KENSINGTON TRL WESLEY STONECREST CIR 2611.5 0.99 84936 9,437 1,557 241,360$    26$             Local -$                $  38,315.57 78,485.39$   63,934.63$     180,735.60$   19.15$     )

0000012250 FOREST LAKE PKWY WESLEY STONECREST CIR STONECREST CIR 462.4 0.18 11284 1,254 207 32,065$      26$             Local -$                $    5,090.34 10,427.02$   8,493.91$       24,011.26$     19.15$     )

0000012260 FOREST LAKE PKWY STONECREST CIR TURNER HILL RD 424.4 0.16 16423 1,825 301 46,669$      26$             Local -$                $    7,408.60 15,175.73$   12,362.23$     34,946.56$     19.15$     )

S580 S580 HILLVALE RD 5324.3 2.02 1E+05 12,989 2,143 332,191$    26$             Local 54 $204,575 15.75$            $  52,734.89 108,021.83$ 87,995.18$     248,751.90$   19.15$     )

0000015270 HILLVALE RD COVINGTON HWY DEKALB MEDICAL PKWY 1770.6 0.67 37399 4,155 686 106,275$    26$             Local -$                $  16,871.10 34,558.67$   28,151.68$     79,581.46$     19.15$     )

0000015280 HILLVALE RD DEKALB MEDICAL PKWY HILLVALE COVE DR 1202.9 0.46 29857 3,317 547 84,844$      26$             Local -$                $  13,468.82 27,589.46$   22,474.53$     63,532.81$     19.15$     )

0000015290 HILLVALE RD HILLVALE COVE DR FIELD SPRING DR 580.6 0.22 11792 1,310 216 33,509$      26$             Local -$                $    5,319.50 10,896.44$   8,876.30$       25,092.24$     19.15$     )

0000015300 HILLVALE RD FIELD SPRING DR MEADOW SPRING DR 679.7 0.26 13732 1,526 252 39,022$      26$             Local -$                $    6,194.66 12,689.10$   10,336.61$     29,220.37$     19.15$     )

0000015310 HILLVALE RD MEADOW SPRING DR ARBOR CROSSING DR 607 0.23 12462 1,385 228 35,413$      26$             Local -$                $    5,621.75 11,515.55$   9,380.63$       26,517.93$     19.15$     )

0000015320 HILLVALE RD ARBOR CROSSING DR COVINGTON HWY 483.5 0.18 11658 1,295 214 33,128$      26$             Local -$                $    5,259.05 10,772.61$   8,775.43$       24,807.10$     19.15$     )

S950 S950 RONDELAY FORREST WAY 2933.5 1.11 79390 8,821 1,455 225,600$    26$             Local 54 $198,475 22.50$            $  35,813.71 73,360.59$   59,759.94$     168,934.25$   19.15$     )

0000004570 RONDELAY FORREST WAY CLEVELAND RD RONDELAY DR 924 0.35 22369 2,485 410 63,565$      26$             Local -$                $  10,090.90 20,670.15$   16,838.02$     47,599.07$     19.15$     )

0000004580 RONDELAY DR END RONDELAY FORREST WAY 223.8 0.08 5696 633 104 16,186$      26$             Local -$                $    2,569.53 5,263.41$      4,287.60$       12,120.54$     19.15$     )

0000004590 RONDELAY DR RONDELAY FORREST WAY RONDELAY CT 458.6 0.17 12351 1,372 226 35,097$      26$             Local -$                $    5,571.67 11,412.98$   9,297.08$       26,281.73$     19.15$     )

0000004600 RONDELAY DR RONDELAY CT ROCK SPRINGS RD 843.7 0.32 24291 2,699 445 69,027$      26$             Local -$                $  10,957.94 22,446.18$   18,284.78$     51,688.90$     19.15$     )

0000004610 RONDELAY CT END RONDELAY DR 483.4 0.18 14683 1,631 269 41,724$      26$             Local -$                $    6,623.66 13,567.88$   11,052.47$     31,244.00$     19.15$     )

S1560 S1560 STONECREST PKWY E 1875.7 0.71 90034 10,004 1,651 255,847$    26$             Local 54.2 $157,560 15.75$            $  40,615.34 83,196.22$   67,772.09$     191,583.65$   19.15$     )

0000012930 STONECREST PKWY E TURNER HILL RD MALL PKWY 1875.7 0.71 90034 10,004 1,651 255,847$    26$             Local -$                $  40,615.34 83,196.22$   67,772.09$     191,583.65$   19.15$     )

S2440 S2440 OLD HILLANDALE DR EVANS MILL RD LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD 4498.3 2.56 2E+05 18,993 3,134 485,740$    26$             Collector 55.3 $299,136 15.75$            $  77,110.68 157,953.06$ 128,669.42$   363,733.16$   19.15$     )

0000013250 OLD HILLANDALE DR EVANS MILL RD & I20 ACCESS LOOP 2258.9 1.28 85838 9,538 1,574 243,923$    26$             Collector -$                $  38,722.48 79,318.89$   64,613.60$     182,654.97$   19.15$     )

0000013260 OLD HILLANDALE DR I20 ACCESS LOOP LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD 2239.4 1.27 85097 9,455 1,560 241,817$    26$             Collector -$                $  38,388.20 78,634.17$   64,055.82$     181,078.19$   19.15$     )

S1550 S1550 HAYDEN QUARRY RD KLONDIKE RD TURNER HILL RD 6756.6 2.56 2E+05 22,014 3,632 563,014$    26$             Collector 55.6 $495,320 22.50$            $  89,377.74 183,080.84$ 149,138.65$   421,597.23$   19.15$     )

0000011680 HAYDEN QUARRY RD KLONDIKE RD WESLEY PROVIDENCE PKWY 1614.2 0.92 61340 6,816 1,125 174,308$    26$             Collector -$                $  27,671.16 56,681.43$   46,173.00$     130,525.59$   19.15$     )

0000011690 HAYDEN QUARRY RD WESLEY PROVIDENCE PKWY TURNER HILL RD 5142.4 1.95 1E+05 15,199 2,508 388,706$    26$             Collector -$                $  61,706.59 126,399.41$ 102,965.65$   291,071.64$   19.15$     )

S600 S600 LAKEVIEW CIR 5366.5 2.03 2E+05 17,636 2,910 451,044$    26$             Local 55.6 $277,769 15.75$            $  71,602.61 146,670.37$ 119,478.48$   337,751.46$   19.15$     )

0000014540 LAKE TRCE WEST END COVE LAKE WAY 162.5 0.06 7356 817 135 20,903$      26$             Local -$                $    3,318.37 6,797.34$      5,537.15$       15,652.86$     19.15$     )

0000014550 LAKE TRCE COVE LAKE WAY EAST END 253.9 0.10 10067 1,119 185 28,607$      26$             Local -$                $    4,541.34 9,302.44$      7,577.82$       21,421.60$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

21 3:28 PM

154

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000014560 COVE LAKE WAY LAKE TRCE COVE LN 623.9 0.24 15151 1,683 278 43,054$      26$             Local -$                $    6,834.78 14,000.33$   11,404.75$     32,239.86$     19.15$     )

0000014570 COVE LAKE WAY COVE LN END 472.8 0.18 15196 1,688 279 43,182$      26$             Local -$                $    6,855.08 14,041.91$   11,438.62$     32,335.62$     19.15$     )

0000014580 COVE LN COVE LAKE WAY COVE LAKE RD 887.1 0.34 21524 2,392 395 61,164$      26$             Local -$                $    9,709.72 19,889.32$   16,201.95$     45,800.99$     19.15$     )

0000014590 LAKEVIEW CIR WEST END LAKE COVE CT 250.8 0.10 9608 1,068 176 27,303$      26$             Local -$                $    4,334.28 8,878.30$      7,232.32$       20,444.90$     19.15$     )

0000014600 LAKEVIEW CIR LAKE COVE CT COVE LAKE RD 331.3 0.13 7187 799 132 20,423$      26$             Local -$                $    3,242.14 6,641.17$      5,409.93$       15,293.24$     19.15$     )

0000014610 LAKEVIEW CIR COVE LAKE RD EAST END 1141.6 0.43 34885 3,876 640 99,132$      26$             Local -$                $  15,737.01 32,235.60$   26,259.30$     74,231.91$     19.15$     )

0000014620 LAKE COVE CT LAKEVIEW CIR END 173 0.07 7653 850 140 21,747$      26$             Local -$                $    3,452.35 7,071.78$      5,760.71$       16,284.84$     19.15$     )

0000014630 COVE LAKE RD LAKEVIEW CIR COVE LN 557 0.21 14616 1,624 268 41,534$      26$             Local -$                $    6,593.44 13,505.96$   11,002.03$     31,101.44$     19.15$     )

0000014640 COVE LAKE RD COVE LN COVINGTON HWY 512.6 0.19 15482 1,720 284 43,995$      26$             Local -$                $    6,984.10 14,306.19$   11,653.90$     32,944.20$     19.15$     )

S1120 S1120 PRESTON OAKS PL 3272.1 1.24 1E+05 11,336 1,870 289,913$    26$             Local 55.8 $255,055 22.50$            $  46,023.26 94,273.77$   76,795.93$     217,092.95$   19.15$     )

0000001140 SAVOY CHASE CROSSING DR BROWNS MILL RD PRESTON OAKS PL 229.5 0.09 6211 690 114 17,650$      26$             Local -$                $    2,801.85 5,739.30$      4,675.26$       13,216.41$     19.15$     )

0000001150 SAVOY CHASE CROSSING DR PRESTON OAKS PL THORNBURY CT 1226.8 0.46 33417 3,713 613 94,960$      26$             Local -$                $  15,074.78 30,879.09$   25,154.28$     71,108.15$     19.15$     )

0000001160 SAVOY CHASE CROSSING DR THORNBURY CT END 232.5 0.09 10506 1,167 193 29,855$      26$             Local -$                $    4,739.37 9,708.10$      7,908.27$       22,355.75$     19.15$     )

0000001170 THORNBURY CT SAVOY CHASE CROSSING DR END 116.2 0.04 7088 788 130 20,142$      26$             Local -$                $    3,197.48 6,549.69$      5,335.41$       15,082.58$     19.15$     )

0000001180 PRESTON OAKS PL SAVOY CHASE CROSSING DR END 1467.1 0.56 44800 4,978 821 127,307$    26$             Local -$                $  20,209.78 41,397.59$   33,722.70$     95,330.07$     19.15$     )

S750 S750 HILLANDALE PARK CT 877.7 0.33 22946 2,550 421 65,205$      26$             Local 55.9 $57,365 22.50$            $  10,351.20 21,203.33$   17,272.35$     48,826.87$     19.15$     )

0000013810 HILLANDALE PARK CT PANOLA RD HILLANDALE DR 877.7 0.33 22946 2,550 421 65,205$      26$             Local -$                $  10,351.20 21,203.33$   17,272.35$     48,826.87$     19.15$     )

S1180 S1180 HUNTERS PACE DR 6462.5 2.45 2E+05 17,533 2,893 448,395$    26$             Local 56 $394,482 22.50$            $  71,182.18 145,809.15$ 118,776.93$   335,768.25$   19.15$     )

0000001760 HUNTERS PACE DR SALEM RD WILDWOOD TRL 541.3 0.21 11697 1,300 214 33,239$      26$             Local -$                $    5,276.65 10,808.65$   8,804.79$       24,890.09$     19.15$     )

0000001770 HUNTERS PACE DR WILDWOOD TRL FOXGLEN CIR 396.3 0.15 8658 962 159 24,603$      26$             Local -$                $    3,905.72 8,000.45$      6,517.21$       18,423.39$     19.15$     )

0000001780 HUNTERS PACE DR FOXGLEN CIR HUNTERS CV 487.1 0.18 9585 1,065 176 27,237$      26$             Local -$                $    4,323.90 8,857.05$      7,215.00$       20,395.95$     19.15$     )

0000001790 HUNTERS PACE DR HUNTERS CV HUNTERS PACE CIR 321.3 0.12 7051 783 129 20,037$      26$             Local -$                $    3,180.78 6,515.50$      5,307.56$       15,003.85$     19.15$     )

0000001800 HUNTERS PACE DR HUNTERS PACE CIR END 2275 0.86 45926 5,103 842 130,506$    26$             Local -$                $  20,717.73 42,438.07$   34,570.29$     97,726.09$     19.15$     )

0000001810 HUNTERS PACE CIR HUNTERS PACE DR END 345 0.13 12345 1,372 226 35,080$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    5,568.97 11,407.44$   9,292.56$       26,268.97$     19.15$     )

0000001820 HUNTERS CV END HUNTERS PACE DR 343.2 0.13 12864 1,429 236 36,555$      26$             Local -$                $    5,803.09 11,887.02$   9,683.23$       27,373.35$     19.15$     )

0000001830 FOXGLEN CIR HUNTERS PACE DR END 750.1 0.28 24321 2,702 446 69,112$      26$             Local -$                $  10,971.47 22,473.90$   18,307.36$     51,752.74$     19.15$     )

0000001840 WILDWOOD TRL HUNTERS PACE DR END 1003.2 0.38 25346 2,816 465 72,025$      26$             Local -$                $  11,433.86 23,421.06$   19,078.92$     53,933.84$     19.15$     )

S1930 S1930 PALISADES PLACE DR 1601.8 0.61 46738 5,193 857 132,814$    26$             Local 56.1 $116,845 22.50$            $  21,084.03 43,188.40$   35,181.51$     99,453.95$     19.15$     )

0000007980 PALISADES PLACE DR BROWNS MILL RD LAURENS XING 712.9 0.27 16374 1,819 300 46,529$      26$             Local -$                $    7,386.49 15,130.45$   12,325.35$     34,842.29$     19.15$     )

0000007990 PALISADES PLACE DR LAURENS XING END 618.2 0.23 19515 2,168 358 55,455$      26$             Local -$                $    8,803.43 18,032.90$   14,689.70$     41,526.03$     19.15$     )

0000008000 LAURENS XING PALISADES PLACE DR END 270.7 0.10 10849 1,205 199 30,829$      26$             Local -$                $    4,894.10 10,025.05$   8,166.46$       23,085.62$     19.15$     )

S480 S480 EVANS MILL RD/ MAIN ST MALL PKWY REAGIN ST 3618.5 2.74 2E+05 20,628 3,404 527,570$    26$             Minor Arterial 56.2 $324,896 15.75$            $  83,751.03 171,555.12$ 139,749.74$   395,055.89$   19.15$     )

0000008710 EVANS MILL RD MALL PKWY MILLWOOD LN 294.8 0.39 21990 2,443 403 62,488$      26$             Minor Arterial -$                $    9,919.93 20,319.93$   16,552.73$     46,792.59$     19.15$     )

0000008720 EVANS MILL RD MILLWOOD LN I-20 ON RAMP 281.1 0.37 19761 2,196 362 56,154$      26$             Minor Arterial -$                $    8,914.41 18,260.22$   14,874.87$     42,049.50$     19.15$     )

0000008730 EVANS MILL RD I-20 ON RAMP OLD HILLANDALE DR 345.4 0.33 21000 2,333 385 59,675$      26$             Minor Arterial -$                $    9,473.33 19,405.12$   15,807.52$     44,685.97$     19.15$     )

0000008740 EVANS MILL RD OLD HILLANDALE DR HILLANDALE DR 426.7 0.40 29114 3,235 534 82,732$      26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  13,133.65 26,902.89$   21,915.24$     61,951.78$     19.15$     )

0000008750 EVANS MILL RD HILLANDALE DR DAVIDSON DR 214.6 0.20 13048 1,450 239 37,078$      26$             Minor Arterial -$                $    5,886.10 12,057.05$   9,821.74$       27,764.88$     19.15$     )

0000008760 EVANS MILL RD DAVIDSON DR COVINGTON HWY 1247.5 0.95 49775 5,531 913 141,444$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  22,454.06 45,994.75$   37,467.58$     105,916.39$   19.15$     )

0000008770 EVANS MILL RD COVINGTON HWY DAVIDSON DR 469.3 0.36 18725 2,081 343 53,210$      26$             Minor Arterial -$                $    8,447.06 17,302.90$   14,095.04$     39,844.99$     19.15$     )

0000008780 MAIN ST DAVIDSON DR REAGIN ST 339.1 0.26 12242 1,360 224 34,788$      26$             Minor Arterial -$                $    5,522.50 11,312.26$   9,215.03$       26,049.79$     19.15$     )

S1160 S1160 CEDAR ROCK DR 15402 5.83 5E+05 50,777 8,378 1,298,625$ 26$             Local 56.3 ######## 22.50$           ########## 422,286.83$ 343,997.16$   972,439.06$   19.15$     )

0000002560 WALNUT CREEK WAY END WALNUT PATH 772.1 0.29 24556 2,728 450 69,780$      26$             Local -$                $  11,077.48 22,691.05$   18,484.26$     52,252.79$     19.15$     )

0000002570 WALNUT CREEK WAY WALNUT PATH WALNUT DR 217.7 0.08 5714 635 105 16,237$      26$             Local -$                $    2,577.65 5,280.04$      4,301.15$       12,158.84$     19.15$     )

0000002580 WALNUT CREEK WAY WALNUT DR WALNUT LN 225.5 0.09 5558 618 102 15,794$      26$             Local -$                $    2,507.28 5,135.89$      4,183.72$       11,826.89$     19.15$     )

0000002590 WALNUT CREEK WAY WALNUT LN WALNUT CT 901 0.34 21172 2,352 388 60,164$      26$             Local -$                $    9,550.92 19,564.06$   15,936.99$     45,051.97$     19.15$     )

0000002600 WALNUT CREEK WAY WALNUT CT SALEM RD 198.6 0.08 5047 561 93 14,342$      26$             Local -$                $    2,276.76 4,663.70$      3,799.07$       10,739.53$     19.15$     )

0000002610 FANNIN DR SALEM RD STAUNTON WAY 222.3 0.08 6101 678 112 17,337$      26$             Local -$                $    2,752.23 5,637.65$      4,592.46$       12,982.34$     19.15$     )

0000002620 FANNIN DR STAUNTON WAY LEAMAN CT 376.3 0.14 10496 1,166 192 29,826$      26$             Local -$                $    4,734.86 9,698.86$      7,900.75$       22,334.47$     19.15$     )

0000002630 FANNIN DR LEAMAN CT RADFORD LN 440 0.17 11256 1,251 206 31,986$      26$             Local -$                $    5,077.71 10,401.14$   8,472.83$       23,951.68$     19.15$     )

0000002640 FANNIN DR RADFORD LN ROBERTSON PATH 348.3 0.13 9273 1,030 170 26,351$      26$             Local -$                $    4,183.15 8,568.75$      6,980.15$       19,732.05$     19.15$     )

0000002650 FANNIN DR ROBERTSON PATH EFFINGHAM CT 351.5 0.13 9251 1,028 170 26,288$      26$             Local -$                $    4,173.23 8,548.42$      6,963.59$       19,685.23$     19.15$     )

0000002660 FANNIN DR EFFINGHAM CT ROCKY PINE DR 717.7 0.27 20502 2,278 376 58,260$      26$             Local -$                $    9,248.68 18,944.94$   15,432.65$     43,626.27$     19.15$     )

0000002670 FANNIN CT ROCKY PINE DR END 267.5 0.10 14136 1,571 259 40,170$      26$             Local -$                $    6,376.91 13,062.42$   10,640.72$     30,080.04$     19.15$     )

0000002680 EFFINGHAM CT END FANNIN DR 522.5 0.20 18568 2,063 340 52,764$      26$             Local -$                $    8,376.23 17,157.82$   13,976.86$     39,510.91$     19.15$     )

0000002690 ROBERTSON PATH END FANNIN DR 503.9 0.19 18044 2,005 331 51,275$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    8,139.85 16,673.62$   13,582.42$     38,395.89$     19.15$     )

0000002700 RADFORD LN END FANNIN DR 509.4 0.19 14696 1,633 269 41,761$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    6,629.53 13,579.89$   11,062.25$     31,271.67$     19.15$     )

0000002710 LEAMAN CT FANNIN DR END 100.7 0.04 6000 667 110 17,050$      26$             Local -$                $    2,706.67 5,544.32$      4,516.43$       12,767.42$     19.15$     )

0000002720 STAUNTON WAY FANNIN DR END 123.1 0.05 6345 705 116 18,030$      26$             Local -$                $    2,862.30 5,863.12$      4,776.13$       13,501.55$     19.15$     )

0000002730 WALNUT CT WALNUT CREEK WAY END 438.1 0.17 15413 1,713 283 43,799$      26$             Local -$                $    6,952.98 14,242.43$   11,601.96$     32,797.37$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

22 3:28 PM

155

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000002740 WALNUT LN WALNUT CREEK WAY WALNUT CREEK TRCE 212.4 0.08 5762 640 106 16,374$      26$             Local -$                $    2,599.30 5,324.40$      4,337.28$       12,260.98$     19.15$     )

0000002750 WALNUT LN WALNUT CREEK TRCE END 265.4 0.10 9718 1,080 178 27,615$      26$             Local -$                $    4,383.90 8,979.95$      7,315.12$       20,678.96$     19.15$     )

0000002760 WALNUT CREEK TRCE WALNUT LN END 333 0.13 13074 1,453 240 37,152$      26$             Local -$                $    5,897.83 12,081.07$   9,841.31$       27,820.21$     19.15$     )

0000002770 WALNUT DR WALNUT CREEK WAY END 102.7 0.04 6544 727 120 18,596$      26$             Local -$                $    2,952.07 6,047.01$      4,925.92$       13,925.00$     19.15$     )

0000002780 WALNUT PATH WALNUT CREEK WAY END 438.1 0.17 15100 1,678 277 42,909$      26$             Local -$                $    6,811.78 13,953.21$   11,366.36$     32,131.34$     19.15$     )

0000003420 CEDAR ROCK DR PANOLA RD CEDAR ROCK LN 533.3 0.20 14279 1,587 262 40,576$      26$             Local -$                $    6,441.42 13,194.56$   10,748.36$     30,384.33$     19.15$     )

0000003430 CEDAR ROCK DR CEDAR ROCK LN ROCKY PINE DR 273.6 0.10 6963 774 128 19,787$      26$             Local -$                $    3,141.09 6,434.18$      5,241.32$       14,816.59$     19.15$     )

0000003440 CEDAR ROCK DR ROCKY PINE DR ROCKY PINE DR 1410.9 0.53 38988 4,332 715 110,791$    26$             Local -$                $  17,587.92 36,026.99$   29,347.78$     82,962.70$     19.15$     )

0000003450 CEDAR ROCK LN CEDAR ROCK DR END 328.8 0.12 7138 793 131 20,284$      26$             Local -$                $    3,220.03 6,595.89$      5,373.05$       15,188.97$     19.15$     )

0000003460 ROCKY PINE DR CEDAR ROCK DR BLECKLEY DR 373.9 0.14 8581 953 157 24,384$      26$             Local -$                $    3,870.98 7,929.30$      6,459.25$       18,259.54$     19.15$     )

0000003470 ROCKY PINE DR BLECKLEY DR ROCKY PINE CT 358 0.14 9282 1,031 170 26,376$      26$             Local -$                $    4,187.21 8,577.06$      6,986.92$       19,751.20$     19.15$     )

0000003480 ROCKY PINE DR ROCKY PINE CT CEDAR ROCK DR 556.7 0.21 15182 1,687 278 43,142$      26$             Local -$                $    6,848.77 14,028.98$   11,428.08$     32,305.83$     19.15$     )

0000003490 ROCKY PINE DR CEDAR ROCK DR FANNIN DR 488.9 0.19 12011 1,335 220 34,131$      26$             Local -$                $    5,418.30 11,098.80$   9,041.15$       25,558.25$     19.15$     )

0000003500 ROCKY PINE DR FANNIN DR CROSSVALE RD 513.6 0.19 11335 1,259 208 32,210$      26$             Local -$                $    5,113.34 10,474.14$   8,532.30$       24,119.78$     19.15$     )

0000003510 ROCKY PINE DR CROSSVALE RD END 202.6 0.08 6496 722 119 18,459$      26$             Local -$                $    2,930.42 6,002.65$      4,889.79$       13,822.86$     19.15$     )

0000003520 CROSSVALE RD ROCKY PINE DR END 183.2 0.07 5397 600 99 15,336$      26$             Local -$                $    2,434.65 4,987.12$      4,062.53$       11,484.29$     19.15$     )

0000003530 ROCKY PINE CT ROCKY PINE DR END 297.6 0.11 9174 1,019 168 26,069$      26$             Local -$                $    4,138.49 8,477.27$      6,905.63$       19,521.39$     19.15$     )

0000003540 BLECKLEY DR ROCKY PINE DR BLECKLEY CT 663.4 0.25 19718 2,191 361 56,032$      26$             Local -$                $    8,895.01 18,220.48$   14,842.51$     41,958.00$     19.15$     )

0000003550 BLECKLEY DR BLECKLEY CT END 127.8 0.05 2331 259 43 6,624$        26$             Local -$                $    1,051.54 2,153.97$      1,754.63$       4,960.14$       19.15$     )

0000003560 BLECKLEY CT BLECKLEY DR END 501.4 0.19 17793 1,977 326 50,562$      26$             Local -$                $    8,026.62 16,441.68$   13,393.48$     37,861.78$     19.15$     )

S570 S570 RAVEN CIR 6383.8 2.42 2E+05 19,158 3,161 489,957$    26$             Local 56.3 $431,048 22.50$            $  77,780.13 159,324.35$ 129,786.49$   366,890.96$   19.15$     )

0000014860 HERITAGE PARK TRL END HERITAGE WALK 398.7 0.15 18996 2,111 348 53,980$      26$             Local -$                $    8,569.31 17,553.32$   14,299.03$     40,421.65$     19.15$     )

0000014870 HERITAGE PARK TRL HERITAGE WALK DEKALB MEDICAL PKWY 139.5 0.05 3214 357 59 9,133$        26$             Local -$                $    1,449.87 2,969.91$      2,419.30$       6,839.08$       19.15$     )

0000014880 PARKFIELD CT END HERITAGE WALK 340.1 0.13 12593 1,399 231 35,785$      26$             Local -$                $    5,680.84 11,636.60$   9,479.24$       26,796.69$     19.15$     )

0000014890 HERITAGE WALK RAVEN CIR PARKFIELD CT 443.4 0.17 9947 1,105 182 28,266$      26$             Local -$                $    4,487.20 9,191.56$      7,487.49$       21,166.25$     19.15$     )

0000014900 HERITAGE WALK PARKFIELD CT HERITAGE PARK TRL 590.8 0.22 13584 1,509 249 38,601$      26$             Local -$                $    6,127.89 12,552.34$   10,225.21$     28,905.44$     19.15$     )

0000014910 RAVEN CIR HERITAGE WALK RAVEN LN 389.5 0.15 9718 1,080 178 27,615$      26$             Local -$                $    4,383.90 8,979.95$      7,315.12$       20,678.96$     19.15$     )

0000014920 RAVEN CIR RAVEN LN RAVENSWAY DR 256.8 0.10 6219 691 114 17,672$      26$             Local -$                $    2,805.46 5,746.69$      4,681.28$       13,233.43$     19.15$     )

0000014930 RAVEN CIR RAVENSWAY DR RAVEN TRCE 258.3 0.10 6341 705 116 18,019$      26$             Local -$                $    2,860.50 5,859.42$      4,773.12$       13,493.04$     19.15$     )

0000014940 RAVEN CIR RAVEN TRCE RAVENSWAY DR 825.1 0.31 19391 2,155 356 55,103$      26$             Local -$                $    8,747.50 17,918.32$   14,596.36$     41,262.17$     19.15$     )

0000014950 RAVEN CIR RAVENSWAY DR RAVEN LN 375.6 0.14 8655 962 159 24,595$      26$             Local -$                $    3,904.37 7,997.68$      6,514.96$       18,417.00$     19.15$     )

0000014960 RAVEN CIR RAVEN LN RAVENSWAY CT 277.3 0.11 6454 717 118 18,340$      26$             Local -$                $    2,911.47 5,963.84$      4,858.18$       13,733.49$     19.15$     )

0000014970 RAVEN CIR RAVENSWAY CT HERITAGE WALK 410.7 0.16 9527 1,059 175 27,073$      26$             Local -$                $    4,297.74 8,803.46$      7,171.34$       20,272.54$     19.15$     )

0000014980 RAVENSWAY CT RAVEN CIR END 127.2 0.05 6957 773 128 19,769$      26$             Local -$                $    3,138.38 6,428.64$      5,236.80$       14,803.82$     19.15$     )

0000014990 RAVEN TRCE RAVEN CIR END 121.5 0.05 6380 709 117 18,130$      26$             Local -$                $    2,878.09 5,895.46$      4,802.47$       13,576.02$     19.15$     )

0000015000 RAVENSWAY DR RAVEN CIR [W] RAVEN CIR [E] 624.6 0.24 14415 1,602 264 40,963$      26$             Local -$                $    6,502.77 13,320.23$   10,850.73$     30,673.73$     19.15$     )

0000015010 RAVEN LN RAVEN CIR [W] RAVEN CIR [E] 626.9 0.24 15914 1,768 292 45,222$      26$             Local -$                $    7,178.98 14,705.38$   11,979.09$     33,863.45$     19.15$     )

0000015020 RAVEN LN RAVEN CIR [E] DEKALB MEDICAL PKWY 177.8 0.07 4114 457 75 11,691$      26$             Local -$                $    1,855.87 3,801.56$      3,096.77$       8,754.19$       19.15$     )

S300 S300 PARKWAY RD 3296.9 1.25 61349 6,817 1,125 174,333$    26$             Local 56.4 $107,361 15.75$            $  27,675.22 56,689.75$   46,179.78$     130,544.74$   19.15$     )

0000015620 PARKWAY RD LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD PARKWAY CV 860.5 0.33 17317 1,924 317 49,209$      26$             Local -$                $    7,811.89 16,001.83$   13,035.18$     36,848.90$     19.15$     )

0000015630 PARKWAY RD PARKWAY CV SPRING ST 2039.5 0.77 37338 4,149 685 106,102$    26$             Local -$                $  16,843.59 34,502.30$   28,105.76$     79,451.65$     19.15$     )

0000015640 PARKWAY RD SPRING ST PHILLIPS ST 396.9 0.15 6694 744 123 19,022$      26$             Local -$                $    3,019.74 6,185.61$      5,038.83$       14,244.18$     19.15$     )

S1430 S1430 CHAPARRAL DR 10881 4.12 3E+05 33,393 5,510 854,017$    26$             Local 57 $525,934 15.75$           ########## 277,709.44$ 226,223.63$   639,507.30$   19.15$     )

0000011250 CHAPARRAL PL END CHAPARRAL LN 170.8 0.06 2325 258 43 6,607$        26$             Local -$                $    1,048.83 2,148.42$      1,750.12$       4,947.38$       19.15$     )

0000011260 CHAPARRAL PL CHAPARRAL LN CHIRICAHUA DR 927.5 0.35 22098 2,455 405 62,795$      26$             Local -$                $    9,968.65 20,419.73$   16,634.02$     47,022.41$     19.15$     )

0000011270 CHAPARRAL PL CHIRICAHUA DR WOODROW RD 377.9 0.14 9727 1,081 178 27,641$      26$             Local -$                $    4,387.96 8,988.27$      7,321.89$       20,698.12$     19.15$     )

0000011280 CHIRICAHUA DR CHAPARRAL PL TOPAWA PL 458.5 0.17 8314 924 152 23,626$      26$             Local -$                $    3,750.54 7,682.58$      6,258.27$       17,691.39$     19.15$     )

0000011290 CHIRICAHUA DR TOPAWA PL PAINTED ROCK PL 351.1 0.13 8037 893 147 22,838$      26$             Local -$                $    3,625.58 7,426.62$      6,049.76$       17,101.96$     19.15$     )

0000011300 CHIRICAHUA DR PAINTED ROCK PL END 569.4 0.22 11216 1,246 206 31,872$      26$             Local -$                $    5,059.66 10,364.18$   8,442.72$       23,866.56$     19.15$     )

0000011310 CHAPARRAL LN CHAPARRAL PL TOPAWA PL 372.7 0.14 10461 1,162 192 29,727$      26$             Local -$                $    4,719.07 9,666.52$      7,874.40$       22,260.00$     19.15$     )

0000011320 CHAPARRAL LN TOPAWA PL CHAPARRAL WAY 235.1 0.09 6399 711 117 18,184$      26$             Local -$                $    2,886.66 5,913.02$      4,816.78$       13,616.45$     19.15$     )

0000011330 CHAPARRAL LN CHAPARRAL WAY PAINTED ROCK PL 204 0.08 4948 550 91 14,061$      26$             Local -$                $    2,232.10 4,572.22$      3,724.55$       10,528.87$     19.15$     )

0000011340 CHAPARRAL LN PAINTED ROCK PL END 218.6 0.08 9184 1,020 168 26,098$      26$             Local -$                $    4,143.00 8,486.51$      6,913.15$       19,542.66$     19.15$     )

0000011350 TOPAWA PL CHAPARRAL LN CHIRICAHUA DR 914.9 0.35 25749 2,861 472 73,170$      26$             Local -$                $  11,615.66 23,793.45$   19,382.27$     54,791.38$     19.15$     )

0000011360 PAINTED ROCK PL CHAPARRAL LN CHIAPUK CT 454.5 0.17 10527 1,170 193 29,914$      26$             Local -$                $    4,748.85 9,727.51$      7,924.08$       22,400.44$     19.15$     )

0000011370 PAINTED ROCK PL CHIAPUK CT CHIRICAHUA DR 413.5 0.16 10996 1,222 202 31,247$      26$             Local -$                $    4,960.42 10,160.89$   8,277.12$       23,398.43$     19.15$     )

0000011380 CHIAPUK CT PAINTED ROCK PL END 282.3 0.11 11625 1,292 213 33,034$      26$             Local -$                $    5,244.17 10,742.12$   8,750.59$       24,736.88$     19.15$     )

0000011390 MANOLETA DR WEST END CHAPARRAL WAY 227.1 0.09 6520 724 120 18,528$      26$             Local -$                $    2,941.24 6,024.83$      4,907.86$       13,873.93$     19.15$     )

0000011400 MANOLETA DR CHAPARRAL WAY EAST END 471.4 0.18 16538 1,838 303 46,995$      26$             Local -$                $    7,460.48 15,281.99$   12,448.80$     35,191.27$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

23 3:28 PM

156

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000011410 CHAPARRAL WAY MANOLETA DR CHAPARRAL DR 452.8 0.17 12980 1,442 238 36,885$      26$             Local -$                $    5,855.42 11,994.21$   9,770.55$       27,620.19$     19.15$     )

0000011420 CHAPARRAL WAY CHAPARRAL DR TEE BOW CT 345.9 0.13 8890 988 163 25,262$      26$             Local -$                $    4,010.38 8,214.83$      6,691.85$       18,917.06$     19.15$     )

0000011430 CHAPARRAL WAY TEE BOW CT MOHAVE CT 359.8 0.14 9109 1,012 167 25,885$      26$             Local -$                $    4,109.17 8,417.20$      6,856.70$       19,383.07$     19.15$     )

0000011440 CHAPARRAL WAY MOHAVE CT CHAPARRAL LN 363.6 0.14 10624 1,180 195 30,190$      26$             Local -$                $    4,792.60 9,817.14$      7,997.10$       22,606.85$     19.15$     )

0000011450 MOHAVE CT CHAPARRAL WAY END 292.6 0.11 11765 1,307 216 33,432$      26$             Local -$                $    5,307.32 10,871.49$   8,855.97$       25,034.78$     19.15$     )

0000011460 TEE BOW CT CHAPARRAL WAY END 245.1 0.09 10600 1,178 194 30,122$      26$             Local -$                $    4,781.78 9,794.97$      7,979.03$       22,555.78$     19.15$     )

0000011470 CHAPARRAL DR CHAPARRAL WAY CHAPARRAL CT 948.3 0.36 27213 3,024 499 77,330$      26$             Local -$                $  12,276.09 25,146.26$   20,484.28$     57,906.63$     19.15$     )

0000011480 CHAPARRAL DR CHAPARRAL CT KLONDIKE RD 970.4 0.37 24458 2,718 448 69,501$      26$             Local -$                $  11,033.28 22,600.50$   18,410.49$     52,044.26$     19.15$     )

0000011490 CHAPARRAL CT END CHAPARRAL DR 253 0.10 10231 1,137 188 29,073$      26$             Local -$                $    4,615.32 9,453.99$      7,701.27$       21,770.58$     19.15$     )

S410 S410 LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD I20 EB EXIT RAMP COVINGTON HWY 5060.4 4.79 3E+05 33,423 5,515 854,802$    26$             Minor Arterial 57 $526,418 15.75$           ########## 277,964.48$ 226,431.39$   640,094.60$   19.15$     )

0000013110 LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD I20 EB EXIT RAMP OLD HILLANDALE DR 729.6 0.69 48518 5,391 889 137,872$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  21,887.01 44,833.22$   36,521.39$     103,241.61$   19.15$     )

0000013120 LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD OLD HILLANDALE DR CHUPP RD 1035 0.98 68843 7,649 1,262 195,629$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  31,055.84 63,614.60$   51,820.80$     146,491.25$   19.15$     )

0000013130 LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD CHUPP RD COVINGTON HWY 3295.8 3.12 2E+05 20,383 3,363 521,301$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  82,755.88 169,516.66$ 138,089.20$   390,361.74$   19.15$     )

S660 S660 SHIREWICK DR 7357.9 2.79 2E+05 23,470 3,872 600,234$    26$             Local 57.2 $528,065 22.50$            $  95,286.40 195,184.09$ 158,998.02$   449,468.51$   19.15$     )

0000014010 SHIREWICK DR PANOLA RD SHIREWICK LN 1463.4 0.55 35383 3,931 649 100,547$    26$             Local -$                $  15,961.66 32,695.78$   26,634.16$     75,291.60$     19.15$     )

0000014020 SHIREWICK LN NORTH END SHIREWICK DR 246.8 0.09 9578 1,064 176 27,217$      26$             Local -$                $    4,320.74 8,850.58$      7,209.73$       20,381.06$     19.15$     )

0000014030 SHIREWICK LN SHIREWICK DR FEYWOOD CT 641.7 0.24 19723 2,191 362 56,046$      26$             Local -$                $    8,897.26 18,225.10$   14,846.27$     41,968.64$     19.15$     )

0000014040 SHIREWICK LN FEYWOOD CT LANCEWOOD LN 247.8 0.09 5648 628 104 16,050$      26$             Local -$                $    2,547.88 5,219.05$      4,251.47$       12,018.40$     19.15$     )

0000014050 SHIREWICK LN LANCEWOOD LN TEMPEST TRL 248.1 0.09 5890 654 108 16,737$      26$             Local -$                $    2,657.04 5,442.67$      4,433.63$       12,533.35$     19.15$     )

0000014060 SHIREWICK LN TEMPEST TRL YOCUMSHIRE CT 253.1 0.10 6004 667 110 17,061$      26$             Local -$                $    2,708.47 5,548.02$      4,519.44$       12,775.93$     19.15$     )

0000014070 SHIREWICK LN YOCUMSHIRE CT WILLENHALL WAY 249.1 0.09 5618 624 103 15,964$      26$             Local -$                $    2,534.34 5,191.33$      4,228.89$       11,954.56$     19.15$     )

0000014080 SHIREWICK LN WILLENHALL WAY EAST END 601.9 0.23 17458 1,940 320 49,610$      26$             Local -$                $    7,875.50 16,132.12$   13,141.32$     37,148.94$     19.15$     )

0000014090 FEYWOOD CT SHIREWICK LN END 454.1 0.17 14063 1,563 258 39,962$      26$             Local -$                $    6,343.98 12,994.96$   10,585.77$     29,924.70$     19.15$     )

0000014100 LANCEWOOD LN SHIREWICK LN END 451.9 0.17 14924 1,658 274 42,409$      26$             Local -$                $    6,732.38 13,790.57$   11,233.88$     31,756.83$     19.15$     )

0000014110 TEMPEST TRL SHIREWICK LN END 449.6 0.17 14612 1,624 268 41,522$      26$             Local -$                $    6,591.64 13,502.27$   10,999.02$     31,092.92$     19.15$     )

0000014120 YOCUMSHIRE CT SHIREWICK LN END 448.6 0.17 12978 1,442 238 36,879$      26$             Local -$                $    5,854.52 11,992.36$   9,769.05$       27,615.93$     19.15$     )

0000014130 WILLENHALL WAY SHIREWICK LN LOFWOOD LN 409.7 0.16 10669 1,185 196 30,318$      26$             Local -$                $    4,812.90 9,858.73$      8,030.97$       22,702.60$     19.15$     )

0000014140 WILLENHALL WAY LOFWOOD LN WILLENHALL CT 302.9 0.11 7113 790 130 20,213$      26$             Local -$                $    3,208.75 6,572.79$      5,354.23$       15,135.78$     19.15$     )

0000014150 WILLENHALL WAY WILLENHALL CT END 317.4 0.12 11200 1,244 205 31,827$      26$             Local -$                $    5,052.44 10,349.40$   8,430.68$       23,832.52$     19.15$     )

0000014160 WILLENHALL CT WILLENHALL WAY END 141.8 0.05 6822 758 125 19,386$      26$             Local -$                $    3,077.48 6,303.89$      5,135.18$       14,516.56$     19.15$     )

0000014170 LOFWOOD LN WILLENHALL WAY END 430 0.16 13543 1,505 248 38,485$      26$             Local -$                $    6,109.40 12,514.45$   10,194.34$     28,818.19$     19.15$     )

S1000 S1000 MILLER RD ROCK SPRINGS RD SNAPFINGER WOODS DR 8880 3.36 2E+05 26,943 4,446 689,076$    26$             Collector 57.3 $424,358 15.75$           ########## 224,073.69$ 182,531.65$   515,995.28$   19.15$     )

0000004950 MILLER RD ROCK SPRINGS RD NEEDLE KNOB CT 1152.5 0.44 30657 3,406 562 87,117$      26$             Collector -$                $  13,829.71 28,328.70$   23,076.72$     65,235.13$     19.15$     )

0000004960 MILLER RD NEEDLE KNOB CT IVYLOG CT 431.2 0.16 11470 1,274 210 32,594$      26$             Collector -$                $    5,174.24 10,598.89$   8,633.92$       24,407.05$     19.15$     )

0000004970 MILLER RD IVYLOG CT THOMPSON MILL RD 456.1 0.17 12132 1,348 222 34,475$      26$             Collector -$                $    5,472.88 11,210.62$   9,132.23$       25,815.72$     19.15$     )

0000004980 MILLER RD THOMPSON MILL RD LACY LN 1298.8 0.49 32080 3,564 588 91,161$      26$             Collector -$                $  14,471.64 29,643.63$   24,147.86$     68,263.14$     19.15$     )

0000004990 MILLER RD LACY LN TADMORE LN 430.9 0.16 11462 1,274 210 32,571$      26$             Collector -$                $    5,170.64 10,591.50$   8,627.89$       24,390.03$     19.15$     )

0000005000 MILLER RD TADMORE LN MINOLA DR 594.3 0.23 15808 1,756 290 44,921$      26$             Collector -$                $    7,131.16 14,607.44$   11,899.30$     33,637.90$     19.15$     )

0000005010 MILLER RD MINOLA DR CHATOOGA DR 478.7 0.27 16372 1,819 300 46,524$      26$             Collector -$                $    7,385.59 15,128.60$   12,323.84$     34,838.03$     19.15$     )

0000005020 MILLER RD CHATOOGA DR PANOLA INDUSTRIAL BLVD 1271 0.72 43468 4,830 797 123,522$    26$             Collector -$                $  19,608.90 40,166.75$   32,720.05$     92,495.70$     19.15$     )

0000005030 MILLER RD PANOLA INDUSTRIAL BLVD START OF DIVIDED 2014.4 0.76 53583 5,954 982 152,265$    26$             Collector -$                $  24,171.89 49,513.55$   40,334.01$     114,019.44$   19.15$     )

0000005040 MILLER RD START OF DIVIDED SNAPFINGER WOODS DR 258.8 0.15 9834 1,093 180 27,945$      26$             Collector -$                $    4,436.23 9,087.14$      7,402.43$       20,925.80$     19.15$     )

0000005050 MILLER RD SNAPFINGER WOODS DR END OF DIVIDED 493.3 0.09 5624 625 103 15,982$      26$             Collector -$                $    2,537.05 5,196.88$      4,233.40$       11,967.33$     19.15$     )

S2210 S2210 SANDY LAKE DR 2675.1 1.01 97080 10,787 1,780 275,869$    26$             Local 57.4 $169,890 15.75$            $  43,793.87 89,707.10$   73,075.89$     206,576.86$   19.15$     )

0000000910 SANDY LAKE WAY PANOLA RD SANDY LAKE DR 328.5 0.06 13676 1,520 251 38,863$      26$             Local -$                $    6,169.40 12,637.35$   10,294.46$     29,101.21$     19.15$     )

0000000920 SANDY LAKE DR SOUTH END SANDY LAKE WAY 1946.8 0.74 70004 7,778 1,283 198,928$    26$             Local -$                $  31,579.58 64,687.43$   52,694.73$     148,961.74$   19.15$     )

0000000930 SANDY LAKE DR SANDY LAKE WAY NORTH END 399.8 0.15 13400 1,489 246 38,078$      26$             Local -$                $    6,044.89 12,382.31$   10,086.70$     28,513.90$     19.15$     )

S310 S310 PARKWAY TRL 3287.1 1.25 97692 10,855 1,791 277,608$    26$             Local 57.5 $244,230 22.50$            $  44,069.95 90,272.62$   73,536.57$     207,879.13$   19.15$     )

0000015660 PARKWAY CV PARKWAY RD PARKWAY CLOSE 444.9 0.17 10277 1,142 188 29,204$      26$             Local -$                $    4,636.07 9,496.50$      7,735.90$       21,868.46$     19.15$     )

0000015670 PARKWAY CV PARKWAY CLOSE PARKWAY TRL 386.7 0.15 8675 964 159 24,651$      26$             Local -$                $    3,913.39 8,016.16$      6,530.01$       18,459.56$     19.15$     )

0000015680 PARKWAY CV PARKWAY TRL END 332.4 0.13 11416 1,268 209 32,440$      26$             Local -$                $    5,149.88 10,548.99$   8,593.27$       24,292.14$     19.15$     )

0000015690 PARKWAY CLOSE PARKWAY CV END 417.8 0.16 13738 1,526 252 39,039$      26$             Local -$                $    6,197.36 12,694.64$   10,341.13$     29,233.14$     19.15$     )

0000015700 PARKWAY TRL PARKWAY CV PARKWAY TRCE 592.5 0.22 16621 1,847 305 47,231$      26$             Local -$                $    7,497.92 15,358.69$   12,511.27$     35,367.88$     19.15$     )

0000015710 PARKWAY TRL PARKWAY TRCE END 679.5 0.26 23195 2,577 425 65,912$      26$             Local -$                $  10,463.52 21,433.42$   17,459.78$     49,356.72$     19.15$     )

0000015720 PARKWAY TRCE END PARKWAY TRL 433.3 0.16 13770 1,530 252 39,130$      26$             Local -$                $    6,211.80 12,724.21$   10,365.21$     29,301.23$     19.15$     )

S1460 S1460 JOJANNE LN 1093.6 0.41 31800 3,533 583 90,365$      26$             Local 58 $55,650 15.75$            $  14,345.33 29,384.90$   23,937.10$     67,667.33$     19.15$     )

0000011520 JOJANNE LN END WOODROW DR 1093.6 0.41 31800 3,533 583 90,365$      26$             Local -$                $  14,345.33 29,384.90$   23,937.10$     67,667.33$     19.15$     )

S20 S20 ROGERS LAKE RD LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD CITY LIMIT 5455.2 2.07 1E+05 15,631 2,579 399,760$    26$             Collector 58.6 $246,186 15.75$            $  63,461.41 129,993.97$ 105,893.80$   299,349.19$   19.15$     )

0000017350 ROGERS LAKE RD LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD SCALES RD 909.7 0.34 22470 2,497 412 63,852$      26$             Collector -$                $  10,136.47 20,763.48$   16,914.04$     47,813.99$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

24 3:28 PM

157

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000017360 ROGERS LAKE RD SCALES RD COFFEE RD 946.7 0.36 17987 1,999 330 51,113$      26$             Collector -$                $    8,114.14 16,620.95$   13,539.51$     38,274.60$     19.15$     )

0000017370 ROGERS LAKE RD COFFEE RD MILLWOOD PASS 1503.8 0.57 28572 3,175 524 81,192$      26$             Collector -$                $  12,889.15 26,402.05$   21,507.26$     60,798.45$     19.15$     )

0000017380 ROGERS LAKE RD MILLWOOD PASS ROGERS TRCE 1051.9 0.60 35975 3,997 660 102,229$    26$             Collector -$                $  16,228.72 33,242.82$   27,079.78$     76,551.32$     19.15$     )

0000017390 ROGERS LAKE RD ROGERS TRCE CITY LIMIT 1043.1 0.59 35674 3,964 654 101,374$    26$             Collector -$                $  16,092.94 32,964.68$   26,853.21$     75,910.82$     19.15$     )

S650 S650 MILLER GROVE LN 6401.5 2.42 1E+05 13,637 2,250 348,778$    26$             Local 58.8 $214,790 15.75$            $  55,368.02 113,415.53$ 92,388.91$     261,172.47$   19.15$     )

0000014180 MILLER GROVE RD PANOLA RD BENTON DR 1061.5 0.40 20622 2,291 378 58,601$      26$             Local -$                $    9,302.81 19,055.83$   15,522.98$     43,881.62$     19.15$     )

0000014190 MILLER GROVE RD BENTON DR MILLER GROVE LN 674.2 0.26 14650 1,628 269 41,630$      26$             Local -$                $    6,608.78 13,537.38$   11,027.62$     31,173.78$     19.15$     )

0000014200 MILLER GROVE RD MILLER GROVE LN SCRUGGS DR 449.8 0.17 8157 906 150 23,179$      26$             Local -$                $    3,679.71 7,537.50$      6,140.09$       17,357.31$     19.15$     )

0000014210 MILLER GROVE RD SCRUGGS DR END 1001.3 0.38 17448 1,939 320 49,581$      26$             Local -$                $    7,870.99 16,122.88$   13,133.79$     37,127.66$     19.15$     )

0000014220 SCRUGGS DR END MILLER GROVE LN 266.2 0.10 11087 1,232 203 31,506$      26$             Local -$                $    5,001.47 10,244.98$   8,345.62$       23,592.06$     19.15$     )

0000014230 SCRUGGS DR MILLER GROVE LN MILLER GROVE RD 498.5 0.19 11980 1,331 220 34,043$      26$             Local -$                $    5,404.31 11,070.16$   9,017.81$       25,492.28$     19.15$     )

0000014240 MILLER GROVE LN MILLER GROVE RD SCRUGGS DR 1242 0.47 22252 2,472 408 63,233$      26$             Local -$                $  10,038.12 20,562.03$   16,749.95$     47,350.10$     19.15$     )

0000014250 BENTON DR PANOLA RD MILLER GROVE RD 1208 0.46 16541 1,838 303 47,004$      26$             Local -$                $    7,461.83 15,284.77$   12,451.05$     35,197.65$     19.15$     )

S1860 S1860 JACKAM RIDGE CT 16335 6.19 4E+05 46,698 7,705 1,194,313$ 26$             Local 59 $735,500 15.75$           ########## 388,366.68$ 316,365.62$   894,327.98$   19.15$     )

0000008850 GINA AGHA CIR START OF LOOP [SB] GOLOD WAY 219.9 0.08 5294 588 97 15,044$      26$             Local -$                $    2,388.18 4,891.94$      3,985.00$       11,265.12$     19.15$     )

0000008860 GINA AGHA CIR GOLOD WAY OZMENT TRL 393.4 0.15 9321 1,036 171 26,487$      26$             Local -$                $    4,204.81 8,613.10$      7,016.28$       19,834.19$     19.15$     )

0000008870 GINA AGHA CIR OZMENT TRL OZMENT RIDGE CT 310.8 0.12 7220 802 132 20,517$      26$             Local -$                $    3,257.02 6,671.67$      5,434.77$       15,363.46$     19.15$     )

0000008880 GINA AGHA CIR OZMENT RIDGE CT BUCHLI CREST CT 1763.3 0.67 44645 4,961 818 126,866$    26$             Local -$                $  20,139.86 41,254.36$   33,606.03$     95,000.24$     19.15$     )

0000008890 GINA AGHA CIR BUCHLI CREST CT END OF LOOP 751.7 0.28 18230 2,026 334 51,804$      26$             Local -$                $    8,223.76 16,845.49$   13,722.43$     38,791.68$     19.15$     )

0000008900 GINA AGHA CIR END OF LOOP RIVER OVERLOOK WAY 231.7 0.09 5184 576 95 14,731$      26$             Local -$                $    2,338.56 4,790.29$      3,902.20$       11,031.05$     19.15$     )

0000008910 GINA AGHA CIR RIVER OVERLOOK WAY BUCHLI LN 663.3 0.25 14672 1,630 269 41,693$      26$             Local -$                $    6,618.70 13,557.71$   11,044.18$     31,220.60$     19.15$     )

0000008920 OZMENT TRL GINA AGHA CIR END 212.2 0.08 9048 1,005 166 25,711$      26$             Local -$                $    4,081.65 8,360.83$      6,810.78$       19,253.27$     19.15$     )

0000008930 OZMENT RIDGE CT GINA AGHA CIR END 413.1 0.16 12623 1,403 231 35,870$      26$             Local -$                $    5,694.38 11,664.33$   9,501.82$       26,860.52$     19.15$     )

0000008940 BUCHLI CREST CT GINA AGHA CIR END 117.1 0.04 6756 751 124 19,198$      26$             Local -$                $    3,047.71 6,242.90$      5,085.50$       14,376.11$     19.15$     )

0000008950 GOLOD WAY END GOLOD CT 802.7 0.30 22622 2,514 415 64,284$      26$             Local -$                $  10,205.04 20,903.93$   17,028.46$     48,137.43$     19.15$     )

0000008960 GOLOD WAY GOLOD CT GINA AGHA CIR 241.2 0.09 4820 536 88 13,697$      26$             Local -$                $    2,174.36 4,453.94$      3,628.20$       10,256.49$     19.15$     )

0000008970 GOLOD CT GOLOD WAY END 338.7 0.13 11380 1,264 209 32,338$      26$             Local -$                $    5,133.64 10,515.73$   8,566.17$       24,215.54$     19.15$     )

0000008980 RIVER OVERLOOK WAY GINA AGHA CIR SERENA CV 458.9 0.17 11056 1,228 203 31,417$      26$             Local -$                $    4,987.48 10,216.33$   8,322.28$       23,526.10$     19.15$     )

0000008990 RIVER OVERLOOK WAY SERENA CV BUCHLI LN 335.9 0.13 7744 860 142 22,006$      26$             Local -$                $    3,493.40 7,155.87$      5,829.21$       16,478.48$     19.15$     )

0000009000 RIVER OVERLOOK WAY BUCHLI LN SERENA CT 770.7 0.29 14128 1,570 259 40,147$      26$             Local -$                $    6,373.30 13,055.03$   10,634.70$     30,063.02$     19.15$     )

0000009010 RIVER OVERLOOK WAY SERENA CT MONARCH CV 232 0.09 4544 505 83 12,913$      26$             Local -$                $    2,049.85 4,198.90$      3,420.45$       9,669.19$       19.15$     )

0000009020 RIVER OVERLOOK WAY MONARCH CV ARIAAL DR 665 0.25 14744 1,638 270 41,898$      26$             Local -$                $    6,651.18 13,624.24$   11,098.38$     31,373.81$     19.15$     )

0000009030 SERENA CV RIVER OVERLOOK WAY END 246.9 0.09 9832 1,092 180 27,939$      26$             Local -$                $    4,435.32 9,085.29$      7,400.93$       20,921.55$     19.15$     )

0000009040 SERENA CT RIVER OVERLOOK WAY END 239.7 0.09 8781 976 161 24,953$      26$             Local -$                $    3,961.21 8,114.11$      6,609.80$       18,685.12$     19.15$     )

0000009050 MONARCH CV RIVER OVERLOOK WAY END 95.3 0.04 5633 626 103 16,007$      26$             Local -$                $    2,541.11 5,205.19$      4,240.18$       11,986.48$     19.15$     )

0000009060 BUCHLI LN RIVER OVERLOOK WAY ARIAAL DR 688.9 0.26 14477 1,609 265 41,139$      26$             Local -$                $    6,530.74 13,377.52$   10,897.40$     30,805.66$     19.15$     )

0000009070 BUCHLI LN ARIAAL DR GINA AGHA CIR 216.9 0.08 5224 580 96 14,845$      26$             Local -$                $    2,356.60 4,827.25$      3,932.31$       11,116.17$     19.15$     )

0000009080 BUCHLI LN GINA AGHA CIR JACKAM RIDGE CT [S] 249.3 0.09 6315 702 116 17,945$      26$             Local -$                $    2,848.77 5,835.40$      4,753.55$       13,437.71$     19.15$     )

0000009090 BUCHLI LN JACKAM RIDGE CT [S] JACKAM RIDGE CT [N] 404.1 0.15 9089 1,010 167 25,828$      26$             Local -$                $    4,100.15 8,398.72$      6,841.64$       19,340.51$     19.15$     )

0000009100 ARIAAL DR BUCHLI LN VARNAY CT 361.8 0.14 7694 855 141 21,864$      26$             Local -$                $    3,470.85 7,109.67$      5,791.57$       16,372.09$     19.15$     )

0000009110 ARIAAL DR VARNAY CT RIVER OVERLOOK WAY 212 0.08 4232 470 78 12,026$      26$             Local -$                $    1,909.10 3,910.59$      3,185.59$       9,005.29$       19.15$     )

0000009120 ARIAAL DR RIVER OVERLOOK WAY VARNAY PATH 330.7 0.13 5557 617 102 15,791$      26$             Local -$                $    2,506.82 5,134.96$      4,182.97$       11,824.76$     19.15$     )

0000009130 ARIAAL DR VARNAY PATH JACKAM RIDGE CT 323.1 0.12 7193 799 132 20,440$      26$             Local -$                $    3,244.84 6,646.72$      5,414.45$       15,306.01$     19.15$     )

0000009140 ARIAAL DR JACKAM RIDGE CT KLONDIKE RD 164.9 0.06 3127 347 57 8,886$        26$             Local -$                $    1,410.62 2,889.51$      2,353.81$       6,653.95$       19.15$     )

0000009150 VARNAY CT ARIAAL DR END 186 0.07 7322 814 134 20,807$      26$             Local -$                $    3,303.04 6,765.92$      5,511.55$       15,580.51$     19.15$     )

0000009160 VARNAY PATH ARIAAL DR END 177.7 0.07 7290 810 134 20,716$      26$             Local -$                $    3,288.60 6,736.35$      5,487.47$       15,512.42$     19.15$     )

0000009170 JACKAM RIDGE CT BUCHLI LN KLONDIKE DR 1948.5 0.74 49480 5,498 907 140,606$    26$             Local -$                $  22,320.98 45,722.16$   37,245.52$     105,288.66$   19.15$     )

0000009180 JACKAM RIDGE CT KLONDIKE DR BUCHLI LN 630.6 0.24 14644 1,627 268 41,613$      26$             Local -$                $    6,606.07 13,531.84$   11,023.11$     31,161.02$     19.15$     )

0000009190 JACKAM RIDGE CT BUCHLI LN ARIAAL DR 937.3 0.36 30365 3,374 557 86,287$      26$             Local -$                $  13,697.99 28,058.88$   22,856.92$     64,613.78$     19.15$     )

S1450 S1450 HERITAGE VILLAS DR 1866.2 0.71 57895 6,433 1,061 164,518$    26$             Local 59.4 $101,316 15.75$            $  26,117.08 53,498.07$   43,579.82$     123,194.96$   19.15$     )

0000011560 HERITAGE VILLAS DR WOODROW DR STONE CREST LN 418.1 0.16 9929 1,103 182 28,215$      26$             Local -$                $    4,479.08 9,174.93$      7,473.94$       21,127.95$     19.15$     )

0000011570 HERITAGE VILLAS DR STONE CREST LN VILLA CT 178.4 0.07 4651 517 85 13,217$      26$             Local -$                $    2,098.12 4,297.77$      3,500.99$       9,896.88$       19.15$     )

0000011580 HERITAGE VILLAS DR VILLA CT EVANS TRCE 282.1 0.11 6462 718 118 18,363$      26$             Local -$                $    2,915.08 5,971.23$      4,864.20$       13,750.51$     19.15$     )

0000011590 EVANS TRCE WOODROW DR HERITAGE VILLAS DR 296 0.11 7796 866 143 22,154$      26$             Local -$                $    3,516.86 7,203.92$      5,868.35$       16,589.13$     19.15$     )

0000011600 EVANS TRCE HERITAGE VILLAS DR END 216.6 0.08 11038 1,226 202 31,366$      26$             Local -$                $    4,979.36 10,199.70$   8,308.73$       23,487.80$     19.15$     )

0000011610 VILLA CT HERITAGE VILLAS DR END 122.4 0.05 7393 821 136 21,008$      26$             Local -$                $    3,335.06 6,831.53$      5,565.00$       15,731.59$     19.15$     )

0000011620 STONE CREST LN END HERITAGE VILLAS DR 352.6 0.13 10626 1,181 195 30,196$      26$             Local -$                $    4,793.51 9,818.99$      7,998.60$       22,611.10$     19.15$     )

S2070 S2070 TRINITY PL 899.1 0.34 32793 3,644 601 93,187$      26$             Local 59.6 $57,388 15.75$            $  14,793.29 30,302.48$   24,684.57$     69,780.33$     19.15$     )

0000010710 TRINITY PL END ROCKLAND RD 899.1 0.34 32793 3,644 601 93,187$      26$             Local -$                $  14,793.29 30,302.48$   24,684.57$     69,780.33$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

25 3:28 PM

158

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

S910 S910 FORREST RUN 1267.1 0.48 43658 4,851 800 124,061$    26$             Local 59.9 $76,402 15.75$            $  19,694.61 40,342.32$   32,863.07$     92,900.00$     19.15$     )

0000004620 FORREST RUN WEST END FORREST BLUFF WAY 261.1 0.10 10484 1,165 192 29,792$      26$             Local -$                $    4,729.45 9,687.78$      7,891.71$       22,308.94$     19.15$     )

0000004630 FORREST RUN FORREST BLUFF WAY FORREST BLUFF CT 243.9 0.09 6603 734 121 18,764$      26$             Local -$                $    2,978.69 6,101.52$      4,970.33$       14,050.55$     19.15$     )

0000004640 FORREST RUN FORREST BLUFF CT ROCK SPRINGS RD 362.4 0.14 9316 1,035 171 26,473$      26$             Local -$                $    4,202.55 8,608.48$      7,012.52$       19,823.55$     19.15$     )

0000004650 FORREST BLUFF CT FORREST RUN END 135.3 0.05 7259 807 133 20,628$      26$             Local -$                $    3,274.62 6,707.70$      5,464.13$       15,446.45$     19.15$     )

0000004660 FORREST BLUFF WAY FORREST RUN END 264.4 0.10 9996 1,111 183 28,405$      26$             Local -$                $    4,509.31 9,236.84$      7,524.38$       21,270.52$     19.15$     )

S2420 S2420 PANOLA WAY LN 1274.3 0.48 33602 3,734 616 95,486$      26$             Local 59.9 $84,005 22.50$            $  15,158.24 31,050.04$   25,293.53$     71,501.81$     19.15$     )

0000014410 PANOLA WAY CT SOUTH CITY LIMIT PANOLA WAY LN 529.7 0.20 13523 1,503 248 38,428$      26$             Local -$                $    6,100.38 12,495.97$   10,179.29$     28,775.64$     19.15$     )

0000014430 PANOLA WAY LN PANOLA WAY CT PANOLA RD 744.6 0.28 20079 2,231 368 57,058$      26$             Local -$                $    9,057.86 18,554.07$   15,114.24$     42,726.17$     19.15$     )

S2080 S2080 BRAMBLEVINE CIR 9956 3.77 3E+05 31,540 5,204 806,627$    26$             Local 60.1 $496,750 15.75$           ########## 262,299.01$ 213,670.20$   604,020.26$   19.15$     )

0000002930 BRAMBLEVINE DR SALEM RD BRAMBLEVINE CIR 400.4 0.15 9497 1,055 174 26,987$      26$             Local -$                $    4,284.20 8,775.73$      7,148.76$       20,208.70$     19.15$     )

0000003000 BRAMBLEVINE CIR SALEM RD BRAMBLEVINE CIR 365.9 0.14 9947 1,105 182 28,266$      26$             Local -$                $    4,487.20 9,191.56$      7,487.49$       21,166.25$     19.15$     )

0000003010 BRAMBLEVINE CIR BRAMBLEVINE CIR FIELDSTONE DR 348.9 0.13 8320 924 153 23,643$      26$             Local -$                $    3,753.24 7,688.12$      6,262.79$       17,704.16$     19.15$     )

0000003020 BRAMBLEVINE CIR FIELDSTONE DR IVYWOOD DR 1527.4 0.58 42325 4,703 776 120,274$    26$             Local -$                $  19,093.28 39,110.56$   31,859.67$     90,063.51$     19.15$     )

0000003030 BRAMBLEVINE CIR IVYWOOD DR FOXCROFT CT 238.1 0.09 5902 656 108 16,772$      26$             Local -$                $    2,662.46 5,453.76$      4,442.66$       12,558.89$     19.15$     )

0000003040 BRAMBLEVINE CIR FOXCROFT CT FIELDSTONE DR 1461.4 0.55 38992 4,332 715 110,802$    26$             Local -$                $  17,589.72 36,030.69$   29,350.79$     82,971.21$     19.15$     )

0000003050 BRAMBLEVINE CIR FIELDSTONE DR BRAMBLEVINE CIR 1107.4 0.42 31800 3,533 583 90,365$      26$             Local -$                $  14,345.33 29,384.90$   23,937.10$     67,667.33$     19.15$     )

0000003060 BRAMBLEVINE CIR BRAMBLEVINE CIR BRAMBLEVINE CT 686.4 0.26 17296 1,922 317 49,149$      26$             Local -$                $    7,802.42 15,982.43$   13,019.37$     36,804.22$     19.15$     )

0000003070 BRAMBLEVINE CIR BRAMBLEVINE CT BRAMBLEVINE DR 353.8 0.13 8602 956 158 24,444$      26$             Local -$                $    3,880.46 7,948.71$      6,475.06$       18,304.22$     19.15$     )

0000003080 BRAMBLEVINE CIR BRAMBLEVINE DR END 174.3 0.07 4665 518 86 13,256$      26$             Local -$                $    2,104.43 4,310.71$      3,511.53$       9,926.67$       19.15$     )

0000003090 BRAMBLEVINE CT BRAMBLEVINE CIR END 321.9 0.12 14271 1,586 262 40,553$      26$             Local -$                $    6,437.81 13,187.17$   10,742.34$     30,367.31$     19.15$     )

0000003100 FIELDSTONE DR BRAMBLEVINE CIR IVYWOOD DR 348.5 0.13 9819 1,091 180 27,902$      26$             Local -$                $    4,429.46 9,073.28$      7,391.14$       20,893.88$     19.15$     )

0000003110 FIELDSTONE DR IVYWOOD DR DEER CREEK CT 394.7 0.15 10790 1,199 198 30,662$      26$             Local -$                $    4,867.49 9,970.54$      8,122.05$       22,960.08$     19.15$     )

0000003120 FIELDSTONE DR DEER CREEK CT BRAMBLEVINE CIR 692 0.26 23736 2,637 435 67,450$      26$             Local -$                $  10,707.57 21,933.33$   17,867.01$     50,507.91$     19.15$     )

0000003130 DEER CREEK CT FIELDSTONE DR END 320.7 0.12 16125 1,792 296 45,822$      26$             Local -$                $    7,274.17 14,900.36$   12,137.91$     34,312.44$     19.15$     )

0000003140 IVYWOOD DR FIELDSTONE DR BRAMBLEVINE CIR 928.8 0.35 24865 2,763 456 70,658$      26$             Local -$                $  11,216.88 22,976.59$   18,716.85$     52,910.32$     19.15$     )

0000003150 FOXCROFT CT END BRAMBLEVINE CIR 285.4 0.11 6905 767 127 19,622$      26$             Local -$                $    3,114.92 6,380.59$      5,197.66$       14,693.17$     19.15$     )

S420 S420 OLD COVINGTON RD 3376.9 1.28 65226 7,247 1,196 185,351$    26$             Local 60.1 $114,146 15.75$            $  29,424.17 60,272.30$   49,098.15$     138,794.62$   19.15$     )

0000015460 OLD COVINGTON RD END LAYTON DR 505.1 0.19 6664 740 122 18,937$      26$             Local -$                $    3,006.20 6,157.89$      5,016.25$       14,180.35$     19.15$     )

0000015470 OLD COVINGTON RD LAYTON DR SPRING ST 1144.1 0.43 21158 2,351 388 60,124$      26$             Local -$                $    9,544.61 19,551.12$   15,926.45$     45,022.18$     19.15$     )

0000015480 OLD COVINGTON RD SPRING ST EVANS MILL RD 738.9 0.28 14799 1,644 271 42,054$      26$             Local -$                $    6,675.99 13,675.07$   11,139.78$     31,490.84$     19.15$     )

0000015490 DAVIDSON DR EVANS MILL RD COVINGTON HWY 988.8 0.37 22605 2,512 414 64,236$      26$             Local -$                $  10,197.37 20,888.23$   17,015.66$     48,101.25$     19.15$     )

S1820 S1820 RAVENWOOD LN 4299.5 1.63 1E+05 13,006 2,146 332,623$    26$             Local 61.2 $204,841 15.75$            $  52,803.46 108,162.29$ 88,109.59$     249,075.34$   19.15$     )

0000009770 MOYE DR END BROWNS MILL FERRY RD 150.4 0.06 6866 763 126 19,511$      26$             Local -$                $    3,097.33 6,344.55$      5,168.31$       14,610.18$     19.15$     )

0000009780 LAMAR CT END BROWNS MILL FERRY RD 233.3 0.09 9275 1,031 170 26,356$      26$             Local -$                $    4,184.06 8,570.59$      6,981.65$       19,736.30$     19.15$     )

0000009790 BOWIE DR END FAIRFAX CT 332.5 0.13 10644 1,183 195 30,247$      26$             Local -$                $    4,801.63 9,835.62$      8,012.15$       22,649.40$     19.15$     )

0000009800 BOWIE DR FAIRFAX CT MALVERN CT 269.2 0.10 6912 768 127 19,642$      26$             Local -$                $    3,118.08 6,387.06$      5,202.93$       14,708.07$     19.15$     )

0000009810 BOWIE DR MALVERN CT BROWNS MILL FERRY RD 766.6 0.29 13927 1,547 255 39,576$      26$             Local -$                $    6,282.62 12,869.29$   10,483.39$     29,635.31$     19.15$     )

0000009820 FAIRFAX CT BOWIE DR END 401.6 0.15 13543 1,505 248 38,485$      26$             Local -$                $    6,109.40 12,514.45$   10,194.34$     28,818.19$     19.15$     )

0000009830 MALVERN CT BOWIE DR END 196.2 0.07 8033 893 147 22,827$      26$             Local -$                $    3,623.78 7,422.92$      6,046.75$       17,093.45$     19.15$     )

0000009840 RAVENWOOD LN END BROWNS MILL FERRY RD 1949.7 0.74 47852 5,317 877 135,979$    26$             Local -$                $  21,586.57 44,217.80$   36,020.06$     101,824.43$   19.15$     )

S2000 S2000 KLONDIKE RD ROCKLAND RD HAYDEN QUARRY RD 6901.4 2.61 2E+05 17,989 2,968 460,074$    26$             Collector 61.4 $283,330 15.75$            $  73,036.24 149,607.01$ 121,870.68$   344,513.93$   19.15$     )

0000008510 KLONDIKE RD ROCKLAND RD PLUNKETT RD 3765.9 1.43 93018 10,335 1,705 264,326$    26$             Collector -$                $  41,961.45 85,953.59$   70,018.27$     197,933.31$   19.15$     )

0000008520 KLONDIKE RD PLUNKETT RD CHAPARRAL DR 401.6 0.15 9920 1,102 182 28,189$      26$             Collector -$                $    4,475.02 9,166.61$      7,467.17$       21,108.80$     19.15$     )

0000008530 KLONDIKE RD CHAPARRAL DR WOODROW DR 480.9 0.18 11878 1,320 218 33,753$      26$             Collector -$                $    5,358.30 10,975.91$   8,941.03$       25,275.24$     19.15$     )

0000008540 KLONDIKE RD WOODROW DR KLONDIKE WAY 594.9 0.23 12433 1,381 228 35,330$      26$             Minor Arterial -$                $    5,608.66 11,488.76$   9,358.80$       26,456.22$     19.15$     )

0000008550 KLONDIKE RD KLONDIKE WAY HAYDEN QUARRY RD 1658.1 0.63 34654 3,850 635 98,475$      26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  15,632.80 32,022.14$   26,085.41$     73,740.36$     19.15$     )

S1270 S1270 PHILLIP BRADLEY DR 7286.6 2.76 2E+05 22,567 3,724 577,143$    26$             Local 61.7 $507,750 22.50$            $  91,620.67 187,675.23$ 152,881.27$   432,177.17$   19.15$     )

0000006190 OTTAWA TRL ROCK SPRINGS RD WINSLOW XING 561.4 0.21 14514 1,613 266 41,244$      26$             Local -$                $    6,547.43 13,411.71$   10,925.25$     30,884.39$     19.15$     )

0000006200 OTTAWA TRL WINSLOW XING WINSLOW XING N 514.9 0.20 14766 1,641 271 41,960$      26$             Local -$                $    6,661.11 13,644.57$   11,114.94$     31,420.62$     19.15$     )

0000006210 OTTAWA TRL WINSLOW XING N CARTER WAY 444.3 0.17 13706 1,523 251 38,948$      26$             Local -$                $    6,182.93 12,665.07$   10,317.04$     29,165.04$     19.15$     )

0000006220 OTTAWA TRL CARTER WAY FAIR CREEK WAY 605.2 0.23 14436 1,604 265 41,022$      26$             Local -$                $    6,512.24 13,339.63$   10,866.54$     30,718.41$     19.15$     )

0000006230 OTTAWA TRL FAIR CREEK WAY PHILLIP BRADLEY DR 276.6 0.10 6196 688 114 17,607$      26$             Local -$                $    2,795.08 5,725.43$      4,663.97$       13,184.49$     19.15$     )

0000006240 PHILLIP BRADLEY DR END OTTAWA TRL 342.5 0.13 9864 1,096 181 28,030$      26$             Local -$                $    4,449.76 9,114.86$      7,425.02$       20,989.64$     19.15$     )

0000006250 PHILLIP BRADLEY DR OTTAWA TRL PHILLIPS WAY 730.9 0.28 19244 2,138 353 54,685$      26$             Local -$                $    8,681.18 17,782.48$   14,485.71$     40,949.37$     19.15$     )

0000006260 PHILLIP BRADLEY DR PHILLIPS WAY FAIRINGTON PKWY 714.8 0.27 14894 1,655 273 42,324$      26$             Local -$                $    6,718.85 13,762.85$   11,211.29$     31,692.99$     19.15$     )

0000006270 PHILLIPS WAY PHILLIP BRADLEY DR BRADLEY CIR 196.1 0.07 5516 613 101 15,675$      26$             Local -$                $    2,488.33 5,097.08$      4,152.11$       11,737.51$     19.15$     )

0000006280 BRADLEY CIR WEST END PHILLIPS WAY 200.4 0.08 4184 465 77 11,890$      26$             Local -$                $    1,887.45 3,866.24$      3,149.46$       8,903.15$       19.15$     )

0000006290 BRADLEY CIR PHILLIPS WAY FAIRINGTON WAY 587.1 0.22 15069 1,674 276 42,821$      26$             Local -$                $    6,797.79 13,924.56$   11,343.02$     32,065.38$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

26 3:28 PM

159

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000006300 BRADLEY CIR FAIRINGTON WAY FAIRINGTON PL 216.9 0.08 5810 646 107 16,510$      26$             Local -$                $    2,620.96 5,368.75$      4,373.41$       12,363.12$     19.15$     )

0000006310 BRADLEY CIR FAIRINGTON PL SOUTH END 282.2 0.11 10038 1,115 184 28,525$      26$             Local -$                $    4,528.25 9,275.65$      7,555.99$       21,359.89$     19.15$     )

0000006320 FAIRINGTON PL END BRADLEY CIR 354.4 0.13 10557 1,173 194 29,999$      26$             Local -$                $    4,762.38 9,755.23$      7,946.66$       22,464.28$     19.15$     )

0000006330 FAIRINGTON WAY BRADLEY CIR END 89.6 0.03 4968 552 91 14,117$      26$             Local -$                $    2,241.12 4,590.70$      3,739.61$       10,571.42$     19.15$     )

0000006340 FAIR CREEK WAY OTTAWA TRL FAIR CREEK CT 253 0.10 6622 736 121 18,818$      26$             Local -$                $    2,987.26 6,119.08$      4,984.64$       14,090.98$     19.15$     )

0000006350 FAIR CREEK WAY FAIR CREEK CT END 447.4 0.17 13942 1,549 256 39,619$      26$             Local -$                $    6,289.39 12,883.15$   10,494.69$     29,667.23$     19.15$     )

0000006360 FAIR CREEK CT FAIR CREEK WAY END 152.7 0.06 7102 789 130 20,182$      26$             Local -$                $    3,203.79 6,562.63$      5,345.95$       15,112.37$     19.15$     )

0000006370 CARTER WAY END OTTAWA TRL 316.2 0.12 11672 1,297 214 33,168$      26$             Local -$                $    5,265.37 10,785.55$   8,785.97$       24,836.89$     19.15$     )

S1290 S1290 NORFAIR LOOP 14520 5.50 5E+05 60,462 9,976 1,546,318$ 26$             Local 64.7 $952,278 15.75$           ########## 502,831.94$ 409,609.64$   ########### 19.15$     )

0000007170 W FAIRINGTON PKWY PANOLA RD TURNBERRY PL [W] 320.2 0.06 17974 1,997 330 51,076$      26$             Local -$                $    8,108.27 16,608.93$   13,529.73$     38,246.93$     19.15$     )

0000007180 W FAIRINGTON PKWY TURNBERRY PL [W] TURNBERRY PL [E] 1195.5 0.45 45821 5,091 840 130,208$    26$             Local -$                $  20,670.36 42,341.05$   34,491.25$     97,502.66$     19.15$     )

0000007190 W FAIRINGTON PKWY TURNBERRY PL [E] BUCKINGHAM WAY 931.4 0.35 38274 4,253 702 108,762$    26$             Local -$                $  17,265.83 35,367.22$   28,810.33$     81,443.37$     19.15$     )

0000007200 W FAIRINGTON PKWY BUCKINGHAM WAY FAIRINGTON PKWY SB 513.2 0.19 19203 2,134 352 54,569$      26$             Local -$                $    8,662.69 17,744.60$   14,454.84$     40,862.13$     19.15$     )

0000007210 W FAIRINGTON PKWY FAIRINGTON PKWY SB FAIRINGTON PKWY NB 138.5 0.05 3658 406 67 10,395$      26$             Local -$                $    1,650.16 3,380.19$      2,753.52$       7,783.87$       19.15$     )

0000007220 W FAIRINGTON PKWY FAIRINGTON PKWY NB FAIRINGTON PKWY 380.2 0.14 11344 1,260 208 32,236$      26$             Local -$                $    5,117.40 10,482.46$   8,539.07$       24,138.94$     19.15$     )

0000007230 FAIRINGTON PKWY W FAIRINGTON PKWY PHILLIP BRADLEY DR 1087.3 0.21 60442 6,716 1,108 171,756$    26$             Local -$                $  27,266.06 55,851.63$   45,497.04$     128,614.73$   19.15$     )

0000007240 FAIRINGTON PKWY PHILLIP BRADLEY DR NORFAIR LOOP 1375.6 0.26 76751 8,528 1,407 218,101$    26$             Local -$                $  34,623.23 70,922.02$   57,773.46$     163,318.71$   19.15$     )

0000007250 FAIRINGTON PKWY NORFAIR LOOP FAIRINGTON VILLAGE DR 226.6 0.04 14479 1,609 265 41,144$      26$             Local -$                $    6,531.64 13,379.37$   10,898.91$     30,809.91$     19.15$     )

0000007260 FAIRINGTON PKWY FAIRINGTON VILLAGE DR FAIRINGTON RIDGE CIR 275.5 0.05 20814 2,313 382 59,146$      26$             Local -$                $    9,389.43 19,233.25$   15,667.51$     44,290.18$     19.15$     )

0000007270 FAIRINGTON PKWY FAIRINGTON RIDGE CIR PIERING DR 386 0.07 20264 2,252 372 57,584$      26$             Local -$                $    9,141.32 18,725.02$   15,253.50$     43,119.83$     19.15$     )

0000007280 FAIRINGTON PKWY PIERING DR FAIRINGTON CLUB DR 250.2 0.05 14751 1,639 270 41,917$      26$             Local -$                $    6,654.34 13,630.71$   11,103.65$     31,388.70$     19.15$     )

0000007290 PIERING DR FAIRINGTON PKWY PARRISH CT 523.4 0.20 17663 1,963 324 50,192$      26$             Local -$                $    7,967.98 16,321.55$   13,295.63$     37,585.16$     19.15$     )

0000007300 PIERING DR PARRISH CT END 1298.1 0.49 38761 4,307 711 110,146$    26$             Local -$                $  17,485.52 35,817.23$   29,176.91$     82,479.66$     19.15$     )

0000007310 PARRISH CT PIERING DR END 347.7 0.13 12056 1,340 221 34,259$      26$             Local -$                $    5,438.60 11,140.39$   9,075.02$       25,654.00$     19.15$     )

0000007320 NORFAIR LOOP FAIRINGTON PKWY START OF LOOP [NB] 154.2 0.06 4310 479 79 12,248$      26$             Local -$                $    1,944.29 3,982.67$      3,244.30$       9,171.26$       19.15$     )

0000007330 NORFAIR LOOP START OF LOOP [NB] END OF LOOP 2116.2 0.80 58523 6,503 1,073 166,303$    26$             Local -$                $  26,400.38 54,078.37$   44,052.54$     124,531.29$   19.15$     )

0000007340 FAIRINGTON PKWY NB W FAIRINGTON PKWY RUE FONTAINE 129.6 0.02 3301 367 61 9,380$        26$             Local -$                $    1,489.12 3,050.30$      2,484.79$       7,024.21$       19.15$     )

0000007350 FAIRINGTON PKWY NB RUE FONTAINE END OF RAMP 273.9 0.05 6438 715 118 18,295$      26$             Local -$                $    2,904.25 5,949.06$      4,846.13$       13,699.44$     19.15$     )

0000007360 FAIRINGTON PKWY NB END OF RAMP FAIRINGTON PKWY 146.1 0.03 4605 512 84 13,086$      26$             Local -$                $    2,077.37 4,255.27$      3,466.36$       9,798.99$       19.15$     )

0000007370 FAIRINGTON PKWY NB FAIRINGTON PKWY FAIRINGTON PKWY 409.1 0.08 7712 857 141 21,915$      26$             Local -$                $    3,478.97 7,126.30$      5,805.12$       16,410.39$     19.15$     )

0000007380 FAIRINGTON PKWY NB FAIRINGTON PKWY FAIRINGTON RD 434.1 0.08 9256 1,028 170 26,302$      26$             Local -$                $    4,175.48 8,553.04$      6,967.35$       19,695.87$     19.15$     )

0000007390 FAIRINGTON PKWY SB FAIRINGTON RD FAIRINGTON PKWY 433.1 0.08 9182 1,020 168 26,092$      26$             Local -$                $    4,142.10 8,484.66$      6,911.65$       19,538.41$     19.15$     )

0000007400 FAIRINGTON PKWY SB FAIRINGTON PKWY W FAIRINGTON PKWY 395.1 0.07 9072 1,008 166 25,780$      26$             Local -$                $    4,092.48 8,383.01$      6,828.85$       19,304.34$     19.15$     )

0000007410 FAIRINGTON PKWY SB FAIRINGTON PKWY FAIRINGTON PKWY 406.8 0.08 12023 1,336 220 34,165$      26$             Local -$                $    5,423.71 11,109.89$   9,050.18$       25,583.78$     19.15$     )

0000007420 FAIRINGTON PKWY W FAIRINGTON PKWY FAIRINGTON PKWY NB 176.8 0.03 3546 394 65 10,077$      26$             Local -$                $    1,599.64 3,276.69$      2,669.21$       7,545.55$       19.15$     )

0000007430 FAIRINGTON PKWY FAIRINGTON PKWY NB FAIRINGTON PKWY SB 132.8 0.03 2372 264 43 6,740$        26$             Local -$                $    1,070.04 2,191.85$      1,785.50$       5,047.39$       19.15$     )

0000007440 FAIRINGTON PKWY FAIRINGTON PKWY NB FAIRINGTON PKWY SB 62.4 0.02 1564 174 29 4,444$        26$             Local -$                $       705.54 1,445.22$      1,177.28$       3,328.04$       19.15$     )

S1640 S1640 PLUNKETT RD 7905.2 2.99 2E+05 20,035 3,306 512,395$    26$             Local 64.8 $315,551 15.75$            $  81,342.10 166,620.68$ 135,730.11$   383,692.89$   19.15$     )

0000011500 PLUNKETT RD KLONDIKE RD ROCKLAND RD 3469.6 1.31 69858 7,762 1,281 198,513$    26$             Local -$                $  31,513.72 64,552.52$   52,584.83$     148,651.07$   19.15$     )

0000011510 PLUNKETT RD ROCKLAND RD END 4435.6 1.68 1E+05 12,273 2,025 313,882$    26$             Local -$                $  49,828.38 102,068.16$ 83,145.28$     235,041.82$   19.15$     )

S1760 S1760 BROWNS MILL TRCE 2108.4 0.80 65892 7,321 1,208 187,243$    26$             Local 65 $115,311 15.75$            $  29,724.61 60,887.72$   49,599.47$     140,211.81$   19.15$     )

0000010200 BROWNS MILL TRCE BROWNS MILL RD BROWNS MILL CHASE 629.6 0.24 16413 1,824 301 46,640$      26$             Local -$                $    7,404.09 15,166.49$   12,354.70$     34,925.28$     19.15$     )

0000010210 BROWNS MILL TRCE BROWNS MILL CHASE END 1016.9 0.39 33042 3,671 606 93,894$      26$             Local -$                $  14,905.61 30,532.57$   24,872.00$     70,310.18$     19.15$     )

0000010220 BROWNS MILL CHASE BROWNS MILL TRCE END 461.9 0.17 16437 1,826 301 46,708$      26$             Local -$                $    7,414.91 15,188.66$   12,372.77$     34,976.35$     19.15$     )

S680 S680 LANTRAC CT 1152.1 0.44 35739 3,971 655 101,558$    26$             Local 65.8 $62,543 15.75$            $  16,122.26 33,024.74$   26,902.14$     76,049.14$     19.15$     )

0000013840 LANTRAC CT SNAPFINGER WOODS DR END 1152.1 0.44 35739 3,971 655 101,558$    26$             Local -$                $  16,122.26 33,024.74$   26,902.14$     76,049.14$     19.15$     )

S2040 S2040 ROMAN WOODS 759.2 0.29 18452 2,050 338 52,434$      26$             Local 65.9 $32,291 15.75$            $    8,323.90 17,050.63$   13,889.54$     39,264.07$     19.15$     )

0000010750 ROMAN WOODS END ROCKLAND RD 759.2 0.29 18452 2,050 338 52,434$      26$             Local -$                $    8,323.90 17,050.63$   13,889.54$     39,264.07$     19.15$     )

S560 S560 HILLVALE CIR 8183.6 3.10 2E+05 25,859 4,267 661,335$    26$             Local 66.4 $407,274 15.75$           ########## 215,053.08$ 175,183.42$   495,222.69$   19.15$     )

0000015030 HILLVALE WAY DEKALB MEDICAL PKWY HILLVALE CIR 182.6 0.07 4361 485 80 12,393$      26$             Local -$                $    1,967.30 4,029.80$      3,282.69$       9,279.79$       19.15$     )

0000015040 HILLVALE CIR END HILLVALE WAY 1140.4 0.43 35731 3,970 655 101,536$    26$             Local -$                $  16,118.65 33,017.35$   26,896.11$     76,032.11$     19.15$     )

0000015050 HILLVALE CIR HILLVALE WAY HILLVALE CT 1240.6 0.47 36031 4,003 661 102,388$    26$             Local -$                $  16,253.98 33,294.57$   27,121.93$     76,670.49$     19.15$     )

0000015060 HILLVALE CIR HILLVALE CT END 410.1 0.16 13486 1,498 247 38,323$      26$             Local -$                $    6,083.68 12,461.78$   10,151.44$     28,696.90$     19.15$     )

0000015070 HILLVALE CT HILLVALE CIR HILLVALE COVE WAY 420.1 0.16 10156 1,128 186 28,860$      26$             Local -$                $    4,581.48 9,384.69$      7,644.82$       21,610.99$     19.15$     )

0000015080 HILLVALE CT HILLVALE COVE WAY HILLVALE COVE DR 353.2 0.13 8598 955 158 24,433$      26$             Local -$                $    3,878.65 7,945.01$      6,472.05$       18,295.71$     19.15$     )

0000015090 HILLVALE COVE WAY HILLVALE COVE DR HILLVALE CT 895.1 0.34 21357 2,373 392 60,689$      26$             Local -$                $    9,634.38 19,735.01$   16,076.24$     45,445.63$     19.15$     )

0000015100 HILLVALE TRL END HILLVALE COVE DR 890.6 0.34 27583 3,065 506 78,382$      26$             Local -$                $  12,443.00 25,488.16$   20,762.80$     58,693.96$     19.15$     )

0000015110 HILLVALE COVE DR END HILLVALE CHASE 369.5 0.14 12313 1,368 226 34,989$      26$             Local -$                $    5,554.53 11,377.87$   9,268.47$       26,200.87$     19.15$     )

0000015120 HILLVALE COVE DR HILLVALE CHASE HILLVALE TRL 122.8 0.05 2808 312 51 7,979$        26$             Local -$                $    1,266.72 2,594.74$      2,113.69$       5,975.15$       19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

27 3:28 PM

160

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000015130 HILLVALE COVE DR HILLVALE TRL HILLVALE COVE WAY 282 0.11 6829 759 125 19,406$      26$             Local -$                $    3,080.64 6,310.36$      5,140.45$       14,531.45$     19.15$     )

0000015140 HILLVALE COVE DR HILLVALE COVE WAY HILLVALE CT 665.6 0.25 16551 1,839 303 47,032$      26$             Local -$                $    7,466.34 15,294.01$   12,458.58$     35,218.93$     19.15$     )

0000015150 HILLVALE COVE DR HILLVALE CT HILLVALE RD 693.3 0.26 18438 2,049 338 52,395$      26$             Local -$                $    8,317.59 17,037.70$   13,879.00$     39,234.28$     19.15$     )

0000015160 HILLVALE CHASE HILLVALE COVE DR END 517.7 0.20 18486 2,054 339 52,531$      26$             Local -$                $    8,339.24 17,082.05$   13,915.13$     39,336.42$     19.15$     )

S2060 S2060 SERENITY LN 1562.1 0.59 45119 5,013 827 128,213$    26$             Local 66.4 $78,958 15.75$            $  20,353.68 41,692.36$   33,962.83$     96,008.87$     19.15$     )

0000010720 SERENITY LN END SERENITY CV 242 0.09 9146 1,016 168 25,990$      26$             Local -$                $    4,125.86 8,451.39$      6,884.55$       19,461.80$     19.15$     )

0000010730 SERENITY LN SERENITY CV ROCKLAND RD 1044.9 0.40 26020 2,891 477 73,940$      26$             Local -$                $  11,737.91 24,043.87$   19,586.27$     55,368.04$     19.15$     )

0000010740 SERENITY CV END SERENITY LN 275.2 0.10 9953 1,106 182 28,283$      26$             Local -$                $    4,489.91 9,197.10$      7,492.01$       21,179.02$     19.15$     )

S970 S970 SAXONY WAY 6079.4 2.30 2E+05 17,591 2,902 449,887$    26$             Local 66.5 $277,056 15.75$            $  71,419.01 146,294.28$ 119,172.12$   336,885.40$   19.15$     )

0000004210 FETTER LN CLEVELAND RD MORAVIA DR 338.3 0.13 11555 1,284 212 32,835$      26$             Local -$                $    5,212.59 10,677.44$   8,697.90$       24,587.92$     19.15$     )

0000004220 MORAVIA DR SOUTH END ZINZENDORF DR 238.8 0.09 7094 788 130 20,159$      26$             Local -$                $    3,200.18 6,555.23$      5,339.93$       15,095.35$     19.15$     )

0000004230 MORAVIA DR ZINZENDORF DR FETTER LN 1013.3 0.38 25949 2,883 476 73,738$      26$             Local -$                $  11,705.88 23,978.26$   19,532.82$     55,216.96$     19.15$     )

0000004240 MORAVIA DR FETTER LN SAXONY WAY 691.7 0.26 16616 1,846 305 47,217$      26$             Local -$                $    7,495.66 15,354.07$   12,507.51$     35,357.24$     19.15$     )

0000004250 MORAVIA DR SAXONY WAY EAST END 318.7 0.12 12052 1,339 221 34,248$      26$             Local -$                $    5,436.79 11,136.69$   9,072.01$       25,645.49$     19.15$     )

0000004260 ZINZENDORF DR MORAVIA DR SAXONY WAY 315.7 0.12 8368 930 153 23,779$      26$             Local -$                $    3,774.90 7,732.48$      6,298.92$       17,806.30$     19.15$     )

0000004270 ZINZENDORF DR SAXONY WAY HERRENHUT RD 395.3 0.15 9010 1,001 165 25,603$      26$             Local -$                $    4,064.51 8,325.72$      6,782.18$       19,172.41$     19.15$     )

0000004280 ZINZENDORF DR HERRENHUT RD END 558.1 0.21 14620 1,624 268 41,545$      26$             Local -$                $    6,595.24 13,509.66$   11,005.04$     31,109.95$     19.15$     )

0000004290 HERRENHUT RD ZINZENDORF DR END 897.1 0.34 18505 2,056 339 52,585$      26$             Local -$                $    8,347.81 17,099.61$   13,929.43$     39,376.85$     19.15$     )

0000004300 SAXONY WAY ZINZENDORF DR MORAVIA DR 1312.4 0.50 34549 3,839 633 98,177$      26$             Local -$                $  15,585.44 31,925.12$   26,006.38$     73,516.93$     19.15$     )

S1310 S1310 FAIRING DROP 7231.7 2.74 2E+05 23,182 3,825 592,882$    26$             Local 67 $365,118 15.75$            $  94,119.37 192,793.56$ 157,050.69$   443,963.62$   19.15$     )

0000006670 FAIRINGTON FARMS LN ROCK SPRINGS RD PATILLO RD 121.1 0.05 3296 366 60 9,366$        26$             Local -$                $    1,486.86 3,045.68$      2,481.03$       7,013.57$       19.15$     )

0000006680 FAIRINGTON FARMS LN PATILLO RD FAIRINGTON FARMS CT 153.2 0.06 4087 454 75 11,614$      26$             Local -$                $    1,843.69 3,776.61$      3,076.44$       8,696.74$       19.15$     )

0000006690 FAIRINGTON FARMS LN FAIRINGTON FARMS CT FAIRING HL 572.1 0.22 17717 1,969 325 50,346$      26$             Local -$                $    7,992.34 16,371.45$   13,336.27$     37,700.06$     19.15$     )

0000006700 FAIRINGTON FARMS LN FAIRING HL SPRINGFAIR TROTT 781.7 0.30 17382 1,931 319 49,394$      26$             Local -$                $    7,841.21 16,061.90$   13,084.11$     36,987.22$     19.15$     )

0000006710 FAIRINGTON FARMS LN SPRINGFAIR TROTT FAIRING DROP 489.3 0.19 11096 1,233 203 31,531$      26$             Local -$                $    5,005.53 10,253.30$   8,352.39$       23,611.22$     19.15$     )

0000006720 FAIRINGTON FARMS LN FAIRING DROP FAIRTON TRL 682.2 0.26 19167 2,130 351 54,466$      26$             Local -$                $    8,646.45 17,711.33$   14,427.75$     40,785.52$     19.15$     )

0000006730 FAIRINGTON FARMS LN FAIRTON TRL END 485.3 0.18 14819 1,647 272 42,111$      26$             Local -$                $    6,685.02 13,693.55$   11,154.84$     31,533.40$     19.15$     )

0000006740 FAIRTON TRL FAIRINGTON FARMS LN END 377.4 0.14 13345 1,483 245 37,922$      26$             Local -$                $    6,020.08 12,331.49$   10,045.30$     28,396.87$     19.15$     )

0000006750 FAIRING DROP END FAIRINGTON FARMS LN 1086.8 0.41 31061 3,451 569 88,265$      26$             Local -$                $  14,011.96 28,702.02$   23,380.82$     66,094.81$     19.15$     )

0000006760 SPRINGFAIR TROTT FAIRINGTON FARMS LN SPRINGFAIR RUN 420.1 0.16 10964 1,218 201 31,156$      26$             Local -$                $    4,945.98 10,131.32$   8,253.03$       23,330.33$     19.15$     )

0000006770 SPRINGFAIR RUN NORTH END SPRINGFAIR TROTT 704.6 0.27 24038 2,671 441 68,308$      26$             Local -$                $  10,843.81 22,212.39$   18,094.34$     51,150.54$     19.15$     )

0000006780 SPRINGFAIR RUN SPRINGFAIR TROTT EAST END 378.6 0.14 12214 1,357 224 34,708$      26$             Local -$                $    5,509.87 11,286.39$   9,193.95$       25,990.21$     19.15$     )

0000006790 FAIRING HL END FAIRINGTON FARMS LN 629.5 0.24 18029 2,003 331 51,232$      26$             Local -$                $    8,133.08 16,659.76$   13,571.13$     38,363.97$     19.15$     )

0000006800 FAIRINGTON FARMS CT END FAIRINGTON FARMS LN 349.8 0.13 11424 1,269 209 32,463$      26$             Local -$                $    5,153.49 10,556.39$   8,599.29$       24,309.17$     19.15$     )

S1620 S1620 DOGWOOD PASS 9499.9 3.60 3E+05 28,907 4,770 739,294$    26$             Local 67.1 $455,284 15.75$           ########## 240,403.56$ 195,834.05$   553,599.59$   19.15$     )

0000012290 SHADY MAPLE DR ROCKLAND RD REDBUD LOOP 270.2 0.10 6991 777 128 19,866$      26$             Local -$                $    3,153.72 6,460.06$      5,262.40$       14,876.17$     19.15$     )

0000012300 SHADY MAPLE DR REDBUD LOOP DOGWOOD PASS 507.2 0.19 12176 1,353 223 34,600$      26$             Local -$                $    5,492.73 11,251.27$   9,165.35$       25,909.35$     19.15$     )

0000012310 SHADY MAPLE DR DOGWOOD PASS REDBUD LOOP 200.9 0.08 4557 506 84 12,949$      26$             Local -$                $    2,055.71 4,210.91$      3,430.23$       9,696.86$       19.15$     )

0000012320 SHADY MAPLE DR REDBUD LOOP SUGAR PLUM LN 645.6 0.24 13834 1,537 254 39,312$      26$             Local -$                $    6,240.67 12,783.35$   10,413.39$     29,437.41$     19.15$     )

0000012330 SHADY MAPLE DR SUGAR PLUM LN STAR MAGNOLIA DR 256.2 0.10 6263 696 115 17,797$      26$             Local -$                $    2,825.31 5,787.35$      4,714.40$       13,327.06$     19.15$     )

0000012340 REDBUD LOOP SHADY MAPLE DR REDBUD TRCE 751.4 0.28 17835 1,982 327 50,681$      26$             Local -$                $    8,045.57 16,480.49$   13,425.10$     37,951.16$     19.15$     )

0000012350 REDBUD LOOP REDBUD TRCE SUGAR PLUM LN 255 0.10 6034 670 111 17,147$      26$             Local -$                $    2,722.00 5,575.74$      4,542.03$       12,839.77$     19.15$     )

0000012360 REDBUD LOOP SUGAR PLUM LN SHADY MAPLE DR 271.5 0.10 6219 691 114 17,672$      26$             Local -$                $    2,805.46 5,746.69$      4,681.28$       13,233.43$     19.15$     )

0000012370 REDBUD TRCE REDBUD LOOP END 162.4 0.06 7378 820 135 20,966$      26$             Local -$                $    3,328.30 6,817.67$      5,553.71$       15,699.67$     19.15$     )

0000012380 SUGAR PLUM LN REDBUD LOOP SHADY MAPLE DR 1043.9 0.40 23557 2,617 432 66,941$      26$             Local -$                $  10,626.82 21,767.92$   17,732.27$     50,127.02$     19.15$     )

0000012390 DOGWOOD PASS SHADY MAPLE DR MAPLE HILL RD 303.7 0.12 7965 885 146 22,634$      26$             Local -$                $    3,593.10 7,360.08$      5,995.57$       16,948.75$     19.15$     )

0000012400 DOGWOOD PASS MAPLE HILL RD STAR MAGNOLIA DR 1480.5 0.56 36170 4,019 663 102,783$    26$             Local -$                $  16,316.69 33,423.01$   27,226.57$     76,966.26$     19.15$     )

0000012410 DOGWOOD PASS STAR MAGNOLIA DR WHITE OAK LOOP 695.3 0.26 18780 2,087 344 53,367$      26$             Local -$                $    8,471.87 17,353.72$   14,136.44$     39,962.02$     19.15$     )

0000012420 DOGWOOD PASS WHITE OAK LOOP PAPER BIRCH LN 233.8 0.09 7255 806 133 20,616$      26$             Local -$                $    3,272.81 6,704.01$      5,461.12$       15,437.94$     19.15$     )

0000012430 DOGWOOD PASS PAPER BIRCH LN WHITE OAK LOOP 377.8 0.14 12387 1,376 227 35,200$      26$             Local -$                $    5,587.91 11,446.25$   9,324.18$       26,358.34$     19.15$     )

0000012510 STAR MAGNOLIA DR TURNER HILL RD SHADY MAPLE DR 499.3 0.19 32750 3,639 600 93,065$      26$             Local -$                $  14,773.89 30,262.75$   24,652.20$     69,688.83$     19.15$     )

0000012520 STAR MAGNOLIA DR SHADY MAPLE DR MAPLE HILL RD 186.9 0.07 5710 634 105 16,226$      26$             Local -$                $    2,575.84 5,276.34$      4,298.14$       12,150.33$     19.15$     )

0000012530 STAR MAGNOLIA DR MAPLE HILL RD DOGWOOD PASS 191 0.07 4655 517 85 13,228$      26$             Local -$                $    2,099.92 4,301.47$      3,504.00$       9,905.39$       19.15$     )

0000012540 MAPLE HILL RD DOGWOOD PASS STAR MAGNOLIA DR 1167.3 0.22 29646 3,294 544 84,244$      26$             Local -$                $  13,373.64 27,394.49$   22,315.70$     63,083.82$     19.15$     )

S2190 S2190 LYONS RD 7401.2 2.80 3E+05 30,717 5,068 785,593$    26$             Local 68 $483,796 15.75$           ########## 255,459.16$ 208,098.43$   588,269.52$   19.15$     )

0000001300 LYONS RD SOUTH END TERRYTOWN LN 1805.1 0.68 65820 7,313 1,207 187,039$    26$             Local -$                $  29,692.13 60,821.19$   49,545.27$     140,058.60$   19.15$     )

0000001310 LYONS RD TERRYTOWN LN EVANS MILL RD 1768.6 0.67 39973 4,441 733 113,590$    26$             Local -$                $  18,032.26 36,937.18$   30,089.23$     85,058.68$     19.15$     )

0000001320 LYONS RD EVANS MILL RD BROWNS MILL RD 0 0.00 39391 4,377 722 111,936$    26$             Local -$                $  17,769.72 36,399.38$   29,651.14$     83,820.24$     19.15$     )

0000001330 TERRYTOWN LN END LYONS RD 1755.1 0.66 50526 5,614 926 143,578$    26$             Local -$                $  22,792.84 46,688.72$   38,032.89$     107,514.44$   19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

28 3:28 PM

161

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000001340 EVANS MILL RD LYONS RD W FLAT ROCK DR 380.8 0.14 12499 1,389 229 35,518$      26$             Local -$                $    5,638.44 11,549.74$   9,408.48$       26,596.66$     19.15$     )

0000001350 EVANS MILL RD W FLAT ROCK DR BROWNS MILL RD 457.8 0.17 18516 2,057 339 52,616$      26$             Local -$                $    8,352.77 17,109.77$   13,937.71$     39,400.26$     19.15$     )

0000001690 W FLAT ROCK DR SOUTH END STONECUTTER DR 344.2 0.13 15181 1,687 278 43,139$      26$             Local -$                $    6,848.32 14,028.05$   11,427.33$     32,303.70$     19.15$     )

0000001700 W FLAT ROCK DR STONECUTTER DR EVANS MILL RD 259.1 0.10 5876 653 108 16,698$      26$             Local -$                $    2,650.73 5,429.74$      4,423.09$       12,503.56$     19.15$     )

0000001710 STONECUTTER DR WEST END W FLAT ROCK DR 322.9 0.12 12459 1,384 228 35,404$      26$             Local -$                $    5,620.39 11,512.78$   9,378.37$       26,511.55$     19.15$     )

0000001720 STONECUTTER DR W FLAT ROCK DR EAST END 307.6 0.12 16214 1,802 297 46,075$      26$             Local -$                $    7,314.32 14,982.60$   12,204.91$     34,501.82$     19.15$     )

S130 S130 MARSHALL BLVD 1968.1 0.75 54469 6,052 999 154,783$    26$             Local 69.2 $95,321 15.75$            $  24,571.57 50,332.26$   41,000.93$     115,904.77$   19.15$     )

0000017250 MARSHALL BLVD END LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD 1968.1 0.75 54469 6,052 999 154,783$    26$             Local -$                $  24,571.57 50,332.26$   41,000.93$     115,904.77$   19.15$     )

S640 S640 MILLER WOODS TRL 4264.6 1.62 1E+05 12,436 2,052 318,042$    26$             Local 69.8 $195,862 15.75$            $  50,488.81 103,420.97$ 84,247.29$     238,157.07$   19.15$     )

0000013690 MILLER WOODS DR MILLER RD MILLER WOODS TRL [W] 408.7 0.15 10352 1,150 190 29,417$      26$             Local -$                $    4,669.90 9,565.80$      7,792.35$       22,028.06$     19.15$     )

0000013700 MILLER WOODS DR MILLER WOODS TRL [W] MILLER WOODS TRL [E] 1410.2 0.53 35710 3,968 655 101,476$    26$             Local -$                $  16,109.18 32,997.94$   26,880.31$     75,987.43$     19.15$     )

0000013710 MILLER WOODS TRL MILLER WOODS DR [W] MILLER WOODS DR [E] 1453.9 0.55 35150 3,906 644 99,885$      26$             Local -$                $  15,856.56 32,480.47$   26,458.77$     74,795.80$     19.15$     )

0000013720 MILLER WOODS TRL MILLER WOODS DR [E] END 991.8 0.38 30709 3,412 563 87,265$      26$             Local -$                $  13,853.17 28,376.75$   23,115.86$     65,345.78$     19.15$     )

S2150 S2150 WINDERMERE DR 3259.9 1.23 84404 9,378 1,547 239,848$    26$             Local 70.1 $147,707 15.75$            $  38,075.58 77,993.80$   63,534.17$     179,603.55$   19.15$     )

0000001990 WINDERMERE DR EVANS MILL RD WINDERMERE CT 437.8 0.17 9735 1,082 178 27,664$      26$             Local -$                $    4,391.57 8,995.66$      7,327.91$       20,715.14$     19.15$     )

0000002000 WINDERMERE DR WINDERMERE CT END 1782 0.68 40810 4,534 748 115,968$    26$             Local -$                $  18,409.84 37,710.62$   30,719.27$     86,839.74$     19.15$     )

0000002010 WINDERMERE CT WINDERMERE DR END 1040.1 0.39 33859 3,762 621 96,216$      26$             Local -$                $  15,274.17 31,287.52$   25,486.99$     72,048.68$     19.15$     )

S370 S370 REDAN W 2938.1 1.11 78476 8,720 1,439 223,003$    26$             Local 70.3 $137,333 15.75$            $  35,401.40 72,516.01$   59,071.94$     166,989.34$   19.15$     )

0000015930 REDAN W PHILLIPS RD REDAN SQ 717.6 0.27 17711 1,968 325 50,329$      26$             Local -$                $    7,989.63 16,365.91$   13,331.76$     37,687.30$     19.15$     )

0000015940 REDAN SQ CITY LIMIT REDAN W 59.3 0.02 1322 147 24 3,757$        26$             Local -$                $       596.37 1,221.60$      995.12$           2,813.09$       19.15$     )

0000015950 REDAN SQ REDAN W REDAN E 698.6 0.26 17343 1,927 318 49,283$      26$             Local -$                $    7,823.62 16,025.86$   13,054.75$     36,904.23$     19.15$     )

0000015960 REDAN E SOUTH END REDAN SQ 267.8 0.10 9133 1,015 167 25,953$      26$             Local -$                $    4,120.00 8,439.38$      6,874.76$       19,434.14$     19.15$     )

0000015970 REDAN E REDAN SQ REDAN OVERLOOK 254.7 0.10 6218 691 114 17,669$      26$             Local -$                $    2,805.01 5,745.76$      4,680.53$       13,231.30$     19.15$     )

0000015980 REDAN E REDAN OVERLOOK REDAN BLF 210.7 0.08 5050 561 93 14,350$      26$             Local -$                $    2,278.11 4,666.47$      3,801.33$       10,745.91$     19.15$     )

0000015990 REDAN E REDAN BLF S STONE MOUNTAIN LITHONIA RD 408.1 0.15 9889 1,099 181 28,101$      26$             Local -$                $    4,461.04 9,137.96$      7,443.83$       21,042.84$     19.15$     )

0000016000 REDAN OVERLOOK CITY LIMIT REDAN E 48.2 0.02 1111 123 20 3,157$        26$             Local -$                $       501.18 1,026.62$      836.29$           2,364.10$       19.15$     )

0000016010 REDAN OVERLOOK REDAN E EAST END 225.1 0.09 9478 1,053 174 26,933$      26$             Local -$                $    4,275.63 8,758.18$      7,134.46$       20,168.27$     19.15$     )

0000016020 REDAN BLF CITY LIMIT REDAN E 48 0.02 1221 136 22 3,470$        26$             Local -$                $       550.81 1,128.27$      919.09$           2,598.17$       19.15$     )

S400 S400 LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD COVINGTON HWY ROGERS LAKE RD 14167 13.42 8E+05 90,377 14,912 2,311,383$ 26$             Collector 70.4 ######## 15.75$           ########## 751,615.74$ 612,270.28$   ########### 19.15$     )

0000013140 LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD COVINGTON HWY PARKWAY RD 332.3 0.31 20835 2,315 382 59,206$      26$             Minor Arterial -$                $    9,398.90 19,252.65$   15,683.31$     44,334.87$     19.15$     )

0000013150 LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD PARKWAY RD TRIBBLE ST 1583.2 1.20 75202 8,356 1,379 213,699$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  33,924.46 69,490.66$   56,607.47$     160,022.59$   19.15$     )

0000013160 LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD TRIBBLE ST GRIFFITH WAY 2302.3 1.74 1E+05 12,151 2,005 310,762$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  49,333.06 101,053.55$ 82,318.77$     232,705.38$   19.15$     )

0000013170 LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD GRIFFITH WAY MARBUT RD 963.5 0.73 45766 5,085 839 130,052$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  20,645.55 42,290.22$   34,449.85$     97,385.62$     19.15$     )

0000013180 LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD MARBUT RD CHAPMAN RD 1787.6 1.35 84911 9,435 1,557 241,289$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  38,304.30 78,462.29$   63,915.81$     180,682.40$   19.15$     )

0000013190 LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD CHAPMAN RD MARSHALL BLVD 748.4 0.57 35549 3,950 652 101,018$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  16,036.55 32,849.17$   26,759.11$     75,644.84$     19.15$     )

0000013200 LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD MARSHALL BLVD S STONE MOUNTAIN LITHONIA RD 614.2 0.81 53681 5,965 984 152,544$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  24,216.10 49,604.11$   40,407.78$     114,227.98$   19.15$     )

0000013210 LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD S STONE MOUNTAIN LITHONIA RD ROGERS LAKE RD 5835.9 5.53 4E+05 43,121 7,115 1,102,814$ 26$             Collector -$               ########## 358,613.09$ 292,128.18$   825,811.62$   19.15$     )

S1090 S1090 TWIN LAKES DR 689.6 0.26 16088 1,788 295 45,717$      26$             Local 71.1 $28,154 15.75$            $    7,257.48 14,866.17$   12,110.06$     34,233.71$     19.15$     )

0000000940 TWIN LAKES DR END PANOLA RD 689.6 0.26 16088 1,788 295 45,717$      26$             Local -$                $    7,257.48 14,866.17$   12,110.06$     34,233.71$     19.15$     )

S1610 S1610 WHITE OAK LOOP 10736 4.07 3E+05 31,602 5,214 808,221$    26$             Local 71.3 $497,732 15.75$           ########## 262,817.40$ 214,092.49$   605,214.01$   19.15$     )

0000012440 DOGWOOD PASS WHITE OAK LOOP PIN OAK ST 256.8 0.10 6373 708 117 18,110$      26$             Local -$                $    2,874.93 5,888.99$      4,797.20$       13,561.13$     19.15$     )

0000012450 DOGWOOD PASS PIN OAK ST HOLLY BERRY TER 204.6 0.08 4993 555 92 14,188$      26$             Local -$                $    2,252.40 4,613.80$      3,758.43$       10,624.62$     19.15$     )

0000012460 DOGWOOD PASS HOLLY BERRY TER WILD CHERRY LN 324.1 0.12 10333 1,148 189 29,363$      26$             Local -$                $    4,661.33 9,548.24$      7,778.05$       21,987.63$     19.15$     )

0000012470 DOGWOOD PASS WILD CHERRY LN WHITE OAK LOOP 212.1 0.04 8886 987 163 25,251$      26$             Local -$                $    4,008.57 8,211.14$      6,688.84$       18,908.55$     19.15$     )

0000012480 DOGWOOD PASS WHITE OAK LOOP HAYDEN QUARRY RD 211.4 0.04 9037 1,004 166 25,680$      26$             Local -$                $    4,076.69 8,350.67$      6,802.50$       19,229.86$     19.15$     )

0000012550 WHITE OAK LOOP DOGWOOD PASS PAPER BIRCH LN 1108 0.42 29561 3,285 542 84,003$      26$             Local -$                $  13,335.30 27,315.94$   22,251.71$     62,902.95$     19.15$     )

0000012560 WHITE OAK LOOP PAPER BIRCH LN PIN OAK ST 631.9 0.24 15946 1,772 292 45,313$      26$             Local -$                $    7,193.42 14,734.95$   12,003.17$     33,931.55$     19.15$     )

0000012570 WHITE OAK LOOP PIN OAK ST DOGWOOD PASS 289.4 0.11 7093 788 130 20,156$      26$             Local -$                $    3,199.73 6,554.31$      5,339.18$       15,093.22$     19.15$     )

0000012580 WHITE OAK LOOP DOGWOOD PASS WILD CHERRY LN 1180.5 0.45 31553 3,506 578 89,663$      26$             Local -$                $  14,233.91 29,156.65$   23,751.17$     67,141.73$     19.15$     )

0000012590 WHITE OAK LOOP WILD CHERRY LN BEAUTYBERRY WAY 506.7 0.19 13781 1,531 253 39,161$      26$             Local -$                $    6,216.76 12,734.38$   10,373.49$     29,324.64$     19.15$     )

0000012600 WHITE OAK LOOP BEAUTYBERRY WAY DOGWOOD PASS 1484.7 0.56 37900 4,211 695 107,699$    26$             Local -$                $  17,097.11 35,021.62$   28,528.80$     80,647.54$     19.15$     )

0000012610 PAPER BIRCH LN DOGWOOD PASS WHITE OAK LOOP 690.5 0.26 16178 1,798 297 45,972$      26$             Local -$                $    7,298.08 14,949.33$   12,177.81$     34,425.22$     19.15$     )

0000012620 PIN OAK ST WHITE OAK LOOP DOGWOOD PASS 929.4 0.35 23794 2,644 436 67,615$      26$             Local -$                $  10,733.74 21,986.93$   17,910.67$     50,631.33$     19.15$     )

0000012630 HOLLY BERRY TER DOGWOOD PASS BEAUTYBERRY WAY [N] 313.7 0.12 7904 878 145 22,461$      26$             Local -$                $    3,565.58 7,303.72$      5,949.65$       16,818.95$     19.15$     )

0000012640 HOLLY BERRY TER BEAUTYBERRY WAY [N] BEAUTYBERRY WAY [E] 687.6 0.26 16701 1,856 306 47,459$      26$             Local -$                $    7,534.01 15,432.61$   12,571.49$     35,538.11$     19.15$     )

0000012650 BEAUTYBERRY WAY HOLLY BERRY TER [N] HOLLY BERRY TER [E] 646.4 0.24 17734 1,970 325 50,394$      26$             Local -$                $    8,000.00 16,387.16$   13,349.07$     37,736.24$     19.15$     )

0000012660 BEAUTYBERRY WAY HOLLY BERRY TER [E] WHITE OAK LOOP 169.5 0.06 3932 437 72 11,173$      26$             Local -$                $    1,773.77 3,633.38$      2,959.77$       8,366.92$       19.15$     )

0000012670 WILD CHERRY LN DOGWOOD PASS WHITE OAK LOOP 888.2 0.34 22719 2,524 417 64,560$      26$             Local -$                $  10,248.79 20,993.57$   17,101.47$     48,343.84$     19.15$     )

S10 S10 HILL CREEK CV HILL CREEK CV CRESTLAKE CT 11412 4.32 4E+05 43,701 7,211 1,117,642$ 26$             Local 71.8 $688,284 15.75$           ########## 363,434.80$ 296,055.97$   836,915.02$   19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

29 3:28 PM

162

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000017400 REGAL HEIGHTS DR CITY LIMIT HILL CREEK CV 1149.8 0.44 33249 3,694 610 94,483$      26$             Local -$                $  14,998.99 30,723.85$   25,027.82$     70,750.66$     19.15$     )

0000017410 HILL CREEK CV CITY LIMIT REGAL HEIGHTS DR 294.7 0.11 14133 1,570 259 40,161$      26$             Local -$                $    6,375.55 13,059.65$   10,638.46$     30,073.66$     19.15$     )

0000017420 HILL CREEK CV REGAL HEIGHTS DR ROGERS CROSSING DR 465 0.18 10919 1,213 200 31,028$      26$             Local -$                $    4,925.68 10,089.74$   8,219.16$       23,234.58$     19.15$     )

0000017430 HILL CREEK CV ROGERS CROSSING DR DALEHOLLOW DR 1890.3 0.72 1E+05 15,146 2,499 387,353$    26$             Local -$                $  61,491.86 125,959.56$ 102,607.34$   290,058.76$   19.15$     )

0000017440 HILL CREEK CV DALEHOLLOW DR ROGERS CROSSING DR 1055.6 0.40 28366 3,152 520 80,607$      26$             Local -$                $  12,796.22 26,211.70$   21,352.19$     60,360.11$     19.15$     )

0000017450 ROGERS CROSSING DR HILL CREEK CV [N] HILL CREEK CV [S] 316.1 0.12 8091 899 148 22,992$      26$             Local -$                $    3,649.94 7,476.52$      6,090.41$       17,216.87$     19.15$     )

0000017460 ROGERS CROSSING DR HILL CREEK CV [S] DALEHOLLOW DR 336.5 0.13 8358 929 153 23,751$      26$             Local -$                $    3,770.39 7,723.24$      6,291.39$       17,785.02$     19.15$     )

0000017470 ROGERS CROSSING DR DALEHOLLOW DR LYNRIDGE DR 1273.5 0.48 30039 3,338 551 85,361$      26$             Local -$                $  13,550.93 27,757.64$   22,611.52$     63,920.09$     19.15$     )

0000017480 ROGERS CROSSING DR LYNRIDGE DR ROGERS LAKE RD 730.7 0.28 17180 1,909 315 48,820$      26$             Local -$                $    7,750.09 15,875.24$   12,932.05$     36,557.38$     19.15$     )

0000017500 DALEHOLLOW DR HILL CREEK CV CRESTLAKE CT 425.8 0.16 9736 1,082 178 27,666$      26$             Local -$                $    4,392.02 8,996.58$      7,328.67$       20,717.27$     19.15$     )

0000017510 DALEHOLLOW DR CRESTLAKE CT ROGERS CROSSING DR 937.3 0.36 23964 2,663 439 68,098$      26$             Local -$                $  10,810.43 22,144.01$   18,038.63$     50,993.08$     19.15$     )

0000017520 CRESTLAKE CT DALEHOLLOW DR END 300.1 0.11 10237 1,137 188 29,090$      26$             Local -$                $    4,618.02 9,459.53$      7,705.79$       21,783.35$     19.15$     )

0000017530 LYNRIDGE DR ROGERS CROSSING DR SPRING HILL CV 340 0.13 7371 819 135 20,946$      26$             Local -$                $    3,325.14 6,811.20$      5,548.44$       15,684.78$     19.15$     )

0000017540 SPRING HILL CV WEST END LYNRIDGE DR 1206.8 0.46 31575 3,508 579 89,726$      26$             Local -$                $  14,243.83 29,176.98$   23,767.73$     67,188.55$     19.15$     )

0000017550 SPRING HILL CV LYNRIDGE DR SPRING HILL RUN 251.8 0.10 5910 657 108 16,794$      26$             Local -$                $    2,666.07 5,461.16$      4,448.69$       12,575.91$     19.15$     )

0000017560 SPRING HILL CV SPRING HILL RUN EAST END 281.6 0.11 10289 1,143 189 29,238$      26$             Local -$                $    4,641.48 9,507.58$      7,744.93$       21,894.00$     19.15$     )

0000017570 SPRING HILL RUN SPRING HILL CV END 156.6 0.06 7576 842 139 21,528$      26$             Local -$                $    3,417.62 7,000.63$      5,702.75$       16,121.00$     19.15$     )

S120 S120 MARBUT RD PHILLIPS RD END 8047.6 6.10 3E+05 30,024 4,954 767,867$    26$             Collector 71.8 $472,880 15.75$           ########## 249,694.92$ 203,402.84$   574,995.66$   19.15$     )

0000016620 MARBUT RD PHILLIPS RD W MORGANS BLUFF CT 604.2 0.34 22960 2,551 421 65,245$      26$             Collector -$                $  10,357.51 21,216.26$   17,282.88$     48,856.66$     19.15$     )

0000016630 MARBUT RD W MORGANS BLUFF CT CHARLES CUDD CT 255.1 0.19 11148 1,239 204 31,679$      26$             Collector -$                $    5,028.99 10,301.35$   8,391.53$       23,721.87$     19.15$     )

0000016640 MARBUT RD CHARLES CUDD CT BEDFORD CT 263.2 0.15 10002 1,111 183 28,422$      26$             Collector -$                $    4,512.01 9,242.38$      7,528.89$       21,283.29$     19.15$     )

0000016650 MARBUT RD BEDFORD CT CHARTER LN 518.9 0.29 16760 1,862 307 47,626$      26$             Collector -$                $    7,560.62 15,487.13$   12,615.90$     35,663.66$     19.15$     )

0000016660 MARBUT RD CHARTER LN STONEBRIDGE CREEK DR 197.8 0.11 7892 877 145 22,426$      26$             Collector -$                $    3,560.17 7,292.63$      5,940.62$       16,793.41$     19.15$     )

0000016670 MARBUT RD STONEBRIDGE CREEK DR JABCO BLVD 706.1 0.40 21465 2,385 394 60,996$      26$             Collector -$                $    9,683.10 19,834.80$   16,157.54$     45,675.45$     19.15$     )

0000016680 MARBUT RD JABCO BLVD LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD 1712 0.97 52045 5,783 954 147,895$    26$             Collector -$                $  23,478.08 48,092.36$   39,176.30$     110,746.73$   19.15$     )

0000016690 MARBUT RD LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD RANDALL RD 1978 1.50 86439 9,604 1,585 245,631$    26$             Collector -$                $  38,993.59 79,874.25$   65,066.00$     183,933.84$   19.15$     )

0000016700 MARBUT RD RANDALL RD S STONE MOUNTAIN LITHONIA RD 34 0.02 1034 115 19 2,938$        26$             Collector -$                $       466.45 955.47$         778.33$           2,200.25$       19.15$     )

0000016710 MARBUT RD S STONE MOUNTAIN LITHONIA RD ROGERS LAKE RD 1379.2 0.52 30258 3,362 555 85,983$      26$             Local -$                $  13,649.72 27,960.01$   22,776.37$     64,386.10$     19.15$     )

0000016720 MARBUT RD ROGERS LAKE RD END 399.1 0.15 10214 1,135 187 29,025$      26$             Local -$                $    4,607.65 9,438.28$      7,688.48$       21,734.40$     19.15$     )

S1790 S1790 SEARCH LIGHT TRL 3810.3 1.44 1E+05 11,770 1,942 301,009$    26$             Local 72.5 $185,372 15.75$            $  47,784.85 97,882.20$   79,735.37$     225,402.42$   19.15$     )

0000010060 LANTERN CT END LAMPSIDE TER 672.7 0.25 19108 2,123 350 54,299$      26$             Local -$                $    8,619.83 17,656.81$   14,383.33$     40,659.98$     19.15$     )

0000010070 LANTERN CT LAMPSIDE TER SEARCH LIGHT TRL 430.4 0.16 10486 1,165 192 29,798$      26$             Local -$                $    4,730.35 9,689.62$      7,893.22$       22,313.19$     19.15$     )

0000010080 LANTERN CT SEARCH LIGHT TRL BEACON MOUNTAIN DR 420.8 0.16 9623 1,069 176 27,345$      26$             Local -$                $    4,341.04 8,892.17$      7,243.61$       20,476.81$     19.15$     )

0000010090 LANTERN CT BEACON MOUNTAIN DR END 455.9 0.17 15025 1,669 275 42,696$      26$             Local -$                $    6,777.94 13,883.90$   11,309.90$     31,971.75$     19.15$     )

0000010100 LAMPSIDE TER END LANTERN CT 202 0.08 9147 1,016 168 25,993$      26$             Local -$                $    4,126.31 8,452.32$      6,885.30$       19,463.93$     19.15$     )

0000010110 SEARCH LIGHT TRL LANTERN CT END 873.9 0.33 25174 2,797 462 71,536$      26$             Local -$                $  11,356.27 23,262.12$   18,949.45$     53,567.84$     19.15$     )

0000010120 BEACON MOUNTAIN DR LANTERN CT BROWNS MILL RD 754.6 0.29 17364 1,929 318 49,343$      26$             Local -$                $    7,833.09 16,045.26$   13,070.56$     36,948.91$     19.15$     )

S710 S710 SNAPFINGER WOODS DR PANOLA RD DEKALB MEDICAL PKWY 6651.2 5.04 3E+05 35,020 5,778 895,634$    26$             Minor Arterial 72.5 $551,563 15.75$           ########## 291,242.21$ 237,247.49$   670,670.44$   19.15$     )

0000013660 SNAPFINGER WOODS DR PANOLA RD JW WILLIAMS LN 676.5 0.51 45398 5,044 832 129,006$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  20,479.54 41,950.17$   34,172.84$     96,602.56$     19.15$     )

0000013670 SNAPFINGER WOODS DR JW WILLIAMS LN STONEKEY PL 3188.4 2.42 1E+05 13,462 2,221 344,293$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  54,656.17 111,957.38$ 91,201.09$     257,814.64$   19.15$     )

0000013680 SNAPFINGER WOODS DR STONEKEY PL DEKALB MEDICAL PKWY 2786.3 2.11 1E+05 16,514 2,725 422,334$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  67,045.04 137,334.65$ 111,873.56$   316,253.25$   19.15$     )

S1600 S1600 HAYDEN QUARRY RD TURNER HILL RD CITY LIMIT 3343.6 1.27 82685 9,187 1,516 234,963$    26$             Collector 73.3 $144,699 15.75$            $  37,300.12 76,405.35$   62,240.22$     175,945.69$   19.15$     )

0000011700 HAYDEN QUARRY RD TURNER HILL RD STONECREST BLVD 1650.9 0.63 47051 5,228 863 133,703$    26$             Collector -$                $  21,225.23 43,477.63$   35,417.12$     100,119.98$   19.15$     )

0000011710 HAYDEN QUARRY RD STONECREST BLVD STONE CREEK PATH 365.5 0.14 10417 1,157 191 29,602$      26$             Collector -$                $    4,699.22 9,625.86$      7,841.28$       22,166.37$     19.15$     )

0000011720 HAYDEN QUARRY RD STONE CREEK PATH CITY LIMIT 1327.2 0.50 25217 2,802 462 71,658$      26$             Collector -$                $  11,375.67 23,301.85$   18,981.82$     53,659.34$     19.15$     )

S110 S110 CHAPMAN RD S STONE MOUNTAIN LITHONIA RD ROGERS LAKE RD 2773.2 1.58 89574 9,953 1,642 254,539$    26$             Collector 73.4 $156,754 15.75$            $  40,407.83 82,771.15$   67,425.83$     190,604.81$   19.15$     )

0000017600 CHAPMAN RD S STONE MOUNTAIN LITHONIA RD ROGERS LAKE RD 2773.2 1.58 89574 9,953 1,642 254,539$    26$             Collector -$                $  40,407.83 82,771.15$   67,425.83$     190,604.81$   19.15$     )

S2360 S2360 FLAT BRIDGE RD 3695 1.40 90758 10,084 1,664 257,904$    26$             Local 74.1 $158,826 15.75$            $  40,941.94 83,865.23$   68,317.08$     193,124.25$   19.15$     )

0000007880 FLAT BRIDGE RD END BROWNS MILL RD 3695 1.40 90758 10,084 1,664 257,904$    26$             Local -$                $  40,941.94 83,865.23$   68,317.08$     193,124.25$   19.15$     )

S610 S610 GLEN RIDGE BND 5537.6 2.10 2E+05 16,820 2,775 430,160$    26$             Local 74.3 $264,908 15.75$            $  68,287.40 139,879.50$ 113,946.60$   322,113.49$   19.15$     )

0000014450 GLEN BRIAR WAY COVINGTON HWY BRIAR KNOLL RD [S] 194.4 0.07 4743 527 87 13,478$      26$             Local -$                $    2,139.62 4,382.78$      3,570.24$       10,092.65$     19.15$     )

0000014460 GLEN BRIAR WAY BRIAR KNOLL RD [S] BRIAR KNOLL RD [E] 820.5 0.31 23331 2,592 428 66,299$      26$             Local -$                $  10,524.87 21,559.09$   17,562.15$     49,646.11$     19.15$     )

0000014470 BRIAR KNOLL RD GLEN BRIAR WAY [W] GLEN BRIAR WAY [N] 774.4 0.29 20342 2,260 373 57,805$      26$             Local -$                $    9,176.50 18,797.09$   15,312.21$     43,285.81$     19.15$     )

0000014480 BRIAR KNOLL RD GLEN BRIAR WAY [N] GLEN RIDGE BND [S] 357.9 0.14 9468 1,052 174 26,905$      26$             Local -$                $    4,271.12 8,748.94$      7,126.93$       20,146.99$     19.15$     )

0000014490 BRIAR KNOLL RD GLEN RIDGE BND [S] BRIAR KNOLL CT 320.6 0.12 7993 888 147 22,713$      26$             Local -$                $    3,605.73 7,385.96$      6,016.64$       17,008.33$     19.15$     )

0000014500 BRIAR KNOLL RD BRIAR KNOLL CT GLEN RIDGE BND [N] 314.7 0.12 7579 842 139 21,537$      26$             Local -$                $    3,418.97 7,003.40$      5,705.01$       16,127.38$     19.15$     )

0000014510 BRIAR KNOLL RD GLEN RIDGE BND [N] END 1260.4 0.48 33069 3,674 606 93,971$      26$             Local -$                $  14,917.79 30,557.52$   24,892.32$     70,367.64$     19.15$     )

0000014520 GLEN RIDGE BND BRIAR KNOLL RD [S] BRIAR KNOLL RD [N] 1380 0.52 38275 4,253 702 108,765$    26$             Local -$                $  17,266.28 35,368.14$   28,811.08$     81,445.50$     19.15$     )

0000014530 BRIAR KNOLL CT END BRIAR KNOLL RD 114.7 0.04 6576 731 121 18,687$      26$             Local -$                $    2,966.51 6,076.57$      4,950.01$       13,993.09$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

30 3:28 PM

163

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

S1960 S1960 KLONDIKE RD END BROWNS MILL RD 6157.6 3.50 2E+05 20,934 3,454 535,384$    26$             Collector 75 $329,709 15.75$            $  84,991.59 174,096.27$ 141,819.77$   400,907.63$   19.15$     )

0000008420 KLONDIKE RD END KLONDIKE TER 1502.2 0.57 37104 4,123 680 105,437$    26$             Collector -$                $  16,738.03 34,286.07$   27,929.62$     78,953.73$     19.15$     )

0000008430 KLONDIKE RD KLONDIKE TER ARIAAL DR 1125.9 0.43 27810 3,090 510 79,027$      26$             Collector -$                $  12,545.40 25,697.92$   20,933.67$     59,176.99$     19.15$     )

0000008440 KLONDIKE RD ARIAAL DR KLONDIKE RIVER RD 503.6 0.29 20094 2,233 368 57,100$      26$             Collector -$                $    9,064.63 18,567.93$   15,125.54$     42,758.09$     19.15$     )

0000008450 KLONDIKE RD KLONDIKE RIVER RD LEVERETT DR 1885.4 1.07 75227 8,359 1,379 213,770$    26$             Collector -$                $  33,935.74 69,513.76$   56,626.29$     160,075.78$   19.15$     )

0000008460 KLONDIKE RD LEVERETT DR BROWNS MILL RD 1140.5 0.43 28170 3,130 516 80,050$      26$             Collector -$                $  12,707.80 26,030.58$   21,204.65$     59,943.04$     19.15$     )

S40 S40 ROGERS LAKE RD CITY LIMIT MADDOX RD 5322 2.02 1E+05 14,606 2,410 373,548$    26$             Collector 75.7 $230,044 15.75$            $  59,300.36 121,470.51$ 98,950.54$     279,721.40$   19.15$     )

0000017300 ROGERS LAKE RD CITY LIMIT QUARRY RD 1304.8 0.49 32229 3,581 591 91,584$      26$             Collector -$                $  14,538.86 29,781.31$   24,260.02$     68,580.20$     19.15$     )

0000017310 ROGERS LAKE RD QUARRY RD MARBUT RD 1356.3 0.51 33501 3,722 614 95,199$      26$             Collector -$                $  15,112.67 30,956.71$   25,217.51$     71,286.89$     19.15$     )

0000017320 ROGERS LAKE RD MARBUT RD CHAPMAN RD 2320.4 0.88 57314 6,368 1,051 162,867$    26$             Collector -$                $  25,854.98 52,961.19$   43,142.48$     121,958.65$   19.15$     )

0000017330 ROGERS LAKE RD CHAPMAN RD MADDOX RD 340.5 0.13 8410 934 154 23,898$      26$             Collector -$                $    3,793.84 7,771.29$      6,330.53$       17,895.67$     19.15$     )

S1900 S1900 BROWNS MILL CLOSE 1298.7 0.49 38534 4,282 706 109,501$    26$             Local 77.5 $67,434 15.75$            $  17,383.12 35,607.47$   29,006.04$     81,996.63$     19.15$     )

0000008370 BROWNS MILL CLOSE BROWNS MILL RD MILL STATION CT 224.4 0.09 5852 650 107 16,629$      26$             Local -$                $    2,639.90 5,407.56$      4,405.03$       12,452.49$     19.15$     )

0000008380 BROWNS MILL CLOSE MILL STATION CT MILL STATION TRCE 437.1 0.17 9197 1,022 169 26,135$      26$             Local -$                $    4,148.87 8,498.52$      6,922.94$       19,570.33$     19.15$     )

0000008390 MILL STATION TRCE WEST END BROWNS MILL CLOSE 226.2 0.09 8936 993 164 25,393$      26$             Local -$                $    4,031.13 8,257.34$      6,726.47$       19,014.94$     19.15$     )

0000008400 MILL STATION TRCE BROWNS MILL CLOSE EAST END 173.1 0.07 5196 577 95 14,765$      26$             Local -$                $    2,343.97 4,801.38$      3,911.23$       11,056.59$     19.15$     )

0000008410 MILL STATION CT END BROWNS MILL CLOSE 237.9 0.09 9353 1,039 171 26,578$      26$             Local -$                $    4,219.24 8,642.67$      7,040.37$       19,902.28$     19.15$     )

S870 S870 HILSON HEAD LN 866.8 0.33 25066 2,785 460 71,229$      26$             Local 77.5 $43,866 15.75$            $  11,307.55 23,162.32$   18,868.15$     53,338.02$     19.15$     )

0000004720 HILSON HEAD LN ROCK SPRINGS RD END 866.8 0.33 25066 2,785 460 71,229$      26$             Local -$                $  11,307.55 23,162.32$   18,868.15$     53,338.02$     19.15$     )

S350 S350 S STONE MOUNTAIN LITHONIA RD MARBUT RD LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD 3237.9 2.45 1E+05 16,016 2,643 409,606$    26$             Minor Arterial 77.7 $252,250 15.75$            $  65,024.51 133,195.82$ 108,502.04$   306,722.37$   19.15$     )

0000017160 S STONE MOUNTAIN LITHONIA RD MARBUT RD CHAPMAN RD 2078.2 1.57 86869 9,652 1,593 246,853$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  39,187.57 80,271.59$   65,389.67$     184,848.83$   19.15$     )

0000017170 S STONE MOUNTAIN LITHONIA RD CHAPMAN RD LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD 1159.7 0.88 57274 6,364 1,050 162,754$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  25,836.94 52,924.23$   43,112.37$     121,873.54$   19.15$     )

S360 S360 S STONE MOUNTAIN LITHONIA RD LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD S DESHON RD 6399.4 2.42 2E+05 19,965 3,294 510,611$    26$             Minor Arterial 78.3 $314,452 15.75$            $  81,058.80 166,040.37$ 135,257.39$   382,356.57$   19.15$     )

0000017180 S STONE MOUNTAIN LITHONIA RD LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD COFFEE RD 879.7 0.50 37543 4,171 688 106,685$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  16,936.06 34,691.73$   28,260.08$     79,887.87$     19.15$     )

0000017190 S STONE MOUNTAIN LITHONIA RD COFFEE RD REDAN E 4140.8 1.57 1E+05 11,364 1,875 290,640$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  46,138.74 94,510.33$   76,988.63$     217,637.70$   19.15$     )

0000017200 S STONE MOUNTAIN LITHONIA RD REDAN E S DESHON RD 1378.9 0.52 39866 4,430 731 113,286$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  17,984.00 36,838.31$   30,008.69$     84,830.99$     19.15$     )

S1300 S1300 WOODSIDE XING 3201.1 1.21 1E+05 11,369 1,876 290,765$    26$             Local 78.5 $179,064 15.75$            $  46,158.59 94,550.99$   77,021.75$     217,731.32$   19.15$     )

0000006610 WOODSIDE XING ROCK SPRINGS RD BONNES DR 244.5 0.09 5550 617 102 15,771$      26$             Local -$                $    2,503.67 5,128.50$      4,177.70$       11,809.86$     19.15$     )

0000006620 WOODSIDE XING BONNES DR PENNINGTON DR 348.5 0.13 8758 973 161 24,887$      26$             Local -$                $    3,950.83 8,092.86$      6,592.49$       18,636.18$     19.15$     )

0000006630 WOODSIDE XING PENNINGTON DR END 816 0.31 28246 3,138 518 80,266$      26$             Local -$                $  12,742.08 26,100.81$   21,261.86$     60,104.76$     19.15$     )

0000006640 BONNES DR NORTH END WOODSIDE XING 396.5 0.15 12916 1,435 237 36,703$      26$             Local -$                $    5,826.55 11,935.07$   9,722.38$       27,484.00$     19.15$     )

0000006650 BONNES DR WOODSIDE XING SOUTH END 715.2 0.27 23623 2,625 433 67,129$      26$             Local -$                $  10,656.60 21,828.91$   17,781.95$     50,267.46$     19.15$     )

0000006660 PENNINGTON DR WOODSIDE XING END 680.4 0.26 23229 2,581 426 66,009$      26$             Local -$                $  10,478.86 21,464.83$   17,485.37$     49,429.07$     19.15$     )

S1850 S1850 LYNNONHALL CT 1622.6 0.61 59089 6,565 1,083 167,911$    26$             Local 79.7 $103,406 15.75$            $  26,655.70 54,601.39$   44,478.59$     125,735.68$   19.15$     )

0000008800 LYNNONHALL CT SOUTH END OBRIAN LN 700 0.27 26257 2,917 481 74,614$      26$             Local -$                $  11,844.82 24,262.87$   19,764.67$     55,872.36$     19.15$     )

0000008810 LYNNONHALL CT OBRIAN LN KLONDIKE TER 156.3 0.06 3563 396 65 10,125$      26$             Local -$                $    1,607.31 3,292.40$      2,682.01$       7,581.72$       19.15$     )

0000008820 LYNNONHALL CT KLONDIKE TER NORTH END 286.5 0.11 12063 1,340 221 34,279$      26$             Local -$                $    5,441.75 11,146.86$   9,080.29$       25,668.90$     19.15$     )

0000008830 OBRIAN LN END LYNNONHALL CT 262.1 0.10 11823 1,314 217 33,597$      26$             Local -$                $    5,333.49 10,925.08$   8,899.63$       25,158.20$     19.15$     )

0000008840 KLONDIKE TER LYNNONHALL CT KLONDIKE RD 217.7 0.08 5383 598 99 15,297$      26$             Local -$                $    2,428.33 4,974.18$      4,051.99$       11,454.50$     19.15$     )

S1350 S1350 ROCK PORT DR 1649.1 0.62 37809 4,201 693 107,441$    26$             Local 79.7 $66,166 15.75$            $  17,056.06 34,937.53$   28,460.30$     80,453.90$     19.15$     )

0000006810 ROCK PORT DR ROCK SPRINGS RD ROCK PORT LN 1233.4 0.47 26751 2,972 490 76,017$      26$             Local -$                $  12,067.67 24,719.35$   20,136.52$     56,923.54$     19.15$     )

0000006820 ROCK PORT LN WEST END ROCK PORT DR 262.1 0.10 7458 829 137 21,193$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    3,364.39 6,891.59$      5,613.93$       15,869.90$     19.15$     )

0000006830 ROCK PORT LN ROCK PORT DR EAST END 153.6 0.06 3600 400 66 10,230$      26$             Local 2019 -$                $    1,624.00 3,326.59$      2,709.86$       7,660.45$       19.15$     )

S1480 S1480 WOODROW DR KLONDIKE RD EVANS MILL RD 4436.9 1.68 1E+05 16,109 2,658 411,999$    26$             Collector 80.3 $253,724 15.75$            $  65,404.34 133,973.87$ 109,135.85$   308,514.06$   19.15$     )

0000008640 WOODROW DR KLONDIKE RD JOJANNE LN 379.5 0.22 14421 1,602 264 40,980$      26$             Collector -$                $    6,505.47 13,325.77$   10,855.25$     30,686.49$     19.15$     )

0000008650 WOODROW DR JOJANNE LN KLONDIKE WAY 393.2 0.15 9712 1,079 178 27,598$      26$             Collector -$                $    4,381.19 8,974.41$      7,310.60$       20,666.20$     19.15$     )

0000008660 WOODROW DR KLONDIKE WAY ARABIAN WOODS DR 1629.2 0.62 40241 4,471 738 114,352$    26$             Collector -$                $  18,153.16 37,184.83$   30,290.97$     85,628.96$     19.15$     )

0000008670 WOODROW DR ARABIAN WOODS DR WOODROW RD 506.4 0.19 12508 1,390 229 35,544$      26$             Collector -$                $    5,642.50 11,558.06$   9,415.26$       26,615.81$     19.15$     )

0000008680 WOODROW DR WOODROW RD EVANS TRCE 181.9 0.10 6567 730 120 18,661$      26$             Minor Arterial -$                $    2,962.45 6,068.26$      4,943.24$       13,973.94$     19.15$     )

0000008690 WOODROW DR EVANS TRCE HERITAGE VILLAS DR 667.8 0.38 22839 2,538 419 64,901$      26$             Collector -$                $  10,302.93 21,104.45$   17,191.80$     48,599.18$     19.15$     )

0000008700 WOODROW DR HERITAGE VILLAS DR EVANS MILL RD 678.9 0.51 38697 4,300 709 109,964$    26$             Collector -$                $  17,456.65 35,758.09$   29,128.74$     82,343.48$     19.15$     )

S1360 S1360 LIONSGATE CT 997 0.38 32710 3,634 600 92,951$      26$             Local 80.4 -$                $  14,755.84 30,225.78$   24,622.09$     69,603.72$     19.15$     )

0000010830 LIONSGATE CT EVANS MILL RD END 997 0.38 32710 3,634 600 92,951$      26$             Local -$                $  14,755.84 30,225.78$   24,622.09$     69,603.72$     19.15$     )

S2330 S2330 ROCKLAND RD TURNER HILL RD CITY LIMIT 1950.3 0.74 44467 4,941 815 126,360$    26$             Minor Arterial 80.6 $77,817 15.75$            $  20,059.56 41,089.88$   33,472.04$     94,621.48$     19.15$     )

0000012270 ROCKLAND RD TURNER HILL RD SHADY MAPLE DR 937.5 0.36 21375 2,375 392 60,741$      26$             Minor Arterial -$                $    9,642.50 19,751.64$   16,089.79$     45,483.93$     19.15$     )

0000012280 ROCKLAND RD SHADY MAPLE DR CITY LIMIT 1012.8 0.38 23092 2,566 423 65,620$      26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  10,417.06 21,338.24$   17,382.25$     49,137.54$     19.15$     )

S1970 S1970 KLONDIKE RD BROWNS MILL RD N GODDARD RD 6080.9 2.30 2E+05 16,689 2,754 426,813$    26$             Collector 81 $262,846 15.75$            $  67,755.99 138,790.96$ 113,059.88$   319,606.82$   19.15$     )

0000008470 KLONDIKE RD BROWNS MILL RD S GODDARD RD 2207.6 0.84 54528 6,059 1,000 154,950$    26$             Collector -$                $  24,598.19 50,386.78$   41,045.35$     116,030.31$   19.15$     )

0000008480 KLONDIKE RD S GODDARD RD S GODDARD RD 19.6 0.01 484 54 9 1,375$        26$             Collector -$                $       218.34 447.24$         364.33$           1,029.91$       19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

31 3:28 PM

164

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000008490 KLONDIKE RD S GODDARD RD N GODDARD RD 3853.7 1.46 95186 10,576 1,745 270,487$    26$             Collector -$                $  42,939.46 87,956.94$   71,650.20$     202,546.61$   19.15$     )

S520 S520 MACEDONIA RD 592 0.22 4999 555 92 14,205$      26$             Local 81.7 -$                $    2,255.10 4,619.34$      3,762.94$       10,637.39$     19.15$     )

0000015410 MACEDONIA RD CHUPP RD END 592 0.22 4999 555 92 14,205$      26$             Local -$                $    2,255.10 4,619.34$      3,762.94$       10,637.39$     19.15$     )

S1770 S1770 BROWNS MILL LN 3599 1.36 1E+05 11,833 1,952 302,620$    26$             Local 83.3 -$                $  48,040.63 98,406.14$   80,162.18$     226,608.94$   19.15$     )

0000010130 BROWNS MILL LN BROWNS MILL RD BROWNS MILL CIR 1328.7 0.50 33643 3,738 617 95,602$      26$             Local -$                $  15,176.73 31,087.93$   25,324.39$     71,589.05$     19.15$     )

0000010140 BROWNS MILL LN BROWNS MILL CIR ROANE CT 539.5 0.20 13622 1,514 250 38,709$      26$             Local -$                $    6,145.04 12,587.45$   10,253.81$     28,986.30$     19.15$     )

0000010150 BROWNS MILL LN ROANE CT ANNIE WALK 345 0.13 8554 950 157 24,308$      26$             Local -$                $    3,858.80 7,904.35$      6,438.93$       18,202.09$     19.15$     )

0000010160 ANNIE WALK WEST END BROWNS MILL LN 223.9 0.08 9846 1,094 181 27,979$      26$             Local -$                $    4,441.64 9,098.23$      7,411.47$       20,951.34$     19.15$     )

0000010170 ANNIE WALK BROWNS MILL LN EAST END 422.3 0.16 14491 1,610 266 41,179$      26$             Local -$                $    6,537.05 13,390.46$   10,907.94$     30,835.45$     19.15$     )

0000010180 ROANE CT END BROWNS MILL LN 329.2 0.12 12221 1,358 224 34,728$      26$             Local -$                $    5,513.03 11,292.86$   9,199.22$       26,005.11$     19.15$     )

0000010190 BROWNS MILL CIR END BROWNS MILL LN 410.4 0.16 14117 1,569 259 40,116$      26$             Local -$                $    6,368.34 13,044.86$   10,626.41$     30,039.61$     19.15$     )

S1750 S1750 ENGLISH LOOP 2205.3 0.84 62783 6,976 1,151 178,408$    26$             Local 83.3 -$                $  28,322.11 58,014.84$   47,259.21$     133,596.15$   19.15$     )

0000009530 ENGLISH LOOP BROWNS MILL RD START OF LOOP [NB] 198.3 0.08 5243 583 96 14,899$      26$             Local -$                $    2,365.18 4,844.81$      3,946.61$       11,156.60$     19.15$     )

0000009540 ENGLISH LOOP START OF LOOP [NB] END OF LOOP 2007 0.76 57540 6,393 1,055 163,510$    26$             Local -$                $  25,956.93 53,170.03$   43,312.60$     122,439.56$   19.15$     )

S1650 S1650 RIVER ROCK RD 10288 3.90 3E+05 31,693 5,229 810,540$    26$             Local 83.8 -$               ########## 263,571.43$ 214,706.72$   606,950.38$   19.15$     )

0000011840 CRAGSTONE RD END FLINT WAY 157.9 0.06 7970 886 146 22,648$      26$             Local -$                $    3,595.36 7,364.71$      5,999.33$       16,959.39$     19.15$     )

0000011850 CRAGSTONE RD FLINT WAY BEDROCK CIR 1056.9 0.40 28143 3,127 516 79,973$      26$             Local -$                $  12,695.62 26,005.63$   21,184.33$     59,885.58$     19.15$     )

0000011860 CRAGSTONE RD BEDROCK CIR ROCKLAND RD 182.8 0.07 4938 549 91 14,032$      26$             Local -$                $    2,227.59 4,562.98$      3,717.02$       10,507.59$     19.15$     )

0000011870 FLINT WAY END CRAGSTONE RD 168.6 0.06 8791 977 161 24,981$      26$             Local -$                $    3,965.72 8,123.35$      6,617.33$       18,706.40$     19.15$     )

0000011880 BEDROCK CIR END CRAGSTONE RD 474.7 0.18 15529 1,725 285 44,128$      26$             Local -$                $    7,005.30 14,349.62$   11,689.28$     33,044.21$     19.15$     )

0000011890 BEDROCK CIR CRAGSTONE RD RIVER ROCK RD 251 0.10 6208 690 114 17,641$      26$             Local -$                $    2,800.50 5,736.52$      4,673.00$       13,210.02$     19.15$     )

0000011900 BEDROCK CIR RIVER ROCK RD ROCKLAND RD 546.3 0.21 16903 1,878 310 48,033$      26$             Local -$                $    7,625.13 15,619.27$   12,723.55$     35,967.95$     19.15$     )

0000011910 RIVER ROCK RD END LIMESTONE PATH 360.3 0.14 11791 1,310 216 33,506$      26$             Local -$                $    5,319.05 10,895.51$   8,875.54$       25,090.11$     19.15$     )

0000011920 RIVER ROCK RD LIMESTONE PATH BIG ROCK AVE 1203.5 0.46 30952 3,439 567 87,955$      26$             Local -$                $  13,962.79 28,601.30$   23,298.77$     65,862.86$     19.15$     )

0000011930 RIVER ROCK RD BIG ROCK AVE ROCK RIDGE WAY 554.7 0.21 13411 1,490 246 38,110$      26$             Local -$                $    6,049.85 12,392.48$   10,094.98$     28,537.31$     19.15$     )

0000011940 RIVER ROCK RD ROCK RIDGE WAY BEDROCK CIR 902 0.34 21546 2,394 395 61,227$      26$             Local -$                $    9,719.64 19,909.65$   16,218.51$     45,847.81$     19.15$     )

0000011950 LIMESTONE PATH RIVER ROCK RD END 89.4 0.03 5180 576 95 14,720$      26$             Local -$                $    2,336.76 4,786.60$      3,899.19$       11,022.54$     19.15$     )

0000011960 SOAPSTONE WALK SOUTH END BIG ROCK AVE 258.4 0.10 9397 1,044 172 26,703$      26$             Local -$                $    4,239.09 8,683.33$      7,073.49$       19,995.91$     19.15$     )

0000011970 SOAPSTONE WALK BIG ROCK AVE NORTH END 436.2 0.17 14653 1,628 269 41,639$      26$             Local -$                $    6,610.13 13,540.15$   11,029.88$     31,180.17$     19.15$     )

0000011980 BIG ROCK AVE SOAPSTONE WALK RIVER ROCK RD 258.7 0.10 5172 575 95 14,697$      26$             Local -$                $    2,333.15 4,779.20$      3,893.17$       11,005.52$     19.15$     )

0000011990 BIG ROCK AVE RIVER ROCK RD PEBBLE ST 350.3 0.13 7519 835 138 21,366$      26$             Local -$                $    3,391.90 6,947.96$      5,659.84$       15,999.71$     19.15$     )

0000012000 BIG ROCK AVE PEBBLE ST GRANITE TER 224.2 0.08 4438 493 81 12,611$      26$             Local -$                $    2,002.03 4,100.95$      3,340.66$       9,443.63$       19.15$     )

0000012010 BIG ROCK AVE GRANITE TER END 409 0.15 12278 1,364 225 34,890$      26$             Local -$                $    5,538.74 11,345.53$   9,242.13$       26,126.40$     19.15$     )

0000012020 PEBBLE ST BIG ROCK AVE ROCK RIDGE WAY 722.4 0.27 14639 1,627 268 41,599$      26$             Local -$                $    6,603.82 13,527.22$   11,019.34$     31,150.38$     19.15$     )

0000012030 PEBBLE ST ROCK RIDGE WAY END 370.9 0.14 12138 1,349 223 34,492$      26$             Local -$                $    5,475.59 11,216.16$   9,136.74$       25,828.49$     19.15$     )

0000012040 ROCK RIDGE WAY RIVER ROCK RD PEBBLE ST 249.7 0.09 5278 586 97 14,998$      26$             Local -$                $    2,380.96 4,877.15$      3,972.96$       11,231.07$     19.15$     )

0000012050 GRANITE TER BIG ROCK AVE MCDANIEL MILL RD 1060.5 0.40 28360 3,151 520 80,590$      26$             Local -$                $  12,793.51 26,206.15$   21,347.67$     60,347.34$     19.15$     )

S760 S760 SHIRE DR 10112 3.83 3E+05 32,209 5,314 823,745$    26$             Local 83.9 -$               ########## 267,865.50$ 218,204.70$   616,838.75$   19.15$     )

0000006840 SHIRE DR END ANAISE CT 322.5 0.12 10988 1,221 201 31,224$      26$             Local -$                $    4,956.81 10,153.50$   8,271.09$       23,381.40$     19.15$     )

0000006850 SHIRE DR ANAISE CT CREOLE LNDG 339 0.13 9534 1,059 175 27,092$      26$             Local -$                $    4,300.89 8,809.92$      7,176.61$       20,287.43$     19.15$     )

0000006860 SHIRE DR CREOLE LNDG STILLBRANCH CV 339 0.13 7890 877 145 22,421$      26$             Local -$                $    3,559.27 7,290.78$      5,939.11$       16,789.16$     19.15$     )

0000006870 SHIRE DR STILLBRANCH CV VALAISE PATH 339 0.13 6283 698 115 17,854$      26$             Local -$                $    2,834.33 5,805.83$      4,729.46$       13,369.62$     19.15$     )

0000006880 SHIRE DR VALAISE PATH RATON CV 339 0.13 7966 885 146 22,637$      26$             Local -$                $    3,593.55 7,361.01$      5,996.32$       16,950.88$     19.15$     )

0000006890 SHIRE DR RATON CV CREOLE PATH 1258.7 0.48 31928 3,548 585 90,729$      26$             Local -$                $  14,403.08 29,503.17$   24,033.45$     67,939.70$     19.15$     )

0000006900 SHIRE DR CREOLE PATH STILLBRANCH PATH 339.1 0.13 7722 858 142 21,943$      26$             Local -$                $    3,483.48 7,135.54$      5,812.65$       16,431.67$     19.15$     )

0000006910 SHIRE DR STILLBRANCH PATH LACY LN 116.4 0.04 2612 290 48 7,422$        26$             Local -$                $    1,178.30 2,413.63$      1,966.15$       5,558.08$       19.15$     )

0000006920 SHIRE DR LACY LN VALAISE LN 279 0.11 6684 743 123 18,994$      26$             Local -$                $    3,015.23 6,176.37$      5,031.31$       14,222.91$     19.15$     )

0000006930 SHIRE DR VALAISE LN RATON PATH 403.9 0.15 9408 1,045 172 26,734$      26$             Local -$                $    4,244.05 8,693.49$      7,081.77$       20,019.31$     19.15$     )

0000006940 SHIRE DR RATON PATH MILLER RD 254.9 0.10 8171 908 150 23,219$      26$             Local -$                $    3,686.03 7,550.44$      6,150.63$       17,387.10$     19.15$     )

0000007050 ANAISE CT SHIRE DR END 530.5 0.20 16086 1,787 295 45,711$      26$             Local -$                $    7,256.57 14,864.32$   12,108.56$     34,229.45$     19.15$     )

0000007060 CREOLE LNDG SHIRE DR END 464.9 0.18 15210 1,690 279 43,222$      26$             Local -$                $    6,861.40 14,054.85$   11,449.16$     32,365.41$     19.15$     )

0000007070 STILLBRANCH CV SHIRE DR END 464.9 0.18 14451 1,606 265 41,065$      26$             Local -$                $    6,519.01 13,353.49$   10,877.83$     30,750.33$     19.15$     )

0000007080 VALAISE PATH SHIRE DR END 464.9 0.18 14510 1,612 266 41,233$      26$             Local -$                $    6,545.62 13,408.01$   10,922.24$     30,875.88$     19.15$     )

0000007090 RATON CV SHIRE DR END 443.4 0.17 14128 1,570 259 40,147$      26$             Local -$                $    6,373.30 13,055.03$   10,634.70$     30,063.02$     19.15$     )

0000007100 CREOLE PATH END SHIRE DR 384.5 0.15 12979 1,442 238 36,882$      26$             Local -$                $    5,854.97 11,993.29$   9,769.80$       27,618.06$     19.15$     )

0000007110 STILLBRANCH PATH END SHIRE DR 385.1 0.15 13567 1,507 249 38,553$      26$             Local -$                $    6,120.22 12,536.63$   10,212.41$     28,869.26$     19.15$     )

0000007120 VALAISE LN END SHIRE DR 375.8 0.14 13068 1,452 240 37,135$      26$             Local -$                $    5,895.12 12,075.53$   9,836.79$       27,807.44$     19.15$     )

0000007130 RATON PATH END SHIRE DR 180.9 0.07 8454 939 155 24,023$      26$             Local -$                $    3,813.69 7,811.95$      6,363.65$       17,989.29$     19.15$     )

0000007140 LACY LN SHIRE DR TADMORE LN 337.6 0.13 9396 1,044 172 26,700$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    4,238.64 8,682.41$      7,072.73$       19,993.78$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

32 3:28 PM

165

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000007150 LACY LN TADMORE LN MILLER RD 1088.3 0.41 34973 3,886 641 99,382$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $  15,776.71 32,316.92$   26,325.54$     74,419.16$     19.15$     )

0000007160 TADMORE LN LACY LN MILLER RD 660.2 0.25 13873 1,541 254 39,422$      26$             Local 2020 - untopped -$                $    6,258.26 12,819.39$   10,442.75$     29,520.40$     19.15$     )

S1880 S1880 CATHEDRAL LN 1842.9 0.70 53574 5,953 982 152,239$    26$             Local 84 -$                $  24,167.83 49,505.23$   40,327.23$     114,000.29$   19.15$     )

0000009460 CATHEDRAL LN END AMHERST FOREST DR 141.7 0.05 7054 784 129 20,045$      26$             Local -$                $    3,182.14 6,518.27$      5,309.82$       15,010.23$     19.15$     )

0000009470 CATHEDRAL LN AMHERST FOREST DR CATHEDRAL WAY 360 0.14 6098 678 112 17,328$      26$             Local -$                $    2,750.88 5,634.88$      4,590.20$       12,975.95$     19.15$     )

0000009480 CATHEDRAL LN CATHEDRAL WAY CATHEDRAL CT 357.1 0.14 7898 878 145 22,443$      26$             Local -$                $    3,562.88 7,298.17$      5,945.13$       16,806.18$     19.15$     )

0000009490 CATHEDRAL LN CATHEDRAL CT LEVERETT DR 403.7 0.15 9313 1,035 171 26,464$      26$             Local -$                $    4,201.20 8,605.71$      7,010.26$       19,817.16$     19.15$     )

0000009500 AMHERST FOREST DR CATHEDRAL LN END 184.8 0.07 4220 469 77 11,992$      26$             Local -$                $    1,903.69 3,899.51$      3,176.56$       8,979.75$       19.15$     )

0000009510 CATHEDRAL WAY CATHEDRAL LN END 209.1 0.08 9547 1,061 175 27,129$      26$             Local -$                $    4,306.76 8,821.94$      7,186.40$       20,315.09$     19.15$     )

0000009520 CATHEDRAL CT CATHEDRAL LN END 186.5 0.07 9444 1,049 173 26,837$      26$             Local -$                $    4,260.29 8,726.76$      7,108.87$       20,095.92$     19.15$     )

S2160 S2160 SOUTHCREST LN 2224.2 0.84 63061 7,007 1,156 179,198$    26$             Local 85.2 -$                $  28,447.52 58,271.73$   47,468.47$     134,187.71$   19.15$     )

0000001940 SOUTHCREST LN FLAT ROCK RD YEARLING WAY 760.5 0.29 17145 1,905 314 48,720$      26$             Local -$                $    7,734.30 15,842.89$   12,905.71$     36,482.90$     19.15$     )

0000001950 SOUTHCREST LN YEARLING WAY PELHAM CIR 632.5 0.24 15135 1,682 277 43,009$      26$             Local -$                $    6,827.57 13,985.55$   11,392.70$     32,205.82$     19.15$     )

0000001960 SOUTHCREST LN PELHAM CIR END 168.1 0.06 8057 895 148 22,895$      26$             Local -$                $    3,634.60 7,445.10$      6,064.82$       17,144.52$     19.15$     )

0000001970 PELHAM CIR SOUTHCREST LN END 213.6 0.08 8334 926 153 23,682$      26$             Local -$                $    3,759.56 7,701.06$      6,273.33$       17,733.95$     19.15$     )

0000001980 YEARLING WAY SOUTHCREST LN END 449.5 0.17 14390 1,599 264 40,892$      26$             Local -$                $    6,491.49 13,297.13$   10,831.91$     30,620.53$     19.15$     )

S1170 S1170 BIG MILLER GROVE/OAKTREE TRL SALEM RD END OF OAKTREE TRL 3009.9 1.14 92586 10,287 1,697 263,099$    26$             Major Arterial 85.7 $162,026 15.75$            $  41,766.57 85,554.40$   69,693.08$     197,014.06$   19.15$     )

0000003570 BIG MILLER GROVE WAY SALEM RD PANOLA RD 1100.5 0.42 23000 2,556 422 65,358$      26$             Major Arterial -$                $  10,375.56 21,253.23$   17,312.99$     48,941.78$     19.15$     )

0000003580 OAKTREE TRL PANOLA RD OAKTREE WAY 194.3 0.07 5197 577 95 14,768$      26$             Local -$                $    2,344.42 4,802.31$      3,911.98$       11,058.71$     19.15$     )

0000003590 OAKTREE TRL OAKTREE WAY OAKTREE LN 219.1 0.08 5792 644 106 16,459$      26$             Local -$                $    2,612.84 5,352.12$      4,359.86$       12,324.82$     19.15$     )

0000003600 OAKTREE TRL OAKTREE LN OAKTREE CT 524.5 0.20 13578 1,509 249 38,584$      26$             Local -$                $    6,125.19 12,546.80$   10,220.69$     28,892.67$     19.15$     )

0000003610 OAKTREE TRL OAKTREE CT END 503.6 0.19 21278 2,364 390 60,465$      26$             Local -$                $    9,598.74 19,662.01$   16,016.78$     45,277.53$     19.15$     )

0000003620 OAKTREE CT OAKTREE TRL END 120.8 0.05 6732 748 123 19,130$      26$             Local -$                $    3,036.88 6,220.73$      5,067.44$       14,325.05$     19.15$     )

0000003630 OAKTREE LN END OAKTREE TRL 200.5 0.08 8501 945 156 24,157$      26$             Local -$                $    3,834.90 7,855.38$      6,399.03$       18,089.31$     19.15$     )

0000003640 OAKTREE WAY END OAKTREE TRL 146.6 0.06 8508 945 156 24,177$      26$             Local -$                $    3,838.05 7,861.85$      6,404.30$       18,104.20$     19.15$     )

S470 S470 PANOLA INDUSTRIAL BLVD ACUITY WAY PANOLA RD 5518.2 4.18 2E+05 25,006 4,126 639,520$    26$             Collector 86.9 -$               ########## 207,959.13$ 169,404.64$   478,886.77$   19.15$     )

0000013290 PANOLA INDUSTRIAL BLVD ACUITY WAY MILLER RD 1398.9 0.53 37211 4,135 682 105,741$    26$             Collector -$                $  16,786.30 34,384.95$   28,010.17$     79,181.41$     19.15$     )

0000013300 PANOLA INDUSTRIAL BLVD MILLER RD EASTERLY PL 2265.2 1.72 1E+05 11,477 1,894 293,524$    26$             Collector -$                $  46,596.62 95,448.24$   77,752.66$     219,797.52$   19.15$     )

0000013310 PANOLA INDUSTRIAL BLVD EASTERLY PL PANOLA RD 1854.1 1.40 84547 9,394 1,550 240,254$    26$             Collector -$                $  38,140.09 78,125.94$   63,641.81$     179,907.84$   19.15$     )

S2310 S2310 ROCKLAND RD N GODDARD RD KLONDIKE RD 6852.2 2.60 1E+05 15,912 2,626 406,955$    26$             Minor Arterial 87.6 -$                $  64,603.62 132,333.68$ 107,799.74$   304,737.04$   19.15$     )

0000010530 ROCKLAND RD N GODDARD RD RAGSDALE RD 572.4 0.22 11963 1,329 219 33,995$      26$             Minor Arterial -$                $    5,396.64 11,054.45$   9,005.02$       25,456.11$     19.15$     )

0000010540 ROCKLAND RD RAGSDALE RD WADE RD 1801.6 0.68 37653 4,184 690 106,997$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  16,985.69 34,793.38$   28,342.88$     80,121.94$     19.15$     )

0000010550 ROCKLAND RD WADE RD KLONDIKE RD 4478.2 1.70 93594 10,399 1,716 265,963$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  42,221.29 86,485.85$   70,451.84$     199,158.98$   19.15$     )

S30 S30 ROGERS LAKE RD MADDOX RD LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD 4067.9 1.54 1E+05 12,023 1,984 307,485$    26$             Collector 87.9 -$                $  48,812.93 99,988.11$   81,450.86$     230,251.91$   19.15$     )

0000017340 ROGERS LAKE RD MADDOX RD LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD 4067.9 1.54 1E+05 12,023 1,984 307,485$    26$             Collector -$                $  48,812.93 99,988.11$   81,450.86$     230,251.91$   19.15$     )

S1100 S1100 BEECHWOOD FOREST DR 3953.5 1.50 1E+05 13,528 2,232 345,976$    26$             Local 88.1 -$                $  54,923.23 112,504.42$ 91,646.71$     259,074.36$   19.15$     )

0000001030 BEECHWOOD FOREST LN BROWNS MILL RD BEECHWOOD FOREST DR 439.5 0.17 11163 1,240 205 31,722$      26$             Local -$                $    5,035.75 10,315.21$   8,402.82$       23,753.78$     19.15$     )

0000001040 BEECHWOOD FOREST DR WEST END BEECHWOOD FOREST LN 1305.1 0.49 44054 4,895 808 125,187$    26$             Local -$                $  19,873.25 40,708.25$   33,161.16$     93,742.65$     19.15$     )

0000001050 BEECHWOOD FOREST DR BEECHWOOD FOREST LN BEECHWOOD FOREST CT 371 0.14 10868 1,208 199 30,883$      26$             Local -$                $    4,902.68 10,042.61$   8,180.77$       23,126.05$     19.15$     )

0000001060 BEECHWOOD FOREST DR BEECHWOOD FOREST CT SOUTH END 1349 0.51 38759 4,307 711 110,140$    26$             Local -$                $  17,484.62 35,815.38$   29,175.41$     82,475.41$     19.15$     )

0000001070 BEECHWOOD FOREST CT END BEECHWOOD FOREST DR 488.9 0.19 16907 1,879 310 48,044$      26$             Local -$                $    7,626.94 15,622.97$   12,726.56$     35,976.46$     19.15$     )

S70 S70 LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD CITY LIMIT ROCK CHAPEL RD 1126 1.07 63702 7,078 1,168 181,020$    26$             Minor Arterial 88.6 -$                $  28,736.68 58,864.05$   47,950.97$     135,551.70$   19.15$     )

0000013220 LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD CITY LIMIT ROCK CHAPEL RD 1126 1.07 63702 7,078 1,168 181,020$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  28,736.68 58,864.05$   47,950.97$     135,551.70$   19.15$     )

S1980 S1980 KLONDIKE RD N GODDARD RD ROCKLAND RD 6006.7 2.28 1E+05 16,485 2,720 421,604$    26$             Collector 89.4 -$                $  66,929.10 137,097.17$ 111,680.11$   315,706.38$   19.15$     )

0000008500 KLONDIKE RD N GODDARD RD ROCKLAND RD 6006.7 2.28 1E+05 16,485 2,720 421,604$    26$             Collector -$                $  66,929.10 137,097.17$ 111,680.11$   315,706.38$   19.15$     )

S1740 S1740 S GODDARD RD 1064.3 0.40 38435 4,271 705 109,219$    26$             Local 89.8 -$                $  17,338.46 35,515.99$   28,931.52$     81,785.96$     19.15$     )

0000010380 S GODDARD RD END KLONDIKE RD 1064.3 0.40 38435 4,271 705 109,219$    26$             Local -$                $  17,338.46 35,515.99$   28,931.52$     81,785.96$     19.15$     )

S1470 S1470 KLONDIKE WAY 559.6 0.21 12761 1,418 234 36,263$      26$             Local 90.8 -$                $    5,756.63 11,791.84$   9,605.70$       27,154.17$     19.15$     )

0000011530 KLONDIKE WAY WOODROW DR KLONDIKE RD 559.6 0.21 12761 1,418 234 36,263$      26$             Local -$                $    5,756.63 11,791.84$   9,605.70$       27,154.17$     19.15$     )

S2320 S2320 ROCKLAND RD KLONDIKE RD TURNER HILL RD 8540 3.23 2E+05 20,512 3,384 524,589$    26$             Minor Arterial 90.8 -$                $  83,277.82 170,585.79$ 138,960.12$   392,823.72$   19.15$     )

0000010560 ROCKLAND RD KLONDIKE RD PLUNKETT RD 1227 0.46 26231 2,915 481 74,540$      26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  11,833.10 24,238.84$   19,745.09$     55,817.03$     19.15$     )

0000010570 ROCKLAND RD PLUNKETT RD STONELEIGH WALK 2533.5 0.96 52950 5,883 971 150,466$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  23,886.33 48,928.62$   39,857.52$     112,672.48$   19.15$     )

0000010580 ROCKLAND RD STONELEIGH WALK CRAGSTONE RD 2525.6 0.96 52785 5,865 968 149,997$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  23,811.90 48,776.16$   39,733.32$     112,321.38$   19.15$     )

0000010590 ROCKLAND RD CRAGSTONE RD BEDROCK CIR 408.4 0.15 10087 1,121 185 28,664$      26$             Minor Arterial -$                $    4,550.36 9,320.93$      7,592.88$       21,464.16$     19.15$     )

0000010600 ROCKLAND RD BEDROCK CIR MCDANIEL MILL RD 1047.9 0.40 25883 2,876 475 73,551$      26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  11,676.11 23,917.27$   19,483.14$     55,076.52$     19.15$     )

0000010610 ROCKLAND RD MCDANIEL MILL RD TURNER HILL RD 797.6 0.30 16670 1,852 306 47,371$      26$             Minor Arterial -$                $    7,520.02 15,403.97$   12,548.16$     35,472.15$     19.15$     )

S440 S440 CHUPP RD 5071.7 1.92 1E+05 13,335 2,200 341,048$    26$             Local 91 -$                $  54,141.00 110,902.11$ 90,341.46$     255,384.57$   19.15$     )

0000013480 CHUPP RD HILLANDALE DR & LITHONIA INDUSTRIAL BLVD MACEDONIA RD 901.8 0.34 26730 2,970 490 75,958$      26$             Local -$                $  12,058.20 24,699.95$   20,120.71$     56,878.86$     19.15$     )

0000013490 CHUPP RD MACEDONIA RD EVANS MILL DR 1776.5 0.67 34994 3,888 642 99,441$      26$             Local -$                $  15,786.18 32,336.32$   26,341.34$     74,463.85$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

33 3:28 PM

166

Item III. j.



 City of Stonecrest

 Section Attributes
 All Sections

Supe

r ID

Segment 

ID
Street Name From To

Length 

(ft)

Lane-miles 

(mi)

Area 

(sq.ft.)
Area (SY.)

PATCHING 

TONS 3"

  PATCHING 

COST 

$155/TN )

  PATCHING 

COST SY )

Functional 

Class

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

Rehab 

Cost
Comments

STANTEC SY 

ESTIMATE

3" MILL 

$4.06 SY

175# 19M 

$86.63

125# 12.5M 

$98.90

ERS 

CONTRACT 

ESTIMATE

ERS SY 

ESTIMAT

E
###########

0000013500 CHUPP RD EVANS MILL DR HUBER ST 1320.1 0.50 34548 3,839 633 98,174$      26$             Local -$                $  15,584.99 31,924.19$   26,005.62$     73,514.80$     19.15$     )

0000013510 CHUPP RD HUBER ST COVINGTON HWY 1073.3 0.41 23745 2,638 435 67,475$      26$             Local -$                $  10,711.63 21,941.65$   17,873.78$     50,527.06$     19.15$     )

S340 S340 STONE MOUNTAIN ST CITY LIMIT S STONE MOUNTAIN LITHONIA RD 2786.2 1.06 79407 8,823 1,456 225,648$    26$             Minor Arterial 91.4 -$                $  35,821.38 73,376.30$   59,772.74$     168,970.42$   19.15$     )

0000017150 STONE MOUNTAIN ST CITY LIMIT S STONE MOUNTAIN LITHONIA RD 2786.2 1.06 79407 8,823 1,456 225,648$    26$             Minor Arterial -$                $  35,821.38 73,376.30$   59,772.74$     168,970.42$   19.15$     )

S2050 S2050 WADE RD 789.3 0.30 12443 1,383 228 35,359$      26$             Local 95.2 -$                $    5,613.18 11,498.00$   9,366.33$       26,477.50$     19.15$     )

0000011010 WADE RD EVANS MILL RD END 789.3 0.30 12443 1,383 228 35,359$      26$             Local -$                $    5,613.18 11,498.00$   9,366.33$       26,477.50$     19.15$     )

S2110 S2110 HUNTERS VLY 1210.6 0.46 27594 3,066 506 78,413$      26$             Local 95.6 -$                $  12,447.96 25,498.33$   20,771.08$     58,717.36$     19.15$     )

0000001850 HUNTERS VLY CROSSVALE RD END 1210.6 0.46 27594 3,066 506 78,413$      26$             Local -$                $  12,447.96 25,498.33$   20,771.08$     58,717.36$     19.15$     )

S1680 S1680 BAYBERRY WAY 9623.3 3.65 2E+05 25,700 4,241 657,286$    26$             Local 98.1 -$               ########## 213,736.31$ 174,110.76$   492,190.42$   19.15$     )

0000012060 WATER WILLOW WAY MCDANIEL MILL RD ROSEBAY WAY 186.2 0.07 4206 467 77 11,952$      26$             Local -$                $    1,897.37 3,886.57$      3,166.02$       8,949.96$       19.15$     )

0000012070 WATER WILLOW WAY ROSEBAY WAY BAYBERRY WAY 269 0.10 6280 698 115 17,846$      26$             Local -$                $    2,832.98 5,803.05$      4,727.20$       13,363.23$     19.15$     )

0000012080 WATER WILLOW WAY BAYBERRY WAY STONECREEK CIR 451 0.17 10025 1,114 184 28,488$      26$             Local -$                $    4,522.39 9,263.63$      7,546.21$       21,332.23$     19.15$     )

0000012090 STONECREEK CIR WATER WILLOW WAY MOSS STONE DR 665.5 0.25 14565 1,618 267 41,389$      26$             Local -$                $    6,570.43 13,458.84$   10,963.64$     30,992.91$     19.15$     )

0000012100 STONECREEK CIR MOSS STONE DR WATER WILLOW WAY 696.4 0.26 15901 1,767 292 45,185$      26$             Local -$                $    7,173.12 14,693.37$   11,969.30$     33,835.79$     19.15$     )

0000012110 MOSS STONE DR STONECREEK CIR BAYBERRY WAY 533.7 0.20 11863 1,318 217 33,711$      26$             Local -$                $    5,351.53 10,962.04$   8,929.74$       25,243.32$     19.15$     )

0000012120 MOSS STONE DR BAYBERRY WAY BROOK PARK TRL 314.4 0.12 6677 742 122 18,974$      26$             Local -$                $    3,012.07 6,169.90$      5,026.04$       14,208.01$     19.15$     )

0000012130 MOSS STONE DR BROOK PARK TRL BROOK PARK TRL 125.4 0.05 2977 331 55 8,460$        26$             Local -$                $    1,342.96 2,750.91$      2,240.90$       6,334.77$       19.15$     )

0000012140 MOSS STONE DR BROOK PARK TRL MCDANIEL MILL RD 220.5 0.08 5129 570 94 14,575$      26$             Local -$                $    2,313.75 4,739.47$      3,860.80$       10,914.02$     19.15$     )

0000012150 ROSEBAY WAY WATER WILLOW WAY BAYBERRY WAY 1506.7 0.57 40526 4,503 743 115,161$    26$             Local -$                $  18,281.73 37,448.19$   30,505.50$     86,235.41$     19.15$     )

0000012160 ROSEBAY WAY BAYBERRY WAY WINTERBERRY TRCE 575.5 0.22 13334 1,482 244 37,891$      26$             Local -$                $    6,015.12 12,321.33$   10,037.02$     28,373.46$     19.15$     )

0000012170 ROSEBAY WAY WINTERBERRY TRCE CDS 984.9 0.37 24068 2,674 441 68,393$      26$             Local -$                $  10,857.34 22,240.12$   18,116.92$     51,214.38$     19.15$     )

0000012180 WINTERBERRY TRCE END ROSEBAY WAY 237.8 0.09 9104 1,012 167 25,871$      26$             Local -$                $    4,106.92 8,412.58$      6,852.93$       19,372.43$     19.15$     )

0000012190 BAYBERRY WAY ROSEBAY WAY WATER WILLOW WAY 357.3 0.14 7375 819 135 20,957$      26$             Local -$                $    3,326.94 6,814.89$      5,551.45$       15,693.29$     19.15$     )

0000012200 BAYBERRY WAY WATER WILLOW WAY MOSS STONE DR 1520.2 0.58 34307 3,812 629 97,489$      26$             Local -$                $  15,476.27 31,701.50$   25,824.21$     73,001.98$     19.15$     )

0000012210 BROOK PARK TRL MOSS STONE DR [W] MOSS STONE DR [E] 978.8 0.37 24966 2,774 458 70,945$      26$             Local -$                $  11,262.44 23,069.92$   18,792.88$     53,125.23$     19.15$     )

S890 S890 IVYLOG CT 615.1 0.23 16544 1,838 303 47,013$      26$             Local 98.6 -$                $    7,463.18 15,287.54$   12,453.31$     35,204.03$     19.15$     )

0000005070 IVYLOG CT END MILLER RD 615.1 0.23 16544 1,838 303 47,013$      26$             Local -$                $    7,463.18 15,287.54$   12,453.31$     35,204.03$     19.15$     )

S2030 S2030 HERITAGE ESTS 2509.9 0.95 58336 6,482 1,069 165,771$    26$             Local 100 -$                $  26,316.02 53,905.58$   43,911.78$     124,133.37$   19.15$     )

0000010760 ESTATES WALK END HERITAGE ESTS [W] 180 0.07 5001 556 92 14,211$      26$             Local -$                $    2,256.01 4,621.19$      3,764.45$       10,641.64$     19.15$     )

0000010770 ESTATES WALK HERITAGE ESTS [W] HERITAGE ESTS [E] 367.2 0.14 7640 849 140 21,710$      26$             Local -$                $    3,446.49 7,059.77$      5,750.93$       16,257.18$     19.15$     )

0000010780 HERITAGE ESTS ESTATES WALK [W] ESTATES WALK [E] 1539 0.58 39466 4,385 724 112,149$    26$             Local -$                $  17,803.55 36,468.69$   29,707.59$     83,979.83$     19.15$     )

0000010790 HERITAGE ESTS ESTATES WALK [E] ROCKLAND RD 423.7 0.16 6229 692 114 17,701$      26$             Local -$                $    2,809.97 5,755.93$      4,688.81$       13,254.71$     19.15$     )

12/9/2021
Stantec RoadMatrix

34 3:28 PM

167

Item III. j.



Street Name From To

Pavement 

Condition 

Index (PCI)

District

Hunters Crossing pt 20.6 3

Flat Rock Road
Browns Mill 

Road
Evans Mill Road 22.7 5

Winchester Subdivision 24.5 4

McKenna Square Subdivision 24.6 2

E Glen Road Evans Mill Road End 25.6 5

Woodgrove Subdivision 25.6 3

Trails at Savoy Chase 

Subdivision
26 4

Ragsdale Road Rockland Road Evans Mill Road 26.4 5

Marbut Commons Subdivision 26.5 1

Rolling Meadow Court
Thompson Mill 

Road
End 27.2 2

Stratford Farms Subdivision 27.2 2

Davidson Drive/Court
Covington 

Highway
Main Street 27.3 1

Evans Mill Drive Chupp Road End 27.3 5

Stonecrest Trace Mall Parkway Mall Ring Road 27.3 1

Woodcliffe West Subdivision 27.4 1

Maddox Road
Rogers Lake 

Road

Rock Chapel 

Road
28.3 1

Sandstone Estates Subdivision 28.4 4

Panola Valley Subdivision 28.9 4

Millers Crossing Subdivision 28.9 2

Williams Grant Reynolds Drive Magnolia Street Klondike Road 28.9 1

Havenwood Subdivision 29 3

Windsor Estates Subdivision 29.5 2

Coffee Road
Rogers Lake 

Road
End 29.9 1

Glencroft Subdivision 31.2 3

Plunkett Road
S Goddard 

Road
End 31.5 5

Idlewood Crossing Subdivision 31.7 5

Spangle Way
Covington 

Highway
End 32.1 2

Lithonia West Drive
Covington 

Highway
End 32.5 2

Buckingham Subdivision 33.1 3

Laurel Post Close Subdivision 33.1 1

Cleveland Woods Subdivision 33.9 4

168

Item III. j.



Snapfinger Square Industrial 

Park
34.4 2

Wade Road Rockland Road End 34.4 5

Easterly Place
Panola 

Industrial Blvd

Snapfinger 

Woods Dr
34.9 2

169

Item III. j.



2021 2022

$14,000,000 $7,834,909.36 8,000,000.00$    Resurfacing (includes $1M LMIG)

$59,750.00 65,000.00$        CEI

$2,700,000.00 $0.00 2,700,000.00$    Sidewalks / Trails (

$500,000 $81,455.00 Bus Pads, benches, and shelters

$100,000 $0.00 100,000.00$      Transportation Studies

$0 $0.00 $0.00 Intersection Improvements

$150,000 $0.00 150,000.00$      Capital Building Improvements

$2,500,000.00 $1,000,000.00 1,500,000.00$    Park Improvements

$2,500,000.00 $2,000,000.00 500,000.00$      Design/Reserve for Major Road Improvements (next 2 years) Home depot

$22,450,000.00 10,976,114.36$  13,015,000.00$  total

1,550,000.00$    $3,023,885.64 $985,000.00 Difference

24,000,000.00$   23,991,114.36$  

170

Item III. j.



171

Item III. j.



Design/Reserve for Major Road Improvements (next 2 years) Home depot

172

Item III. j.



Project

Name 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Transportation Projects

Road Paving $7,834,909 $7,285,000 $6,400,000 $6,250,000 $6,000,000 $33,769,909

Bus Pads, Benches, Shelters $81,455 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $156,455

Construction Engineering and Inspection Services $59,750 $65,000 $124,750

Industrial way (Home Depot) $2,000,000 $2,000,000

Quick Response Improvement Projects $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $300,000

Traffic Signal Maintenance/Upgrades $225,000 $450,000 $675,000

Gateway Bridge Study $75,000 $75,000

Stonecrest Streetscape Design $75,000 $75,000

Freight Traffic Ordinance <--- $50,000 $50,000

Panola Road Study $100,000 $100,000

Browns Mill Elementary School Sidewalks $120,500 $120,500

Browns Mill Rd Sidewalks (Segment 1) $93,300 $93,300

Covington Highway Sidewalk - Miller Rd $230,300 $230,300

Evans Mill Rd Sidewalks (Segment 1) $119,700 $119,700

Evans Mill Rd Sidewalks (Segment 2) $15,700 $15,700

Ottawa Trl Sidewalk $186,600 $186,600

Panola Road Sidewalks - North Segment 1 $66,900 $66,900

Panola Road Sidewalks - Segment 1 $43,800 $43,800

2020 TMP Mid Term Recommendation Intersection Improvement $200,000 $350,000 $1,025,000 $1,575,000

2020 TMP Mid Term Recommendation Intersection Improvement $200,000 $350,000 $550,000

2020 TMP Mid Term Recommendation Sidewalk Improvement $500,000 $500,000 $1,000,000

Subtotal $9,976,114 $7,350,000 $8,000,400 $8,001,400 $8,000,000 $41,327,914

Capital Building Improvements

Future City Hall $24,520 $150,000 $174,520

Future Public Safety Complex

Park Improvements

4 Granite stone retaining wall @ Salem park $30,000 $30,000

Fiscal Year Total Budget

City of Stonecrest Capital/SPLOST Budget

Total

173

Item III. j.



Basketball court upgrades $60,000 $60,000

Building upgrades $200,000 $200,000

Building upgrades $250,000 $250,000

Fencing improvements $100,000 $100,000

Field upgrades $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $2,000,000
Light upgrades $300,000 $500,000 $800,000
Masterplan for park studies and design $300,000 $300,000

Modular Classroom $40,000 $40,000

New Fairington Park Property Botanical Garden $100,000 $100,000

Outdoor Exercise equipment $80,000 $80,000

Park Furniture $80,000 $80,000 $160,000

Parking lot paving $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $600,000

Pavilion upgrades $60,000 $60,000

Playground install/upgrade $300,000 $300,000

Playground upgrades $450,000 $150,000 $600,000

Prefabricated Restrooms $360,000 $360,000

Riverbank Restoration $1,050,500 $1,050,500

174

Item III. j.



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

tmp7414  - Page 1 of 2 
  

SUBJECT: Update on Transition to In-house Services 
 

 

AGENDA SECTION: (check all that apply) 
 

☐ PRESENTATION      ☐ PUBLIC HEARING      ☐ CONSENT AGENDA     ☐ OLD BUSINESS   

☒ NEW BUSINESS       ☐ OTHER, PLEASE STATE: Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

 

CATEGORY: (check all that apply) 
 

☐ ORDINANCE ☐ RESOLUTION  ☐ CONTRACT  ☐ POLICY ☒  STATUS REPORT     

☐ OTHER, PLEASE STATE: Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

 

ACTION REQUESTED: ☐ DECISION ☐ DISCUSSION, ☐ REVIEW, or ☒ UPDATE ONLY       
 

 

Previously Heard Date(s):  Click or tap to enter a date. & Click or tap to enter a date. 

Current Work Session:  Click or tap to enter a date.     

Current Council Meeting: Monday, December 13, 2021     
 

 

SUBMITTED BY: Marla Greene  
 

PRESENTER: Janice Allen Jackson  
 

PURPOSE: Transition Update and/or Extensions 

 

FACTS: The Jacobs contract is on schedule to end as of December 31, 2021. Per our request, Jacobs will 

extend the services of several Department Directors on either a full-time or part-time basis as needed to 

ensure continuity. Executive Search firm Baker Tilly  has presented candidates for Human Resources 

Director and City Clerk, and will present candidates for Planning & Zoning Director, and Communications 

Director later this week. The Acting Human Resources Director is working with Department Directors to 

write job descriptions for positions approved in the FY22 budget and to advertise those positions. Ashley 

Capital has indicated our office space should be ready by March 1, 2022. We will also update you on the 

status of Requests for Proposals for various services.    

 

OPTIONS: Choose an item. Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: None Required 
 

175

Item IV. a.



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

tmp7414  - Page 2 of 2 
  

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

(1) Attachment 1 -  Click or tap here to enter text. 
(2) Attachment 2 -  Click or tap here to enter text. 
(3) Attachment 3 -  Click or tap here to enter text. 
(4) Attachment 4 -  Click or tap here to enter text. 
(5) Attachment 5 -  Click or tap here to enter text.  

176

Item IV. a.


	Top
	Item III. a.	Payroll, Meeting and Holiday Calendar
	A.0.Cover Letter_Payroll Calendar
	A.1.Attach_Payroll Calendar
	A.2.Attach_Payroll Calendar Cut Off Dates
	2022 Stonecrest Holiday and Council Meeting List

	Item III. b.	GMA 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan
	B0.Agenda Cover Memo - 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan jim
	B2.Stonecrest 401(a) AA 12 3 21
	B1.Stonecrest Cover Letter 12 3 21
	B3.Stonecrest DC Addendum 12 3 21

	Item III. c.	Personnel Policies Manual
	Agenda Cover Memo - Personnel Policies Manual jim
	Personnel Policies Manual - Draft 12012021

	Item III. d.	Mauldin and Jenkins Expansion of Services
	B.0. Mauldin and Jenkins Cover
	New_ATACH (1) Mauldin and Jenkins Request for Change Order Approval - 2020 Audit 12 2 2021

	Item III. e.	American Relief Plan Act Management Presentation
	C0..American Relief Plan Act Management_COVER jim

	Item III. f.	Draft Fleet Policy
	D0.Draft Fleet Policy_Cover (1) jim
	draft fleet policy

	Item III. g.	Parks Department Proposed FY22 Special Event City Calendar
	E.0.Department Leisure Services Proposed FY22 Special Event CITY calendar_COVER jim
	2022 Events Calendar updated
	Proposed Vendor Based Events for 2022

	Item III. h.	Cooperation Agreement with the East Metro Dekalb CID
	F0.Cooperation Agreement with the East Metro Dekalb CID_COVER jim
	East Metro Dekalb Cooperation Agreement Resolution
	East Metro Dekalb Creation Resolution
	Draft Cooperation Agreement between East Metro DeKalb CID and City

	Item III. i.	ARC Freight Cluster Grant Award
	G0.ARC Freight Cluster Grant Award_COVER
	Stonecrest FCP Award - 08-21

	Item III. j.	2021-22 Paving Program Update and Capital Improvement Plan
	H0.2021-22 paving update_Agenda Cover Memo jim
	Discussion of 2-Year Resurfacing Program 9_20_21
	Resurfacing Working Document MTL
	Copy of FY22-25 Capital Plan grs 120821

	Item IV. a.	City Manager Update
	JAJ Agenda Cover Transition Update mdg 12-9-21

	Bottom



